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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This report (“this report”) combines the Annual Retg on Form 10-K for the year ended December 8102f Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc., a Maryland corporation, and Suntioiel OP, LP, a Delaware limited partnership.

Unless stated otherwise or the context otherwigeires, references in this report to:

° “Summit REIT" mean Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., a Maryland ocoation;
° “Summit OF' or “our operating partnerst” mean Summit Hotel OP, LP, a Delaware limited pastnip; anc
° “we” “our” “us” “our compan” or “the compan’ mean Summit REIT, Summit OP and their consolidatdskidiaries take

together as one company. When this report discusseders to activities occurring prior to Febiyd#d, 2011, the date on which
our operations commenced, these references reSirrtonit Hotel Properties, LLC, our predeces

Summit REIT is the sole member of Summit Hotel GIEC, a Delaware limited liability company, whichtise sole general partner
(the “General Partner”) of Summit OP. As of Decem®l, 2010, Summit REIT owned a 99.9% limited penghip interest in Summit OP and
the General Partner owned a 0.1% general partpeirgieirest in Summit OP. Effective as of Februbdy 2011, the partnership agreement of
Summit OP was amended and restated. As a resufim® OP’s equity interests include common unifgesenting general and limited
partnership interests (“Common Units”). As of Dedxer 31, 2010, Summit REIT owned an approximate pagtnership interest in Summit
OP, including the sole general partnership intenekt by the General Partner. As the sole membireoGeneral Partner, Summit REIT has
exclusive control of our operating partnership’g-iaday management.

We believe combining the Annual Reports on FornK1®Summit REIT and Summit OP into this single agprovides the
following benefits:

° it enhances investors’ understanding of SummiffRiad Summit OP by enabling investors to viewhisiness as a whole in the
same manner as management views and operatessihess

° it eliminates duplicative disclosure and providemore streamlined and readable presentation aisobstantial portion of the
disclosure applies to both Summit REIT and Sumn#lt énd

° it creates time and cost efficiencies for both camies through the preparation of one combined tépstead of two separa
reports.

We believe it is important to understand the feffedences between Summit REIT and Summit OP irctirgext of how Summit
REIT and Summit OP operate as a consolidated coynpdnmmit REIT intends to elect and qualify tothred as a real estate investment trust
(“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue Code of 1985amended (the “Code”), for its short taxable yawating December 31, 2011.

Summit REIT’s only material assets are its owngrstiiCommon Units of Summit OP and its ownershithef membership interests
in the General Partner. As a result, Summit REd&sdnot conduct business itself, other than cdimgplthrough the General Partner, Summit
OP, raising capital through issuances of equitysges from time to time and guaranteeing certigbt of Summit OP and its
subsidiaries. Summit OP and its subsidiaries h#ilthe assets of the consolidated company. ExXoeptet proceeds from securities issuances
by Summit REIT, which are contributed to Summit @Rxchange for partnership units of Summit OP, 8itn®P and its subsidiaries
generate capital from the operation of our busiaesk through borrowings and the issuance of pestiye units of Summit OP.




Stockholders’ equity, partners’ capital and nonoalfihg interests are the main areas of differebemveen the consolidated financial
statements of Summit REIT and those of Summit SBmmit OP’s capital interests includes Common Umfsesenting general and limited
partnership interests. The Common Units ownedrbitdd partners other than Summit REIT and its &libges are accounted for in partners’
capital in Summit OP’s consolidated financial sta¢@ts and (within stockholders’ equity) as nonadltitrg interests in Summit REIT's
consolidated financial statements.

In order to highlight the differences between SutRitIT and Summit OP, there are sections in thperethat separately discuss
Summit REIT and Summit OP, including separate foi@rstatements and notes thereto and separatbiE3hiand Exhibit 32
certifications. In the sections that combine disare for Summit REIT and Summit OP (i.e., wheeedltsclosure refers to the consolidated
company), this report refers to actions or holdiag®ur actions or holdings and, unless otherwidieated, means the actions or holdings of
Summit REIT and Summit OP and their respective islidr$es, as one consolidated company.

As the sole member of the General Partner, SumgiT Ronsolidates Summit OP for financial reportmgposes, and Summit RE
does not have assets other than its investmeheiGeneral Partner and Summit OP. Therefore, wglilekholders’ equity and partnersipital
differ as discussed above, the assets and ligsildf Summit REIT and Summit OP are the same dnriggpective financial statements.

Finally, we refer to a number of other entitieshiis report as follows. Unless the context otheeaiequires or indicates, reference
° “the LLC" refer to Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and referemnizx“our predecess” refer to the LLC and its consolidat

subsidiaries, including Summit Group of Scottsdalézona, LLC (“Summit of Scottsdale”); Effectiveebruary 14, 2011, the
LLC was merged with and into Summit OP with Sum@R surviving the merger and succeeding to the basiand assets of-

LLC;
° “Summit TR refer to Summit Hotel TRS, Inc., a Delaware corfiorg
° “our TRS” refer to Summit TRS and any other taxable REIT slidases “TRS¢") that we may form in the futur
° “our TRS lessees” refer to our TRSs and the whmlned subsidiaries of our TRSs that lease owlsiéitom our operating

partnership or subsidiaries of our operating pastmip.

° “The Summit Group” refer to The Summit Group,.lraur predecessor’s hotel management company, @wyridanager and
Class C Membe
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMEN TS

This report, together with other statements andrinftion publicly disseminated by us, containsaiertorward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securittes of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act"Y] &gction 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Wend such forward-looking statements to be covbsethe safe harbor provisions for
forward-looking statements contained in the Priv&eurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and indduthis statement for purposes of
complying with these safe harbor provisions. Fodsaoking statements, which are based on certaimassons and describe our future pla
strategies and expectations, are generally idebtdiby use of the words “believe,” “expect,” “inte” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project” or
similar expressions. Forward-looking statementis report include, among others, statements atnaubusiness strategy, including
acquisition and development strategies, induseyds, estimated revenue and expenses, abilitataealeferred tax assets and expected
liquidity needs and sources (including capital exgiires and the ability to obtain financing orsetapital). You should not rely on forward-
looking statements since they involve known andnamkn risks, uncertainties and other factors that iarsome cases, beyond our control and
which could materially affect actual results, pemfances or achievements. Factors that may causal aesults to differ materially from curre
expectations include, but are not limited to:

° the timing and availability of potential hotel aésjtions and our ability to identify and completetél acquisitions in accordan
with our business strateg

° risks associated with the hotel industry, includbmgnpetition, increases in employment costs, eneogys and other operati
costs, or decreases in demand caused by actuakateéned terrorist attacks, any type of flu oedse-related pandemic, or
downturns in general and local economic conditit

° the availability and terms of financing and capéat the general volatility of securities marki
° our dependence on third-party managers of owlidhcluding our inability to implement stratedpasiness decisions directly;
° risks associated with the real estate industigluding environmental contamination and costsoohglying with the Americans

with Disabilities Act and similar law:

° interest rate increase

° our possible failure to qualify as a REIT and fis& of changes in laws affecting REITS;

° the possibility of uninsured losses;

° risks associated with redevelopment and repasitgpprojects, including delays and cost overriams}

the other factors discussed under the heg“Risk Factor” in this report.

Accordingly, there is no assurance that our expecs will be realized. Except as otherwise reqibbg the federal securities laws,
we disclaim any obligations or undertaking to pciglrelease any updates or revisions to any forvi@olting statement contained herein (or
elsewhere) to reflect any change in our expectatwith regard thereto or any change in events, iiond or circumstances on which any such
statement is based.




PART |
Iltem 1. Business.

All references and descriptions in this report talg to assets owned and business conducted mriBebruary 14, 2011, the date of comple
of Summit REIT’s initial public offering and therfwation transactions, refer to the business of pradecessor, which was merged into Summit
OP as part of the formation transactions in coni@ctvith the initial public offering.

Overview

We are a self-managed hotel investment companynthatrecently organized to continue and expaneéxiging hotel investment
business of our predecessor, Summit Hotel ProgeltleC, a leading U.S. hotel owner. We focus exgkly on acquiring and owning
premium-branded limited-service and select-serkimtels in the upscale and midscale without foodtanderage segments of the U.S. lodging
industry. We completed our initial public offerifgur “IPO”) and other formation transactions andhocoenced operations on February 14,
2011.

As of December 31, 2010, our hotel portfolio cotexisof 65 hotels with a total of 6,533 guestroootated in 19 states. Based on
total number of rooms, 48% of our portfolio is gasied in the top 50 metropolitan statistical ar€¢8SAs”) and 68% is located within the ti
100 MSAs.

As we disclosed in the prospectus for our IPO,cuurent portfolio consists of what we consider ‘s®#ed” and “unseasoned”
hotels. At the time of our IPO, we classified 4@®uor hotels as seasoned based on their constnuatiacquisition date and we classified 19 of
our hotels as unseasoned, those hotels that wtber built after January 1, 2007 or experiencedaad conversion since January 1, 2008. We
will continue to report results using this clagsation for these 65 hotels only through Decembe2811, beyond which time the categories
will have become less meaningful. All of our hetale located in markets in which we have exterssxperience and that exhibit multiple
demand generators, such as business and corpesatquarters, retail centers, airports and touttisictions.

At December 31, 2010, the majority of our hotelsrape under premium franchise brands owned by Btatriternational, Inc.
(Courtyard® by Marriott, Residence Infiby Marriott, SpringHill Suite® by Marriott, Fairfield Inn® by Marriott and TownePlace Suit@by
Marriott), Hilton Worldwide (Hampton In®, Hampton Inn & Suite® and Hilton Garden Inf), IHG (Holiday Inn Expres® and Staybridge
Suites®) and an affiliate of Hyatt Hotels Corporation (HyRlace®). Our franchise mix, by total number of roomsnsists of Marriott (2,754
rooms, or 42%), Hilton Worldwide (1,331 rooms, 6&), IHG (639 rooms, or 10%), Hyatt Hotels and Res(b56 rooms, or 9%) and others
(1,253 rooms, or 19%). Smith Travel Research diass28 of our hotels within the “upscale” segmantl 36 of our hotels within therfidscale
without food and beverage” segment. We classifyang independent hotel as midscale without foodtewtrage.

Our corporate offices are located at 2701 Southnlota Avenue, Suite 6, Sioux Falls, South Dal&ta05. Our telephone number
is (605) 361-9566. Our websitevisvw.shpreit.com The information contained on, or accessible throwgin website is not incorporated by
reference into this report and should not be cameida part of this report.

Development of Business

Summit REIT was formed June 30, 2010 as a Marytamgoration. On February 14, 2011, we closed B@ &nd a concurrent
private placement and sold a total of 27,274,0@0eshof common stock.

We conduct substantially all of our business thtoagr operating partnership, which was formed areJ80, 2010 as a Delaware
limited partnership. Effective February 14, 20aar predecessor merged with and into our opergtamtnership (the “Merger”) with our
operating partnership as the surviving entity amteeding to the business and ownership of theo6showned by our predecessor. At the
effective time of the Merger, the outstanding mersbip interests in our predecessor were conventied and cancelled in exchange for,
Common Units and the members of our predecessa adimitted as limited partners of our operatingrgaship. Also effective February 14,
2011, The Summit Group contributed its Class B menstip interest in Summit of Scottsdale, which owns hotels in Scottsdale, Arizona,
our operating partnership and an unaffiliated tmagty investor contributed its Class C membergtiigrest in Summit of Scottsdale to our
operating partnership. We refer to these transastis the “formation transactions.”




We intend to elect to be taxed as a REIT for fedammme tax purposes beginning with our short bkdexgear ending December 31,
2011. To qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate onaga our hotels. Instead, we lease our hotelstdR& lessees, which are wholly owned,
directly or indirectly, by our operating partnershDur TRS lessees have engaged Interstate Manag€@uompany (“Interstate”o operate an
manage our hotels pursuant to a hotel managemezgragnt and may engage other third-party hotel gemant companies to operate and
manage our hotels in the future.

Business Strategy

We focus on acquiring, owning, renovating, repositig and aggressively asset-managing and selbctieling premium-branded
limited-service and select-service hotels in thecafe and midscale without food and beverage segnoéthe U.S. lodging industry. We seek
to maximize the cash flow of our portfolio throufgitused asset management, targeted capital inviestamd opportunistic acquisitions.

We believe the U.S. economy and the U.S. lodgidgstry in particular has begun to recover fromreent economic recession a
as a result, lodging industry fundamentals will tomme to strengthen over the near-term. As a readtbelieve our portfolio is well-positioned
for significant internal growth in hotel operatingvenue in this environment based on our mix ofsead hotels and unseasoned hotels. We
believe we can create long-term value by pursuiegdllowing strategies:

° Disciplined Acquisitions of Hotel PropertiesWe believe that the significant decline in lodgindustry fundamentals from 20(
through early 2010 and the resultant declines & é®ws has created a difficult environment fotdh@wners lacking ready
access to financing or suffering from reduced dlshs. As a result, we believe that the significanmber of hotel properties
experiencing substantial declines in operating ¢ash coupled with tight credit markets, near-tedebt maturities and, in some
instances, covenant defaults relating to outstanidebtedness, will present attractive investnogortunities to acquire hotel
properties at prices significantly below replacetwst, with substantial appreciation potentialresU.S. economy recovers. '
intend to grow through acquisitions of existingdistusing a disciplined approach while maintairangrudent capital structure.
We intend to target upscale and midscale withood fand beverage hotels that meet one or more dbtlogving acquisition

criteria:

° have potential for strong riskdjusted returns located in the top 50 MSAs, wileeondary focus on the next 100 mark

° operate under leading franchise brands, which imayde but are not limited to brands owned by fiddt; Hilton, IHG
and Hyatt;

° are located in close proximity to multiple demayssherators, including businesses and corporatigoesters, retail

centers, airports, medical facilities, touristattions and convention centers, with a diversecgoaf potential guests,
including corporate, government and leisure trage

° are located in markets exhibiting barriers tayedtie to strong franchise areas of protectiontbeiofactors;
° can be acquired at a discount to replacement and
° provide an opportunity to add value through opaméfficiencies, repositioning, renovating or retatimg.




° Selective Hotel Developmehe believe there will be attractive opportunitiepartner on a selective basis with experienced
hotel developers to acquire upon completion newlystructed hotels that meet our investment crit

° Strategic Hotel SalesA primary part of our strategy is to acquire anchdvatels. However, consistent with our strategy of
maximizing the cash flow of our portfolio and oeturn on invested capital, we periodically review botels to determine if ar
significant changes to area markets or our hotal® loccurred or are anticipated to occur that wawddant the sale of a
particular hotel

° Capitalize on Investments in Our Hote Since January 1, 2007, our predecessor madexapaiely $311.0 million of capite
investments through development, strategic acéuisitand upgrades and improvements to our hotelatigipation of
improving general lodging fundamentals, includipp@ximately $270.3 million of capital investmentaur unseasoned
portfolio. We believe these investments are pagpifigas our unseasoned hotels have demonstrateificignt revenue per
available room (“RevPAR”) growth of 13.6% for thegr ended December 31, 2010, surpassing the RegRaRh rates of
5.7% and 4.3% reported by Smith Travel Researcthfoupscale and midscale without food and bevesagments nationally.
Likewise, we believe that the investments sincer260ur seasoned portfolio also will produce atixee returns. We expect the
performance of our seasoned hotels, approxima&B96 of which by room count as of December 31, 28#0midscale without
food and beverage properties and approximatelys@#which by room count as of December 31, 20E0d@cated outside the
top 50 MSAs, generally to track the performancéhete hotels during the prior lodging industry rery when owned by The
Summit Group and our predecessor. During that gefiom June 2003 to November 2008, the performafhoar seasoned
hotels initially trailed the upper-upscale segnarthe beginning of the growth cycle, but ultimgtgénerated total RevPAR
growth of 57.9%, significantly in excess of the(®3.RevPAR growth produced by the upper-upscale sagduring the same
recovery period. We believe that our seasoned hatel currently following, and expect that theyl likiely continue to follow, a
similar RevPAR growth path during the current indysecovery.

Our Financing Strategy

We expect to maintain a prudent capital structume &ollowing application of the net proceeds frim IPO and the concurrent
private placement (including the repayment of irniddhess), intend to limit the sum of the outstagdirincipal amount of our consolidated net
indebtedness to not more than 50% of the sum oéquity market capitalization and consolidatedinéébtedness. Over time, we intend to
finance our longerm growth with common and preferred equity issesrand debt financing having staggered maturi@es.debt may incluc
mortgage debt secured by hotels and unsecured Bebing the second quarter of 2011, we anticigattering into the credit facility described
in “Our Anticipated Senior Secured Revolving Crdiility” below to fund future acquisitions, as s for property redevelopments, capital
expenditures and working capital requirements.

When purchasing hotel properties, we may issue Comignits as full or partial consideration to sedletho may desire to take
advantage of tax deferral on the sale of a hotpbaticipate in the potential appreciation in vadfi@ur common stock.

Competition

We face competition for investments in hotel proierfrom institutional pension funds, private ggunvestors, REITs, hotel
companies and others who are engaged in hotelsittqus and investments. Some of these entitiee babstantially greater financial and
operational resources than we have. This competitiay increase the bargaining power of propertyera/seeking to sell, reduce the number
of suitable investment opportunities available $cand increase the cost of acquiring our targedeel properties.

The lodging industry is highly competitive. Our aistwill compete with other hotels for guests iaitlrespective markets based on a
number of factors, including location, conveniertm@nd affiliation, room rates, range of serviced guest amenities or accommodations
offered and quality of customer service. Compaetitidll often be specific to the individual markétswhich our hotels are located and includes
competition from existing and new hotels. Competitcould adversely affect our occupancy rates (Iipancy”), our average daily rates
(“ADR") and our RevPAR, and may require us to paevadditional amenities or make capital improvemémat we otherwise would not have
to make, which may reduce our profitability.




Seasonality

Certain segments of the hotel industry are seasometure. Leisure travelers tend to travel nowgng the summer. Business
travelers occupy hotels relatively consistentlyptighout the year, but decreases in business taeal during summer and the winter
holidays. The hotel industry is also seasonal dapen geography. Hotels in the southern U.S. terve higher occupancy rates during the
winter months. Hotels in the northern U.S. tenfidge higher occupancy rates during the summerhmsont

Due to our portfolio’s geographic diversificatianyr revenue has not experienced significant seéisorfeor the year ended
December 31, 2010, our predecessor received 23f li%total revenue in the first quarter, 26.4%he second quarter, 27.7% in the third
quarter and 22.7% in the fourth quarter. For ther ysmded December 31, 2009, our predecessor rec2i2% of its total revenue in the first
quarter, 25.8% in the second quarter, 26.6% irihing quarter and 23.4% in the fourth quarter.

Regulation

Our properties are subject to various covenantss,lardinances and regulations, including regufetieelating to accessibility, fire
and safety requirements. We believe each of otiaiiotels has the necessary permits and apprévalgserate its business.

Americans with Disabilities Act

Our properties must comply with Title Il of the ADto the extent that they are “public accommodaticas defined by the ADA.
Under the ADA, all public accommodations must nfederal requirements related to access and usesabpldd persons. The ADA may
require removal of structural barriers to accespdmgons with disabilities in certain public areésur properties where removal is readily
achievable. Although we believe the propertiesinmortfolio substantially comply with present régments of the ADA, we have not
conducted a comprehensive audit or investigatioaladf our properties to determine our compliararg] we are aware that some particular
properties may currently be in non-compliance wlith ADA. Noncompliance with the ADA could resulttime incurrence of additional costs to
attain compliance. The obligation to make readdsiavable accommodations is an ongoing one, andilveontinue to assess our properties
and to make alterations as appropriate in thise@tsp

Environmental, Health and Safety Matters

Our hotels and development parcels are subjedriouws federal, state and local environmental lasimpose liability for
contamination. Under these laws, governmentaliestitave the authority to require us, as the ctimemer of property, to perform or pay for
the clean up of contamination (including hazardsulsstances, waste, or petroleum products) at,rateror emanating from the property and
to pay for natural resource damages arising frontaznination. These laws often impose liability witit regard to whether the owner or
operator or other responsible party knew of, oiseduthe contamination, and the liability may bat@ind several. Because these laws also
impose liability on persons who owned a propertthattime it became contaminated, we could inceamlip costs or other environmental
liabilities even after we sell properties. Contaation at, on, under or emanating from our propgrigo may expose us to liability to private
parties for costs of remediation, personal injurg death and/or property damage. In addition, enwirental liens may be created on
contaminated sites in favor of the government fomedges and costs it incurs to address contamindtioontamination is discovered on our
properties, environmental laws also may imposeiotisins on the manner in which property may bedusebusinesses may be operated, and
these restrictions may require substantial expareit Moreover, environmental contamination caaciffhe value of a property and, therefore,
an owner’s ability to borrow funds using the prdpexrs collateral or to sell the property on favdealerms or at all. Furthermore, persons who
sent waste to a waste disposal facility, suchlasdfill or an incinerator, may be liable for coatssociated with cleanup of that facility.




Some of our properties may have contained histerés which involved the use and/or storage of ldazesrchemicals and petroleum
products (for example, storage tanks, gas stattngs;leaning operations) which, if released, cchdste impacted our properties. In addition,
some of our properties may be near or adjacerttter properties that have contained or currenthta@io storage tanks containing petroleum
products or conducted or currently conduct openatighich utilize other hazardous or toxic substanBeleases from these adjacent or
surrounding properties could impact our properdied we may be liable for any associated cleanup.

Independent environmental consultants conductedePhanvironmental site assessments on all of mpepties prior to acquisition
and we intend to conduct Phase | environmentabsisessments on properties we acquire in the fuRbigse | site assessments are intended to
discover and evaluate information regarding thérenmental condition of the surveyed properties smadounding properties. These
assessments do not generally include soil samgdingsurface investigations, comprehensive asbsgtosys or mold investigations. In some
cases, the Phase | environmental site assessmergsanducted by another entity (i.e., a lended)vaa may not have the authority to rely on
such reports. Except for our Bloomington, Minnedwdtels, and our Cambria Suites hotel located mAatonio, Texas, none of the Phase |
environmental site assessments of the hotel priepért our initial portfolio revealed any past segent environmental condition that we
believe could have a material adverse effect orbaginess, assets or results of operations. Soigesundwater contamination at the site of
Bloomington, Minnesota hotels was voluntarily remageld by our predecessor to the satisfaction oMhmesota Pollution Control Agency. A
material liability could arise in the future if tikentamination at the site of the Bloomington, Misata hotels impacted third parties or an
adjacent property if the Minnesota agency reqdinether clean-up or if our predecessor’s clean-ogsihot satisfy the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency. Soil and groundwater contamamatias also identified in an undeveloped portionwfproperty adjacent to our Cambria
Suites hotel located in San Antonio, Texas. Theemy was sampled on two occasions, after whicheonironmental consultant recommen
no further action unless the contaminated soil distsirbed. A material liability could arise in theure if the contamination impacts an
adjacent property or if we are required to remeditain addition, the Phase | environmental sigegssments may also have failed to reveal all
environmental conditions, liabilities or complianm@ncerns. The Phase | environmental site assessmere completed at various times wit
the past seven and ohelf years and material environmental conditioiailities or compliance concerns may have aridtsr ghe review wa
completed or may arise in the future; and futuvesleordinances or regulations may impose matedditi@nal environmental liability.

In addition, our hotels (including our real propexperations and equipment) are subject to varfiedsral, state and local
environmental, health and safety regulatory requénets that address a wide variety of issues, imfydbut not limited to, the registration,
maintenance and operation of our boilers and séotagks, the supply of potable water to our guastemissions from emergency generators,
storm water and wastewater discharges, protecfioatoral resources, asbestos, lead-based paifd,and mildew, and waste management.
Some of our hotels also routinely handle and ugard®us or regulated substances and wastes a¥f plagir operations, which are subject to
regulation (for example, swimming pool chemicaldmiogical waste). Our hotels incur costs to compith these environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations and if these regulateguirements are not met or unforeseen event# ieghe discharge of dangerous or toxic
substances at our hotels, we could be subjechés faind penalties for non-compliance with applieddlvs and material liability from third
parties for harm to the environment, damage topegberty or personal injury and death. We are awéno past or present environmental
liability for non-compliance with environmental, dith and safety laws and regulations that we beligould have a material adverse effect on
our business, assets or results of operations.

Certain hotels we currently own or those we acqiuithe future contain, may contain, or may havetamed, ACM. Environmental,
health and safety laws require that ACM be properanaged and maintained, and include requiremenisdertake special precautions, such
as removal or abatement, if ACM would be disturbadng maintenance, renovation, or demolition dudding. These laws regarding ACM
may impose fines and penalties on building ownemrgployers and operators for failure to comply witbse requirements or expose us to third-
party liability.




When excessive moisture accumulates in buildingsdsuilding materials, mold growth may occur, artgrly if the moisture
problem remains undiscovered or is not addressedaperiod of time. Some molds may produce aifoorins or irritants. Indoor air quality
issues can also stem from inadequate ventilativemécal contamination from indoor or outdoor sosr@nd other biological contaminants
such as pollen, viruses and bacteria. Indoor expdsuairborne toxins or irritants above certaiels can be alleged to cause a variety of
adverse health effects and symptoms, includinggitier other reactions. As a result, the preseficgignificant mold or other airborne
contaminants at any of our properties could requsréo undertake a costly remediation program tdaio or remove the mold or other airbc
contaminants from the affected property or incréadeor ventilation. For example, a large-scaleediation took place at the Amerisuites Las
Colinas/Hidden Ranch hotel in 2002 and we expemdaghly $500,000 to complete the renovation. Initiaig the presence of significant
mold or other airborne contaminants could expos®e usaterial liability from third parties if propgrdamage or personal injury occurs. We are
not presently aware of any indoor air quality issaeour properties that would result in a matexiblerse effect on our business, assets or
results of operations.

Tax Status

Upon filing our federal income tax return for otnost taxable year ending December 31, 2011, weelgltt to be taxed as a REIT for
federal income tax purposes under the Code. Ouifigation as a REIT depends upon our ability toaty@n a continuing basis, through actual
investment and operating results, various compexirements under the Code relating to, among dftfiregs, the sources of our gross income,
the composition and values of our assets, ouriligion levels and the diversity of ownership of shares of beneficial interest. We believe
that we were organized in conformity with the regments for qualification as a REIT under the Cade that our current and intended mai
of operation will enable us to meet the requirersdort qualification and taxation as a REIT for femléncome tax purposes commencing with
our short taxable year ending December 31, 201Xantinuing thereafter.

In order for the income from our hotel operatiomgdnstitute “rents from real property” for purpssd the gross income tests
required for REIT qualification, we cannot directiperate any of our hotel properties. Instead, wetriease our hotel properties. Accordingly,
we lease each of our hotel properties to one off&®R8 lessees, which are wholly owned by our opegatartnership. Our TRS lessees pay rent
to us that will qualify as “rents from real propgettprovided that the TRS lessees engage “eligitdiependent contractors” to manage our
hotels. A TRS is a corporate subsidiary of a RE@t jointly elects with the REIT to be treated a8R5 of the REIT and that pays federal
income tax at regular corporate rates on its taxatdome. All of the hotels in our portfolio are$ed to one of our TRS lessees, which pays us
rent out of the revenue of the hotels. Our TRSdesdave engaged Interstate to manage the hotals initial portfolio. We believe Interstate
qualifies as an eligible independent contractor.

As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to feléncome tax on our REIT taxable income that watrithute currently to our
shareholders. Under the Code, REITs are subjeuinterous organizational and operational requiremyémtiuding a requirement that they
distribute each year at least 90% of their tax@ideme, determined without regard to the dedudimordividends paid and excluding any net
capital gains. If we fail to qualify for taxatios a REIT in any taxable year and do not qualifyciertain statutory relief provisions, our income
for that year will be taxed at regular corporatesaand we will be disqualified from taxation aREIT for the four taxable years following the
year during which we ceased to qualify as a REMer&f we qualify as a REIT for federal income faxposes, we may still be subjectto s
and local taxes on our income and assets and éodieiticome and excise taxes on our undistributedme. Additionally, any income earned
by our TRS Lessees will be fully subject to fedestdte and local corporate income tax.

Employees

We currently employ 18 full-time employees. Noneoaf employees is a member of any union; howewnesemployees of our
hotel managers at several of our hotels are clyrespiresented by labor unions and are subjeobleative bargaining agreements.




Available Information

Our Internet website is located at www.shpreit.cQuopies of the charters of the committees of oarth@f directors, our code of
business conduct and ethics and our corporate ganee guidelines are available on our websiterejdbrts that we have filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) inclgdims Annual Report on Form 10-K and our curr@ptarts on Form 8-K, can be
obtained free of charge from the SEC’s websitevawsec.gov or through our website. In addition refiorts filed with the SEC may be read
and copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room @F18treet, NE, Washington, D.C. 2054890. Further information regarding the opere
of the public reference room may be obtained blzathe SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

The following risk factors address the materiaks€oncerning our business. If any of the risksudised in this report were to occur,
our business, prospects, financial condition, ressaf operation and our ability to service our dabd make distributions to our stockholders
could be materially and adversely affected andntiaeket price per share of our common stock couldie significantly. Some statements in
this report, including statements in the followingk factors constitute forward-looking statemeftkease refer to the section entitled
“Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-LookingtStaents.”

Risks Related to Our Business

Our business strategy depends significantly on amling revenue and net income growth from anticipdticreases in demand for
hotel rooms—any delay or a weaker than anticipaetbnomic recovery will adversely affect our futuresults of operations and our
growth prospects.

Our hotel properties experienced declining opegapierformance across various U.S. markets duriegegbent economic recession.
Our business strategy depends significantly oneatig revenue and net income growth from anticigp@tgprovement in demand for hotel
rooms as part of a future economic recovery. Wayawer, cannot provide any assurances that demarmbfel rooms will increase from
current levels, or the time or extent of any demgumivth that we do experience. If demand doesnmwease in the near future, or if demand
weakens further, our operating results and growtisgects could be adversely affected. In particwaralready have reduced our operating
expenses significantly in response to the recama@mic recession and our ability to reduce opegatixpenses further to improve our opera
performance is limited. As a result, any delay @resmker than anticipated economic recovery willeadely affect our future results of
operations and our growth prospects.

Our unseasoned hotels have limited, if any, opengthistory and may not achieve the operating perfance we anticipate, and as a
result, our overall returns may not improve as wepect or may decline.

Our unseasoned hotels have experienced extendslizsiiton periods as a result of the significaatlihe in general economic
conditions. Consequently, many of these hotelsigoeatto generate negative cash flow beyond ouiraigxpectations for them. Significant
increases in anticipated hotel room supply or desee in hotel room demand in the markets where@aeyr more of our unseasoned hotel:
located could cause the operating performanceasfetiotels to be below our original plans for thErmacroeconomic conditions or
conditions specific to their markets do not impraignificantly or our anticipated improved resuitis these hotels do not otherwise materia
our overall returns may not improve as we expechay decline.

We have no operating history as a publicly tradeBIR and may not be successful in operating as a paly traded REIT, which may
adversely affect our ability to make distributions our stockholders.

We have no operating history as a publicly tradediTRThe REIT rules and regulations are highly téchl and complex. We cannot
assure you that our management team’s past expenveii be sufficient to successfully operate oampany as a publicly traded REIT,
implement appropriate operating and investmencpasiand comply with Code or Treasury Regulatibias are applicable to us. Failure to
comply with the income, asset, and other requirgsmiemposed by the REIT rules and regulations cpuéent us from qualifying as a REIT,
and could force us to pay unexpected taxes andtpeEnahich may adversely affect our ability to neadistributions to our stockholders.




Our success depends on key personnel whose contirsggvice is not guaranteed.

We depend on the efforts and expertise of our mamagt team to manage our day-to-day operationstaaiggic business direction.
The loss of services from any of the members ofnrosanagement team, particularly our Executive ChairnMr. Boekelheide, and our
President and Chief Executive Officer, Daniel Pnstn, and our inability to find suitable replacetsem a timely basis could have an adverse
effect on our operations.

We may be unable to complete acquisitions that vébgtow our business.

Our growth strategy includes the disciplined actjois of hotels as opportunities arise. Our abitityacquire hotels on satisfactory
terms or at all is subject to the following sigo#nt risks:

e we may be unable to acquire or may be forced taieeat significantly higher prices desired hotsgause of competition fro
other real estate investors with more capital uditig other real estate operating companies, R&fhfsinvestment fund.

e we may be unable to obtain the necessary debtuwitydmancing to consummate an acquisition oghfainable, financing may n
be on satisfactory terms; a

e agreements for the acquisition of hotels arecglpi subject to customary conditions to closimgiluding satisfactory completion of
due diligence investigations, and we may spendftignt time and money on potential acquisitionattive do not consummal

If we cannot complete hotel acquisitions on favtgdabrms or at all, our business, financial cowditiresults of operations and cash
flow, the market price per share of our commonlstood our ability to satisfy our debt service oatigns and make distributions to our
stockholders could be materially and adverselycadi

The purchase of the hotels we have under contraegtynmot be consummated in a timely manner or at all.

We have entered into three agreements to purcbasédtels: one for a 216-room hotel located in dmwn Minneapolis,
Minnesota; one for a 143-room hotel located in Bul@Georgia and a 121-room hotel located in Glen@@kenver), Colorado; and one for a 91-
room hotel located in Ridgeland, Mississippi.

The closings of the purchases of these hotelsunjec to satisfaction of customary closing requieats and conditions and there is
no assurance that they will be consummated in elyimnanner or at all. These transactions, whethapbsuccessful, require substantial time
and attention from management. Furthermore, thesmpal acquisitions requires significant expenseluding expenses for due diligence,
legal fees and related overhead. To the extentoneotiacquire these hotels, these expenses wibaoffset by revenue from these hotel
properties. If we do not consummate these acquistin a timely manner or at all, our financialuleswould be adversely affected.

We may fail to successfully integrate and operaaly acquired hotels.
Our ability to successfully integrate and operaely acquired hotels is subject to the followingks:

e we may not possess the same level of familiarithh wie dynamics and market conditions of any newkseta that we may ente
which could result in us paying too much for hofelsew markets

e market conditions may result in lower than expeateclipancy and room rate

e we may acquire hotels without any recourse, or witly limited recourse, for liabilities, whetherdaun or unknown, such as cle-
up of environmental contamination, claims by teeaméndors or other persons against the former mofdhe hotels and claims
for indemnification by general partners, directafficers and others indemnified by the former ovenaf the hotels

e we may need to spend more than budgeted amoumntake necessary improvements or renovations to @ulyracquired hotels
and




e we may be unable to quickly and efficiently im&tg new acquisitions, particularly acquisitiongoftfolios of hotels, into our
existing operations

If we cannot operate acquired hotels to meet oatsgor expectations, our business, financial caorliresults of operations and cash
flow, the market price per share of our commonlstood our ability to satisfy our debt service olatigns and make distributions to our
stockholders could be materially and adverselycadi

We may not succeed in managing our growth, in whicase our financial results could be adversely affed.

Our ability to grow our business depends upon camagement team’s business contacts and theiryatoilguccessfully hire, train,
supervise and manage additional personnel. We mialyenable to hire and train sufficient personmadevelop management, information and
operating systems suitable for our expected grolithe are unable to manage any future growth éffely, our operations and financial
results could be adversely affected.

The management of all of the hotels in our portfoliwill be concentrated in one hotel management camp.

All of the hotels in our portfolio are operated Ipyerstate. This significant concentration of ctexdid operational risk in one hotel
management company makes us more vulnerable eccalgnthan if we entered into hotel management egents with several hotel
management companies. Any adverse developmentsarsiate’s business and affairs, financial stiegtability to operate our hotels
efficiently and effectively could have a materidlarse effect on our results of operations. We ogassure you that Interstate will have
sufficient assets, income and access to finanaidgrsurance coverage to enable it to satisfyhitigyations to us or effectively and efficiently
operate our hotel properties. The failure or ingbdf Interstate to satisfy its obligations to arseffectively and efficiently operate our hotel
properties would materially reduce our revenueragtdncome, which could in turn reduce the amotimup distributable cash and cause the
market price per share of our common stock to decli

Termination of our hotel management agreement wititerstate may cause us to pay substantial termioatfees or to experience
significant disruptions at the affected hotels.

If we replace Interstate as the hotel manager pioéuour hotels, we may be required to pay a suttistietermination fee and we may
experience significant disruptions at the affedtetkl. If we experience disruptions at the affedtetel, our financial condition, results of
operations and our ability to service debt and ndik&ibutions to our stockholders could be matiriand adversely affected.

Restrictive covenants and other provisions in hotehnagement and franchise agreements could precluddrom taking actions with
respect to the sale, refinancing or rebranding ohatel that would otherwise be in our best interest

Hotel management and franchise agreements typicatiyain restrictive covenants and other provisib@as do not provide us with
flexibility to sell, refinance or rebrand a hoteitlout the consent of a manager or franchisor.@xample, the terms of some of these
agreements may restrict our ability to sell a hatééss the purchaser is not a competitor of thelmbanagement company or franchisor,
assumes the related agreement and meets spedifezdconditions. In addition, our franchise agreetaeestrict our ability to rebrand
particular hotels without the consent of the frasah which could result in significant operationi#ruptions or possibly litigation if we do not
obtain the consent. We could be forced to pay aurepossibly termination fees to hotel manageffsamchisors under these agreements as a
condition to changing management or franchise tyafidur hotels, and these fees could deter us faing actions that would otherwise b
our best interest or could cause us to incur sabataxpense.
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InterContinental Hotel Group (“IHG”) is not obligakd to refer acquisition opportunities to us and way fail to realize any benefits
from our sourcing agreement with IHG.

We consider IHG's potential willingness to refettgrtial acquisition opportunities to us, in IHG@es discretion, to be an important
component of the sourcing relationship we estabtishith IHG. Under the terms of the agreement edt@nto with IHG in connection with tf
concurrent private placement to it, however, IH@ nit be obligated to refer any of these oppottiesito us and there can be no assuranc
the sourcing agreement will result in the completid any transactions between us and IHG. As dtrege may not realize the benefits of this
agreement in full or at all.

We may not be able to cause Interstate or otherdhohanagement companies to operate any of our Iotela manner satisfactory to
us, which could adversely affect our financial coitidn, results of operations and our ability to sdce debt and make distributions to
our stockholders.

To qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate our hot#ls.lease our hotels to our TRS lessees, which éatered into a hotel
management agreement with Interstate, an “eligitde pendent contractor” to operate our hotels. Assalt, our financial condition, results of
operations and our ability to service debt and mdik&ibutions to stockholders are dependent oratiility of Interstate and any other hotel
management companies that we may retain in theeftituoperate our hotels successfully. Any failoydnterstate or other hotel management
companies to provide quality services and amenitigaaintain a quality brand name and reputatiariccbave a negative impact on their
ability to operate our hotels and could have a rmatand adverse affect our financial conditiorsuiés of operations and our ability to service
debt and make distributions to our stockholders.

We cannot and will not control the hotel managentempanies that operate and are responsible fortem&ince and other day-to-
day management of our hotels, including, but mottéd to, the implementation of significant opemgtdecisions. We cannot assure you that
our hotel management companies will manage ourgpti@s in a manner that is consistent with theligaltions under the management
agreement or our obligations under our hotel fresechgreements, that our hotel management compailiemt be negligent in their
performance or engage in other criminal or fraudugetivity, or that they will not otherwise defaah their management obligations to us. If
any of the foregoing occurs, our relationships wlith franchisors may be damaged and we may th@ntireach of the franchise agreements,
and we could incur liabilities resulting from lassinjury to our property or to persons at our digs, any of which could have a material
adverse effect on our operating results and firdraindition, as well as our ability to pay dividsrto stockholders.

Even if we believe a hotel is being operated icéfitly or in a manner that does not result ins¢atitory operating results, we will
have limited ability to require the hotel managetreampany to change its method of operation. Wesgsly will attempt to resolve issues
with our hotel management companies through disoassnd negotiations. However, if we are unableeétxh satisfactory results through
discussions and negotiations, we may choose ¢atéithe dispute or submit the matter to timedty dispute resolution or arbitration. We wc
only be able to seek redress if a hotel manageomnpany violates the terms of the applicable ho@hagement agreement, and then only to
the extent of the remedies provided for under ¢nens of the hotel management agreement. Our hatehgers or their affiliates manage, and
in some cases own, have invested in, or providedittsupport or operating guarantees to hotelsdbiapete with our hotels, all of which may
result in conflicts of interest. As a result, owtdd managers may in the future make decisionsdagcompeting lodging facilities that are 1
or would not be in our best interest.

Funds spent to maintain franchisor operating standts, the loss of a franchise license or a declimethe value of a franchise brand
may have a material adverse effect on our businasd financial results.

Our hotels operate under franchise agreementghamaintenance of franchise licenses for our Basesubject to our franchisors’
operating standards and other terms and conditilesexpect that franchisors will periodically inspeur hotels to ensure that we, our TRS
lessees and our hotel management companies madafranchisors’ standards. Failure by us, our Té&Sees or any of our hotel
management companies to maintain these standaodbesrterms and conditions could result in a frase license being canceled. If a
franchise license terminates due to our failuréke required improvements or to otherwise comptiy its terms, we could also be liable to
the franchisor for a termination payment, whichieaby franchisor and by hotel. As a condition of ocontinued holding of a franchise licen
a franchisor could also require us to make capitpfovements to our hotels, even if we do not belithe improvements are necessary or
desirable or would result in an acceptable returowr investment. Nonetheless, we may risk losifrguachise license if we do not make
franchisor-required capital improvements.
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If a franchisor terminated a franchise licensecaeld try either to obtain a suitable replacemesmdhise or to operate the hotel
without a franchise license. The loss of a franelticense could materially and adversely affectaperations or the underlying value of the
hotel because of the loss of associated name rigmosgmmarketing support and centralized reservatigstems provided by the franchisor. A
loss of a franchise license for one or more hotesticularly if our hotels become concentrated limited number of franchise brands in the
future, could materially and adversely affect cwranue. This loss of revenue could, therefore, als@rsely affect our financial condition,
results of operations and ability to service defat make distributions to our stockholders.

Negative publicity related to one of the franchisands or the general decline of a brand also rdagraely affect the underlying
value of our hotels or result in a reduction inibass.

We will rely on external sources of capital to furidture capital needs, and if we encounter diffiagylin obtaining such capital, we may
not be able to make future acquisitions necessargtow our business or meet maturing obligations.

In order to qualify as a REIT under the Code, wi bé required, among other things, to distribuaeleyear to our stockholders at
least 90% of our REIT taxable income, determinetthovit regard to the dividends paid deduction ardiuelkng any net capital gain. Becaus
this distribution requirement, we may not be abléund, from cash retained from operations, albaf future capital needs, including capital
needed to make investments and to satisfy or refmanaturing obligations.

We expect to rely on external sources of capiteluiding debt and equity financing, to fund futeepital needs. Part of our strategy
involves the use of additional debt financing tp@ement our equity capital. Our ability to effeetly implement and accomplish our business
strategy will be affected by our ability to obtaind utilize additional leverage in sufficient amtsuand on favorable terms. However, the re
U.S. and global economic slowdown has resulteddapatal environment characterized by limited aadaility of both debt and equity financir
increasing costs, stringent credit terms and dicamit volatility. If we are unable to obtain needegbital on satisfactory terms or at all, we may
not be able to make the investments needed to dxpambusiness, or to meet our obligations and cibmemts as they mature. Our access to
capital will depend upon a number of factors ovaiolr we have little or no control, including gerleraarket conditions, the market’s
perception of our current and potential future &ays and cash distributions and the market pridh@&hares of our common stock. We may
not be in a position to take advantage of attradtiwestment opportunities for growth if we are hieao access the capital markets on a timely
basis on favorable terms.

We may not be able to obtain a senior secured reing credit facility on the indicative terms desbed in this report or at all.

As described under Item 7. “Management’s Discusaiwh Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©Operations—Liquidity and
Capital Resources—Our Anticipated Senior SecuracRig Credit Facility,” we intend to enter into$200.0 million senior secured
revolving credit facility during the second quartér2011. We have negotiated indicative termdfierfacility with the administrative agent ¢
have obtained commitments for the full amount ef éinticipated credit facility. However, our alyilib obtain the credit facility remains
subject to satisfaction of the lenders’ due diligeand other conditions. These efforts are on-gdingwe may not succeed in obtaining a
senior secured revolving credit facility on theigaded terms or at all. Our failure to obtain thiedit facility could adversely affect our ability
to grow our business and meet our obligations eg tome due.
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We have a significant amount of debt, and our orgaational documents have no limitation on the amawof additional indebtedness
that we may incur in the future. As a result, we pnaecome highly leveraged in the future, which cdwddversely affect our financial
condition.

As of December 31, 2010, our predecessor haddatatanding indebtedness of approximately $420lWomj all of which was
secured. Following our IPO, as of March 30, 204 had total outstanding indebtedness of approxin&197.1 million, all of which is
secured indebtedness. We anticipate entering ifit08.0 million senior secured revolving creditiiagcand, in the future, we may incur
additional indebtedness to finance future hoteligsitions and development activities and other ooate purposes. In addition, there are no
restrictions in our charter or bylaws that limietamount or percentage of indebtedness that wamay or restrict the form in which our
indebtedness will be incurred (including recoursaean-recourse debt or cross-collateralized debt).

A substantial level of indebtedness could have eveonsequences for our business, results of tipesand financial condition
because it could, among other things:

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofaaish flow from operations to make principal artériest payments on o
indebtedness, thereby reducing our cash flow avaif® fund working capital, capital expenditures ather general corporate
purposes, including to pay dividends on our comstork as currently contemplated or necessary tsfhgahe requirements for
qualification as a REIT

e increase our vulnerability to general adverse egoo@nd industry conditions and limit our flexiltyliin planning for, or reacting t
changes in our business and our indus

e limit our ability to borrow additional funds or ie&nce indebtedness on favorable terms or at @kpand our business or e:
liquidity constraints; ani

e place us at a competitive disadvantage relativeiopetitors that have less indebtedn

The agreements governing our indebtedness placéri@ins on us and our subsidiaries, reducing opgional flexibility and creating
default risks.

The agreements governing our anticipated $100.@omiecured revolving credit facility and othed@btedness contain covenants
that place restrictions on us and our subsidialiBese covenants may restrict, among other aetiyibur and our subsidiaries’ ability to:

merge, consolidate or transfer all or substantiallyf our or our subsidiari’ assets

sell, transfer, pledge or encumber our stock ootheership interests of our subsidiari

incur additional debt or issue preferred stc

enter into, terminate or modify leases for our l#md hotel management and franchise agreen
make certain expenditures, including capital exjiengks;

pay dividends on or repurchase our capital stoaH;

enter into certain transactions with affiliat

These covenants could impair our ability to grow lousiness, take advantage of attractive busingssrtunities or successfully
compete. Our ability to comply with financial anther covenants may be affected by events beyondanirol, including prevailing econom
financial and industry conditions. A breach of afifhese covenants or covenants under any otheeagmnts governing our indebtedness ¢
result in an event of default. Cross-default priovis in our debt agreements could cause an evetdfatilt under one debt agreement to trigger
an event of default under our other debt agreemblptsn the occurrence of an event of default uadegrof our debt agreements, the lenders
could elect to declare all outstanding debt undehsigreements to be immediately due and paydble Were unable to repay or refinance
accelerated debt, the lenders could proceed agaigsissets pledged to secure that debt, inclddieglosing on or requiring the sale of our
hotels, and the proceeds from the sale of thesdshmiay not be sufficient to repay such debt ih ful
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Mortgage debt obligations expose us to the posiibdf foreclosure, which could result in the loss our investment in any hotel
subject to mortgage debt.

Borrowings under our anticipated $100.0 millionisesecured revolving credit facility will be, aagproximately $197.1 million of
our other debt is, secured by mortgages on out potperties and related assets. Incurring mortgegkother secured debt obligations
increases our risk of property losses because ldefau secured indebtedness may result in foreptosctions initiated by lenders and
ultimately our loss of the hotels securing any bfor which we are in default. If we are in defaulider a cross-defaulted mortgage loan, we
could lose multiple hotels to foreclosure. For paxposes, a foreclosure of any of our hotels wheldreated as a sale of the hotel for a
purchase price equal to the outstanding balanteeadebt secured by the mortgage. If the outstaridittance of the debt secured by the
mortgage exceeds our tax basis in the hotel, wddwegognize taxable income on foreclosure, butld/oot receive any cash proceeds, which
could hinder our ability to meet the REIT distrilout requirements imposed by the Code. As we exemutdusiness plan, we may assume or
incur new mortgage indebtedness on the hotelsripaorifolio or hotels that we acquire in the futubay default under any one of our
mortgage debt obligations may increase the rigkuofdefault on our other indebtedness.

An increase in interest rates would increase outénest costs on our variable rate debt and could@dely impact our ability to
refinance existing debt or sell assets.

Approximately $93.2 million of the approximately®2L1 million of outstanding indebtedness as of M&80, 2011 bears interest at
variable rates, as will all future borrowings under anticipated $100.0 million senior secured heing credit facility. An increase in interest
rates would increase our interest payments andceedur cash flow available for other corporate psgs, including capital improvements to
our hotels or acquisitions of additional hotelsatidition, rising interest rates could limit ouiiléyp to refinance existing debt when it matures
and increase interest costs on any debt thatirsarefed. Further, an increase in interest ratekldnarease the cost of financing, thereby
decreasing the amount third parties are willingag for our hotels, which would limit our abilitg tispose of hotels when necessary or
desired.

Although we have not entered into any hedging gearents, we may, from time to time, enter into agrents such as interest rate
swaps, caps, floors and other interest rate hedgingracts. However, these agreements reduce phbtdeliminate, the impact of rising
interest rates, and they also expose us to thehé@lother parties to the agreements will notgrenfor that the agreements will be
unenforceable.

Joint venture investments could be adversely aféecby a lack of sole decision-making authority witbspect to such investments.

In the future we may enter into strategic jointtugas with unaffiliated investors to acquire, dexglimprove or dispose of hotels,
thereby reducing the amount of capital requiredi®yo make investments and diversifying our cagitairces for growth. We may not have
sole decision-making authority with respect to thewestments, which may:

prevent us from taking actions that are opposedusyoint venture partner

create impasses on major decisions, such as atopssor sales

prevent us from selling our interests in the jeiahture without the consent of our joint venturetipers; ot
subject us to liability for the actions of our joirenture partner:

Joint venture investments could subject us to risk#ated to the financial condition of joint ventér partners.

If a joint venture partner becomes bankrupt or wtise defaults on its obligations under a jointtuea agreement, we and any other
remaining joint venture partners would generallpai liable for the joint venture liabilities. Fhermore, if a joint venture partner becomes
bankrupt or otherwise defaults on its obligationder a joint venture agreement, we may be unalderitinue the joint venture other than by
purchasing such joint venture partner’s interesthi® underlying assets at a premium to the mamiee. If any of the above risks are realized,
it could materially adversely affect our busindssgncial condition and results of operations and ability to make distributions to our
stockholders.
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We may have disputes with joint venture partners.

Disputes between us and our joint venture partmerg result in litigation or arbitration which coulitrease our expenses and pre
our officers and directors from focusing their tiarad effort on our business and could result ijesuiing the hotels owned by the applicable
joint venture to additional risk

Our tax protection agreements may require our openg partnership to maintain certain debt levelsghotherwise would not be
required to operate our business, which may impaur ability to generate cash available for distriban and otherwise not be in our
stockholders’ best interests.

Under the tax protection agreements entered intoupyperating partnership and certain of its idipartners, including The Sumi
Group, in connection with our formation transacsipour operating partnership has agreed to prdhioee limited partners with the opportur
to guarantee debt or enter into a deficit restoratibligation, both of which are intended to caasgpecial allocation of liabilities to those
limited partners to prevent them from recognizirtgxeable deemed cash distribution. If our operagiagnership fails to make those
opportunities available, our operating partnershilpbe required to deliver to each such limitedtpar a cash payment intended to approxi
that limited partner’s tax liability resulting froomur operating partnership’s failure to make sugpastunities available to them. Our operating
partnership agreed to these provisions in ordassist those limited partners in avoiding a taxdelemed cash distribution that may have
otherwise occurred in connection with the formati@nsactions. These obligations may require oeraing partnership to maintain more or
different indebtedness than would otherwise hawnlvequired for our business, which could resuliigher interest expense than we would
prefer to incur, reducing cash available for dsttion to stockholders.

Risks Related to the Lodging Industry
Recent economic conditions may continue to adversdfect the lodging industry.

The performance of the lodging industry has histily been closely linked to the performance ofdkeeral economy and,
specifically, growth in U.S. gross domestic prod{fI&DP”). The lodging industry is also sensitiveltosiness and personal discretionary
spending levels. Declines in corporate budgetscandumer demand due to adverse general econonddioos, risks affecting or reducing
travel patterns, lower consumer confidence or abspolitical conditions can lower the revenue ardifability of our assets and therefore the
net operating profits of our investments. The réesonomic downturn has led to a significant dexlimdemand for products and services
provided by the lodging industry. We anticipatet iy recovery of demand for lodging services laigj an improvement in economic
conditions. A further extended period of economé&akness could have an adverse impact on our rerlieegatively affect our profitabili

Competition from other upscale and midscale withdabd and beverage hotels in the markets in whick eperate could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operatson

The lodging industry is highly competitive. Our alstcompete with other hotels for guests in eactketan which our hotels operate
based on a number of factors, including locati@mvenience, brand affiliation, room rates, rangsesf/ices and guest amenities or
accommodations offered and quality of customerisenCompetition will often be specific to the imlual markets in which our hotels are
located and includes competition from existing aed/ hotels. Our competitors may have an operatiodainthat enables them to offer rooms
at lower rates than we can, which, particularlyhia current economic recession, could result incoanpetitors increasing their occupancy at
our expense. Competition could adversely affectomgupancy, ADR and RevPAR, and may require usduigee additional amenities or make
capital improvements that we otherwise would nateht® make, which could reduce our profitabilitydasould materially and adversely affect
our results of operations.
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Our investment opportunities and growth prospectayrbe affected by competition for investment oppaoities.

We compete for investment opportunities with otheatities, some of which have substantially grefatemncial resources than we do.
This competition may generally limit the numbersaftable investment opportunities offered to usicwimay limit our ability to grow. This
competition may also increase the bargaining paféne owners of assets seeking to sell to us, mgakimore difficult for us to acquire new
hotels on attractive terms or at all.

Our operating results and ability to make distribans to our stockholders may be adversely affedigdhe markets in which we
operate.

Our hotels will be subject to various operatingsisvithin the markets in which we operate. Thesksrinclude:

e over-building of hotels in our markets, which could abedy affect occupancy and revenue at the hotelacgeire;

adverse effects of international, national, regi@ma local economic and market conditions;

e changes in governmental laws and regulations,|fisa&cies and zoning ordinances and the relatestiscof compliance with law
and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinani

Our operating results and ability to make distribahs to our stockholders may be adversely affedigdhe risks inherent to the
ownership of hotels.

Hotels have different economic characteristics tmamy other real estate assets. A typical offiaperty owner, for example, has
long-term leases with third-party tenants, whicbvide a relatively stable long-term stream of rax@rBy contrast, our hotels are subject to
various operating risks common to the lodging indysnany of which are beyond our control, incluglihe following:

e dependence on business and commercial traveler®ansm;

e increases in energy costs and other expensesiaffédvel, which may affect travel patterns anduee the number of business ¢
commercial travelers and touris

e increases in operating costs due to inflation ahdrdfactors that may not be offset by increasetroates

e events beyond our control, such as terrorist astettavel related health concerns including pandsmand epidemics such as H1
influenza (swine flu), avian bird flu and severeitgcrespiratory syndrome (“SARS”), imposition okéa or surcharges by
regulatory authorities, travel-related accidentd anusual weather patterns, including natural tksasuch as hurricanes and
environmental disasters such as the oil spill @@ulf of Mexico;

e potential increases in labor costs at our hotetduding as a result of unionization of the labancg; anc

e adverse effects of a downturn in the lodging indu:

We have significant ongoing needs to make capitgbenditures in our hotels, which require us to deedunds to these purposes and
could pose related risks that might impair our aibyl to make distributions to our stockholders.

Our hotels have an ongoing need for renovationsodimel capital improvements, including replacemeintsn time to time, of
furniture, fixtures and equipment. Our franchisalso require periodic capital improvements as alitimm of keeping the franchise licenses. In
addition, lenders may require that we set asidei@mamounts for capital improvements to our as3étsse capital improvements and
replacements may give rise to the following risks:

e possible environmental problen
e construction cost overruns and dele
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e a possible shortage of available cash to fun@taledmprovements and replacements and, the refatedibility that financing for
these capital improvements may not be availabieston affordable term

e these capital improvements and replacements magrowee to be accretive to funds from operatic* FFC”); and

e uncertainties as to market demand or a loss of ena@dmand after capital improvements and replacenteve begur

If any of the above risks were to be realizedpitld materially adversely affect our business,dirial condition and results of
operations and our ability to make distribution®tw stockholders.

Hotel development is subject to timing, budgetingdeother risks. To the extent we develop hotelaoguire hotels that are under
development, these risks may adversely affect querating results and liquidity position.

We may develop hotels or acquire hotels that adeudevelopment from time to time as suitable ofyputies arise, taking into
consideration general economic conditions. Hotgelijpment involves a number of risks, including tbikowing:

possible environmental problen

construction delays or cost overruns that may es®eproject cost:

receipt of zoning, occupancy and other requireceguwmental permits and authorizatio
development costs incurred for projects that atgonosued to completiol

acts of God such as earthquakes, hurricanes, floofies that could adversely impact a proji
inability to raise capital; an

governmental restrictions on the nature or siza pfoject.

To the extent we develop hotels or acquire hotetteu development, we cannot assure you that arglai@went project will be
completed on time or within budget. Our inabilitydomplete a project on time or within budget mdyeasely affect our projected operating
results and our liquidity position.

The increasing use of Internet travel intermediasdy consumers may adversely affect our profitaigili

Our hotel rooms are likely to be booked througlednét travel intermediaries, including, but notited to, Travelocity.com,
Expedia.com and Priceline.com. As these Internekings increase, these intermediaries may be albbtain higher commissions, reduced
room rates or other significant contract concessfoom us and our management companies. Moreowere ®f these Internet travel
intermediaries are attempting to offer hotel ro@as commodity, by increasing the importance afepaind general indicators of quality (such
as “three-star downtown hotel”) at the expenserant) identification. These agencies hope that aoess will eventually develop brand
loyalties to their reservations system rather tioatie brands under which our hotels are franchigede amount of sales made through
Internet intermediaries increases significantlypmorevenue may flatten or decrease and our prdfitaimay be adversely affected.

Uninsured and underinsured losses could adversdfget our operating results.

We intend to maintain comprehensive insurance orhotels, including liability, fire and extendedvesage, of the type and amount
we believe are customarily obtained for or by ownarhotels similar to our hotels. Various typesafastrophic losses, like earthquakes and
floods, may not be insurable or may not be econaltyiinsurable. In the event of a substantial lass,insurance coverage may not be
sufficient to cover the full current market valuereplacement cost of our lost investment. Shouald@insured loss or a loss in excess of
insured limits occur, we could lose all or a partf the capital we have invested in a hotel, alé agethe anticipated future revenue from the
hotel. In that event, we might nevertheless remaligated for any mortgage debt or other financlaigations related to the asset. Inflation,
changes in building codes and ordinances, enviroteheonsiderations and other factors might alspkés from using insurance proceeds to
replace or renovate an asset after it has beengiahta destroyed. Under those circumstances, theance proceeds we receive might be
inadequate to restore our economic position ord#meaged or destroyed hotels.
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Risks Related to the Real Estate Industry and Redstate-Related Investments

Illiquidity of real estate investments could sigitantly impede our ability to respond to adverseadlges in the performance of hotels in
which we may invest or to adjust our portfolio irrsponse to changes in economic and other conditjarl, therefore, may harm our
financial condition.

In the future, we may decide to sell hotels. Ratdte investments are relatively illiquid. Our @pito promptly sell one or more
hotels in our portfolio in response to changingrexuic, financial and investment conditions mayibéteéd. We cannot predict whether we \
be able to sell any hotels for the price or ontérens set by us, or whether any price or otherdesffered by a prospective purchaser would be
acceptable to us. We also cannot predict the leofgiime needed to find a willing purchaser andltise the sale of an asset. The real estate
market is affected by many factors that are beymrrccontrol, including:

e adverse changes in international, national, rediand local economic and market conditio

e changes in interest rates and in the availabititgt and terms of debt financir

e changes in governmental laws and regulations, |faécies and zoning ordinances and the relatestiscof compliance with law
and regulations, fiscal policies and ordinant

e the ongoing need for capital improvements, paldidy in older structures, that may require ugxpend funds to correct defects or
to make improvements before an asset can be

e changes in operating expenses;

e civil unrest, acts of God, including earthquaklemds and other natural disasters, which maylté@suninsured losses, and acts of
war or terrorism, including the consequences oft¢herist acts such as those that occurred oreSdgar 11, 2001

Increases in our property taxes would adverselyegtfour operating results and our ability to makeésttibutions to our stockholders.

Our hotels are subject to real and personal prppaxes. These taxes may increase as tax rategela as our hotels are assessed
or reassessed by taxing authorities. If propestggancrease, our operating results and our abditpake distributions to our stockholders
could be adversely affected.

We could incur significant costs related to goverent regulation and litigation over environmental dalth and safety matters.

Our hotels and development parcels are subjedriows federal, state and local environmental ldasimpose liability for
contamination. Under these laws, governmentaliestitave the authority to require us, as the ctimemer of the property, to perform or pay
for the clean up of contamination (including hazarsl substances, waste or petroleum products) atinoler or emanating from the property
and to pay for natural resource damages arising frontamination. These laws often impose liabiithout regard to whether the owner or
operator or other responsible party knew of, oiseduthe contamination, and the liability may bat@ind several. Because these laws also
impose liability on persons who owned a propertthattime it became contaminated, we could inceamlip costs or other environmental
liabilities even after we sell properties. Contaation at, on, under or emanating from our propgrigso may expose us to liability to private
parties for costs of remediation, personal injurg death and/or property damage. In addition, enwirental liens may be created on
contaminated sites in favor of the government fimeges and costs it incurs to address contamindtioontamination is discovered on our
properties, environmental laws also may imposeiotisins on the manner in which property may bedusebusinesses may be operated, and
these restrictions may require substantial expareit Moreover, environmental contamination caaciffhe value of a property and, therefore,
an owner’s ability to borrow funds using the prdpexrs collateral or to sell the property on favdealerms or at all. Furthermore, persons who
sent waste to a waste disposal facility, suchlasdfill or an incinerator, may be liable for coatssociated with cleanup of that facility.

18




In addition, our hotels (including our real propexperations and equipment) are subject to varfiedsral, state and local
environmental, health and safety regulatory requénets that address a wide variety of issues, imfydbut not limited to, the registration,
maintenance and operation of our boilers and séotagks, the supply of potable water to our guastemissions from emergency generators,
storm water and wastewater discharges, protecfioatoral resources, asbestos, lead-based paifd,and mildew, and waste management.
Some of our hotels also routinely handle and ugard®us or regulated substances and wastes a¥f plaeir operations, which are subject to
regulation (for example, swimming pool chemicaldmiogical waste). Our hotels incur costs to compith these environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations and if these regulateguirements are not met or unforeseen event ieghe discharge of dangerous or toxic
substances at our hotels, we could be subjechés faind penalties for non-compliance with applieddlvs and material liability from third
parties for harm to the environment, damage topegberty or personal injury and death. We are awéno past or present environmental
liability for non-compliance with environmental, dith and safety laws and regulations that we beligould have a material adverse effect on
our business, assets or results of operations.

Certain hotels we currently own or those we acqiuirthe future contain, may contain, or may havetaimed, asbestos-containing
material (“ACM”). Environmental, health and saféayvs require that ACM be properly managed and raaiet, and include requirements to
undertake special precautions, such as removdiaiement, if ACM would be disturbed during maintece, renovation, or demolition of a
building. These laws regarding ACM may impose fiaad penalties on building owners, employers aretaiprs for failure to comply with
these requirements or expose us to third-partylitiab

Our properties may contain or develop harmful molahich could lead to liability for adverse healttifects and costs of remediating t
problem.

When excessive moisture accumulates in buildingsdsuilding materials, mold growth may occur, jgatarly if the moisture
problem remains undiscovered or is not addressedayperiod of time. Some molds may produce aiftorins or irritants. Indoor air quality
issues can also stem from inadequate ventilativemécal contamination from indoor or outdoor sosr@nd other biological contaminants
such as pollen, viruses and bacteria. Indoor exedsuairborne toxins or irritants above certaiels can be alleged to cause a variety of
adverse health effects and symptoms, includinggtier other reactions. As a result, the presarfignificant mold or other airborne
contaminants at any of our properties could requsréo undertake a costly remediation program tdaio or remove the mold or other airbc
contaminants from the affected property or incréadeor ventilation. In addition, the presenceighgficant mold or other airborne
contaminants could expose us to material liabitityn third parties if property damage or personglry occurs.

Compliance with the laws, regulations and covenatfitat apply to our hotels, including permit, liceasand zoning requirements, may
adversely affect our ability to make future acquisihs or renovations, result in significant costs delays and adversely affect our
growth strategy.

Our hotels are subject to various covenants aral laws and regulatory requirements, including peimg and licensing
requirements. Local regulations, including munitipalocal ordinances, zoning restrictions andrieste covenants imposed by community
developers may restrict our use of our hotels aay raquire us to obtain approval from local offisiar community standards organizations at
any time with respect to our hotels, including ptmacquiring a hotel or when undertaking any xeations of any of our hotels. Among other
things, these restrictions may relate to fire saféty, seismic, asbestos-cleanup or hazardous islaabatement requirements. We cannot
assure you that existing regulatory policies wilt adversely affect us or the timing or cost of &urtyre acquisitions or renovations, or that
additional regulations will not be adopted that Wancrease such delays or result in additionatd3ur growth strategy may be materially
and adversely affected by our ability to obtainnpiés, licenses and zoning approvals. Our failurelitain such permits, licenses and zoning
approvals could have a material adverse effecturrbosiness, financial condition and results ofraiens.

In addition, federal and state laws and regulatior@duding laws such as the Americans with Diséibg Act of 1990 (the “ADA"),
impose further restrictions on our operations. Uride ADA, all public accommodations must meet fatleequirements related to access and
use by disabled persons. Some of our hotels magrmly be in noncompliance with the ADA. If onerapre of the hotels in our portfolio is
in compliance with the ADA or any other regulatoeguirements, we may be required to incur additionats to bring the hotel into
compliance and we might incur damages or governah@éines. In addition, existing requirements magrge and future requirements may
require us to make significant unanticipated exjtenes that would adversely impact our businessfcial condition, results of operations i
cash flow, the market price per share of our comstonk and our ability to satisfy our debt senatdigations and to make distributions to our
stockholders.
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We assumed liabilities in connection with the formian transactions, including unknown liabilities, tich, if significant, could
adversely affect our business.

As part of the formation transactions, we assunxéstirg liabilities of our predecessor and its l&fes, including, but not limited to,
liabilities in connection with our hotels, somevdfich may be unknown or unquantifiable. Unknowbiliies might include liabilities for
cleanup or remediation of undisclosed environmestatitions, claims of hotel guests, vendors oepfiersons dealing with our predecessor,
The Summit Group, and their affiliates, tax liatd#ls, employment-related issues and accrued buidtipbilities whether incurred in the
ordinary course of business or otherwise. In adidjtthe aggregate value of Common Units issuelddrfdrmation transactions was less than
the value assumed in the fairness opinion, ourgmessor and we will not benefit from the fairngsmion rendered to our predecessor. This
could increase our exposure to claims, if broutitatt the Merger was not fair to our predecessoemivers. If the magnitude of such unknown
liabilities is high, they could adversely affectrdausiness, financial condition, results of openadiand cash flow, the market price per share of
our common stock and our ability to satisfy ourtdsdrvice obligations and to make distributions.

Tax consequences to holders of Common Units upogake or refinancing of our hotels may cause theangsts of holders of Common
Units, including certain of our executive officerand directors, to differ from the interests of owther stockholders.

As a result of the unrealized built-in gain thatynhe attributable to one or more of our hotelsdead of Common Units, including
certain of our executive officers and directorsyragperience more onerous tax consequences thdareaf our common stock upon the sale
or refinancing of these hotels, including disprdjmorately greater allocations of items of taxalieome and gain upon the occurrence of such
an event. The tax protection agreements that werehinto with certain former members of our predsor, including The Summit Group,
which is wholly owned by our Executive Chairman,. Boekelheide, will not provide protection from #gsomore onerous tax consequences. A
holder of Common Units that receives a dispropogtely greater allocation of taxable income ana géll not receive a correspondingly
greater distribution of cash proceeds with whicpag the income taxes on such income. Accordirtglyy may have different objectives
regarding the appropriate pricing, timing and otimaterial terms of any sale or refinancing of shotels and could exercise their influence
over our affairs by attempting to delay, defer mvyent a transaction that might otherwise be irbibst interests of our stockholders.

Our fiduciary duties as the general partner of ooperating partnership could create conflicts of erest.

We, through our wholly owned subsidiary that sergshe sole general partner of our operating peship, have fiduciary duties to
our operating partnership’s limited partners, tiseldlarge of which may conflict with the interestoar stockholders. The limited partners of
our operating partnership have agreed for so Iengeaown a controlling interest in our operatingtiparship that, in the event of a conflict
between the duties owed by our directors to ourpany and the duties that we owe, in our capacith@sole general partner of our operating
partnership, to the limited partners, our direcemes under no obligation to give priority to théeirests of the limited partners. In addition, those
persons holding Common Units have the right to woteertain amendments to the limited partnersgipement (which require approval by a
majority in interest of the limited partners, inding us) and individually to approve certain amerdta that would adversely affect their rigl
as well as the right to vote on mergers and codatitins of the general partner or us in certaintdichcircumstances. These voting rights may
be exercised in a manner that conflicts with ther@sts of our stockholders. For example, we caadetrsely affect the limited partnergjhts
to receive distributions, as set forth in the leditpartnership agreement, without their consertn ¢lrough modifying such rights might be in
the best interest of our stockholders generally.
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Certain key members of our senior management teaithaentinue to be involved in other businesses, ialhmay interfere with their
ability to devote time and attention to our busisesnd affairs.

We will rely on our senior management team, ineigdir. Boekelheide, for the day-to-day operatiohewr business. Mr.
Boekelheide and other key members of our senioragement team, including Messrs. Hansen and Aniddegesve as executive officers and
directors of The Summit Group. The Summit Grougd wéhtinue to manage one hotel that is not owneddyya Comfort Suites located in
Tucson, Arizona. Our employment agreement with Bérekelheide requires him to devote a substantidlqoof his business time and
attention to our business and our employment ageaeswith our other executive officers require executives to devote substantially all of
their business time and attention to our businesaddition, Mr. Boekelheide, as well as our Exaaut/ice President and Chief Financial
Officer, Stuart J. Becker, and our Vice Presiddmayuisitions, Ryan A. Bertucci, will continue serve as officers of Summit Green Tiger
Investments, LLC (“Summit Green Tiger”). Summit &neTiger co-manages two private investment fundischivown a total of six multi-
family properties. We will not compete with thesmds for investment opportunities. These outsidenass interests may reduce the amou
time that Messrs. Boekelheide, Hansen, Aniszevigdgker and Bertucci are able to devote to our lassin

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

Provisions of our charter may limit the ability of third party to acquire control of us by authorizg our board of directors to issue
additional securities.

Our board of directors may, without stockholderrappl, amend our charter to increase or decre@sadfregate number of our
shares or the number of shares of any class @ssirat we have the authority to issue and toifyassreclassify any unissued shares of
common stock or preferred stock, and set the preéars, rights and other terms of the classifie@cdassified shares. As a result, our board of
directors may authorize the issuance of additishates or establish a series of common or prefetostk that may have the effect of delaying
or preventing a change in control of our compangluding transactions at a premium over the maskiee of our shares, even if stockholders
believe that a change in control is in their inseré&hese provisions, along with the restrictionwnership and transfer contained in our
charter and certain provisions of Maryland law diésd below, could discourage unsolicited acquisifproposals or make it more difficult for
a third party to gain control of us, which couldracsely affect the market price of our securities.

Provisions of Maryland law may limit the ability o third party to acquire control of us by requirqmour board of directors or
stockholders to approve proposals to acquire oumgany or effect a change in control.

Certain provisions of the Maryland General Corporataw (the “MGCL") applicable to Maryland corpdi@ns may have the effect
of inhibiting a third party from making a proposalacquire us or of impeding a change in contralarrcircumstances that otherwise could
provide our common stockholders with the opporfutotrealize a premium over the then-prevailing keaprice of such shares, including:

e “business combination” provisions that, subjedimitations, prohibit certain business combinatidbetween us and an “interested
stockholder” (defined generally as any person wéoeficially owns 10% or more of the voting poweioaf outstanding voting
stock or an affiliate or associate of us who, attime within the two-year period immediately priorthe date in question, was the
beneficial owner of 10% or more of the voting powébpur then outstanding stock) or an affiliateaafy interested stockholder for
five years after the most recent date on whictstbekholder becomes an interested stockholdertrerdafter imposes two
supermajority stockholder voting requirements aséhcombinations, unless, among other conditiamsg@mmon stockholders
receive a minimum price, as defined in the MGClt,their stock and the consideration is receiveckish or in the same form as
previously paid by the interested stockholder feishares; an

e “control share” provisions that provide that écontrol shares” (defined as voting shares of stobich, when aggregated with all
other shares of stock controlled by the stockholdetitle the stockholder to exercise one of tlineeesasing ranges of voting power
in electing directors) acquired in a “control shaoguisition” (defined as the direct or indirecgaisition of ownership or control of
issued and outstanding “control shares”) have nimgaights except to the extent approved by oocldtolders by the affirmative
vote of at least two-thirds of all the votes eegtitto be cast on the matter, excluding shares olwélde acquirer, by our officers or
by our employees who are also directors of our amgy
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By resolution of our board of directors, we havéedpout of the business combination provision$efMGCL and provided that any
business combination between us and any otherpé&sxempt from the business combination provisiointhe MGCL, provided that the
business combination is first approved by our badirdirectors (including a majority of directors aare not affiliates or associates of such
persons). In addition, pursuant to a provisionun laylaws, we have opted out of the control shaoeipions of the MGCL. However, our boz
of directors may by resolution elect to opt inlie business combination provisions of the MGCL wednay, by amendment to our bylaws,
opt in to the control share provisions of the MGi@lthe future.

Our rights and the rights of our stockholders tokea action against our directors and officers arenlited, which could limit our
stockholders’ recourse in the event of actions mobur stockholders’ best interests.

Under Maryland law, generally, a director will s liable if he or she performs his or her dutiegaéod faith, in a manner he or she
reasonably believes to be in our best interestsaatidthe care that an ordinarily prudent persoa like position would use under similar
circumstances. In addition, our charter limits libbility of our directors and officers to us andratockholders for money damages, except for
liability resulting from:

e actual receipt of an improper benefit or profiiioney, property or services;
e active and deliberate dishonesty by the direatafficer that was established by a final judgmambeing material to the cause of
action adjudicatec

Our charter authorizes us to indemnify our direstnd officers for actions taken by them in thamgacities to the maximum extent
permitted by Maryland law. Our bylaws require usngemnify each director and officer, to the maximextent permitted by Maryland law, in
the defense of any proceeding to which he or sheaide, or threatened to be made, a party by rezdas or her service to us. In addition, we
may be obligated to advance the defense costsrettby our directors and officers. As a result,amé our stockholders may have more lim
rights against our directors and officers than maherwise exist absent the current provisionsuncharter and bylaws or that might exist
with other companies.

Our charter contains provisions that make removdlaur directors difficult, which could make it dif€ult for our stockholders to effect
changes to our management.

Our charter provides that a director may be remarég for cause (as defined in our charter) and ey by the affirmative vote of
holders of shares entitled to cast at least twaishdf all the votes entitled to be cast genelalthe election of directors. Our charter also
provides that vacancies on our board of directaag bre filled only by a majority of the remainingetitors in office, even if less than a quor
These requirements prevent stockholders from remgodirectors except for cause and with a substaaffiamative vote and from replacing
directors with their own nominees and may prevetttange in control of our company that is in thstleterests of our stockholders.

The ability of our board of directors to change ounajor policies without the consent of stockholderay not be in our stockholders’
interest.

Our board of directors determines our major pdiciecluding policies and guidelines relating to aoquisitions, leverage, financi
growth, operations and distributions to stockhadd€ur board of directors may amend or revise theseother policies and guidelines from
time to time without the vote or consent of ourc&tmlders. Accordingly, our stockholders will hdiraited control over changes in our polic
and those changes could adversely affect our finhoondition, results of operations, the markétgof our common stock and our ability to
make distributions to our stockholders.
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The ability of our board of directors to revoke oREIT qualification without stockholder approval macause adverse consequences to
our stockholders.

Our charter provides that our board of directory mexoke or otherwise terminate our REIT electioithout the approval of our
stockholders, if it determines that it is no longeour best interest to continue to qualify asER If we cease to be a REIT, we would becc
subject to federal income tax on our taxable incame would no longer be required to distribute nodsiur taxable income to our
stockholders, which may have adverse consequemctedotal return to our stockholders.

We are a holding company with no direct operatiodss a result, we rely on funds received from ouresgting partnership to pay
liabilities and dividends, our stockholders’ clainvgill be structurally subordinated to all liabiligs of our operating partnership and our
stockholders will not have any voting rights witkespect to our operating partnership activities, iading the issuance of additional
Common Units.

We are a holding company and conduct all of ouratiens through our operating partnership. We dchawe, apart from our
ownership of our operating partnership, any indepehoperations. As a result, we rely on distritmsi from our operating partnership to pay
any dividends we might declare on shares of ourrsomstock. We also rely on distributions from opemting partnership to meet any of our
obligations, including tax liability on taxable imme allocated to us from our operating partnerélifich might make distributions to us that
not equal to the tax on such allocated taxablenm&o

In addition, because we are a holding companykbktders’ claims will be structurally subordinatiedall existing and future
liabilities and obligations (whether or not for bmved money) of our operating partnership andutssgliaries. Therefore, in the event of our
bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization, clainfoar stockholders will be satisfied only after allour and our operating partnership’s and its
subsidiaries’ liabilities and obligations have beaid in full.

We own an approximate 73.0% partnership interestimoperating partnership, including general amitéd partnership interests.
Any future issuances by our operating partnershigdditional Common Units could reduce our owngyghercentage in our operating
partnership. Because our common stockholders wiltlirectly own any Common Units, they will not leeany voting rights with respect to
any such issuances or other partnership-leveliietvof our operating partnership.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

The New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) or another rianally recognized exchange may not continue td tisir securities, which
could limit stockholders’ ability to make transaciis in our securities and subject us to additiortedding restrictions.

Our common stock trades on the NYSE under the syhiidl.” In order to remain listed we are requiremimeet the continued
listing requirements of the NYSE or, in the alt¢ivia any other nationally recognized exchange tictvwe apply. We may be unable to
satisfy those listing requirements, and there iguarantee our securities will remain listed oraiamally recognized exchange. If our secur
are delisted from the NYSE or another nationaljognized exchange, we could face significant maitedverse consequences, including:

e a limited availability of market quotations for cgecurities

e reduced liquidity with respect to our securiti

e adetermination that our common stock is “pertogls” which will require brokers trading in ourrmmonon stock to adhere to more
stringent rules, possibly resulting in a reduceel®f trading activity in the secondary tradingriket for the common stoc

e alimited amount of news and analyst coverage;

e adecreased ability to issue additional secur@ifezbtain additional financing in the futu
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Failure of the hotel industry to continue to imprevmay adversely affect our ability to execute owrsiness strategies, which, in turn,
would adversely affect our ability to make distritions to our stockholders.

Our estimated annual distribution is based on ooetil improvements in hotel industry fundamentafsegaly and our operating
results specifically. We cannot assure you thatlhintlustry fundamentals or operating results eolhtinue to improve. Economic slowdown
and world events outside our control, such as tisrmg have adversely affected the hotel industrthenrecent past and if these events reoccur,
may adversely affect the industry in the futuretha event conditions in the hotel industry do emttinue to improve as we expect, our ability
to execute our business strategies will be advweed&tcted, which, in turn, would adversely affear ability to make distributions to our
stockholders.

The cash available for distribution may not be sigfent to make distributions at expected levelsdame cannot assure you of our abil
to make distributions in the future. We may use bmwed funds or funds from other sources to maketdtsutions, which may adverse
impact our operations.

We intend to make distributions to our common shadtters and holders of Common Units. Distributideslared by us will be
authorized by our board of directors in its sokecdetion out of funds legally available for distriton and will depend upon a nhumber of fact
including restrictions under applicable law and ¢hpital requirements of our company. All distribas will be made at the discretion of our
board of directors and will depend on our earnigs,financial condition, the requirements for dgfiedtion as a REIT, restrictions under
applicable law and other factors as our board i@foddrs may deem relevant from time to time. We imayequired to fund distributions from
working capital, borrowings under the secured reingl credit facility we anticipate obtaining, precks of our IPO or a sale of assets to the
extent distributions exceed earnings or cash flisars operations. Funding distributions from workicapital would restrict our operations. If
we borrow from the secured revolving credit fagilite anticipate obtaining in order to pay distribas, we would be more limited in our
ability to execute our strategy of using that seduevolving credit facility to fund acquisitiorfsinally, selling assets may require us to dispose
of assets at a time or in a manner that is notistamg with our disposition strategy. If we borrtsvfund distributions, our leverage ratios and
future interest costs would increase, thereby reguour earnings and cash available for distribufrem what they otherwise would have
been. We may not be able to make distributionsénftiture. In addition, some of our distributionaynbe considered a return of capital for
income tax purposes. If we decide to make distigmstin excess of our current and accumulated egsrand profits, such distributions would
generally be considered a return of capital foefatincome tax purposes to the extent of the middedjusted tax basis in their shares. A re
of capital is not taxable, but it has the effecterfucing the holder’s adjusted tax basis in teftment. If distributions exceed the adjusted tax
basis of a holder’s shares, they will be treatedaas from the sale or exchange of such stock.

We may change the distribution policy for our commetock in the future.

The decision to declare and make distributionsumcommon stock in the future, as well as the tgnemount and composition of
any such future distributions, will be at the sdigcretion of our board of directors and will degem our earnings, funds from operations,
liquidity, financial condition, capital requiremeandr contractual prohibitions, the annual distritmutrequirements under the REIT provisions of
the Code, state law and such other factors asaandiof directors deems relevant. The actual tistion payable will be determined by our
board of directors based upon the circumstancttseatme of declaration and the actual distribupayable may vary from expected amounts.
Any change in our distribution policy could havenaterial adverse effect on the market price ofammmon stock.

The market price of our common stock may be voltilue to numerous circumstances beyond our control.

The trading prices of equity securities issued ByTR® and other real estate companies historicaiyetbeen affected by changes in
market interest rates. One of the factors that méhyence the price of our common stock is the ahyield from distributions on our common
stock as compared to yields on other financiakimsents. An increase in market interest rates,deaaease in our distributions to stockhold
may lead prospective purchasers of our common stodemand a higher annual yield, which could redihe market price of our common
stock.
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Other factors that could affect the market pricewf common stock include the following:

actual or anticipated variations in our quartedgults of operation:

changes in market valuations of companies in tigitg industry;

changes in expectations of future financial perfamge or changes in estimates of securities ana

fluctuations in stock market prices and volun

our issuances of common stock or other securitigsd future

the inclusion of our common stock in equity indicebich could induce additional purchas

the addition or departure of key personi

announcements by us or our competitors of acqotistiinvestments or strategic alliances;

unforeseen events beyond our control, such esri@rattacks, travel related health concernaiiclg pandemics and epidemics
such as H1N1 influenza (swine flu), avian birddlud SARS, political instability, regional hostii, increases in fuel prices,
imposition of taxes or surcharges by regulatoryarties and travel-related accidents and unuseakher patterns, including
natural disasters such as hurrical

The market's perception of our growth potential and current and potential future cash distribugiomhether from operations, sales
or refinancings, as well as the real estate maskee of the underlying assets, may cause our canstoxk to trade at prices that differ from
our net asset value per share. If we retain opeyatish flow for investment purposes, working adp#éserves or other purposes, these retainec
funds, while increasing the value of our underlyasgets, may not correspondingly increase the marice of our common stock. Our failure
to meet the market’s expectations with regard torfuearnings and distributions likely would adetysaffect the market price of our common
stock.

The trading market for our common stock will retygart on the research and reports that industfinancial analysts publish about
us or our business. We do not control these arsallsirthermore, if one or more of the analysts eb@over us downgrades our stock or our
industry, or the stock of any of our competitors price of our common stock could decline. If onenore of these analysts ceases covera
our company, we could lose attention in the mankéich in turn could cause the price of our commturck to decline.

The number of shares of our common stock availabide future sale could adversely affect the marketqe per share of our common
stock, and future sales by us of shares of our coomstock or issuances by our operating partnersbipCommon Units may be dilutiv
to existing stockholders.

Sales of substantial amounts of shares of our camstaxk in the public market, or upon exchange @h@on Units or exercise of
any equity awards, or the perception that suctssalght occur could adversely affect the marketeper share of our common stock. The
exchange of Common Units for common stock, theingsif any equity-based awards granted to certagctbrs, executive officers and other
employees under the 2011 Equity Incentive Planighigance of our common stock or Common Units imeation with hotel, portfolio or
business acquisitions and other issuances of aummm stock or Common Units could have an adverfeetedn the market price of the shares
of our common stock.

Holders of Common Units, which are redeemable &shoor, at our operating partnership’s option, ehaf our common stock on a
one-for-one basis, and the affiliate of IHG puréhgshares of our common stock in the concurreinafe placement, have registration rights
with respect to a substantial amount of our comstonk. These registration rights, which requiréaugrepare, file and have declared effective
a resale registration statement permitting theipubkale of any shares issued upon redemptiomeof®,100,000 Common Units issued in the
formation transactions and shares purchased iocheurrent private placement, could result in aiigant amount of sales of our common
stock in a short period of time or the perceptioat ta substantial amount of sales may occur, etthboth of which could depress the market
price per share of our common stock. The existefiteese Common Units, as well as additional Comtdoits that may be issued in the
future, and shares of our common stock reserved$ornce under the 2011 Equity Incentive Planeenydrelated re-sales may adversely affect
the market price per share of our common stockt@derms upon which we may be able to obtain amfdit capital through the sale of equity
securities. In addition, future sales by us of ekaf our common stock may be dilutive to exisstarkholders.
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Future offerings of debt securities, which would Isenior to our common stock upon liquidation, and/gsuances of equity securities
(including Common Units), which may be dilutive tmur existing stockholders and be senior to our commstock for purposes of
dividend distributions or upon liquidation, may matially and adversely affect the market price ofrocommon stock.

In the future we may offer debt securities andésue equity securities, including Common Unitsrefgrred shares, that may be
senior to our common stock for purposes of dividdistributions or upon liquidation. Upon liquidaticholders of our debt securities and our
preferred shares will receive distributions of auailable assets prior to the holders of our comstook. Holders of our common stock are not
entitled to pre-emptive rights or other protectiagsinst us offering senior debt or equity seasitiTherefore, additional common share
issuances, directly or through convertible or exgjeable securities (including Common Units), watsam options, will dilute the holdings of
our existing common stockholders and such issuamctéee perception of such issuances may reducménket price of our common stock. In
addition, our preferred shares, if issued, coulkhapreference on liquidating distributions amiteference on dividend payments that could
limit our ability to pay a dividend or make anotlgstribution to the holders of our common stockcBuse our decision to issue securities in
any future offering will depend on market condiscamnd other factors beyond our control, we canredipt or estimate the amount, timing or
nature of our future offerings. Thus, our stockleotdbear the risk of our future offerings redudimg market price of our common stock and
diluting their interest in us.

The consolidated financial statements of our predasor may not be indicative of our future resultsam investment in our common
stock.

The consolidated financial statements of our pregsar that are included in this report do not rearély reflect what our results of
operations, financial position or cash flows wobll/e been had we been an independent entity dimngeriods presented. Furthermore, this
financial information is not necessarily indicatioewhat our results of operations, financial piositor cash flows will be in the future. It is
impossible for us to accurately estimate all adjestts reflecting all the significant changes thiit@ecur in our cost structure, funding and
operations as a result of our being a publiclyethRBEIT. For additional information, see “Seledidancial Data” and the consolidated
financial statements of our predecessor, as welamagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations.”

Risks Related to Our Status as a REIT

Failure to qualify as a REIT, or failure to remairgualified as a REIT, would cause us to be taxedsasegular corporation, which
would substantially reduce funds available for di&tutions to our stockholders.

We believe that our organization and proposed metii@peration will enable us to meet the requinetaéor qualification and
taxation as a REIT commencing with our short tagafglar ending December 31, 2011. However, we caassotre you that we will qualify and
remain qualified as a REIT.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable yeae will face serious tax consequences that witistantially reduce the funds
available for distributions to our stockholders dnese:

e we would not be allowed a deduction for dividepd#d to stockholders in computing our taxable meaand would be subject to
federal income tax at regular corporate ra

e we could be subject to the federal alternative mimn tax and possibly increased state and locabtare

e unless we are entitled to relief under certadefal income tax laws, we could not re-elect REBIUs until the fifth calendar year
after the year in which we failed to qualify as BIR.

In addition, if we fail to qualify as a REIT, we o longer be required to make distributions.aAesult of all these factors, our

failure to qualify as a REIT could impair our ahjlio expand our business and raise capital, amduld adversely affect the value of our
common stock.
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Even if we qualify as a REIT, we may face other tabilities that reduce our cash flows.

Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we maydubject to certain federal, state and local taxesur income and assets,
including taxes on any undistributed income, taxirmome from some activities conducted as a redudtforeclosure, and state or local
income, property and transfer taxes. In additiam, TRSs will be subject to regular corporate fetjexstate and local taxes. Any of these taxes
would decrease cash available for distributionsté@kholders.

Failure to make required distributions would subjeas to federal corporate income tax.

We intend to operate in a manner so as to qualify REIT for federal income tax purposes. In otdeualify as a REIT, we
generally are required to distribute at least 90%uo REIT taxable income, determined without refjar the dividends paid deduction and
excluding any net capital gain, each year to coeldtolders. To the extent that we satisfy thisriigtion requirement, but distribute less than
100% of our REIT taxable income, we will be subjiectederal corporate income tax on our undistgdutxable income. In addition, we will
be subject to a 4% non-deductible excise tax ifttt@al amount that we pay out to our stockholdeescalendar year is less than a minimum
amount specified under the Code.

REIT distribution requirements could adversely atfeour liquidity and may force us to borrow funds eell assets during unfavorable
market conditions.

In order to satisfy our qualification as a REIT aadneet the REIT distribution requirements, we magd to borrow funds on a
short-term basis or sell assets, even if the themgiling market conditions are not favorable toede borrowings or sales. Our cash flows from
operations may be insufficient to fund requiredriisitions as a result of differences in timingvbeen the actual receipt of income and the
recognition of income for federal income tax pugmsor the effect of non-deductible capital expemds, the creation of reserves or required
debt service or amortization payments. For exanpdermay be required to accrue income from mortdeges and other types of debt
instruments that we may acquire before we receaiyepayments of interest or principal on such as$#tsmay also acquire distressed debt
investments that are subsequently modified or fosex upon, which could result in significant tabeaincome without any corresponding cash
payment. The insufficiency of our cash flows to @ogur distribution requirements could have an esk/énpact on our ability to raise short-
and long-term debt or sell equity securities ineprih fund distributions required to maintain oualification as a REIT. Also, although the
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS"has issued Revenue Procedure 2010-12 sanctionitagrcissuances of taxable stock dividends by REITs
under certain circumstances for taxable years gnalinor before December 31, 2011, no assurancbegiven that the IRS will extend this
treatment or that we will otherwise be able to temgable stock dividends to meet our REIT distribatiequirements.

The formation of Summit TRS and our TRS lesseesrgases our overall tax liability.

Summit TRS and any other of our domestic TRSs @bgest to federal, state and local income tax eir taxable income, which
consists of the revenue from the hotels leasedibyTBS lessees, net of the operating expensesidbrisotels and rent payments to us.
Accordingly, although our ownership of our TRS Ess allows us to participate in the operating inedram our hotels in addition to receivi
rent, that operating income will be fully subjestihcome tax. The after-tax net income of our TBSées is available for distribution to us. If
we have any non-U.S. TRSs, then they may be sutgje¢ak in jurisdictions where they operate.

Our TRS lessee structure subjects us to the risknafeased hotel operating expenses that could adely affect our operating results
and our ability to make distributions to stockholde

Our leases with our TRS lessees require our TR®dssto pay us rent based in part on revenue fuorhatels. Our operating risks
include decreases in hotel revenue and increadestéh operating expenses, including but not lichit® the increases in wage and benefit costs,
repair and maintenance expenses, energy costerprdaxes, insurance costs and other operatingresgs, which would adversely affect our
TRS lessees’ ability to pay us rent due underdheds. Increases in these operating expenseswaa bgnificant adverse impact on our
financial condition, results of operations, the kedrprice of our common shares and our ability akendistributions to our stockholders.
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Our ownership of our TRSs is subject to limitatiomsd our transactions with our TRSs cause us tosubject to a 100% penalty tax on
certain income or deductions if those transactioage not conducted on arm’s-length terms.

Overall, no more than 25% of the value of a REBASsets may consist of stock or securities of omeaye TRSs. In addition, the
Code limits the deductibility of interest paid @caued by a TRS to its parent REIT to assure ti@TRS is subject to an appropriate level of
corporate taxation. The Code also imposes a 10@¥setax on certain transactions between a TRStaparent REIT that are not conducted
on an arm’s-length basis. The 100% tax would adplyexample, to the extent that we were foundaweehcharged our TRS lessees rent in
excess of an arm’s-length rent. We monitor theealf our respective investments in our TRSs ferpghrpose of ensuring compliance with
TRS ownership limitations and structure our tratisas with our TRSs on terms that we believe ane'sfength to avoid incurring the 100%
excise tax described above. There can be no assytaowever, that we will be able to comply witk 86% TRS limitation or to avoid
application of the 100% excise tax.

If the leases of our hotels to our TRS lessees mperespected as true leases for federal incomegarposes, we will fail to qualify as a
REIT.

To qualify as a REIT, we must annually satisfy wgvoss income tests, under which specified percestagour gross income must
derived from certain sources, such as “rents freah property.” Rents paid to our operating partmierdy our TRS lessees pursuant to the
leases of our hotels constitute substantially fatile gross income. In order for such rent to dyals “rents from real property” for purposes of
the gross income tests, the leases must be redpesteue leases for federal income tax purposgsianbe treated as service contracts,
financing arrangements, joint ventures or somerdiipe of arrangement. If our leases are not raspegs true leases for federal income tax
purposes, we will fail to qualify as a REIT.

If our operating partnership is treated as a publlctraded partnership taxable as a corporation ffaderal income tax purposes, we will
cease to qualify as a REIT.

Although we believe that our operating partnershilpbe treated as a partnership for federal incdaxepurposes, no assurance can
be given that the IRS will not successfully chajjerthat position. If the IRS were to successfutiptend that our operating partnership should
be treated as a publicly traded partnership taxabke corporation, we would fail to meet the 75%sgrincome test and certain of the asset test:
applicable to REITs and, unless we qualified fataia statutory relief provisions, we would ceas@ualify as a REIT. Also, our operating
partnership would become subject to federal, statelocal income tax, which would reduce signifttathe amount of cash available for debt
service and for distribution to us.

If Interstate or any other hotel management compasithat we may engage in the future do not quakify “eligible independent
contractors,” or if our hotels are not “qualifiedddging facilities,” we will fail to qualify as a RH'.

Rent paid by a lessee that is a “related partyngred ours will not be qualifying income for purpes of the two gross income tests
applicable to REITs. An exception is provided, hoere for leases of “qualified lodging facilitiesd a TRS so long as the hotels are managed
by an “eligible independent contractor” and certatiner requirements are satisfied. We have ledsed substantially all of our hotels to our
TRS lessees and engaged Interstate and, in the fubay engage other hotel management companiearthaxpected to qualify as “eligible
independent contractors.” Among other requirementsrder to qualify as an eligible independenttcactor, the hotel manager must not own,
directly or through its stockholders, more than 3&%ur outstanding shares, and no person or gobpprsons can own more than 35% of our
outstanding shares and the shares (or ownersleigest) of the hotel manager, taking into accourttgeownership attribution rules. The
ownership attribution rules that apply for purposéthese 35% thresholds are complex, and mongattual and constructive ownership of
our shares by our hotel managers and their ownaysnot be practical. Accordingly, there can be ssuaance that these ownership levels will
not be exceeded.
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In addition, for a hotel management company toiGuat an eligible independent contractor, such gany or a related person must
be actively engaged in the trade or business afatipg “qualified lodging facilities” (as defineclow) for one or more persons not related to
the REIT or its TRSs at each time that such comgangrs into a hotel management contract with a 9R& TRS lessee. As of the date
hereof, we believe Interstate operates qualifieldjilog facilities for certain persons who are ndated to us or our TRSs. However, no
assurances can be provided that Interstate orthey botel managers that we may engage in theefwtilk in fact comply with this
requirement. Failure to comply with this requiremewould require us to find other managers for fataontracts, and, if we hired a
management company without knowledge of the failiiteould jeopardize our status as a REIT.

Finally, each property with respect to which ourSTRssees pay rent must be a “qualified lodginditia¢ A “qualified lodging
facility” is a hotel, motel or other establishmembre than one-half of the dwelling units in whigle ased on a transient basis, including
customary amenities and facilities, provided tratwvagering activities are conducted at or in cotineavith such facility by any person wha
engaged in the business of accepting wagers andswbgally authorized to engage in such business i connection with such facility. As
of the date hereof, we believe that the propettiasare leased to our TRS lessees are qualifaggirig facilities. Although we intend to moni
future acquisitions and improvements of properfREIT provisions of the Code provide only limitedidance for making determinations un
the requirements for qualified lodging facilitiesyd there can be no assurance that these requitemiéirbe satisfied.

We may be subject to adverse legislative or regarlatax changes that could reduce the market prafeour common stock.

At any time, the federal income tax laws govermRigiTs or the administrative interpretations of #a¢mvs may be amended. We
cannot predict when or if any new federal incomel&av, regulation, or administrative interpretation any amendment to any existing federal
income tax law, regulation or administrative intetation, will be adopted, promulgated or beconfective and any such law, regulation, or
interpretation may take effect retroactively. Wel aur stockholders could be adversely affectedriyysaich change in, or any new, federal
income tax law, regulation or administrative intetation.

You may be restricted from acquiring or transfergncertain amounts of our common stock.

The stock ownership restrictions of the Code foiREand the 9.8% stock ownership limit in our charhay inhibit market activity
in our capital stock and restrict our business doatibn opportunities.

In order to qualify as a REIT for each taxable yafter 2011, five or fewer individuals, as definedhe Code, may not own,
beneficially or constructively, more than 50% inueof our issued and outstanding stock at any toring the last half of a taxable year.
Attribution rules in the Code determine if any widual or entity beneficially or constructively owour capital stock under this requirement.
Additionally, at least 100 persons must benefigialivn our capital stock during at least 335 daya ti#xable year for each taxable year after
2011. To help insure that we meet these testsslmanter restricts the acquisition and ownershighafres of our capital stock.

Our charter, with certain exceptions, authorizesditectors to take such actions as are necessdrgesirable to preserve our
qualification as a REIT. Unless exempted by ourthad directors, our charter prohibits any persamf beneficially or constructively owning
more than 9.8% in value or number of shares, whiehis more restrictive, of the outstanding shafeany class or series of our capital stock.
Our board of directors may not grant an exemptiomfthese restrictions to any proposed transfetezsesownership in excess of 9.8% of the
value of our outstanding shares would result infailing to qualify as a REIT. These restrictionsteansferability and ownership will not
apply, however, if our board of directors determsitigat it is no longer in our best interest to eurg to qualify as a REIT.
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Under recently issued IRS guidance, we may pay tdgalividends of our common stock and cash, in whiztase stockholders may sell
shares of our common stock to pay tax on such dévids, placing downward pressure on the market prideour common stock.

Under recently issued IRS guidance, we may digtitaxable dividends that are payable in cash anthwn stock at the election of
each stockholder. Under Revenue Procedure 2010plt®, 90% of any such taxable dividend paid wispeet to our 2011 taxable year could
be payable in shares of our common stock. Taxdbtkisolders receiving such dividends will be reqdito include the full amount of the
dividend as ordinary income to the extent of ourent and accumulated earnings and profits, asméted for federal income tax purposes
a result, stockholders may be required to pay irectar with respect to such dividends in excess®tash dividends received. If a U.S.
stockholder sells the common stock that it receasea dividend in order to pay this tax, the sptfeseeds may be less than the amount incl
in income with respect to the dividend, dependingh® market price of our common stock at the tifhne sale. Furthermore, with respect to
certain non-U.S. stockholders, we may be requivesithhold federal income tax with respect to sdshdends, including in respect of all or a
portion of such dividend that is payable in comrstotk. If we utilize Revenue Procedure 2Aand a significant number of our stockholc
determine to sell shares of our common stock ieiotal pay taxes owed on dividends, it may put doanthpressure on the trading price of our
common stock. We do not currently intend to utiRevenue Procedure 2010-12.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
Item 2. Properties.
Our Portfolio

A list of our hotel properties owned as of Decentkier2010 and operating information for those tmigincluded in the table
below. Except as indicated in the following tafdefour hotels, which are ground leased, we ownhmiels in fee simple. Forty-two of our
hotels are categorized as mid-scale without foatlseverage hotels and 23 of our hotels are categgbes upscale hotels. As of December 31,
2010, all of our hotels were encumbered by a wit&420.4 million of mortgage debt, approximateB28.6 million of which was repaid in the

first quarter of 2011 with net proceeds from ouDI&nd the concurrent private placement. All firahand room information is for the year
ended December 31, 2010.
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Year Ended December 31, 201

Year of
Opening/ Occupancy

Franchise/Brand Location Conversior # Rooms 1) ADR @ RevPAR () Segment

Marriott

Courtyard by Marriott'®®)  Flagstaff, AZ 2009 164 63.7(% $ 89.61 $ 57.0¢ Upscals
Germantowr

Courtyard by Marriot®)®) TN 2005 93 65.0( 92.4( 60.0¢ Upscal

Courtyard by Marriot®)®) Jackson, MS¢ 2005 117 67.1¢ 92.71 62.2¢ Upscals
Memphis,

Courtyard by Marriot®® TN 2005 96 64.5¢ 73.9¢ 47.7 Upscal
Missoula,

Courtyard by Marriot®)®) MT 2005 92 64.2( 102.2¢ 65.64 Upscals
Scottsdale

Courtyard by Marriot®)®) AZ 2003 15¢ 57.2¢ 105.8¢ 60.5¢ Upscali
Baton Rouge

Fairfield Inn by Marrioti LA 2004 79 55.9¢ 81.17 45.3¢ Midscale w/o F&E
Bellevue,

Fairfield Inn by Marrioti WA 1997 144 60.6: 106.3! 64.4€¢ Midscale w/o F&E

Fairfield Inn by Marrioti Boise, ID 1995 63 63.61 68.9¢ 43.8¢ Midscale w/o F&E

Fairfield Inn by Marrioti Denver, CC 1997 161 69.6: 83.9¢ 58.47 Midscale w/o F&E

Fairfield Inn by Marrioti Emporia, KS 1994 57 61.04 75.51 46.1C Midscale w/o F&E
Lakewood,

Fairfield Inn by Marrioti CcO 1995 63 64.61 86.17 55.67 Midscale w/o F&E
Lewisville,

Fairfield Inn by Marriot®®  TX 2000 71 53.2i 73.4: 39.12 Midscale w/o F&E

Fairfield Inn by Marrioti Salina, KS 1994 63 70.7¢ 72.32 51.1¢ Midscale w/o F&E
Spokane

Fairfield Inn by Marrioti WA 1995 86 66.64 106.4( 70.9C Midscale w/o F&E

Fairfield Inn & Suites by Germantowr

Marriott ()(7) TN 2005 8C 54.3( 75.6¢ 41.07 Midscale w/o F&E
Fort Wayne,

Residence Inn by Marrio IN 2006 10¢ 66.2( 93.8:2 62.11 Upscali
Germantowr

Residence Inn by Marriog®(@) TN 2005 78 64.5] 97.3¢ 62.8( Upscali

Residence Inn by Marrioti¥

(10)a1) Portland, OF 2009 124 74.1( 97.7¢ 72.42 Upscals

Residence Inn by Marriott®) Ridgeland,

12) MS 2007 10C 79.3% 99.97 79.31 Upscal
Baton Rouge

SpringHill Suites by Marriot LA 2004 78 59.5¢ 86.67 51.5¢ Upscalt

SpringHill Suites by Marriott’

(4)(13) Denver, CC 2007 124 63.31] 96.2:2 60.91 Upscal

SpringHill Suites by Marriott® Flagstaff, AZ 2008 112 67.01 89.8¢ 60.22 Upscalt

SpringHill Suites by Marriot® Lithia

a4 Springs, GA 2004 78 47 .4¢ 74.7¢ 35.4¢ Upscal
Little Rock,

SpringHill Suites by Marriot AR 2004 78 60.24 87.3¢ 52.62 Upscali
Nashville,

SpringHill Suites by Marriot TN 2004 78 68.4¢ 98.6¢ 67.5¢ Upscalt

SpringHill Suites by Marriott?) Scottsdale,

©) AZ 2003 12¢ 55.41 95.97 53.17 Upscali
Baton Rouge

TownePlace Suites by MarrioLA 2004 9C 69.21 74.82 51.7¢ Midscale w/o F&E

Subtotal/Weighted

Average 2,75¢ 63.6(% $ 89.6¢ $ 57.1f

Hilton

Hampton Inr(#)®
Denver, CC 2003 14¢ 46.01% $ 80.37 $ 36.9¢ Midscale w/o F&E

Hampton Fort Collins,

Inn Cco 1996 75 60.5% 83.17 50.3¢ Midscale w/o F&E
Fort Smith,

Hampton Inr)(™(10) AR 2005 17¢ 60.7¢ 95.3¢ 57.9¢ Midscale w/o F&E



Hampton Inrf4)(®)

Hampton
Inn
Hampton
Inn
Hampton
Inn
Hampton
Inn

Hampton Inn & Suites
Hampton Inn & Suite®®

Hampton Inn & Suites®)(1%)

Hilton Garden Inn*#)16)
Subtotal/Weighted Average

IHG

Holiday Inn Expres)(®)

Holiday Inn Express®)
Holiday Inn Express & Suite

Fort Wayne,
IN

Medford, OF
Twin Falls,
ID

Provo, UT

Boise, ID
Bloomington
MN

El Paso, TX
Fort Worth,
TX

Fort Collins,
(0{0)

Boise, ID
Vernon Hills,
IL

Emporia, KS
Las Colinas,

Holiday Inn Express & Suites TX

Holiday Inn Express & Suite4

®

Sandy, UT

Holiday Inn Express & Suites Twin Falls,

A7)

Staybridge

Suites
Subtotal/Weighted
Average

Hyatt
Hyatt Place4(©)

Hyatt

Place*

Hyatt

Place*

Hyatt Place*#)(10)(18)
Subtotal/Weighted
Average

Choice

Cambria Suites®)(19)
Cambria

Suites*

Cambria Suites®)(14)

Cambria Suites()(20)
Comfort Inn(4)(®8)(10)

Comfort Inn(4)®)

Comfort

Inn

Comfort Inn &
Suites
Comfort
Suites
Comfort
Suites

Comfort

ID

Jackson, M¢

Atlanta, GA

Fort Myers,

FL

Las Colinas

TX

Portland, OF

Baton Rouge
LA
Bloomington
MN

Boise, ID
San Antonio
TX

Fort Smith,
AR
Missoula,
MT

Salina, KS
Twin Falls,
ID
Charleston
wv

Fort Worth,
TX

Lakewood,

2006

2001

2004

1996

1995

2007
2005

2007

2007

2005

2008
2000

2007

1998

2009

2007

2006

2009

2007
2009

2008

2007
2007

2008

1995

1996

1992

1992

2001

1999

11¢ 60.5¢ 91.31 55.2¢
75 70.5% 101.0: 71.2¢
75 66.11 81.2i 53.7¢
87 72.1% 86.9¢ 62.7¢
63 70.1% 86.2¢ 60.52
14¢ 71.81 114.8¢ 82.5(
13¢ 80.9¢ 110.6( 89.5¢
10t 67.0% 110.8¢ 74.31
12C 58.4( 88.4% 51.6¢
1,331 64.7% $ 95.5( 62.5¢
63 73.0% $ 77.4¢ 56.57
11¢ 56.3¢ 79.7¢ 44.9¢
58 75.71 87.4¢ 66.2¢
12¢ 41.7¢ 79.4¢ 33.1¢
88 73.6( 88.6( 65.21
91 59.3¢ 87.1: 51.7C
92 64.3¢ 86.8¢ 55.91
63¢ 59.2(% $ 83.4¢ 49.7¢
15C 79.0% $ 75.2¢ 59.47
14¢ 34.9¢ 76.51 26.7¢
122 59.3¢ 87.5¢ 51.9¢
13€ 69.7¢ 79.01 55.1:
55€ 58.0(% $ 79.0¢ 45.6¢
127 70.5:% $ 82.8¢ 58.4¢
112 74.92 75.4C 56.4¢
11¢ 64.8% 72.5¢ 47.0:
12¢ 64.3i 78.2¢ 50.3¢
88 52.8( 70.5¢ 37.2¢
52 64.2¢ 86.5( 55.5¢
6C 68.1( 70.8: 48.2¢
111 66.51 69.5¢ 46.27
67 74.0¢ 94.2¢ 69.8(
7C 52.4: 82.4¢ 43.2¢

Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E

Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E

Midscale w/o F&E

Upscali

Midscale w/o F&E

Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E

Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E

Midscale w/o F&E

Upscali
Upscalt

Upscali
Upscalt

Upscali

Upscalt
Upscali

Upscalt
Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E
Midscale w/o F&E

Midscale w/o F&E



Suites CcoO
Subtotal/Weighted
Average
Starwood

Jacksonville
Aloft* FL
Carlson
Country Inn & Suites By Charleston,
Carlson WV
Independent

Fort Smith,

Aspen Hotel & Suite(®)(22) AR

Total/Weighted
Average

Total/Weighted Average— Seasonec
Portfolio

Total/Weighted Average— Unseasone
Portfolio

* Unseasoned hotel.

1995

2009

2001

2003

62 65.11 82.71 53.8¢
99¢ 63.8(% $ 78.4( 50.17
13€ 64.72 62.3¢ 40.3¢
64 75.2¢ 96.7¢ 72.8¢
57 49.7( 64.6¢ 32.1:
6,53¢ 62.8(% $ 86.91 54.9¢
4,17: 64.2% $ 87.0¢ 56.17
2,36( 60.3(% $ 86.61 52.8¢
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Midscale w/o F&E

Upscalt

Midscale w/o F&E

Midscale w/o F&E




(1)
(@)
3)
(4)

(5)
(6)
(7)

(9)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)

Occupancy represents the percentage of availablagohat were sold during a specified period o&tand is calculated by dividing t
number of rooms sold by the total number of roowelable, expressed as a percenti

ADR represents the average daily rate paiddoms sold, calculated by dividing room revenue. (iexcluding food and beverage
revenue or other hotel operations revenue suctleghone, parking and other guest services) by scmid.

ReVvPAR is the product of ADR and occupancy. RevRIi&Bs not include food and beverage revenue or atitet operations revent
such as telephone, parking and other guest ser

This hotel is subject to mortgage debt at DecerBthef010. For additional information concerning dabt and lenders, please see
7. “Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Finahiziformation and Results of Operations—Indebtaghand Item 8. “Financial
Statements and Supplementary [—Note 1. to Consolidated Financial Statemet

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $16.5 milliormortgage debt maturing 5/17/18 loaned by ComBask.

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $24.2 milliormortgage debt maturing 7/01/13 loaned by Fii@ional Bank of Omah:

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $28.9 millioomortgage debt maturing 7/01/25 loaned by INGbiment Managemer

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $29.3 millimrmortgage debt maturing 7/01/12 loaned by INGbiment Managemer

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $13.6 millimrmortgage debt maturing 1/01/15 loaned by Nati®estern Life Insuranc
This hotel is subject to a ground lease. “—Our Hotel Operating Agreeme—Ground Leas¢’ below.

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $12.6 millimrmortgage debt maturing 9/30/11 loaned by Bdtk® Cascade:

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $6.2 millionmortgage debt maturing 11/01/28 loaned by ING&iment Managemer

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $8.7 milliommortgage debt maturing 4/01/18 loaned by Gertelettric Capital Corg

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $7.3 milliommortgage debt maturing 3/01/12 loaned by Met&B

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $5.7 millimmmortgage debt maturing 11/01/13 loaned by BN@dwal Bank.

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $7.9 milliormortgage debt maturing 7/01/12 loaned by INGeBtiment Managemer

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $5.8 milliommortgage debt maturing 4/01/16 loaned by BNCGidvel Bank.

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $6.4 milliommortgage debt maturing 6/29/12 loaned by BanthefOzarks

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $11.0 milliormortgage debt maturing 3/01/19 loaned by Gériflesctric Capital Corp

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $11.2 milliormortgage debt maturing 1/01/15 loaned by Gérielesctric Capital Corp

At 12/31/10, subject to approximately $1.6 millionmortgage debt maturing 6/24/12 loaned by ChamBank.
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We have also entered into three agreements to gsediour additional hotels for an aggregate puehase of approximately $34.8
million, although the closings of the purchasetheke hotels are subject to satisfaction of custpiasing requirements and conditions and
there is no assurance that any will be consumniatadimely manner or at all. We have entered antagreement to purchase a 216-room
hotel located in downtown Minneapolis, Minnesotaagreement to purchase a 143-room hotel locatBdiliuth, Georgia and a 12bom hote
located in Glendale (Denver), Colorado and an agee¢ to purchase a 91-room hotel located in RidgkIMississippi. See also “Item 7.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@ahdtion and Results of Operations—Liquidity andofa Resources”

In addition to our hotel portfolio, we own 14 pdecef vacant land that we believe are suitablglierdevelopment of new hotels, the
possible expansion of existing hotels or the dgualent of restaurants in proximity to certain of botels.

We currently do not intend to develop new hotelgestaurants or expand any of our existing hotesese parcels. We may in the
future sell these parcels when market conditionsamd. To reduce the risk of incurring a prohibite@hsaction tax on any sales, we may
transfer some or all of those parcels of undeveldaed to Summit TRS or another TRS.

Our Hotel Operating Agreements
Ground Leases
Four of our hotels are subject to ground leaseemgeats that cover all of the land underlying thepegtive hotel property.

e The Comfort Inn located in Fort Smith, Arkansasubject to a ground lease with an initial leasmteation date o
August 31, 2022. The initial lease term may be kel for an additional 30 years. Annual ground cemtently is $44,088
per year. Annual ground rent is adjusted everf fifgar with adjustments based on the Consumer Pritex for All Urban
Consumers. The next scheduled ground rent adjustsi@anuary 1, 201!

e The Hampton Inn located in Fort Smith, Arkansasuisject to a ground lease with an initial leasmieation date of May 3:
2030 with 11, fiveyear renewal options. Annual ground rent curreisti$145,987 per year. Annual ground rent is adgustt
June 1 of each year, with adjustments based orases in RevPAR calculated in accordance withettreg of the ground
lease.

e The Residence Inn by Marriott located in Portladdegon is subject to a ground lease with an inigiase termination date
June 30, 2084 with one option to extend for antamdhl 14 years. Ground rent for the initial leésen was prepaid in full at
the time we acquired the leasehold interest. lfotiion to extend is exercised, monthly ground weititbe charged based on
a formula established in the ground le:

e The Hyatt Place located in Portland, Oregon e to a ground lease with a lease terminatiade daJune 30, 2084 with
one option to extend for an additional 14 yearau@d rent for the initial lease term was prepaitulhat the time we
acquired the leasehold interest. If the optionxteied is exercised, monthly ground rent will bergea based on a formula
established in the ground lea

These ground leases generally require us to maitel gayments and payments for our share of chacosss, expenses, assessments
and liabilities, including real property taxes artities. Furthermore, these ground leases gelyardjuire us to obtain and maintain insurance
covering the subject property.

Franchise Agreements

All of our hotels, except for our one independenteh currently operate under franchise agreemaittsMarriott, Hilton, IHG,
Hyatt, Choice, Starwood and Country Inns & SuitgsErlson, Inc. We believe that the public’s petmapof the quality associated with a
brand-name hotel is an important feature in itsaativeness to guests. Franchisors provide a yaofdbenefits to franchisees, including
centralized reservation systems, national advegjsnarketing programs and publicity designed todase brand awareness, training of
personnel and maintenance of operational qualihotgls across the brand system.
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The franchise agreements require our TRS lessedsrachisees, to pay franchise fees ranging beh@&eand 6% of each hotel’'s
gross revenue. In addition, some of our franchige@ments will require our TRS lessees to pay ntiagkéees of up to 4% of each hotel’s
gross revenue. These agreements generally speaifpgement, operational, recdeeeping, accounting, reporting and marketing stedslanc
procedures with which our TRS lessees, as thelfia@es, must comply. The franchise agreementbiiijate our TRS lessees to comply v
the franchisors’ standards and requirements, imeguttaining of operational personnel, safety, neiimng specified insurance, the types of
services and products ancillary to guest room sesvihat may be provided by the TRS lessee, digglaijgnage and the type, quality and age
of furniture, fixtures and equipment included iregtirooms, lobbies and other common areas. Sotthe @igreements require that we deposit a
set percentage, generally not more than 5% of thesgevenue of the hotels, into a reserve funddpital expenditures.

We have agreed with certain of our franchisorsoimglete property improvement plans, with completiates ranging from March
2011 to August 2015. We expect to spend approxim&d.0 million before June 30, 2012 for capitaprovements pursuant to these
plans. We intend to fund the cost of completingsthplans with a portion of the proceeds from 8@ &nd concurrent private placement and
other potential sources of capital, including fetofferings of our securities and borrowings urmaranticipated $100.0 million senior secured
revolving credit facility.

We will be required to obtain the written consehadotel’s franchisor to sell a hotel or we mayréguired to pay franchise
termination fees. The franchise agreements gegexéllalso provide for termination at the applidalfranchisor’s option upon the occurrence
of certain events, including failure to pay royedtiand fees or to perform other obligations urldeftanchise license, bankruptcy and
abandonment of the franchise or a change in coatrptoposed sale of a franchised property. The TER&ee that is the franchisee will be
responsible for making all payments under the apple franchise agreement to the franchisor.

Hotel Management Agreement

In order to qualify as a REIT, we cannot directhyiralirectly operate any of our hotels. Our opergpartnership and subsidiaries of
our operating partnership lease our hotels to &8 Tessees, which engage property managers to maoadpotels. In connection with the
completion of our IPO and the formation transactionFebruary 2011, our TRS lessees entered ihtied management agreement for the 65
hotels in our portfolio with Interstate, as ourdlohanager. We may, but we are not required tigreénto hotel management agreements with
Interstate for any additional hotels that we mayuére.

Pursuant to the hotel management agreement witinshate, our TRS lessees are required to fund wgidapital needs, fixed asset
supplies, capital expenditures and operating exgseobthe hotels. Interstate, subject to certamnitdéid owner approval rights, has control of all
operational aspects of the hotels in our portfatioluding employee-related matters. Interstatedgired to maintain each hotel in good repair
and condition and make such routine maintenanceepairs as are reasonably necessary or appropdagistent with the business plan we
approve.

The hotel management agreement became effectiFelomary 14, 2011 and is for a term of ten yearkess earlier terminated as
described below.

We will pay Interstate a base management fee &odrtain financial thresholds are met or exceededncentive management fee.
Base Management Feghe base management fee is 3% of total revenuallfof the hotels covered by the hotel management

agreement. Total revenue is all income, revenuepaockeds resulting directly or indirectly from thigeration of the hotels and all of their
facilities (net of refunds and credits to guestd atiher allowances) before subtracting expenses.
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Incentive FeeThe incentive fee is 10% of the amount by whicluakaggregate EBITDA for all hotels covered by tiotel
management agreement exceeds $65 million. “EBITBAlefined as the amount by which gross operatin§itfthe amount by which total
revenue exceed operating expenses) exceeds fiaedgesh The incentive fee for any fiscal year ipeapat 1.5% of the total revenue for all of
the hotels covered by the hotel management agreednrehat fiscal year.

In addition, Interstate will receive, on a montblsis, a fee for the use of its centralized acdogrdervices in an amount equal to
$1,500 per hotel per month for hotels with 90 orenmoms and $1,375 per hotel per month for hetéls less than 90 rooms, subject to
annual increases of the lesser of (i) the percenthgnge in the Consumer Price Index for the pteviscal year and (i) 3%.

The hotel management agreement may be terminatidlgior with respect to individual hotels, as Apgble, for cause, without
cause, due to damage or condemnation of a hotéhterstate’s failure to comply with certain REI@lated provisions of the Code, upon a
hotel's underperformance, due to Interstate ergerito competition with one of our hotels and uploa sale of a hotel.

Early Termination for Caus&ubject to certain qualifications, the hotel mamaget agreement is generally terminable by eithety)
upon the occurrence of certain events of defaalt ¢bntinue uncured after written notice by the-defaulting party, which generally include:
non-payment by either party of any amount requingthe agreement; defaults that are reasonablly ltkeresult in a threat to the health and
safety of a hotel's employees or guests; other mighigefaults of obligations under the agreemeat;failure to fund repairs, alterations and
replacements necessary to protect against innkdéapéity exposure or comply with applicable regtibn, statute or ordinance; and additional
defaults, typical in similar agreements.

If an event of default occurs, the non-defaultimgtyp generally has, among other remedies, the wgtiderminating the applicable
hotel management agreement. If the agreementisrated by Interstate due to our default, we bdlrequired to pay a termination fee which
would provide Interstate with a 30% Internal Rat&eturn with respect to such hotel, however, gdiet the first five terminations, if the
effective date of such termination occurs on oplethe end of the eighteenth month following tfieative date of the agreement, the Internal
Rate of Return shall be 20% instead of 30% (“Teation Fee”).

Early Termination—Without Causé/e may terminate the agreement with respect to dipe hotels during any fiscal year with or
without cause by delivering written notice at le@8tdays prior to termination, after having paiduh all amounts otherwise due to Interstate
under the agreement and paying Interstate the Tatioh Fee with respect to such hotels.

Termination Due to Damage or CondemnatiSabject to payment of the Termination Fee with eesjpo such hotels, if a hotel is
damaged by fire or other casualty, both we anddtaée may terminate the management agreementesigfect to such hotel upon 30 days’
written notice if (i) we elect to close such hateldetermine not to proceed with the restoratiosush hotel, or (ii) if 20% or more of the roo
of such hotel are unavailable for rental for a pef 60 days or more as a result of such casuBdith we and Interstate may terminate the
management agreement with respect to a hotel alllsstantially all of which is taken through conaetion or, if less than all or substantially
all of a hotel is taken, it is determined that limtel, once restored, could not be operated phifitan a manner that existed immediately prio
such condemnation.

Termination on Failure of Interstate to Comply WREIT ProvisionsUnder the hotel management agreement, if, at amg, ti
Interstate does not qualify as an “eligible indeget contractor” for federal income tax purposes wagering activities are being conducted
at or in connection with a hotel by any person vwghengaged in the business of accepting wagersvands legally authorized to engage in
such business at or in connection with such hatelmay, in our sole discretion, elect to termirtalemanagement agreement immediately and
without payment of any termination fee or penalty.
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Performance Terminatiol.he hotel management agreement also provides thatay terminate the management agreement with
respect to a hotel upon 60 days’ written noticadfof the end of any fiscal year, such hotel failachieve (i) actual gross operating profit of at
least 87.5% of the budgeted gross operating piafisuch hotel for such fiscal year, and (ii) 87.6%such hotel’'s RevPAR Benchmark (as
defined in the agreement); provided, that suchceati termination shall be stayed and will becomléand void if such hotel achieves as of
end of the following fiscal year (i) actual grogseoating profit of at least 87.5% of the budgetsgroperating profit for such hotel or (ii) 87.5%
of such hotel's RevPAR Benchmark. Additionally drdtate shall have the right, exercisable no mwae two times per hotel, to cure a
performance termination by making a payment toquskto the amount by which 87.5% of the budgetedgjoperating profit for such hotel
exceeds actual gross operating profit for suchlfiotesuch fiscal year.

Termination Due to Competitive Busine§swithout our express permission, Interstate &léc own, operate, lease or otherwise have
an interest in, directly or indirectly, one or mténatels in a competitive set of one of our hotefsyn 30 days’ written notice we may terminate
the agreement solely with respect to that hotdheuit payment of any termination fee.

Sale of a Hotel. If we sell a hotel to an unaffiliated third partye may terminate the agreement with respect to bat# so long as
we pay the Termination Fee.

Assignment The hotel management agreement provides thtteménterstate nor we may assign its or our irsteirethe agreement
without the other party’s prior written consentyiced that Interstate may assign its rights andbakibns to its affiliates (as defined in the
management agreement). However, we may assigmtauest without Interstate’s consent to any peesmuiring the hotel and agreeing to be
bound by the terms of the hotel management agreemen
ltem 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved from time to time in litigation sirig in the ordinary course of business, howeverave not currently aware of any
actions against us that we believe would materedlyersely affect our business, financial conditomesults of operations.

Iltem 4. Removed and Reservec
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PART Il
Iltem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The common stock of Summit REIT began trading &Nl SE on February 9, 2011 under the symbol “INRrior to that time,
there was no public trading market for the commoglsof Summit REIT. The high and low per-sharegaices for the common stock of
Summit REIT as reported by the NYSE for the pefiodn February 9, 2011 to March 25, 2011 were $1@4@ $9.26. The last reported sale
price for the Company’s common stock as reportetherNYSE on March 25, 2011 was $9.99 per share.

There is currently no established public tradingkegfor the Common Units of Summit OP. No pultteding market for the
Common Units is expected to develop. Common Umésedeemable at the option of the holder, begmfiebruary 14, 2012, for cash, or at
our option shares of Summit REIT common stock ome-for-one basis. We have granted all of the heldéthe Common Units registration
rights with respect to the shares of common stbakmay be issued to them in connection with trer@sge of the redemption rights under the
partnership agreement of our operating partnership.

As of March 25, 2011, the common stock of SummitREas held of record by three holders and there®&,278,000 shares of
common stock outstanding. As of March 25, 201&,Glommon Units of Summit OP were held by 983 haldérecord and there were
37,378,000 Common Units of Summit OP outstandingluiding Common Units held by the General Partner summit REIT.

Distribution Information

Since the date of inception of Summit REIT and Sun®®, no distributions have been declared or paithe common stock of
Summit REIT or the Common Units of Summit OP. Talify as a REIT, Summit REIT must distribute anhuto its stockholders an amount
at least equal to 90% of its REIT taxable incomeedmnined without regard to the deduction for divids paid and excluding any net capital
gain. As a REIT, Summit REIT will be subject to amse tax on its taxable income that is not disteduaind to an excise tax to the extent that
certain percentages of its taxable income are istiltlited by specified dates. Income as computegdirposes of the foregoing tax rules will
not necessarily correspond to Summit REIT’s incameletermined for financial reporting purposes. BUrREIT’s cash available for
distribution may be less than the amount requioemh¢et the distribution requirements for REITs urttdle Code, and Summit REIT may be
required to borrow money, sell assets or issuealagibck to satisfy the distribution requirements.

The timing and frequency of distributions will batlaorized by the Summit REIT board of directorsiténsole discretion, and
declared by Summit REIT based upon a variety dbfscdeemed relevant by its directors, includirgjrietions under applicable law and loan
agreements, capital requirements and the REIT repeints of the Code. Distributions to stockholdgnserally will be taxable to stockholders
as ordinary income, although a portion of suctritistions may be designated as long-term capitial gamay constitute a return of capital.
Summit REIT will furnish annually to each of it®ekholders a statement setting forth distributipail during the preceding year and their
federal income tax status.

Summit OP intends to make quarterly distributianbalder of Common Units of Summit OP in a per-amtount that is equal to the
per-share amount paid by Summit REIT to the holdéSummit REIT common stock.

Securities Sold
Sales of Unregistered Securities
Concurrently with the closing of our IPO on Febguad, 2011, Summit REIT sold in a separate priygaeement to Six Continents
Limited, an affiliate of IHG, 1,274,000 shares ofiamon stock at a price of $9.0675 per share foreagge cash proceeds of approximately

$11.6 million. IHG and its affiliates have subgtes, pre-existing relationships with the LLC, ahe issuance of the shares in the concurrent
private placement was effected by Summit REIT lianee upon the exemption from registration prodity Section 4(2) of the Securities 4
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In connection with the Merger, The Summit Grouptdbnted its 36% Class B membership interest in Bitrof Scottsdale, which
owns two hotels in Scottsdale, Arizona, to Sumnkti® exchange for 74,829 Common Units and an Uizéd third-party investor
contributed its 15% Class C membership intereStummit of Scottsdale to Summit OP in exchange 191 39 Common Units. The Summit
Group and the unaffiliated third-party investor @aubstantive, pre-existing relationships with Sun@®, and the issuance of the Common
Units in connection with the exchanges was effecteeliance upon the exemption from registratioovded by Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act.

Use of Proceeds—Initial Public Offering and Concuent Private Placement

On February 14, 2011, Summit REIT closed the IR@syant to which it sold 26,000,000 shares of comstock at a public offerir
price of $9.75 per share. Summit REIT raised apiprately $253.5 million in gross IPO proceeds, résglin net proceeds to Summit REIT
from the IPO and the concurrent private placemefatrred to above of approximately $238.4 millioftemdeducting approximately
$17.7 million in underwriting discounts relatedsteares of common stock sold in the IPO and apprateiy $8.9 million in other expenses
relating to the IPO, the concurrent private placenaad the formation transactions. In connectiéth #he IPO, the concurrent private
placement and the formation transactions, afféiateSummit REIT and Summit OP incurred legal, actimg and related costs, which were
reimbursed by Summit REIT upon completion of th®IPThese costs were deducted from the gross pateadahe IPO.

All of the 26,000,000 shares of common stock solthe IPO were sold pursuant to Summit REIT’s Regfimn Statement on Form
S-11 (File No. 333-168686), which was declaredatiife by the SEC on February 8, 2011. Summit REIPO pursuant to that registration
statement is now complete and has been terminated.

Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., Robert W. Baird & [corporated and RBC Capital Markets, LLC seraggoint book-running
managers of Summit REIT’s IPO.

Summit REIT contributed the net proceeds of the #@ the concurrent private placement to SummitrG#xchange for Common
Units. As of March 25, 2011, Summit OP had usedggregate of approximately $232.5 million of tle¢ proceeds of the IPO and the
concurrent private placement as follows:

e approximately $227.2 million to reduce outstandimgrtgage indebtedness and pay associated costdloass:

— approximately $89.3 million to repay in full aalo from Fortress Credit Corp., including approxiehat2.1 million of exit fees,
interest and legal fee

— approximately $78.2 million to repay in full alo originally made by Lehman Brothers Bank, inahgdapproximately
$1.4 million to pay an extinguishment premium atiteo transaction cost

— approximately $21.- million to repay in full two loans with Marshall &ley Bank; anc
— approximately $3€3 million to repay in full two loans with First Nahal Bank of Omaha; ar
e approximately $5.3 million to fund a capital expiuark reserve account under the hotel managemeeegnt with Interstat

There has been no material change in the planredfyzroceeds from the IPO as described in the fir@spectus filed by Summit
REIT with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b).
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We have not repurchased any of Summit REIT’s cometock or Summit OP’s Common Units.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following financial and operating informatioimagild be read in conjunction with the informatiat orth under “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions &s$ults of Operations” and our consolidated fimgratatements and related notes thereto
appearing elsewhere in this report and incorporh&din by reference.

Historical Summit Hotel Properties, LLC (our predecessor)

Statement of Operations Date(in thousands Year Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
REVENUE
Room revenu $ 133,06¢ $ 118,96( $ 132,790 $ 112,04 $ 99,00¢
Other hotel operations revenue 2,56¢ 2,24( 2,31( 1,84 1,65:
Total Revenut 135,63! 121,20( 135,10 113,88¢ 100,66:
COSTS AND EXPENSE:
Direct hotel operatior 47,21( 42,07 42,38 35,02: 31,03¢
Other hotel operating expens 18,96: 16,98’ 15,18¢ 11,98( 10,58¢
General, selling and administrati 25,38( 24,017 25,99: 22,00¢ 18,03¢
Repairs and maintenan 4,71¢ 6,152 8,00¢ 10,40¢ 8,15
Depreciation and amortizatic 27,25 23,97 22,301 16,13¢ 13,64¢
Loss on impairment of assets 6,47¢ 7,50¢€ — — —
Total Expense 129,99t 120,70« 113,87t 95,55 81,46¢
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 5,63¢ 49€ 21,23: 18,33¢ 19,19:
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest incomi 47 5C 19t 44¢ 60%
Interest expens (26,362) (18,32) (17,024 (14,219 (11,139
Loss on disposal of assi (42) (4) (390) (652) (749)
Total Other Expens (26,357 (18,27%) (17,220 (14,420 (11,279
INCOME (LOSS) FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (20,719 a7, 779 4,011 3,91¢ 7,91¢
INCOME FROM
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS — 1,46¢ 10,27¢ 11,58; 2,72¢
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORI
INCOME TAXES (20,719 (16,319 14,28¢ 15,50¢ 10,64
STATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE (202) — (82¢€) (715) (53¢)
NET INCOME (LOSS) (20,920 (16,319 13,46 14,79( 10,10:
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TC
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST — — 384 77¢ 661
NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO SUMMIT
HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC $ (20,920) $ (16,319 $ 13,07¢ $ 14,01 $ 9,44:
Funds from Operatior®:
Net income (loss $ (20,920 $ (16,31 $ 13,46: $ 14,79C $ 10,10t
Depreciation and amortizatic 27,25 24,12¢ 23,02¢ 18,881 16,64¢
Gain on disposition of assets — (1,297 (8,605) (10,380 (1,240
Funds from Operations $ 6,331 $ 6,514 $ 27,88t $ 23,297 $ 25,51:
EBITDA @:
Net income (loss $ (20,920 $ (16,31) $ 13,46: $ 14,79C $ 10,10t
Depreciation and amortizatic 27,25 24,12¢ 23,02¢ 18,88 16,64¢
Interest Expens 26,36 18,32: 17,02¢ 14,21 11,13t

Interest Income 47 (50) (19%) (44¢) (605)



Income taxes 20z — 82€ 71t 53¢
EBITDA $ 32,84¢ % 26,08: $ 54,147 $ 48,16( $ 37,82(
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Balance Sheet Dati(in millions) Year Ended December 31

201( 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200€
Total Asset: $ 493.C $ 5182 $ 494.¢ $ 448.C $ 356.(
Long Term Obligation: $ 2532 % 270.2 % 350.6 $ 261 % 210.1

1)

(2)

As defined by the National Association of REatate Investment Trusts (“NAREIT”), funds fromeoations (“FFO”) represents net
income or loss (computed in accordance with GA&REJuding gains (or losses) from sales of propgaiys real estate depreciation and
amortization (excluding amortization of deferreudkfincing costs). We present FFO because we corsateimportant supplemental
measure of our operational performance and beltésdrequently used by securities analysts, itmessand other interested parties in the
evaluation of REITs, many of which present FFO whegorting their results. FFO is intended to exel@AAP historical cost
depreciation and amortization of real estate alatae assets, which assumes that the value oéstatie assets diminishes ratably over
time. Historically, however, real estate valuesehesen or fallen with market conditions. Becaus®Fexcludes depreciation and
amortization unique to real estate, gains and fofsen property dispositions and extraordinary geihprovides a performance measure
that, when compared year over year, reflects thgaonhto operations from trends in occupancy, roates;, operating costs, development
activities and interest costs, providing perspectiot immediately apparent from net income. We agepFO in accordance with
standards established by the Board of GovernoAGREIT in its March 1995 White Paper (as amendeNavember 1999 and April
2002), which may differ from the methodology fotadating FFO utilized by other equity REITs and¢ardingly, may not be
comparable to such other REITs. Further, FFO doesapresent amounts available for managementtsetionary use because of
needed capital replacement or expansion, debtcgeoliligations, or other commitments and unceiiggnFFO should not be considered
as an alternative to net income (loss) (computextaordance with GAAP) as an indicator of our leltyi, nor is it indicative of funds
available to fund our cash needs, including oulitglid pay dividends or make distributior

Amounts presented in accordance with our definitbRFO may not be comparable to similar measuissa$ed by other companie
since not all companies calculate this non-GAAP sneain the same manner. FFO should not be coesider an alternative measure of
our net income (loss) or operating performance. RFEY include funds that may not be available fardiscretionary use due to
functional requirements to conserve funds for @gikpenditures and property acquisitions and atbhermitments and uncertainties.
Although we believe that FFO can enhance our studeens’ understanding of our financial conditiordarsults of operations, this non-
GAAP financial measure is not necessarily a bétigicator of any trend as compared to a compar@BlAP measure such as net incc
(loss).

EBITDA represents net income or loss, exclgdifi) interest, (ii) income tax expense and (@i@preciation and amortization. We believe
EBITDA is useful to an investor in evaluating oyreoating performance because it provides investalsan indication of our ability to
incur and service debt, to satisfy general opegatxpenses, to make capital expenditures and tbdthrer cash needs or reinvest cash
into our business. We also believe it helps inwsstoeaningfully evaluate and compare the resultiobperations from period to period
by removing the impact of our asset base (prima@greciation and amortization) from our operatiegults. Our management also uses
EBITDA as one measure in determining the valuecglgsitions and disposition
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Amounts presented in accordance with our defintiohEBITDA may not be comparable to similar measutisclosed by oth
companies, since not all companies calculate tis@AAP measure in the same manner. EBITDA shoatde considered as an
alternative measure of our net income (loss) oratpey performance. EBITDA may include funds thatynmot be available for our
discretionary use due to functional requirementsoieserve funds for capital expenditures and ptg@equisitions and other
commitments and uncertainties. Although we belinat EBITDA can enhance our stockholdarsterstanding of our financial conditi
and results of operations, this non-GAAP finanniglasure is not necessarily a better indicator pfteemd as compared to a comparable
GAAP measure such as net income (la

Our predecessor’s equity interests consisted afddterent classes of limited liability company mbership interests that were not
publicly traded, thus, a discussion of its selegaxhings data would not be meaningful.

Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith the “Selected Financial Data,” our predessor’s audited consolidated
financial statements as of December 31, 2010 af®® 20d for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2862008, and related notes there
appearing elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a self-managed hotel investment companythatrecently organized to continue and expan@xisting hotel investment
business of our predecessor, Summit Hotel ProgelttieC, a leading U.S. hotel owner. We focus exgkly on acquiring and owning
premium-branded limited-service and select-serkimtels in the upscale and midscale without foodkenderage segments of the U.S. lodging
industry. We completed our IPO, concurrent privadgEement and the formation transactions on Fepridr2011, netting approximately
$240.0 million from the IPO and concurrent privatecement, after underwriting discounts and offgielated costs. We had no business
activities prior to completion of the IPO and tleerhation transactions.

Substantially all of our assets are held by, ahdfadur operations are conducted through, our ajey partnership, Summit Hotel
OP, LP. Our operating partnership is a recentlynid Delaware limited partnership. Through a whoilyned subsidiary, we are the sole
general partner of our operating partnership. Tghatlhe Merger, our operating partnership succeealéte business and assets of our
predecessor. Although our operating partnershipassurviving entity in the Merger, our predecessaonsidered the acquiror for accounting
purposes and its financial statements became wamdial statements upon completion of the Mergére following discussion is based on our
accounting predecessor’s historical operating tesbbllowing completion of the formation transaas, our IPO and the concurrent private
placement, Summit REIT owns an approximate 73.08tnpeship interest in our operating partnershipluding general and limited
partnership interests. The other limited partnéisuo operating partnership, the former membersufpredecessor and The Summit Group
former Class B member of Summit of Scottsdale aedarmer Class C member of Summit of Scottsdale, the remaining approximate
27.0% limited partnership interest in our operatiagtnership. Pursuant to the partnership agreeofenir operating partnership, we have full,
exclusive and complete responsibility and discretiothe management and control of our operatintnpeship, including the ability to cause
our operating partnership to enter into certainanansactions including acquisitions, disposii@md refinancings, make distributions to
partners and to cause changes in our operatinggrahip’s business activities.
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We intend to elect to be taxed as a REIT for fedammme tax purposes beginning with our short bkdexgear ending December 31,
2011. To qualify as a REIT, we cannot operate onaga our hotels. Instead, we lease our hotelstdR& lessees, which are wholly owned,
directly or indirectly, by our operating partnepshDur TRS lessees will engage one or more thandy hotel management companies to op
and manage our hotels pursuant to hotel manageages¢ments. In connection with our IPO, our TRSdes entered into a hotel management
agreement with Interstate, pursuant to which ottiairhotels are operated by Interstate. Our TRSSdes may also employ other hotel managers
in the future. We believe Interstate qualifies aseligible independent contractor” for federal amse tax purposes. We have no, and will have
no, ownership or economic interest in any of theehmanagement companies engaged by our TRS le€3ee3RS lessees will be disregar
as separate from our TRSs for federal income taggaes and their operations will be consolidatédl dur financial statements for accounting
purposes. Any TRS of ours will be taxed as a seépd@’ corporation, and, unlike our predecessantsoime, our TRS lessees’ income will be
subject to federal, state and local income taxctvhiill reduce our funds from operations and th&hoatherwise available for distribution to
stockholders.

As of December 31, 2010, our hotel portfolio cotexioof 65 hotels with a total of 6,533 guestroootated in 19 states. Except for
four hotels, which are ground leased, we own otelldn fee simple. Forty-two of our hotels aréegarized as mid-scale without food and
beverage hotels and 23 of our hotels are categbageipscale hotels. As of December 31, 2010f 6brchotels were encumbered by a tote
$420.4 million of mortgage debt, approximately $Z2&iillion of which was repaid in the first quart#r2011 following our IPO. Our initial
hotels, with the exception of one independent hatel operated under nationally recognized brandkiding the brands owned by Marriott,
Hilton, IHG and Hyatt families of brands, amongeth

As we disclosed in the prospectus for our IPO,curent portfolio consists of what we consider ‘s@m@ed” and “unseasoned”
hotels. At the time of our IPO, we classified 4@®uor hotels as seasoned based on their constnuatiacquisition date and we classified 19 of
our hotels as unseasoned, those hotels that whes built after January 1, 2007 or experiencedaad conversion since January 1, 2008. We
will continue to report results using this classition for these 65 hotels only through Decembe2811, beyond which time the categories
will have become less meaningful.

All of our hotels are located in markets in whick have extensive experience and that exhibit mMeldpmand generators, such as
business and corporate headquarters, retail centguerts and tourist attractions. Based on totamhber of rooms, 48% of our portfolio is
positioned in the top 50 MSAs and 68% is locatetthiwithe top 100 MSAs.

Our revenue is derived from hotel operations antsists of room revenue and other hotel operatiemsnue. As a result of our focus
on limited-service and select-service hotels inupscale and midscale without food and beveragmeets of the U.S. lodging industry,
substantially all of our revenue is room revenueegated from sales of hotel rooms. We also genetaty hotel operations revenue, which
consists of ancillary revenue related to meetirans, entertainment and other guest services prawdtieur hotels.

Our hotel operating expenses consist primarilyxple@ses incurred in the day-to-day operation ofrmtels. Many of our expenses
are fixed, such as essential hotel staff, reatestxes, insurance, depreciation and certain tgpanchise fees, and these expenses do not
decrease even if the revenue at our hotels decr@asdnotel operating expenses consist of roommesgs other direct expenses, other indirect
expenses and other expenses. Room expenses imadigas, cleaning and guestroom supplies and compianebreakfast. Other direct
expenses include office supplies, utilities, tekapdn, advertising and bad debts. Other indirect es@®include real and personal property taxes.
insurance, travel agent and credit card commissioasagement expenses and franchise fees. Othemseginclude ground rent and other
items of miscellaneous expense.

The historical management fees paid by our predecese not indicative of the management fees weebto incur under our
management agreement with Interstate.

Industry Trends and Outlook

In mid-2008, U.S. lodging demand started to dediis@ result of the economic recession which caumskstry-wide RevPAR to
decline for the year, as reported by Smith Trawddarch. Throughout 2009, the decrease in lodgintadd accelerated, with RevPAR down
16.7% for the year according to Smith Travel RedeaBeginning in the first quarter of 2010, we daewnds of improved fundamentals in the
U.S. lodging industry with demand for rooms showséigns of stabilization, and even growth in manyhef major markets, as general
economic indicators began to experience positiyravement. With supply of available rooms expedtedse at a significantly slower pace
over the next several years than during 2006 tHhr@@98 and demand for rooms expected to increaeds.S. economy rebounds, we expect
meaningful growth in industry-wide RevPAR to comngnin 2011 and for several years thereafter.
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While we believe the trends in room demand and lsugowth will result in improvement in lodging indtry fundamentals, we can
provide no assurances that the U.S. economy wéhgthen at projected levels and within the expktitee periods. If the economy does not
improve or if any improvements do not continueday number of reasons, including, among othergcanomic slowdown and other events
outside of our control, such as terrorism, lodgimdustry fundamentals may not improve as expedtethe past, similar events have adversely
affected the lodging industry and if these eveatsir, they may adversely affect the lodging industrthe future.

Operating Performance Metrics

We use a variety of operating and other informat@avaluate the financial condition and operapegormance of our business.
These key indicators include financial informattbat is prepared in accordance with generally aecegccounting principles (“GAAP”), as
well as other financial information that is not jpaeed in accordance with GAAP. In addition, we oeer information that may not be financ
in nature, including statistical information anchgearative data. We use this information to meathegerformance of individual hotels,
groups of hotels and/or our business as a wholep&vedically compare historical information to aoternal budgets as well as industry-wide
information. These key indicators include:

e Occupancy
e ADR; and
e RevPAR.

Occupancy, ADR and RevPAR are commonly used messuitkin the hotel industry to evaluate operatiegfgrmance. RevPAR,
which is calculated as the product of ADR and oerwy, is an important statistic for monitoring agtérg performance at the individual hotel
level and across our business as a whole. We dedghdividual hotel RevPAR performance on an alieohasis with comparisons to budget
and prior periods, as well as on a company-wideragtbnal basis. ADR and RevPAR include only ro@venue. Room revenue depends on
demand, as measured by occupancy, pricing, as neeblsy ADR, and our available supply of hotel roo@sar ADR, occupancy and RevPAR
performance may be impacted by macroeconomic fastach as regional and local employment growttsgreal income and corporate
earnings, office vacancy rates and business rétocdecisions, airport and other business andieigavel, new hotel construction and the
pricing strategies of competitors. In addition, DR, occupancy and RevPAR performance is depermtettie continued success of our
franchisors and their brands.

In addition to occupancy, ADR and RevPAR, we us® @Rrd EBITDA, non-GAAP financial measures, to asses financial
condition and operating performance. These measti@dd not be considered in isolation or as at#tubs for measures of performance in
accordance with GAAP. FFO and EBITDA are supplemldiniancial measures and are not defined by GAAFRO and EBITDA, as calculatt
by us, may not be comparable to FFO and EBITDA meploby other companies that do not define FFOEBITDA exactly as we define tho
terms. FFO and EBITDA do not represent cash geeeifabm operating activities determined in accoogawith GAAP and should not be
considered as alternatives to operating incomesbincome determined in accordance with GAAP, dgators of performance or as
alternatives to cash flows from operating actigities indicators of liquidity.
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Our Portfolio

Our portfolio consists of 65 upscale and midscatbaout food and beverage hotels with a total o88,§uestrooms located in 19
states. Our hotels, with the exception of one iredelent hotel, are operated under nationally reecegrrands as shown below:

Franchisor/Brand No. of Hotels No. of Rooms
Marriott
Courtyard by Marriott 6 71t
Residence Inn by Marriott 4 411
Fairfield Inn by Marriott 9 787
Fairfield Inn & Suites by Marriott 1 8C
SpringHill Suites by Marriott 7 671
TownePlace Suites by Marriott 1 90
28 2,75¢
Hilton
Hampton Inn 8 821
Hampton Inn & Suites 3 39C
Hilton Garden Inn 1 12C
12 1,331
IHG
Holiday Inn Express 2 182
Holiday Inn Express & Suites 4 36&
Staybridge Suites 1 92
7 63¢
Hyatt
Hyatt Place 4 55€
Choice®
Cambria Suites 4 48~
Comfort Inn 3 201
Comfort Inn & Suites 1 111
Comfort Suites 3 19¢
11 99¢
Starwooc
Aloft 1 13€
Carlson
Country Inn & Suites By Carlson 1 64
Independen
Aspen Hotel & Suites 1 57
Total 65 6,53

(1) Effective as of March 23, 2011, the franchigeeements with Choice were terminated.

Our portfolio consists of what we consider “seastirand “unseasoned” hotels. At the time of our IR@,classified 46 of our hotels
as seasoned based on their construction or adqnigihite and we classified 19 of our hotels as asmeed, those hotels that were either built
after January 1, 2007 or experienced a brand ceioresince January 1, 2008. We will continue fmoréeresults using this classification for
these 65 hotels only through December 31, 2011gimwhich time the categories will have become hesaningful. We believe our
unseasoned hotels are in the early stages ofigtagisince their construction or brand conversionurred during a dramatic economic
slowdown. Most of our unseasoned hotels are nderger and are located in larger markets than tbbser seasoned hotels and operate u
premium franchise brands. As a result, we beliaveunseasoned hotels are particularly well-pos#bto generate RevPAR growth for our
portfolio as economic conditions improve.
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The following table sets forth various statistiaad operating information related to our seasorel Iportfolio (dollars in thousanc
except ADR and RevPAR):

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007
Number of hotels at end of period 46 46 46 45
Average number of rooms 4,17: 4,17 4,17: 4,09:
Undepreciated (gross) book value at end of pe $ 29561 $ 28398 $ 276,14¢ $  268,97:
Revenue $ 86,81: $ 87,54: $ 105,54. $ 103,87:
Occupancy 64.1% 64.8% 69.5% 70.(%
ADR $ 87.7¢ % 87.4: $ 100.2¢ $ 99.7¢
RevPAR $ 56.2: % 56.6: $ 69.7C $ 69.8(

The following table sets forth various statistiaad operating information related to our unseastweel portfolio (dollars in
thousands, except ADR and RevPAR):

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007
Number of hotels at end of period 19 19 14 11
Average number of rooms 2,36( 2,36( 1,32¢ 625
Undepreciated (gross) book value at end of pe $ 266,26f $ 265,33 $ 163,23. $ 125,52¢
Revenue $ 48,82: % 33,65¢ $ 29,56 $ 10,01¢
Occupancy 63.1% 55.2% 55.2% 49.2%
ADR $ 87.2¢ % 87.5¢ $ 107.37 % 87.5¢
RevPAR $ 55.0¢ % 48.47 % 503t $ 43.0¢

Results of Operations of Summit Hotel Properties,dc. and Summit Hotel OP, LP

We have not presented historical financial infoliorafor Summit REIT or Summit OP. Neither SummEIR nor Summit OP had
any operations prior to February 14, 2011 othen tha issuance of 1,000 shares of common stockimin®t REIT to our Executive Chairman
in connection with Summit REIT’s formation and ialtcapitalization and activity in connection witlir IPO and the formation transactions
and, as a result, we believe that a discussiomofesults for the period ended December 31, 20dldwot be meaningful. We have set forth
below a discussion of the consolidated historiealits of operations and financial position of ptedecessor, Summit Hotel Properties, LLC.

Results of Operations of Our Predecessor
Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 201thtoYear Ended December 31, 2009
Income from Operations$ncome from operations increased by approximatBli #illion to approximately $5.6 million for thegr

ended December 31, 2010 from approximately $500{00the year ended December 31, 2009. This inerees primarily the result of a $1.
million increase in revenue for the year ended Drdmmr 31, 2010.
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RevenueThe following tables sets forth key operating nuostfior our total portfolio, our seasoned portfoboy unseasoned portfolio
and our same-store portfolio for the year endecebdser 31, 2010 and the year ended December 31,(@608rs in thousands, except ADR
and RevPAR):

Year Ended December 31, 201

Total Total
Revenue Expenses Occupancy ADR RevPAR
Total (65 hotels) $ 135,63¢ $ 129,99¢ 63.7% $ 87.5¢ $ 55.8(
Seasoned (46 hotel®) $ 86.81: $ 71,19¢ 64.1% $ 87.7t $ 56.22
Unseasoned (19 hotels) $ 48,82: % 58,80( 63.1% $ 87.2¢ $ 55.0¢
Same-store (60 hotels® $ 122,34 $ 106,85! 64.1% $ 88.2t $ 56.5¢
(1) Excludes hotels that were reclassified to discathoperations during 20C
@ Includes seasoned and unseasoned hotels that weesl @uring all of 2010 and 2009, but excludes Isdteat were reclassified
discontinued operations during 20!
Year Ended December 31, 200
Total Total
Revenue Expenses Occupancy ADR RevPAR
Total (65 hotels) $ 121,20 $ 120,70« 61.<% $ 87.4C $ 54.1z
Seasoned (46 hotel® $ 87,54. $ 73,55 64.8% $ 87.4: $ 56.6:
Unseasoned (19 hotels) $ 33,65¢ $ 47,15: 55.2% $ 87.5¢ $ 48.47
Same-store (60 hotels® $ 118,79: $ 102,59( 62.8% $ 87.5¢ $ 54.97

() Excludes hotels that were reclassified to discamtthoperations during 20C
@ Includes seasoned and unseasoned hotels that weeal auring all of 2010 and 2009, but excludes lbdteat were reclassified
discontinued operations during 20!

Total revenue increased by $14.4 million, or 11.884135.6 million for the year ended December2810 from $121.2 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009. The increasenivaarily due to improving economic conditions &ftieg our markets and leading to
continued stabilization of revenue at our unseagdreels.

Seasoned hotel revenue decreased by $0.7 millidh886, to $86.8 million for the year ended Decen8ie 2010 from $87.5 millio
for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decieasasoned hotel revenue was primarily causedhy% decrease in seasoned hotel
RevPAR resulting from a slight decline in occupamdych more than offset the slight increase in Al3Rasoned hotel RevPAR decreased to
$56.22 for the year ended December 31, 2010 frodn6B5for the prior year as a result of declininguggancy resulting from the uncertain
economic conditions.

Unseasoned hotel revenue increased by $15.1 mitio#4.8%, to $48.8 million for the year ended &maber 31, 2010 from $33.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Tioedase in unseasoned hotel revenue was primadyalincreased occupancy from 55.3%
to 63.1% at the unseasoned hotels as they corttinstabilize within their markets which more thdfset the slight decrease in ADR, resulting
in a 13.6% increase in unseasoned hotel RevPARedsemed hotel RevPAR increased to $55.06 for thegreded December 31, 2010 from
$48.47 for the prior period as a result of imprgvetonomic conditions, which caused higher occupahour unseasoned hotels.

On a same-store basis, revenue increased by $Bi&nmor 2.9%, to $122.3 million for the year edd@ecember 31, 2010 from
$118.8 million for the year ended December 31, 200& increase in same-store revenue resulted d&romcrease in both occupancy and
ADR, resulting in a 2.8% increase in same-storeH2d¥. Same-store RevPAR increased to $56.53 foyehe ended December 31, 2010 from
$54.97 for the prior period as a result of imprgvetonomic conditions, which caused higher occupahour hotels and resulted in a 1.3
percentage point increase and a 0.8% increase R #bthe same-store hotel portfolio.

Operating ExpensesTotal operating expenses from continuing operati@xcluding depreciation and amortization andaiinmpent
losses, increased $7.1 million, or 8.0%, to $96il8an for the year ended December 31, 2010 fror.&8nillion for the year ended
December 31, 2009. Of this increase, $1.1 milliiided expenses that were incurred in preparétiothe Merger and the formation
transactions and included additional audit feesyriance, bonuses to hotel managers and bad dedisxprhe balance of the increase was
directly related to the $14.4 million increase afes revenue. Repairs and maintenance expenseadedr$1.5 million, or 24.2%, to $4.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2010 fra@23%nillion for the year ended December 31, 2008e decrease was primarily due to
fewer renovations being performed during 2010 tha2009 at our hotels.

46




Depreciation and Amortizatiol®n a total portfolio basis, depreciation and amzatton expense from continuing operations incre
by $3.3 million, or 13.7%, to $27.3 million for tlyear ended December 31, 2010 from $24.0 milliortfe year ended December 31, 2009.
The increase was primarily due to the five hotglereed in 2009 and costs incurred related to thenibatiate extension of our loan with
Fortress Credit Corp.

Impairment LossedPuring the year ended December 31, 2010, our pessec determined that four parcels of undeveloged Wwere
impaired due to the termination of sales contrémtshe sale of the land parcels and managemessidting determination that their carrying
amounts were no longer realizable. As a resultpoedecessor recorded a $6.5 million non-cash imaait charge in the fourth quarter of
2010. Our predecessor determined that the fair easdue of these land parcels was $20.3 millioofd3ecember 31, 2010. During the year
ended December 31, 2009, our predecessor deterithiaesix parcels of undeveloped land were impadheel to the fact that their aggregate
historical carrying value exceeded their aggrefgtevalue. This impairment was the result of otedecessor’s decision to stop development
projects and attempt to sell the land. As a resuit,predecessor recorded at $6.3 million non-gagiairment charge in the fourth quarter of
2009. Our predecessor also determined that thetyzodrby Marriott located in Memphis, Tennessee ingsired due to the fact that its
historical carrying value was higher than the Hstilir value. This determination was made basedammomic distress on this particular hotel
and market. Accordingly, our predecessor recordgtl. 2 million noncash impairment charge in 2009.
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The following table details our hotel expensesdior seasoned portfolio, our unseasoned portfolibcam samestore portfolio for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and December 31,(@60&rs in thousands

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31

2010 2009
Seasoned Hotel Expenses (46 hotel
Direct hotel operations $ 29,717 $ 29,27:
Other hotel operating expenses 11,20« 11,20¢
General, selling and administrative 15,99 15,87(
Repairs and maintenance 3,13 4,08:
Depreciation and amortization 11,14« 11,95(
Loss on impairment of assets — 1,17:
Total Expenses $ 71,19¢ $ 73,55:
Unseasoned Hotel Expenses (19 hotel
Direct hotel operations $ 17,49: $ 12,79¢
Other hotel operating expenses 7,750 5,782
General, selling and administrative 9,38¢ 8,147
Repairs and maintenance 1,581 2,06¢
Depreciation and amortization 16,10° 12,021
Loss on impairment of assets 6,47¢ 6,33:
Total Expenses $ 58,80( $ 47,15
Same-Store Portfolio Expenses (60 hotels
Direct hotel operations $ 42,30: $ 41,01¢
Other hotel operating expenses 16,83t 16,64¢
General, selling and administrative 22,76: 22,08
Repairs and maintenance 4,374 6,054
Depreciation and amortization 20,58: 15,62
Loss on impairment of assets — 1,17
Total Expenses $ 106,85 $ 102,59(

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 200t Year Ended December 31, 2008

Income from Operationgncome from operations decreased by $20.7 millawrg§8%, to $0.5 million for the year ended Decenf
2009 from $21.2 million for the year ended Decenfr2008. This decrease was primarily the redudt$13.9 million decrease in revenue as
well as an impairment loss of $7.5 million recogmuiZor the year ended December 31, 2009.

RevenueThe following tables set forth key operating metrior our total portfolio, our seasoned portfoboy unseasoned portfolio

and our same-store portfolio for the year endedeDdxer 31, 2009 and the year ended December 31,(80608&rs in thousands, except ADR
and RevPAR):

Year Ended December 31, 200

Total Total
Revenue Expenses Occupancy ADR RevPAR
Total (65 hotels) $ 121,20 $ 120,70: 61.5% $ 87.4C $ 54.1%
Seasoned (46 hotel® $ 87,54: $ 73,55 64.8% $ 87.4: $ 56.6:
Unseasoned (19 hotels) $ 33,65¢ $ 47,15 55.2% $ 87.5¢ $ 48.47
Same-store (57 hotels® $ 112,12¢ $ 99,02( 63.7% $ 88.1: $ 56.1%

(1) Excludes hotels that were reclassified to discathoperations during 20C
@ Includes seasoned and unseasoned hotels thabweesl during all of 2009 and 2008, but excludeglsahat were reclassified to
discontinued operations during 20!
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Year Ended December 31, 200

Total Total
Revenue Expenses Occupancy ADR RevPAR
Total (62 hotels) $ 135,100 $ 113,87¢ 66.2% $ 100.9¢ % 66.7¢
Seasoned (46 hotel® $ 105,54: $ 79,54( 69.5% $ 100.2¢ $ 69.7(
Unseasoned (19 hotels) $ 29,56 $ 34,33¢ 55.2% $ 107.37 $ 59.3:¢
Same-store (57 hotels® $ 134,93 $ 110,89¢ 66.2% $ 101.8: $ 67.47

(1) Excludes hotels that were reclassified to discatthoperations during 2009 and 20
@ Includes seasoned and unseasoned hotels thabweesl during all of 2009 and 2008, but excludeglsahat were reclassified to
discontinued operations during 2009 and 2(

Total revenue decreased by $13.9 million, or 10.824121.2 million for the year ended December20D9 from $135.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2008. The decreasprinexily due to continuing unfavorable economiaditions affecting our markets and
included a $5.7 million decrease in revenue asaltref the sale of seven hotels (discontinued apars) during 2008 and 2009 offset by
increases in revenue from nine new hotels openadgil008 and 2009.

Seasoned hotel revenue decreased by $18.0 mibirdii]. 1%, to $87.5 million for the year ended Deben81, 2009 from $105.5
million for the year ended December 31, 2008. Téerelse in seasoned hotel revenue was primarigedaoy an 18.8% decrease in seasoned
hotel RevPAR. Seasoned hotel RevPAR decreasedt635or the year ended December 31, 2009 from786fr the prior year as a result of
adverse economic conditions, which caused lowenmenecy and also caused us to lower room ratesrdtatels in order to remain competitive
in our markets.

Unseasoned hotel revenue increased by $4.1 mithoh3.9%, to $33.7 million for the year ended Daber 31, 2009 from $29.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2008. Tioedase in unseasoned hotel revenue was primaidyalrevenue from nine new hotels
opened during 2008 and 2009.

On a same-store basis, revenue decreased by $#Eo8,nor 16.9%, to $112.1 million for the yearded December 31, 2009 from
$134.9 million for the year ended December 31, 200@ decrease in same-store revenue was printatiiged by a 16.8% decrease in same-
store RevPAR. Same-store RevPAR decreased to $&%.18 year ended December 31, 2009 from $6 @At prior period as a result of
adverse economic conditions, which caused lowengeacy and also caused us to lower room ratesrdtatels in order to remain competitive
in our markets.

Operating Expense3otal operating expenses from continuing operatiersluding depreciation and amortization and impant
losses, decreased $2.4 million, or 2.6%, to $89limfor the year ended December 31, 2009 frorh.$9million for the year ended
December 31, 2008. Repairs and maintenance expdesesased $1.8 million, or 22.5%, to $6.2 millfonthe year ended December 31, 2009
from $8.0 million for the year ended December 3I0& The decrease was primarily due to fewer rations being performed during 2009
than in 2008 at our hotels. The decrease in toqageses of 2.6% was not as significant as the deerim total revenue of 10.3% due to the
increased operating expenses related to openingwthotels. Typically, operating profit margin ist@ms significant for newly opened hotels
until they become established in the market.

Depreciation and Amortizatioi®n a total portfolio basis, depreciation and amzatton expense from continuing operations incre
by $1.7 million, or 7.6%, to $24.0 million for tlyear ended December 31, 2009 from $22.3 milliortHeryear ended December 31, 2008. The
increase was primarily due to the nine hotels ogén@008 and 2009.

Impairment LossePuring the year ended December 31, 2009, our pessec determined that six parcels of undevelopadiyeere
impaired due to the fact that their aggregate histbcarrying value exceeded their aggregatevalue. As a result, our predecessor recorded a
$6.3 million non-cash impairment charge in the fowquarter of 2009. This impairment was the restiiur predecessor’s decision to stop
development projects and attempt to sell the |@nd.predecessor also determined that the Courtyaidarriott located in Memphis,
Tennessee was impaired due to the fact that itsridal carrying value was higher than the hotédis value. This determination was made
based on recent economic distress on this partibokzl and market. Accordingly, our predecessoomged a $1.2 million noncash impairment
charge in the fourth quarter of 2009. Our predemedisl not record any impairment charges duringysar ended December 31, 2008.
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The following table details our hotel expensesdiar seasoned portfolio, our unseasoned portfolibam same-store portfolio for
years ended December 31, 2009 and December 31,606 s in thousands

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008

Seasoned Hotel Expenses (46 and 45 hotels, respai):
Direct hotel operations $ 29.27: % 32,18:
Other hotel operating expenses 11,20¢ 11,00z
General, selling and administrative 15,87( 19,09:
Repairs and maintenance 4,08: 4,34:
Depreciation and amortization 11,95( 12,92
Loss on impairment of assets 1,17: —
Total Expenses $ 73,55: $ 79,54(
Unseasoned Hotel Expenses (19 and 14 hotels, respety):
Direct hotel operations $ 12,79¢ $ 10,19¢
Other hotel operating expenses 5,782 4,18¢
General, selling and administrative 8,14 6,90z
Repairs and maintenance 2,06¢ 3,66
Depreciation and amortization 12,02: 9,38¢
Loss on impairment of assets 6,33: —
Total Expenses $ 47,15, % 34,33¢
Same-Store Portfolio Expenses (57 hotels
Direct hotel operations $ 37,860 $ 42,13¢
Other hotel operating expenses 15,35¢ 15,13
General, selling and administrative 20,41 24,32¢
Repairs and maintenance 4,84¢ 7,97(
Depreciation and amortization 19,35¢ 21,33:
Loss on impairment of assets 1,17: —
Total Expenses $ 99,02( $ 110,89¢

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our short-term liquidity requirements consist priityaof operating expenses and other expendituextly associated with our hotel
properties, including recurring maintenance andtabpxpenditures necessary to maintain our hatgbgrties in accordance with brand
standards, capital expenditures to improve ourl lpotgperties, interest expense and scheduled pahpayments on outstanding indebtedness
and distributions to our stockholders. In conrativith the formation transactions, during Febru20d§ 1, our predecessor paid accrued and
unpaid priority returns on its Class A and Clas% membership interests in the amount of approxily&@.3 million. Our predecessor paid
$535,261 of priority returns during the first quearof 2010. Effective with the closing of the Mergno additional payments on priority returns
will be made.

We have entered into three agreements to purcbasédtels for purchase prices aggregating apprabdiyn $34.8 million:
e a 216-room hotel located in downtown Minneapd&nesota for a purchase price of $10.5 millionapproximately $48,600 per
key. If we complete this acquisition, we expectémvert the brand of the hotel after completingndigant capital improvements of

approximately $12.0 million, or approximately $5@)per key, for a combined aggregate purchase prideenovation cost of
approximately $22.6 million, or approximately $10&) per key; an
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e a 143-room hotel located in Duluth, Georgia arid@a-room hotel located in Glendale (Denver), Cadlar for a combined purchase
price of $17.0 million. If we complete the acqusits of these hotels, we expect to perform standardvations of approximately
$2.5 million in the aggregate, for a combined aggte purchase price and renovation cost of appiatein $72,000 per key; ar

e a9lroom hotel located in Ridgeland, Mississippi fguuachase price of $7.3 million, or approximatelY&A9 per key. If wi
complete the acquisition of this hotel, we expegbérform a standard renovation of approximate®d$800, for a combined
aggregate purchase price and renovation cost abzippately $89,000 per ke

We expect to complete each of these purchaseg isettond quarter of 2011, but we may not be sadisfith the results of our due
diligence or other conditions to closing may noshésfied, and thus, we cannot assure you thatiwacquire any of these properties.

We expect to satisfy our short-term liquidity reguments with working capital, cash provided by agiens, short-term borrowings
under an anticipated $30.0 million unsecured reungleredit facility that we intend to enter intorthg the second quarter of 2011 and an
anticipated $100.0 million senior secured revolvingdit facility that we intend to enter into dugithe second quarter of 2011, and with
remaining proceeds of our IPO and concurrent peipdicement. We expect that when we enter intatiieipated $100.0 million senior
secured revolving credit facility we will transfer it any then-outstanding principal balance onghtcipated $30.0 million unsecured
revolving credit facility. We believe that our wamk capital and cash provided by operations wilsb#ficient to meet our ongoing short-term
liquidity requirements for at least the next 12 mien

Our long-term liquidity requirements consist priihaof the costs of acquiring additional hotel pesfies, renovations and other non-
recurring capital expenditures that need to be npadedically with respect to our hotel properi@esl scheduled debt payments, including
approximately $20.0 million in capital expenditupgsuant to property improvement plans we exmecbimplete before June 30, 2012. We
will seek to satisfy these long-term liquidity régments through various sources of capital, iniclgdvorking capital, cash provided by
operations, long-term hotel mortgage indebtednedsother borrowings, including borrowings under oredit facilities. In addition, we may
seek to raise capital through public or privateenffgs of our equity or debt securities. Howevertan factors may have a material adverse
effect on our ability to access these capital seairmcluding our degree of leverage, the valueuofunencumbered hotel properties and
borrowing restrictions imposed by lenders. We wailhtinue to analyze which source of capital is na@stantageous to us at any particular g
in time, but financing may not be consistently éalale to us on terms that are attractive, or at all

To satisfy the requirements for qualification &REIT, we must meet a number of organizational gretrational requirements,
including a requirement that we distribute annuatijeast 90% of our REIT taxable income to oucldtolders, determined without regard to
the deduction for dividends paid and excluding aet/capital gain. Therefore, once the total net@eds of IPO and the concurrent private
placement have been invested, we will need to eadsiétional capital in order to grow our businesd avest in additional hotel properties.
However, there is no assurance that we will be &blorrow funds or raise additional equity capitalterms acceptable to us, if at all. We
anticipate that any debt we incur in the futurd imitlude restrictions (including lockbox and casanagement provisions) that under certain
circumstances will limit or prohibit our operatipgrtnership and its subsidiaries from making distibns or paying dividends, repaying loans
or transferring assets.

Our Anticipated Senior Secured Revolving Credit Hity

Our operating partnership has obtained commitmients $100.0 million, three-year (with an optionextend for one additional year
if we meet certain requirements) senior securedlvénwg credit facility, or credit facility, with Detsche Bank AG New York Branch, as
administrative agent, Deutsche Bank Securities bBeclead arranger, and a syndicate of lendersdimgy Deutsche Bank AG New York
Branch, Royal Bank of Canada, KeyBank National Asst@don and Regions Bank. Our operating partneraliifoe the borrower under the
credit facility. The credit facility will be guartéeed by Summit REIT and all of our existing andifetsubsidiaries that own or lease a
“borrowing base property.” The credit facility wbke secured primarily by a first priority mortgdga on each borrowing base property and a
first priority pledge of our equity interests iretBubsidiaries that hold the borrowing base pragggerand a TRS we will form in connection w
the credit facility, which will wholly own the TREssees that will lease each of the borrowing pasperties.
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We may not succeed in obtaining a credit facilityfavorable terms or at all and we cannot predietsize or terms of the secured
revolving credit facility if we are able to obtain Our failure to obtain a credit facility couldhaersely affect our ability to grow our business
and meet our obligations as they come due.

The following is a summary of the indicative terars conditions for our anticipated $100.0 millioredit facility. We intend to
negotiate, execute and deliver definitive documtgonigor the credit facility during the second qtesirof 2011, and the credit facility will not
become effective unless we comply with all of tbeditions to effectiveness, including the lendesetisfactory completion of financial,
accounting and business due diligence, the reoégutisfactory appraisals on the borrowing basp@ries and our satisfaction of other
conditions. We also have agreed to actively afisssadministrative agent in syndicating the créatitlity. There can be no assurance as to if or
when the definitive documentation will be execuéed delivered or the conditions to effectivenedbhei satisfied, and the size and other te
of the credit facility reflected in the definitidocumentation may differ from those outlined below.

Outstanding borrowings on the senior secured réwgleredit facility are expected to be limited ke tleast of (1) $100.0 million, (2)
55% of the aggregate appraised value of the bongWwase properties and (3) the aggregate adjustezbrrating income of the borrowing
base properties securing the facility divided b@%bof the monthly factor shown on a standard leeeistant payment table for a fully
amortizing 25-year loan based on an assumed intetesequal to the greatest of (x) the ten-ye&. Ureasury rate plus 3.5%, (y) 7.00% and
(z) the weighted-average interest rate then apgkc® advances outstanding under the securedviegatredit facility. The initial availability
of the credit facility is also subject to a borrogibase having no fewer than 15 properties. Poitiheé second anniversary of the credit facifity’
closing date we also may elect to increase the atafithe credit facility by up to an additional38L0 million, increasing the maximum
aggregate amount of the credit facility to $200iiom, subject to the identification of a lenderlenders willing to make available the
additional amounts, including new lenders acceptabus and the administrative agent.

Payment TermaNe expect that we will be obligated to pay integgshe end of each selected interest period, diuess than
quarterly, with all outstanding principal and acmiibut unpaid interest due at maturity. We haveitite to repay all or any portion of the
outstanding borrowings from time to time withouhply or premium, other than customary early payness if we repay a LIBOR loan
before the end of the contract period. In additiwe,will be required to make earlier principal reion payments in the event of certain
changes in the borrowing base availability.

We expect that we will pay interest on the periativances under the senior secured revolving diediity at varying rates, based
upon, at our option, either (i) 1-, 2-, 3- or 6-rttohIBOR, subject to a floor of 0.50%, plus the kpgble LIBOR margin or (ii) the applicable
base rate, which is the greatest of the adminig&aigent’s prime rate, 0.50% plus the federal fueffliective rate, and 1-month LIBOR
(incorporating the floor of 0.50%) plus 1.00%, ptbe applicable margin for base rate loans. Thdiggipe LIBOR and base rate margin is
expected to depend upon the ratio of our outstandimsolidated total indebtedness to EBITDA, aofes:

Base Rate
Total Debt to EBITDA Ratio LIBOR Margin Margin
<3.50x 2.50% 1.50%
>3.50x and <5.00x 3.00% 2.00%
>5.00x 3.50% 2.50%

On a quarterly basis, we will be required to pdgeaon the unused portion of the senior securealving credit facility equal to the
unused amount multiplied by an annual rate of eifh®.50%, if the unused amount is equal to @ager than 50% of the maximum aggregate
amount of the credit facility, or (ii) 0.375%, He unused amount is less than 50% of the maximwreggte amount of the credit facility. We
will also be required to pay other fees, includaugtomary arrangement, administrative and frorfieg.
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Financial and Other Covenantih addition, we expect to be required to complyhvétseries of financial and other covenants inrorde
to borrow under the senior secured revolving crgdility. The material financial covenants, testpahrterly, remain subject to negotiation but
are expected to include the following:

e a maximum ratio of consolidated indebtedness (fimatkin the loan documentation) to consolidatedHBA (as defined in the
loan documentation

e a minimum ratio of adjusted consolidated EBITDA @&fined in the loan documentation) to consoliddibestl charges (a
defined in the loan documentatiol

e a minimum consolidated tangible net worth (asraef in the loan documentation) of not less tha¥ &9 our consolidated
tangible net worth as of the facil's closing date plus 80% of the net proceeds ofesjiient common equity issuances;

e a maximum dividend payout ratio of 95% of FFO (efirted in the loan documentation) or an amount s&amy to maintain REI
tax status and avoid corporate income and excies]

We also expect that we will be subject to otheta@usiry covenants, including restrictions on invesitis, limitations on liens and
maintenance of properties. The credit facility o contain customary events of default, inclgdamong others, the failure to make
payments when due under any of the credit fadlldgumentation, breach of any covenant continuingbeé any cure period and bankruptcy
insolvency.

Indebtedness

As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately $#&tllion in outstanding indebtedness and no hatakncumbered by mortge
debt. As of March 30, 2011, we have approxima#dl97.1 million in outstanding indebtedness and &®&ls unencumbered by mortgage debt,
including 25 hotels with 2,330 rooms operating urtol@nds owned by Marriott, Hilton, IHG or Hyatyalable as collateral for potential futt
loans. We intend to enter into a $100.0 millionisesecured revolving credit facility to fund fuluacquisitions, as well as for property
redevelopments and working capital requirements, we expect will be secured by a significant nundjghese properties. We may not
succeed in obtaining a credit facility on favoratdems or at all and we cannot predict the sizeions of the secured revolving credit facility if
we are able to obtain it. Our failure to obtairredit facility could adversely affect our ability grow our business and meet our obligations as
they come due.

The following table sets forth our mortgage debigattions that were outstanding as of DecembefB810:

Outstanding

Principal Interest Rate
Balance as of as of
December 31, December 31, 201@mortization Maturity
Lender Collateral 2010 Q) (years) Date
Bank of the Cascades Residence Inn by Marriott, $ 12,623,347 Prime rate, subject 25 09/30/11
Portland, OF a floor of 6.00%
ING Investment Management(2)(1 Fairfield Inn & Suites by 28,901,411 5.60% 20 07/01/25
Marriott, Germantown, TN
Residence Inn by Marriott,
Germantown, TN
Holiday Inn Express, Boise, |
Courtyard by Marriott,
Memphis, TN
Hampton Inn & Suites, El
Paso, TX
Hampton Inn, Ft. Smith, Al
MetaBank Cambria Suites, Boise, | 7,286,887 Prime rate, subject 20 03/01/12
SpringHill Suites by Marriott, a floor of 5.00%
Lithia Springs, GA
Chambers Bank Aspen Hotel & Suites, Ft. 1,594,177 6.50% 20 06/24/12
Smith, AR
Bank of the Ozarks(3) Hyatt Place, Portland, OR 6,435,774 90-day LIBOR + 25 06/29/12

4.00%, subjectto a
floor of 6.75%
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Lender

ING Investment Management(4)(10) (’

ING Investment Management(4)(11) (?

BNC National Bank(13)

First National Bank of Omaha(

ING Investment Management(6)(12) (’

General Electric Capital Corp.(7)(1

National Western Life Insurance(

BNC National Bank(13

Compass Bank

General Electric Capital Corp.(14)

General Electric Capital Corp.(9)(14)

Subtotal

Collateral
Hilton Garden Inn, Ft. Collins
CcO

Comfort Inn, Ft. Smith, AF
Holiday Inn Express, Sandy,
uT

Fairfield Inn by Marriott,
Lewisville, TX

Hampton Inn, Denver, CO
Holiday Inn Express, Vernon
Hills, IL

Hampton Inn, Fort Wayne, It
Courtyard by Marriott,
Missoula, MT

Comfort Inn, Missoula, M

Hampton Inn & Suites, Ft.
Worth, TX

Courtyard by Marriott
Germantown, TN
Courtyard by Marriott,
Jackson, MS

Hyatt Place, Atlanta, G,

Residence Inn by Marriot
Ridgeland, M<

Cambria Suites, San Antoni
TX

Courtyard by Marriott
Scottsdale, AZ

SpringHill Suites by Marriott,
Scottsdale, Az

Holiday Inn Express & Suite
Twin Falls, ID

Courtyard by Marriott
Flagstaff, AZ

SpringHill Suites by Marriott,
Denver, CC

Cambria Suites, Baton Roug
LA

Outstanding

Loans outstanding at December 31, 2010 that werepaid with proceeds of IPO and

concurrent private placement

Fortress Credit Corp.(16)

Lehman Brothers Bank(1!

Marshall & lisley Bank(16)

Marshall & lisley Bank(16)

Land parcels

27 hotels

Hampton Inn & Suites,
Bloomington, MN

Cambria Suites, Bloomingtor

Principal Interest Rate
Balance as of as of
December 31, December 31, 201 Amortization Maturity
2010 @ (years) Date
7,896,36€ 6.34% 20 07/01/12
29,321,61< 6.10% 20 07/01/12
5,719,872 5.01% 20 11/01/13
24,234,93% 90-day LIBOR + 20 07/01/13
4.00%, subjectto a
floor of 5.25%
6,235,812 6.61% 20 11/01/28
11,182,79¢ 9C-day LIBOR + 25 04/01/14
2.55%
13,631,222 8.00% 17 01/01/15
5,814,13¢€ Prime rate- 0.25% 20 04/01/16
16,492,29: Prime rate- 0.25%, 20 05/17/18
subject to a floor of
4.50%
8,685,517 90-day LIBOR + 20 04/01/18
1.75%
11,033,293 90-day LIBOR + 25 03/01/19
1.80%
$197,089,44¢
86,722,869 30-day LIBOR + 03/05/11
8.75%
76,829,07¢ 5.4205% 01/11/12
11,524,451 30-day LIBOR + 03/31/11
3.90%
9,895,727 30-day LIBOR + 06/30/11



First National Bank of Omaha(1

First National Bank of Omaha(1

Subtotal

Total(17)

MN

Hyatt Place, Las Colinas, T
Holiday Inn Express & Suite
Las Colinas, TX

StayBridge Suites, Jackson,
MS

SpringHill Suites by Marriott

Flagstaff, AZ
Aloft, Jacksonville, FL
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18,774,41¢ 9C-day LIBOR +

19,601,21¢ 9C-day LIBOR +

3.90%

4.00%

4.00%

$223,347,75!

$420,437,20°

07/31/11

07/31/11




(1)
(@)

3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)
(12)

(13)
(14)

(15)

As of December 31, 2010, the Prime rate was 3.2584lze 9-day LIBOR rate was 0.309

The lender has the right to call the loan,chilis secured by multiple hotel properties, at dand, 2012, January 1, 2017 and January 1,
2022. At January 1, 2012, the loan begins to amm#tcording to a 19.5 year amortization schediulbis loan is repaid prior to
maturity, there is a prepayment penalty equal ¢éogifeater of (i) 1% of the principal being repaid 4ii) the yield maintenance
premium. There is no prepayment penalty if the lisgorepaid 60 days prior to any call d¢

The maturity date may be extended to June 20, B@%dd on the exercise of two, -year extension options, subject to the satisfac
of certain conditions. If this loan is repaid prtorJune 29, 2011, there is a prepayment penaltsleéq 1% of the principal being repa
If this loan is repaid prior to maturity, thereaiprepayment penalty equal to the greater of (i)of%e principal being repaid and (ii) -
yield maintenance premiur

Evidenced by three promissory notes, the kemtured by the Hyatt Place located in Atlanta, Giednas a maturity date of February 1,
2014. The three promissory notes are -defaulted and cro-collateralized

The lender has the right to call the loan at Novenih 2013, 2018 and 2023. If this loan is repaidrgo maturity, there is
prepayment penalty equal to the greater of (i) %@ principal being repaid and (ii) the yield mi@nance premium. There is no
prepayment penalty if the loan is prepaid 60 daje po any call date

If this loan is repaid prior to April 1, 2011, tleeis a prepayment penalty equal to 0.75% of thecjpél being repaid. After this da
there is no prepayment penalty. A portion of thenlean be prepaid without penalty at any time bodothe loan-tovalue ratio to no les
than 65%

On December 8, 2009, we entered into two (-collateralized and cro-defaulted mortgage loans with National Western Lifguranci
in the amounts of $8,650,000 and $5,350,000 toaefie the JP Morgan debt on the two Scottsdale)dA&ls. Prior to February 1,
2011, these loans cannot be prepaid. If these laanprepaid, there is a prepayment penalty rarfgamy 1% to 5% of the principal
being prepaid. A or-time, ter-year extension of the maturity date is permittedbject to the satisfaction of certain conditic

If this loan is repaid prior to February 2912, there is a prepayment penalty equal to 0.768tegprincipal being repaid. After this
date, and until July 1, 2011, there is no prepayrpenalty. A portion of the loan can be prepaichaiit penalty at any time to bring the
loar-to-value ratio to no less than 65

This loan is cros-collateralized with the ING Investment Managemeainl secured by the following hotel properties: Gantnifian, Ft.
Smith, AR; Holiday Inn Express, Sandy, UT; Fairdiéhn by Marriott, Lewisville, TX; Hampton Inn, Dear, CO; Holiday Inn Expres
Vernon Hills, IL; Hampton Inn, Fort Wayne, IN; Cayard by Marriott, Missoula, MT; Comfort Inn, Missla, MT.

This loan is secured by multiple hotel propert

This loan is cros-collateralized with the ING Investment Managemeainl secured by the following hotel properties: fidd Inn &
Suites by Marriott, Germantown, TN; Residence lgrMarriott, Germantown, TN; Holiday Inn Express,i8® ID; Courtyard by
Marriott, Memphis, TN; Hampton Inn & Suites, El Ba3 X; Hampton Inn, Ft. Smith, AF

The two BNC loans are crc-defaulted.

The three General Electric Capital Corp. ®are cross-defaulted. Effective July 1, 2011 nkerest rate on all three loans will increase
to 90-day LIBOR + 4.00%. Effective August 1, 204l three loans will be subject to a prepaymentaftgrequal to 2% of the principal
repaid prior to August 1, 2012, 1% of the principgaid prior to August 1, 2013, and 0% of the gipal repaid thereafte

The yield maintenance premium under each®ifNG Investment Management loans is calculatddlsvs: (A) if the entire amount
of the loan is being prepaid, the yield maintengmeanium is equal to the sum of (i) the presentealf the scheduled monthly
installments from the date of prepayment to theunitgtdate, and (ii) the present value of the amafmprincipal and interest due on t
maturity date (assuming all scheduled monthly lireents due prior to the maturity date were madenvtiue), less (iii) the outstandi
principal balance as of the date of prepayment;(Bjdf only a portion of the loan is being prepaile yield maintenance premium is
equal to the sum of (i) the present value of threedaled monthly installments on the pro rata partibthe loan being prepaid, or the
release price, from the date of prepayment to tatirity date, and (ii) the present value of the qata. amount of principal and interest
due on the release price due on the maturity da®uMming all scheduled monthly installments duerpad the maturity date were made
when due), less (iii) the outstanding amortizedgigal allocation, as defined in the loan agreemanbf the date of prepayme
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(16) Loan paid in full in using proceeds of our IPO &he concurrent private placement. See also Iteithis report.
(17) Total amount includes approximately $223.3 mill@frindebtedness that was repaid using proceedsrdP® and the concurre
private placement. See also Item 5 of this rej

We believe that we will have adequate liquiditynieet requirements for scheduled maturities. Howewvercan provide no
assurances that we will be able to refinance alebtedness as it becomes due and, if refinancesthethsuch refinancing will be available on
favorable terms.

Capital Expenditures

We intend to spend approximately $20.0 million befdune 30, 2012 for capital improvements to beentadhe hotels in our
portfolio, including capital improvements that wayrbe required to make pursuant to property imprear@ plans with respect to certain ho
in our portfolio. We intend to use approximatel\0FLmillion of the net proceeds of our IPO anddbecurrent private placement to fund these
capital improvements. We expect to fund the balari¢hese capital improvements with borrowings atiter potential sources of capital.

Upon completion of our IPO, the hotel management@ment with Interstate required us to deposit@pprately $5.3 million of the
net proceeds of our IPO and the concurrent priglteement into an account to be used to replacefarbish furniture, fixtures and equipment
at the hotels in our portfolio. We will not be réxqal to deposit additional funds into this accolout we may elect to do so at our discretion as
part of our capital budgeting process.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements thatdraae reasonably likely to have a current orreieffect on our financial
condition, changes in financial condition, reveou@xpenses, results of operations, liquidity, tdgxpenditures or capital resources that is
material to investors.

Contractual Obligations

The following table outlines the timing of paymeatjuirements related to our long-term debt oblayetiand other contractual
obligations as of December 31, 2010 (dollars iriamk).

Payments Due By Perioc

Less than One to Three Four to More than

Total One Year Years Five Years Five Years
Long-term debt obligation®) $ 4175 $ 157.¢ $ 185.6 $ 331 % 41.C
Operating Lease obligatiol $ 77 % 02 $ 0t $ 0t $ 6.5
Total $ 4252 $ 157.¢ $ 186.: $ 33€¢ $ 47 .F

() The amounts shown include amortization of principabur fixe«-rate and variab-rate obligations, debt maturities on our fi-rate anc
variable-rate obligations and estimated interegtrEnts of our fixed-rate obligations. Interestipapnts have been included based on the
weighted-average interest rate. Amounts incluge@pmately $223.6 million of long-term debt obligms that were repaid in the first
quarter of 2011 with net proceeds from our IPO #edconcurrent private placeme

The following table outlines the timing of paymeatjuirements related to our long-term debt oblayetiand other contractual

obligations as of December 31, 2010 on a pro fdvass, after application of the net proceeds framlBO and the concurrent private
placement as described under Item 5 of this repottars in millions).
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Payments Due By Perioc

Less than One to Three Four to More than

Total One Year Years Five Years Five Years
Long-term debt obligation®) $ 201z $ 181 $ 109.C $ 331 % 41.C
Operating Lease obligatiol $ 77 $ 02 $ 0t $ 0t $ 6.5
Total $ 208.¢ $ 18 $ 109t $ 33¢ $ 47 .k

(1) The amounts shown include amortization of principaour fixed-rate and variable-rate obligatiodebt maturities on our fixed-rate and
variable-rate obligations and estimated interegtrnts of our fixed-rate obligations. Interestipapnts have been included based on the
weightec-average interest rat

Inflation

Operators of hotels, in general, possess theatiliadjust room rates daily to reflect the effegftinflation. However, competitive
pressures may limit the ability of our managememhpanies to raise room rates.

Seasonality

Due to our portfolio’s geographic diversificatianyr revenue has not experienced significant seéisorfeor the year ended
December 31, 2010, our predecessor received 23f li%total revenue in the first quarter, 26.4%he second quarter, 27.7% in the third
quarter and 22.7% in the fourth quarter. For ther ysmded December 31, 2009, our predecessor rec2ie% of its total revenue in the first
quarter, 25.8% in the second quarter, 26.6% irihting quarter and 23.4% in the fourth quarter.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect
the reported amount of assets and liabilities addite of our financial statements and the rep@medunts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. While we do not believe the répdramounts would be materially different, applmatbf these policies involves the exercise
of judgment and the use of assumptions as to futncertainties and, as a result, actual resultklatiffer materially from these estimates. We
evaluate our estimates and judgments, includingehelated to the impairment of long-lived assatsan ongoing basis. We base our estimates
on experience and on various other assumptionsthdielieved to be reasonable under the circurmessaill of our predecessor’s significant
accounting policies are disclosed in the notesstoansolidated financial statements. The followiggresent certain critical accounting policies
that will require our management to exercise thaginess judgment or make significant estimates:

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of PresemtatOur consolidated financial statements include @goants, the accounts of our
wholly owned subsidiaries or subsidiaries for whiod have a controlling interest, the accounts ofade interest entities in which we are the
primary beneficiary, and the accounts of other glidades over which we have a controlling interédt.material inter-company transactions,
balances and profits will be eliminated in consatiidn. The determination of whether we are the prinbeneficiary is based on a combination
of qualitative and quantitative factors which requnanagement in some cases to estimate futurdloashor likely courses of action.

Hotels—AcquisitiondJpon acquisition, we allocate the purchase pricz=tian the fair value of the acquired land, buddiarniture,
fixtures and equipment, goodwill, other assetsasslimed liabilities. We determine the acquisitiatedair values of all assets and assumed
liabilities using methods similar to those usedrziependent appraisers, for example, using a digedwash flow analysis, and that utilize
appropriate discount and/or capitalization rates arailable market information. Estimates of futoash flows are based on a number of
factors including historical operating results, wmoand anticipated trends, and market and econoamiditions. Acquisition costs are expensed
as incurred. Changes in estimates and judgmeratedeto the allocation of the purchase price coeslt in adjustments to real estate or
intangible assets, which can impact depreciatiatiaaramortization expense and our results of ofmerst
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Depreciation and Amortization of Hoteldotels are carried at cost and depreciated usmgttaight-line method over an estimated
useful life of 27 to 40 years for buildings and tteal5 years for furniture, fixtures and equipmékie are required to make subjective
assessments as to the useful lives and classiiicafiour properties for purposes of determinirgdaimount of depreciation expense to reflect
each year with respect to the assets. While managielelieves its estimates are reasonable, a cliarige estimated useful lives could affect
the results of operations.

Impairment of HotelsWe monitor events and changes in circumstancesddrators that the carrying value of a hotel agldted
assets may be impaired. Factors that could triggémpairment analysis include, among others: iffjiicant underperformance relative to
historical or projected operating results, (2) gigant changes in the manner of use of a hot¢herstrategy of our overall business, (3) a
significant increase in competition, (4) a sigrafit adverse change in legal factors or regulatior{S) significant negative industry or
economic trends. When such factors are identifiedwill prepare an estimate of the undiscountedrutash flows, without interest charges,
of the specific hotel and determine if the investftria such hotel is recoverable based on the uadiged future cash flows. If impairment is
indicated, an adjustment is made to the carryifgevaf the hotel to reflect the hotel at fair valliaese assessments may impact the results of
our operations.

Revenue RecognitioRevenue is recognized when rooms are occupiedeamnitss have been rendered. These revenue soueces a
affected by conditions impacting the travel andditadity industry as well as competition from otlreatels and businesses in similar markets.

Stock-Based Compensatidle have adopted the 2011 Equity Incentive Planclvpirovides for the grants of stock options, stock
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restrictintls units, dividend equivalent rights and othecktbased awards, or any combination of the
foregoing. Equity-based compensation will be redogghas an expense in the financial statementstbeeresting period and measured at the
fair value of the award on the date of grant. Tim@ant of the expense may be subject to adjustmefature periods depending on the specific
characteristics of the equity-based award and ppécation of accounting guidance.

Income TaxedWe intend to elect to be taxed as a REIT undeCitide and intend to operate as such beginning wittsloort taxable
year ending December 31, 2011. To qualify as a REE'must meet certain organizational and operatigguirements, including
requirement to distribute annually to our stockleotdat least 90% of our REIT taxable income, detegthwithout regard to the deduction for
dividends paid and excluding net capital gains,ciwtdoes not necessarily equal net income as céclila accordance with GAAP. As a RE
we generally will not be subject to federal incotrae (other than taxes paid by our TRSs) to thergxte currently distribute 100% of our
REIT taxable income to our stockholders. If we faifualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we Ww#l subject to federal income tax on our
taxable income at regular corporate income taxsratel generally will not be permitted to qualify freatment as a REIT for the four taxable
years following the year during which qualificati@nlost unless we satisfy certain relief provisioSuch an event could materially adver:
affect our net income and net cash available fstritdution to stockholders. However, we intend éodoganized and operate in such a manner
as to qualify for treatment as a REIT.

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilitiedle will account for federal and state income taxéh respect to our TRSs using the asset and
liability method. Deferred tax assets and lial@htare recognized for the future tax consequentésudable to differences between the
consolidated financial statements’ carrying amowhixisting assets and liabilities and respediixebases and operating losses and tax-credit
carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabiliiEs measured using enacted tax rates expect@plipta taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to beveeed or settled. The effect on deferred tax asseddiabilities of a change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includesdhactment date. In the event that these assumptiange, the deferred taxes may change.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Stand&atsrd (FASB) issued an update (ASU No. 2010-0&)d¢oounting Standards
Codification (ASC) 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurés improve disclosure requirements regardingsiens, classes of assets
and liabilities, and inputs and valuation techniuEhis update is effective for interim and anmeglorting periods beginning after
December 15, 2009. Our predecessor adopted thisup8&te on January 1, 2010, and it had no maierfact on our predecessor’'s
consolidated financial statements.
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Certain provisions of ASU No. 2010-06 to ASC 8E@ijr Value Measurements and Disclosureslated to separate line items for all
purchases, sales, issuances and settlements ifshanstruments valued using Level 3 are effexfir fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2010. We do not believe that this talopvill have a material impact on our consolidifimancial statements or disclosures.

Recent Developments

On February 14, 2011, we closed our IPO of 26,@®ghares of common stock and the concurrent gripaicement to an affiliate
of IHG of 1,274,000 shares of common stock. SunRELT, our operating partnership and certain of subrsidiaries entered into several
agreements in connection with the completion ofl®@, the concurrent private placement and the &tion transactions described in the
prospectus (“Prospectusfated February 8, 2011, we filed with the SEC pamsto Rule 424(b) under the Securities Act of 1983amendel

Effective February 14, 2011, our operating partnigrand our predecessor completed the Merger wittoperating partnership
surviving the Merger and succeeding to the busiaedsassets of our predecessor. At the effective tif the Merger, the outstanding
membership interests in our predecessor were ctaa/gnto, and cancelled in exchange for, a tot&,893,992 Common Units and the
members of our predecessor were admitted as limaetmhers of our operating partnership. Also effecEebruary 14, 2011, The Summit
Group contributed its 36% Class B membership istareSummit of Scottsdale, which owns two hotalS$¢ottsdale, Arizona, to our operating
partnership in exchange for 74,829 Common Unitsaamdnaffiliated third-party investor contributesl 15% Class C membership interest in
Summit of Scottsdale to our operating partnershigxichange for 31,179 Common Units. As a resuthe$e reorganization transactions, we
acquired, through our operating partnership angubsidiaries, sole ownership of the 65 hotel¢siportfolio. In addition, we, through our
operating partnership and its subsidiaries, assuhreethdebtedness of our predecessor and its sabisi

In the first quarter of 2011, we applied approxienat227.2 million of the proceeds of our IPO ane toncurrent private placement
to reduce outstanding mortgage indebtedness andgsagiated costs, as follows:

e approximately $89.3 million to repay in full aalo with Fortress Credit Corp., including approxiehat$2.1 million of exit fees,
interest and legal fee

e  approximately $78.2 million to repay in full o originally made by Lehman Brothers Bank, inahgdapproximately $1.4 million
to pay an extinguishment premium and other trai@acbsts;

e approximately $21.4 million to repay in full twodns with Marshall & Isley Bank; ar
e  approximately $38.3 million to repay in full twodns with First National Bank of Omat
In March 2011, we entered into three agreemengsitohase four hotels for purchase prices aggregagproximately $34.8 million:

e a216-room hotel located in downtown Minneapd#nesota for a purchase price of $10.5 millionapproximately $48,600 per
key;

e the 12-room Staybridge Suites Den-Cherry Creek in Denver, Colorado for approximatl.0 million, or approximatel
$82,645 per key

e the 14-room Holiday Inn Atlant-Gwinnett Place Area in Atlanta, Georgia for appnoaiely $7.0 million, or approximate
$48,950 per key; ar
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e the 91-room Homewood Suites by Hilton JacksongBlidnd in Ridgeland, Mississippi from an unafféidtthird party for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $7.3amijllor approximately $80,220 per key.

We expect to complete the purchases of the namedshabove in late April 2011, but we may not bigsfiad with the results of our
due diligence or other conditions to closing maysatisfied, and thus we cannot assure younbatill acquire any of these properties. We
expect to complete the purchase of the 216-roorl fmtated in downtown Minneapolis, Minnesota dgrihe second quarter of 2011, but we
may not be satisfied with the results of our duigelince or other conditions to closing may not ats§ed, and thus we cannot assure you that
we will acquire this property.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Discbsures about Market Risk.
Market Risk

Market risk includes risks that arise from chanigesiterest rates, foreign currency exchange ra@smodity prices, equity prices
and other market changes that affect market-seasitstruments. In pursuing our business stratethesprimary market risk to which we are
currently exposed, and to which we expect to b@seg in the future, is interest rate risk. Our myninterest rate exposures are to the 30-day
LIBOR rate, the 90-day LIBOR rate and the Prime.r&te primarily use fixed interest rate financingranage our exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates. We do not use any hedge or otkauiments to manage interest rate risk.

As of December 31, 2010, approximately 40.5%, @raximately $170.1 million, of the LLC’s debt bdiiged interest rates and
approximately 59.5%, or approximately $250.3 millimore variable interest rates. As of Decembe2810, on a pro forma basis, after
application of a portion of the net proceeds fram IO and the concurrent private placement, apprately 47.3%, or approximately $93.3
million, of our pro forma debt carried fixed intsteates and approximately 52.7%, or approxim&&3.8 million, carried variable interest
rates. Assuming no increase in the amount of orialie rate pro forma debt, if the interest ratesoaor variable rate pro forma debt were to
increase by 1.0%, our cash flow would decreasepbpycximately $1.0 million per year.

As our debts mature, the financing arrangementsctiray fixed interest rates will become subjecinterest rate risk. In addition, as
variable rate loans mature, lenders may impose ftderest rates because of the low interest tpsrienced during the past few
years. Approximately $18.1 million of our lc-term debt will mature during 2011, which amourdliries amortizing principal paid in regular
monthly payments, of which approximately $3.9 ioillbears fixed interest rates and $14.2 millioarbevariable interest rates.
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Date

See Index to the Financial Statements on page F-1.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

ltem  Controls and Procedures
9A.

Controls and Procedures—Summit REIT
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiofsafnmit REIT’'s management, including its Chief Extace Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, Summit REIT has evaluated theetfveness of the design and operation of itsldésze controls and procedures pursuant to
Rule 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act as of theoéide period covered by this report. Based ohékaluation, Summit REIT’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer haas@ncluded that, as of the end of the period covbyettis report, these disclosure controls
and procedures were effective to provide reasoreddarance that information required to be disddaséhe reports filed or submitted under
the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summaaizédeported within the time periods specifiethia SEC’s rules and forms, and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to SitrREBIT's management to allow timely decisions netjag required disclosure.
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Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Ovéiinancial Reporting

This report does not include a report of Summit R&Emanagement’s assessment regarding internalad@ver financial reporting
or an attestation report of Summit REIT’s registigpeblic accounting firm due to a transition perésdablished by rules of the SEC for newly
public companies.

Changes in Internal Control

There have been no changes in Summit REIT’s inteavarol over financial reporting that occurredidg the last fiscal quarter that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, Summit REIT’s internal contaver financial reporting.

Controls and Procedures—Summit OP
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiosafmmit OP’s management, including the Chief Exgeudfficer and Chief
Financial Officer of the sole member of Summit Ofémneral partner, Summit OP has evaluated theteff@ess of the design and operation of
its disclosure controls and procedures pursuaRute 13a-15(b) under the Exchange Act as of theoétide period covered by this report.
Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive @ffand Chief Financial Officer of the sole membkitgeneral partner have concluded that,
as of the end of the period covered by this repbeise disclosure controls and procedures weretisféeto provide reasonable assurance that
information required to be disclosed in the repéktsl or submitted under the Exchange Act is rdedr processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC’s suéad forms, and that such information is accuradland communicated to Summit OP’s
management, including the Chief Executive Officetl £hief Financial Officer of the sole member ofi#nit OP’s general partner, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control Ovéiinancial Reporting
This report does not include a report of Summit&ORanagement’s assessment regarding internal toneofinancial reporting or
an attestation report of Summit GRegistered public accounting firm due to a ttémsiperiod established by rules of the SEC for Iggwblic
companies.

Changes in Internal Control

There have been no changes in Summit OP’s inteordfol over financial reporting that occurred dgrihe last fiscal quarter that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, Summit OP’s internal contesler financial reporting.

Item  Other Information.
9B .

None.
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PART Il

Iltem  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace.
10.

Summit REIT’s board of directors consists of sixmbers, a majority of whom are independent withitteaning of the NYSE
listing standards. Each of the directors will seumdl the next annual meeting of stockholders antil his successor is duly elected and
qualifies. The next annual meeting of stockholagrSummit REIT will be held in 2012, as its annoaeting for 2011 occurred prior to
completion of the IPO and the concurrent privatepment. Subject to rights pursuant to their empkmt or severance agreements, Summit
REIT’s executive officers serve at the pleasurgsoboard of directors.

The following table provides certain informatiomgaeding Summit REIT’s directors and executive a@&fi

Name Age Position

Kerry W. Boekelheidt 56 Executive Chairman of the Board and Direc

Daniel P. Hanse 41 President and Chief Executive Officer and Dire:
Craig J. Aniszewsk 47 Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Off
Stuart J. Becke 49 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officedal reasure
Ryan A. Bertucc 38 Vice President of Acquisitior

Christopher R. En 39 Vice President, General Counsel and Secre

JoLynn M. Sorun 52 Vice President, Controller and Chief AccountingiCdf
Bjorn R. L. Hansort 59 Independent Directc

David S. Kay 44 Independent Directc

Thomas W. Store 54 Independent Directc

Wayne W. Wielgu: 56 Independent Directc

Biographies of Summit REIT’s Directors and Executive Officers
Directors
Kerry W. Boekelheide, Executive Chairman of ther8aad Director

Mr. Boekelheide serves as Summit REIT’'s Executib@i@nan of the Board and has been a member obésdof directors since
June 2010. He has served as the Chief Executivedd#ind as a member of the board of managersdiltl since its formation in 2004. Mr.
Boekelheide has served as the Chairman and seletalirof The Summit Group since 1991. The Summitu@y with its affiliates, developed
and acquired 54 hotels from 1991 through 2004.rRoidorming The Summit Group, Mr. Boekelheide vassident and a shareholder of S
8 Management, Inc., which was responsible for ta@agement of over 100 Super 8 Motels located athesdnited States and Canada, and
held numerous other positions in various compathiasdeveloped, owned and operated Super 8 MateleiUnited States and Canada. Mr.
Boekelheide graduated with a B.S. degree in busifiesn Northern State University.

Mr. Boekelheide brings leadership experience atensive experience and knowledge of Summit REITitmishdustry to Summit
REIT’s board of directors. As the founder and ptest of our predecessor, Mr. Boekelheide has th&t fong-term and valuable hands-on
knowledge of the issues, opportunities and cha#lerigcing Summit REIT and its business. In addjtddn Boekelheide brings his broad
strategic vision for our company to Summit REIT&abd of directors.
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Daniel P. Hansen, President, Chief Executive Offared Director

Mr. Hansen has served as Summit REIT’s PresidehCdmef Executive Officer since June 2010 and leenbmember of its board of
directors since June 2010. Mr. Hansen joined TharBitt Group in October of 2003 as Vice Presideriheéstor Relations. His responsibiliti
included leading the capital raising efforts for puedecessor’s private placements of its equityisties and assisting in acquisition due
diligence. In 2005, he was appointed to our preskemres board of managers and was promoted to Execdice President, in which capacity
he was part of the team that acquired over $14llomibf hotel properties and led the developmendwadr $240 million of hotel assets. He was
appointed President of The Summit Group and Chiredri€ial Officer of our predecessor in 2008. Hisrary responsibilities included the
development and execution of growth strategiesfwmpredecessor, raising equity capital and haeetbpment and acquisition. Prior to
joining The Summit Group, Mr. Hansen spent 11 yeatis Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incomaded “Merrill Lynch”) in various
leadership positions, culminating as a Vice Pregided Regional Sales Manager for Merrill Lynchihie Texas Mid-South Region, which
included Texas, Louisiana, Arkansas and OklahontaHdnsen graduated from South Dakota State Urityexith a B.A. in economics.

Mr. Hansen’s service as Summit REIT’s President@higtf Executive Officer provides a critical linlefoveen management and
Summit REIT’s board of directors, enabling the labaf directors to perform its oversight functiortivihe benefits of management’s
perspectives on the business. Mr. Hansen alsogqesuis with extensive experience in the hospitaliystry as well as a capital markets
background that will assist Summit REIT’s boardlmEctors in analyzing capital raising opporturstand issues.

Dr. Bjorn R. L. Hanson, Independent Director

Dr. Hanson has been a member of Summit REIT’s bokdirectors since February 2011. Dr. Hanson haked in the hospitality
industry for more than 35 years and has been imebir consulting, research and investment bankintbe lodging sector. He joined the New
York University School of Continuing Professionalidies in June 2008 as a clinical professor teacinithe school’s graduate and
undergraduate hospitality and tourism programsdaratting applied research projects. In 2010, he agpointed as the divisional dean of that
school’s Preston Robert Tisch Center for Hospitaliburism, and Sports Management. Before joinivegTisch Center, Dr. Hanson was a
partner with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and itdgwessor, Coopers & Lybrand LLP, which he joine@i989. Dr. Hanson founded the
hospitality, sports, convention and leisure practod held various positions at Pricewaterhouse€@sagnd Coopers & Lybrand, including
National Industry Chairman for the Hospitality Irsdiies, National Service Line Director for HospttalConsulting, National Industr
Chairman for Real Estate, Real Estate Service Dinector and National Director of Appraisal SendcAdditionally, he served on the U.S.
leadership committee and global financial advis@gvices management committee of PricewaterhougetsoDr. Hanson was also manag
director with two Wall Street firms, Kidder, Pealyof Co. and PaineWebber Inc., for which he led biagland research departments for
lodging and gaming. Dr. Hanson received a B.S. f@mell University School of Hotel Administratioan M.B.A. from Fordham University
and a Ph.D. from New York University.

Dr. Hanson serves as a member of Summit REIT staodimittee and Summit REIT’s nominating and cogp@igovernance
committee.

Dr. Hanson brings a wide range of experience irsaliimg, research and investment banking in thegilaglsector to Summit REIT's
board of directors. Further, he brings an acad@mispective on the hospitality and tourism indestrivhich enhances the ability of Summit
REIT’s board of directors to analyze macroeconassaes and trends relevant to Summit REIT’s busineisally, Dr. Hanson’s leadership
roles in market trend analysis, economic analysisfanancial analysis specific to Summit REIT’s urstky provide Summit REIT’s board of
directors with additional depth in analyzing fineadaeporting issues faced by companies similaurs.

David S. Kay, Independent Director

Mr. Kay has been a member of Summit REIT’s boardigctors since February 2011. Mr. Kay has woikefihance, accounting
and business planning and strategy for more tharedafs and has been involved with REITs for oveydas, which we believe qualifies him
to serve as a member of Summit REIT’s board ofctiims. He is the Executive Vice President, Chiefaficial Officer and Treasurer of Capital
Automotive Real Estate Services, Inc., whose presiear, Capital Automotive REIT, he co-founded i®Z28nd took public in 1998. Mr. Kay
served as Senior Vice President, Chief Financiéic&fand Treasurer for Capital Automotive untinas taken private in a nearly $4 billion
privatization transaction in 2005. Prior to fourgli@apital Automotive, Mr. Kay worked at the puldiccounting firm of Arthur Andersen LLP
in Washington, D.C. for approximately ten years.id/at Arthur Andersen, Mr. Kay provided consultisgrvices to clients regarding mergers
and acquisitions, business planning and stratedyegnity financing. He has experience with cagaahation projects, rollip transactions ar
IPOs for companies in various industries. Mr. Keyaimember of James Madison University’s CollegBusiness Executive Advisory Council
and is a certified public accountant. Mr. Kay reeeia B.B.A., with a concentration in accountimgnfi James Madison University.
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Mr. Kay is the chairman of Summit REIT’s audit coilittee and is its financial expert. Mr. Kay alsov&s as a member of Summit
REIT’s compensation committee.

Mr. Kay was chosen to join Summit REIT’s board o&dtors specifically to serve Summit REIT’s autbimmittee as its audit
committee financial expert. Summit REIT targetetiractor with financial and auditing experiencedfie to the REIT industry. Mr. Kay
worked in auditing for Arthur Andersen for ten ygand is the Executive Vice President, Chief Firer@fficer and Treasurer of Capital
Automotive Real Estate Services, Inc., whose prestar, Capital Automotive REIT, was a publicly #dREIT. Mr. Kay also gained
experienced with the issues facing new, publicigdéd REITs at Capital Automotive. These experiepeagtion Mr. Kay to serve on Summit
REIT’s board of directors and its audit committee.

Thomas W. Storey, Independent Director

Mr. Storey has been a member of Summit REIT’s bo&directors since February 2011. Mr. Storey hasked in the hospitality
industry for more than 25 years. He is the Exeeutiice President Business Strategy for Fairmonfl&aHotels International (FRHI), a
leading global hotel company with over 100 hotetsldwide under the Fairmont, Raffles and Swissbtahds, that Mr. Storey joined in 1999.
Having helped launch FRHI as a publicly traded camypand its subsequent privatization, Mr. Storeg$ponsible for strategic planning and
helping to identify new opportunities for FRHI thegtpitalize on improving business fundamentals. 8forey has held a series of progressive
leadership positions with FRHI, including ExecutWige President, Development and Executive Vicesident Business Development &
Strategy, as well as President of Fairmont HotetsResorts. Mr. Storey has been a member of vahiosgitality industry organizations,
including the American Hotel & Lodging Associatidhe Travel Industry Association of America, andféssional Conference and Meeting
Planners. Mr. Storey received a B.A. in economiosfBates College and an M.B.A. from the Johnsdm8kat Cornell University.

Mr. Storey serves as the chair of Summit REIT’s imatting and corporate governance committee, armsgs/es on Summit REIT’s
compensation committee.

Mr. Storey provides Summit REIT’s board of direstarith strategic vision to position Summit REITladging industry
fundamentals begin to strengthen after the econoeaiession. As Executive Vice President Businesge}ly of Fairmont Raffles Hotels
International, Mr. Storey has been instrumentdletping lead that company through various lodginges. We expect Mr. Storeyexperienc
in analyzing and reacting to changing conditionthim hospitality industry will serve Summit RE§Tboard of directors as Summit REIT gro
We also expect Mr. Storey’s operations experierscerasident of Fairmont Hotels and Resorts to higtpprovide valuable insights to Summit
REIT’s board of directors. Mr. Storey also posssgsaticular expertise in business travel, an ingmraspect of our business.

Wayne W. Wielgus, Independent Director

Mr. Wielgus has been a member of Summit REIT’s Badrdirectors since February 2011. Mr. Wielgus Wwasked in the hospitality
industry for more than 30 years. In August 2009, Wielgus founded International Advisor Group LLWhich advises several companies in
the hospitality industry. Before founding Intermaal Advisor Group, he served as Senior Vice Peggidf Marketing of Celebrity and
Azamara Cruises, two of Royal Caribbean Cruisesd fitands, from March 2008 until August 2009, whbke was responsible for the two
brands’ overall marketing efforts, including brastcategy and development, advertising, web margetird research. Mr. Wielgus served as
Executive Vice President and Chief Marketing Offioé Choice Hotels International, Inc. from SeptemB004 until July 2007, after serving
that company’s Senior Vice President, Marketingrfr®eptember 2000 to September 2004. Prior to joi@ihoice Hotels, Mr. Wielgus held
various positions with Best Western Internatioivat,, Trusthouse Forte PLC, InterContinental Ho@tsporation and Ramada Worldwide |
Mr. Wielgus received a B.S. in Marketing from Faldl University and an M.B.A. from Memphis Univessi
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Mr. Wielgus serves as chair of Summit REIT’s congaion committee and also serves on Summit REIT¢t zommittee and
Summit REIT’s nominating and corporate governaramerittee.

Mr. Wielgus contributes significant leadership exgece in marketing, brand strategy and promottorSummit REIT’s board of
directors. His service as Senior Vice Presidemafketing of Celebrity and Azamara Cruises providaisiable business, leadership and
management experience, including expertise leadiaiketing strategy and initiatives for a companthia tourism industry, which is a
significant part of our business. Mr. Wielgus adsined similar experience specific to the hospitatidustry in his role as Executive Vice
President and Chief Marketing Officer of Choice élstinternational, Inc., one of the primary frarschis of our hotels. Thus, Mr. Wielgus also
brings to Summit REIT’s board of directors insigfitam the perspective of hotel franchisors, whiadhexpect to enhance our ability to
maximize our brand strategy and franchisor relatigos. He currently acts as an outside consultaodvtpanies in the hospitality industry,
which gives him a keen understanding of some ofdtiges our company will face.

Executive Officers

In addition to Mr. Hansen, our Chief Executive Offi, whose biographical information is describedvab our executive officers
include the following:

Craig J. Aniszewski, Executive Vice President ahfQOperating Officer

Mr. Aniszewski has served as Summit REIT's Exe@itice President and Chief Operating Officer sidiaee 2010. Mr. Aniszewski
joined The Summit Group in January 1997 as ViceiBeant of Operations and Development. He becamExbeutive Vice President al
Chief Operating Officer of The Summit Group in 2087 has been a member of the board of managers gfedecessor since 2004. Mr.
Aniszewski currently serves as an officer of Thengt Group. Mr. Aniszewski joined The Summit Grdigflowing 13 years with Marriott
International, Inc., where he held sales and ojmerapositions in full-service convention and reé$uatels. During his career with Marriott, he
also worked in the select-service sector, holdiogjtpns including the Director of Sales and Gehktanager for Residence Inn by Marriott
and Courtyard by Marriott-branded hotels locateBlorida, New York, Connecticut, Pennsylvania, Mangl and North Carolina. Mr.
Aniszewski graduated from the University of Dayteith a B.S. degree in criminal justice and minarbusiness and psychology.

Stuart J. Becker, Executive Vice President, Chieafcial Officer and Treasurer

Mr. Becker has served as Summit REIT’s Executivee\Rresident, Chief Financial Officer and Treasaiece June 2010. Mr.
Becker joined Summit Green Tiger, an affiliate dieTSummit Group, in 2007 as an Executive Vice Bezgiand Secretary where he focused
on acquisitions, capital allocation, debt placen@e strategic analysis. Prior to joining Summie&r Tiger, Mr. Becker served as a principal
of McCarthy Group, Inc. and its subsidiary, McCgr@apital, Inc. from 2005 to 2007. McCarthy Grospiprivate equity company
headquartered in Omaha, Nebraska, which focusdssersified investments in growth companies. MrcBer was responsible for managing
deal flow, acquisitions, underwriting and investmewersight. From 1984 until 2005, Mr. Becker wagalved in finance and corporate
banking for several regional and national bankimgd, including First Interstate, First Bank (predssor to US Bank) and most recently, First
National Bank of Omaha, from 1997 to 2005, wherevhe Vice President for corporate banking, regianadlit and syndications. Mr. Beck
earned a B.S. degree in business management feobirifrersity of South Dakota and an M.B.A. from theiversity of Nebraska at Omaha.

Ryan A. Bertucci, Vice President of Acquisitions

Mr. Bertucci has served as Summit REIT’s Vice Rtest of Acquisitions since June 2010. Mr. Bertyoied Summit Green Tiger,
an affiliate of The Summit Group, in 2007 as andtKize Vice President and Treasurer. In addition, Bertucci led the capital-raising efforts
for Summit Capital Partners, LLC (“Summit Capitaldn SEC registered securities broker dealer @il with The Summit Group. Prior to
joining Summit Green Tiger and Summit Capital, Bertucci worked for First National Nebraska, Incofa 2004 to 2007, he served as V
President with First National Investment BankingNIB”), an affiliate of First National Nebraska,dnWhile with FNIB, Mr. Bertucci was
responsible for starting and building the firm'seahative investment platform. Prior to his senatéNIB, Mr. Bertucci spent three years with
First National Bank of Omaha as a corporate lodéiceaf Mr. Bertucci earned a B.S. degree in busireghministration with an emphasis in both
finance and marketing from the University of Nelieaat Kearney.
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Christopher R. Eng, Vice President, General Counsel Secretary

Mr. Eng has served as Summit REIT’s Vice Presid@efieral Counsel and Secretary since June 201EMdrwas appointed Vice
President, General Counsel and Secretary of TheruBroup and our predecessor in 2004. Mr. Engrgaponsible for The Summit Group'’s
legal affairs and for guiding its corporate comptia, focusing on real estate acquisitions and dispos, franchise licensing, corporate
insurance coverage, corporate governance and sesunidustry regulatory compliance. Prior to joigiThe Summit Group, Mr. Eng was an
Assistant Vice President and Trust Officer for Hiest National Bank in Sioux Falls. Mr. Eng earrgsl B.A. degree from Augustana College
and his J.D. degree from the University of Denveli€ge of Law.

JoLynn M. Sorum, Vice President, Controller andeEiiccounting Officer

Ms. Sorum has served as Summit REIT’s Vice Presjdamntroller and Chief Accounting Officer sincené2010. Ms. Sorum has
been the Controller for The Summit Group since 188@& for our predecessor since its inception iM200s. Sorum is responsible for
accounting, SEC reporting and internal control ficas for The Summit Group and our predecessoor Ryijoining The Summit Group, she
worked for First Premier Bank as a Finance Offfcerthree years and for Western Bank as an Intekoditor for seven years. Ms. Sorum is a
Certified Public Accountant and currently servedtmnboard of directors of the South Dakota CPAI@gcMs. Sorum earned a B.S. degree in
accounting from Huron University.

Other Key Employees
David W. Heinen, Vice President of Asset Managemé&kiestern United States

Mr. Heinen, age 50, has served as Summit REIT'e Wresident of Asset Management — Western Unitegt$Ssince completion of
our IPO. Mr. Heinen joined The Summit Group in 2@0@ was promoted to Director of Operations forwWestern United States in 2005. P
to joining The Summit Group, from 1985 to 2000, Meinen held direct hotel management positions Ritkd Lion Hotels and Radisson
Hotels. Mr. Heinen has over 20 years of direct hexperience that includes all facets of full-seevand select-service hotels. Mr. Heinen
graduated from Spokane Falls College/Eastern WgtdrinJniversity with a B.S. degree in business.

Trent A. Peterson, Vice President of Asset Managem&astern United States

Mr. Peterson, age 43, has served as Summit REIiEs Rresident of Asset Management — Eastern USitates since completion of
our IPO. Mr. Peterson joined The Summit Group i@948s a Regional Manager and was promoted to Dire€tOperations for the Eastern
United States in 2005. Prior to joining The Sum@ibup, from 1991 to 1999, he held direct hotel ng@maent positions with Fairfield Inn by
Marriott-, Residence Inn by Marriott- and Best WWestbranded hotels. Mr. Peterson is a graduateanfrivead State University with a B.S.
degree in hotel and restaurant management.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince
Neither Summit REIT nor Summit OP had a class gistered equity securities until February 2011 sthxecutive officers and

directors of Summit REIT and persons who own mbamtten percent of a registered class of equityrgexs of Summit REIT or Summit OP
had no Section 16(a) filing requirements duringytbar ended December 31, 2010.
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Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Summit REIT’s board of directors has establishedde of business conduct and ethics that appli€sitomit REIT’s officers,
directors and employees. Among other matters, SUREIT’'s code of business conduct and ethics isggdes to deter wrongdoing and to
promote:

e honest and ethical conduct, including the ethieaidiing of actual or apparent conflicts of intefestween personal al
professional relationship

full, fair, accurate, timely and understandableldisure in our SEC reports and other public comcations;
compliance with applicable governmental laws, raled regulations

prompt internal reporting of violations of the cadeappropriate persons identified in the code;

accountability for adherence to the ca

Any waiver of the code of business conduct anccetfar Summit REITS executive officers or directors must be apprdwe&ummit
REIT’s board of directors or a committee of SumREIT’s board of directors, and any such waiver ldbalpromptly disclosed as required by
law or NYSE regulations.

A copy of Summit REIT’s code of business conduat athics can be found in the Investor Relationticeof our website at
www.shpreit.com

Board Governance and Committees
Director Qualifications and Skills

Summit REIT’s directors were chosen based on thgierience, qualifications and skills. We firstritléed nominees for the board
through professional contacts and other resoullesthen assessed each nominee’s integrity and atadulity, judgment, maturity,
willingness to commit the time and energy needeshtsfy the requirements of board and committesbeeship, balance with other
commitments, financial literacy and independenoenfus. We relied on information provided by the s in their biographies and
responses to questionnaires, as well as indepetideivparty sources.

Board Leadership Structure, Corporate GovernancedaRisk Oversight

We place a high premium on good corporate govema®emmit REIT has a non-staggered, majority-inddpat board of directors
whose members will be elected annually. We do ageha stockholder rights plan. In addition, SunREiT has opted out of certain state anti-
takeover provisions. Summit REIT’s board of direstbas the primary responsibility for overseeirsf nanagement of our company, and our
management intends to provide it with a regulaorepighlighting risk assessments and recommenasitiSsummit REIT’s audit committee
will focus on oversight of financial risks relatimg us; Summit REIT's compensation committee vabids primarily on risks relating to
remuneration of our officers and employees; and/8itflREIT’s nominating and corporate governance committeefaeilis on reputational al
corporate governance risks relating to our comphmgddition, the audit committee and board of elives intend to regularly hold discussions
with Summit REIT’s executive and other officersaedjng the risks that may affect our company.

Committees

The standing committees of Summit REIT’s boardiodéators are the audit committee, the compensationmittee and the
nominating and corporate governance committee h Bhthese committees has a written charter appirbyeSummit REIT’s board of
directors. A copy of each charter can be founithélnvestor Relations section of our website atwstpreit.com The independent directors
who serve on each committee, and a descriptioheoptincipal responsibilities of each committeddiaiks:
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Audit Compensation Nominating and Corporate

Director Committee Committee Governance Committee
Bjorn R. L. Hansor N N

David S. Kay \ (Chair) v

Thomas W. Store \ \ (Chair)
Wayne W. Wielgus v \ (Chair) \

Compensation Committee The compensation committee is responsible foreheew and approval of the compensation and benefit:
of our executive officers, administration and recoemdations to Summit REIT’s board of directors rdgay our compensation and long-term
incentive plans and production of an annual reporéxecutive compensation for inclusion in our gretatement. In connection with those
responsibilities, the compensation committee hastie authority to retain and terminate compeosatonsultants employed by it to help
evaluate the our compensation programs. The corafensommittee also has authority to grant awardter the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.
Each member of Summit REIT's compensation commiteadifies as an “outside director” as such termeéfned under Section 162(m) of the
Code and is independent pursuant to the listingdstals of the NYSE. In addition, each member of BitrREIT’s compensation committee is
an independent director as set forth in Rule 1@tBe Exchange Act. Mr. Wielgus is the chair oh8unit REIT's compensation committee ¢
Mr. Kay and Mr. Storey also serve as members gf¢bimmittee.

Audit Committee. The audit committee assists to ensure the integfibur financial statements, the qualifications amdependence
of our independent auditors and the performanaofnternal audit function and independent auditdihe audit committee also selects,
assists and meets with the independent auditoessegs each annual audit and quarterly reviewblesttas and maintains our internal audit
controls and prepares the audit committee repqttired by the federal securities laws to be inatlisheour annual proxy statement. Each
member of Summit REIT’s audit committee is indepartgursuant to the listing standards of the NYI&E&ddition, each member of Summit
REIT’s audit committee is “financially literate” asquired by the NYSE, and at least one membeuoirSit REIT’s audit committee qualifies
as an “audit committee financial expert” as requiiog the SEC. Mr. Kay is the chair of Summit REI&lsdit committee and he has been
designated as its audit committee financial etxperthat term is defined by the SEC, and Mr. @Yisland Dr. Hanson also serve as members
of this committee.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committééhe nominating and corporate governance comanisteesponsible for:

e monitoring our compliance with corporate govererequirements of state and federal law and tles and regulations of the
NYSE;

e development and recommendation to Summit REI®&t of directors of criteria for prospective memsbef Summit REITS boarc
of directors;

e conducting board of director candidate searchesraad/iews;

e oversight and evaluation of Summit REIT’s boafdioectors and management, and monitoring compéasith our code of
business conduct and ethics and policies with gpeconflicts of interes

e periodic evaluation of the appropriate size andposition of Summit REI’s board of directors, recommendations, as appitep
of increases, decreases and changes in the compasitSummit REI” s board of directors; ar

e formally propose the slate of nominees for electierdirectors at each annual meeting of our stddkehs

Our stockholders will elect Summit REE&ntire board of directors annually beginning wfith 2012 annual meeting of stockhold
Each member of Summit REIT’s nominating and corfgoggvernance committee is independent pursuahetbsting standards of the NYSE.
Mr. Storey is the chair of Summit REIT's nominatiagd corporate governance committee and Dr. Haasdrivir. Wielgus also serve as
members of this committee.
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Nomination of Directors

Before each annual meeting of stockholders, theimatmg and corporate governance committee willsider the nomination of all
directors whose terms expire at the next annuatinmgeef stockholders and will also consider newdidates whenever there is a vacancy on
Summit REIT’s board of directors or whenever a vayas anticipated due to a change in the sizeomosition of Summit REIT’s board of
directors, a retirement of a director or for anlgestreasons. In addition to considering incumbéetctbrs, the nominating and corporate
governance committee will identify director candetabased on recommendations from the directarskisvlders, management and others.
The nominating and corporate governance commit@eimthe future engage the services of third-pseyrch firms to assist in identifying or
evaluating director candidates.

Summit REIT’s nominating and corporate governararamittee charter provides that the nominating argarate governance
committee will consider nominations for board menshg by stockholders. The rules that must be ¥odid to submit nominations are
contained in Summit REIF bylaws and include the following: (i) the nomipatmust be received by the nominating and corpogatvernanc
committee at least 120 days, but not more thandby8, before the first anniversary of the mailiagedfor proxy materials applicable to the
annual meeting prior to the annual meeting for Whsach nomination is proposed for submission; @hthé nominating stockholder must
submit certain information regarding the directominee, including the nominee’s written consent.

The nominating and corporate governance commitid@valuate annually the effectiveness of Sumnii Rs board of directors as
a whole and of each individual director and wikindify any areas in which Summit REIT’s board akdtors would be better served by adding
new members with different skills, backgrounds r@aa of experience. The Board of Directors consid&ector candidates, including those
nominated by stockholders, based on a number tdrfacluding: whether the candidate will be ‘@peétndent,” as such term is defined by the
NYSE listing standards; whether the candidate Esesethe highest personal and professional ethiegyity and values; whether the candic
contributes to the overall diversity of Summit RE'Board of directors; and whether the candidatedminquisitive and objective perspective,
practical wisdom and mature judgment. Candidateskso evaluated on their understanding of oumassi, experience and willingness to
devote adequate time to carrying out their dufié® nominating and corporate governance commitsgeraonitors the mix of skills,
experience and background to assure that Summil’REbard of directors has the necessary compaositieeffectively perform its oversight
function.

Summit REIT does not have a formal policy aboutdsity of Board membership, but the nominating emghorate governance
committee will consider a broad range of factorewhominating director candidates to Summit REBBard of directors, including
differences of viewpoint, professional experieremcation, skill, other personal qualities andlaites, race, gender and national origin. The
nominating and corporate governance committeengither include nor exclude any candidate from iweration solely based on the
candidate’s diversity traits.

The nominating and corporate governance committéeansider appropriate nominees for directors sgnaames are submitted in
writing by a stockholder of the Company. Directandidates submitted by our stockholders will bdeatad by the nominating and corporate
governance committee on the same basis as anyditbetor candidates.

Nominations must be addressed to Summit Hotel Ptiegelnc., 2701 South Minnesota Avenue, Suit8iéux Falls, South Dakota
57105, Attn: Christopher R. Eng, Corporate Secyefadicating the nominee’s qualifications and ethedevant biographical information and
providing confirmation of the nominesetonsent to serve as director if elected. In oralée considered for the next annual electionirefctrs
any such written request must comply with the rezjuents set forth in the bylaws of the Companylagldw under “Other Matters—
Stockholder Proposals.”
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ltem  Executive Compensation
11.

Overview

We began operations on February 14, 2011 upon etioplof the IPO, concurrent private placement famchation
transactions. Accordingly, we did not begin pay@lognpensation to our named executive officers tafiruary 14, 2011. Prior to that time,
our named executive officers were officers and eyges of The Summit Group and its affiliates. Buenmit Group controlled our
predecessor and served as our predecessor’s comarager and hotel manager. Our predecessor tghga@ny cash or non-cash equity
compensation to our named executive officers ir02@lin any prior years. Instead, executive corspgan decisions were made by The
Summit Group. The fees paid by our predecessdh&Summit Group pursuant to hotel management agrees was the primary source of
funds used by The Summit Group to compensate theiduals currently serving as our executive offgce

The following describes the 2011 executive comp@gmsg@rogram for Summit REIT’s named executive a#fis, which include Mr.
Boekelheide and Mr. Hansen, as well as Craig Amiske Summit REIT’s Executive Vice President andeEi®perating Officer, Stuart J.
Becker, Summit REIT’s Executive Vice President &fdef Financial Officer, and Ryan Bertucci, SUmREIT’s Vice President of
Acquisitions. Substantially all of the decisioesating to compensation for 2011 were determinddrbehe closing of the IPO and, therefore,
before the appointment of Summit REIT’s independerard members and the establishment of its indbggrercompensation committee.
Accordingly, decisions regarding executive comp&arsanade to date have been made by Summit REdasof directors, which at the time
such decisions were made consisted solely of KRogkelheide, Summit REIT’'s Executive Chairman, Brashiel Hansen, Summit REIT’s
President and Chief Executive Officer, in consigrawith others, including the underwriters of SUMREIT’s IPO. With respect to future
decisions, under its charter, the compensation dteenwill determine all performance goals and cenmgation decisions for Summit REIT’s
senior management team, including its Executiveir@tean and its President and Chief Executive Offigeeluding decisions regarding non-
equity compensation and equity awards. In doinghecompensation committee is expected to comsthitSummit REIT's Executive
Chairman and its President and Chief Executivec®ffas appropriate.

Compensation of Directors

We did not pay any compensation to our directorinduhe year ended December 31, 2010. Our bdaddextors has established a
compensation program for our independent diredieggnning with the year 2011. Pursuant to this cemsation program, we will pay or have
paid, as applicable, the following fees to our peledent directors:

e an annual cash retainer of $50,0

e we granted 1,000 shares of our common stock to efachr independent directors on February 14, 2

e effective on the date of each annual meeting afkdtolders, beginning with the 2012 annual meetiihgtackholders, eac
independent director who will continue to serveoon board of directors will receive an annual grafrshares of our common stock
having an aggregate value of $15,000 (based upondlume-weighted average closing market priceuofoommon stock on the
NYSE for the ten trading days preceding the datgrant);

e an additional annual cash retainer of $12,500¢éactiair of our audit committe

an additional annual cash retainer of $10,000eccttair of our compensation committee; .

e an additional annual cash retainer of $7,500 tatiar of our nominating and corporate governarmarnittee.

We will also reimburse our independent directorsréasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred imection with performance of
their duties as directors, including, without liatibn, travel expenses in connection with thegrsdance at in-person board and committee
meetings. Directors who are our employees willnegeive compensation for their services as dirsctor
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Executive Compensation Discussion and Analysis

We began payment of base salaries and made gffemtsacds under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan ttage of our executive
officers upon completion of our IPO, in accordandth their employment agreements. Awards underemuiity incentive plan were granted to
recognize such individuals’ efforts on our behaltonnection with the formation transactions andIB® and to provide a retention and
incentive element to their compensation.

Our compensation committee expects that it willf@ compensation plan during 2011 for our senianagament team for
2012. We expect that the plan will be designedllim the interests of our senior management teémthose of our stockholders in a way t
also allows us to attract and retain executiventale addition, we anticipate that the compensatimgram will reward, among other things,
favorable stockholder returns, the company’s coitipetposition within its segment of the real estatdustry and each member of our senior
management team’s long-term career contributionBea@ompany. Compensation incentives designedrtbdr these goals may take the form
of annual cash compensation and equity awardsedss/long-term cash and equity incentives meashiyeperformance targets to be
established by our compensation committee. The eosgiion committee, pursuant to its charter, meir& compensation consultant to a:
the committee in implementing and maintaining congagion plans.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the annualized bsedary and other compensation that will be pai2Qhl to our Executive Chairman,
our President and Chief Executive Officer, our €Ri@ancial Officer and the two other most highbntpensated members of our senior
management team, whom we refer to collectivelywas‘mamed executive officers,” had these employnagmeements been in effect for all of
2011. The employment agreements provide for sabemyus and other benefits, including severance agenmination of employment under
certain circumstances. See “—Employment AgreenfeBecause we were recently organized, meaningfilividual compensation
information is not available for prior periods. Taeticipated 2011 compensation for each of our meexecutive officers listed in the table
below was determined through negotiation of thadividual employment agreements. These employngmeements were not approved by
compensation committee or any of our independearttiirs. We expect to disclose actual 2011 compiensi®r our named executive officers
in 2011, to the extent required by applicable SECIdsure rules.

Base Option

Name and Principal Positic Year Salary®) Bonus(? Awards® Total
Kerry W. Boekelheidt

Executive Chairman of the Boz 2011 $ 380,00( — $ 139514 $ 1,775,114
Daniel P. Hansen

President and Chief Executive Offi 2011 350,00( — 871,96:- 1,221,96.
Craig J. Aniszewski

Executive Vice President and Chief Opemptificer 2011 300,00( — 871,96« 1,171,96.
Stuart J. Becke

Executive Vice President, Chief Financiéficgr and
Treasure 2011 250,00( — 174,39: 424,39:
Ryan A. Bertucc

Vice President of Acquisitiol 2011 220,00( — 174,39: 394,39:

(1) Full-year amount. Each executive will recedvpro rata portion of his base salary for the gkebieginning February 14, 2011 through
December 31, 201

(2) Under their employment agreements, Messrs. Boekkdhelansen and Aniszewski will receive annual s&sufor 2011 equal to $380,0!
$350,000 and $225,000, respectively, if the 20ltklHevel earnings before interest, taxes, deptietiaand amortization for the 65
properties in our initial portfolio is at least $52nillion. Beginning in 2012, Messrs. Boekelheibiansen and Aniszewski will be eligible
to earn an annual cash bonus to the extent thiaidiidl and corporate goals to be established lmcompensation committee are achie
Our compensation committee will determine the dauoount of the cash bonus payable in 2012 andesutest years. For 2012 and
subsequent years, each of Messrs. Boekelheide anseid has the opportunity to earn an annual casishaf up to 100% of his annual
base salary and Mr. Aniszewski has the opportupigarn an annual cash bonus of up to 75% of higalrbase salary. Under their
employment agreements, Messrs. Becker and Beniltdie eligible to earn an annual cash bonus fit ?and subsequent years to the
extent that individual and corporate goals to hal#ished by our compensation committee are actlie®er compensation committee will
determine the actual amount of the cash bonus p@ayaB011 and subsequent years. Each of MessckeBand Bertucci has the
opportunity to earn an annual cash bonus of u®% Bbf his annual base salary for 2011 and subsé¢geans.
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(3) Reflects option awards made to Mr. Boekelh€8#6,000 shares), Mr. Hansen (235,000 shares)ANszewski (235,000 shares), Mr.
Becker (47,000 shares) and Mr. Bertucci (47,000es)aThese options were granted pursuant to th& EQuity Incentive Plan upon
completion of our IPO, have an exercise price etputie per-share IPO price, which is $9.75 pereshand will vest ratably on the first
five anniversaries of the date of grant unlessmttse accelerated under certain circumstancescodhgensation committee of our board
of directors may make additional equity awardsuormamed executive officers in the futu

Our executive compensation policies and practigessuant to which the compensation set forth inrShmmary Compensation Tat
and the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table is egpdotbe paid or awarded, are described above undexecutive Compensation
Discussion and AnalysisThe terms of employment agreements that we hawseghinto with our executive officers are describetbw unde
“—Employment Agreements.”

IPO Grants of Plan-Based Awards

Upon completion of our IPO, we granted to our nameetcutive officers, pursuant to the 2011 Equitelntive Plan, options to
purchase an aggregate of 940,000 shares of our oarstack, as shown in the following table:

All Other Option

Awards; Number Exercise or Bas

of Securities Price of Option Grant Date Fai

Underlying Awards Value of Option
Name Date of Gran Options (#) ($/share’ Awards
Kerry W. Boekelheide  February 14, 201 376,000 $ 9.752 $ 1,395,140
Daniel P. Hanse February 14, 201 235,00(D 9.7 871,9643)
Craig J. Aniszewsk February 14, 201 235,00(D) 9.752) 871,9643)
Stuart J. Becke February 14, 201 47,00(® 9.7t@ 174,390
Ryan A. Bertucc February 14, 201 47,00 9.752) 174,39

(1) The awarded options will vest ratably on the firngt anniversaries of the date of gre
(2) The exercise price of each option equals th-share IPO price of the shan
(3) The amount is computed in accordance with FASB A8fic 718 and assumes exercise of the optionsmwitlive-year period

None of our other employees have received equitrasv
Employment Agreements
Kerry W. Boekelheide and Daniel P. Hansén February 14, 2011, we entered into employragrgements with Mr. Boekelheide
and Mr. Hansen, each of which has an initial tefinee years and will renew for one-year termsedh#ter unless terminated by written notice
delivered at least 30 days before the end of the-tlurrent term. The employment agreements prdeidean annual base salary to Mr.

Boekelheide of $380,000 and to Mr. Hansen of $38D),8ubject to increase in the discretion of owartd®f directors or its compensation
committee.
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Under their employment agreements, Mr. Boekelhaitt: Mr. Hansen are eligible to earn an annual bashs for 2011 and
subsequent years. For 2011, Mr. Boekelheide wikiree an annual bonus of $380,000 and Mr. Hans#megeive an annual bonus of
$350,000 if the 2011 hotel-level earnings befoterigst, taxes, depreciation and amortization feré properties in our initial portfolio is at
least $52.5 million. Assuming no purchases of aadtl hotels, or sales of hotels in our initial fholio, we will calculate this measure by
subtracting total hotel operating expenses froml t@venue, each as reported in accordance with S A&r the year ended December 31,
2009, total revenue was $121.2 million and totaéhoperating expenses were $89.2 million. Foryésr ended December 31, 2010, total
revenue was $135.6 million and total hotel opetpérpenses were $130.0 million. In determining Wwhethe $52.5 million target is met for
2011, we will exclude revenue or operating expen$dmtels acquired following completion of our IR@d prior to December 31, 2011. If we
sell one or more of the 65 hotels in our portfdlafore December 31, 2011, we will reduce the $&#Ikon target number in a manner that our
compensation committee determines is equitableappdopriate to reflect the absence of the soldllootkotels for all, or the remaining
portion, of 2011, as applicable, in assessing wdrdtie hotels in our portfolio generated hotel-l@arnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization that met the target. Beginningdd2, Mr. Boekelheide and Mr. Hansen will be eligito earn an annual cash bonus of up to
100% of annual base salary, to the extent thaviddal and corporate goals established by the cosai®n committee are achieved.

The employment agreements entitle Mr. BoekelherdeMr. Hansen to customary fringe benefits, inahgdvacation and health
benefits, and the right to participate in any othemefits or plans in which other executive-levaptoyees participate. Each employment
agreement also provides that if Mr. Boekelheid&orHansen loses the supplemental health benefitiged to him by The Summit Group, \
will establish, if permitted by applicable law, adical reimbursement plan providing the same leflslipplemental health benefits.

Each employment agreement provides for certain paysnn the event that the employment of Mr. Bole&igle or Mr. Hansen ends
upon termination by us for “cause,” a resignatiagthaut “good reason” (as defined below), deathisakility or any reason other than a
termination by us without “cause” or resignatioriwigood reason.” Each agreement defines “caus€¢l)aa failure to perform a material duty
or a material breach of an obligation set fortth@ employment agreement or a breach of a materahlvritten policy other than by reason of
mental or physical illness or injury, (2) a breadhhe executive’s fiduciary duties, (3) conduattdemonstrably and materially injures us
monetarily or otherwise or (4) a conviction of,pdea ofnolo contender¢o, a felony or crime involving moral turpitude foaud or dishonesty
involving our assets, and that in each case isw@d, to our board of directors’ reasonable satt&din, within 30 days after written notice. In
any such event, the employment agreements prowvidtad payment to Mr. Boekelheide and Mr. Hanseanyf earned but unpaid
compensation up to the date of termination andemefits due under the terms of any of our empldgseefit plans.

Each employment agreement provides for certainraeee payments in the event that the employmektroBoekelheide or Mr.
Hansen is terminated by us without “cause” or tkecative resigns for “good reason.” Each agreemdafines “good reason” as (1) our
material breach of the terms of the employmentexgent or a direction from our board of directoiat tthe executive act or refrain from acting
in a manner that is unlawful or contrary to a mateand written policy, (2) a material diminutiom the executive’s duties, functions and
responsibilities without his consent or our preugnhim from fulfilling or exercising his materiduties, functions and responsibilities without
his consent, (3) a material reduction in the eXeels base salary or annual bonus opportunity pa(fequirement that the executive relocate
more than 50 miles from the current location ofprisicipal office without his consent, in each cpsavided that Mr. Boekelheide or Mr.
Hansen has given written notice to our board agators within 30 days after he knows of the circtamees constituting “good reason,” the
circumstances constituting “good reason” are neé@dwvithin 30 days of such notice and the executsigns within 30 days after the
expiration of the cure period. In any such everg,dxecutive is entitled to receive any earnedibptid compensation up to the date of
termination and any benefits due under the ternmipEmployee benefit plans and, if the executikerates a general release of claims, any
outstanding options, restricted shares and othgityegwards shall be vested and exercisable aseoflate of termination and outstanding
options shall remain exercisable thereafter uhélirtstated expiration date as if the executiveipleyment had not terminated. Mr.
Boekelheide and Mr. Hansen shall also be entitbe@teive, subject to the execution of a geneftahse of claims, an amount equal to three
times his base salary in effect at the time of teation, an amount equal to three times the grexdté) the highest annual bonus paid to hir
the three fiscal years ended immediately beforalttie of termination and (ii) the executive’s arirh&se salary, a prorated bonus for the then-
current fiscal year based on his annual bonushifiscal year ended prior to his termination, enoant equal to three times the annual
premium or cost paid by us for health, dental aistba insurance coverage for the executive aneligéble dependents in effect on the
termination date and an amount equal to three tihmeannual premium or cost paid by us for dispbéind life insurance coverage for the
executive in effect on the termination date.
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Each employment agreement includes covenants tohiyit Mr. Boekelheide and Mr. Hansen from disabgsconfidential
information about us except in connection with business and affairs. Each employment agreemempatwides that, during employment :
for the one-year period following termination of glmyment, Mr. Boekelheide and Mr. Hansen, subjeadrtain exceptions, will not compete
with us by working with, or making a material int/&nt in, an entity that owns or proposes to owm2&ore hotels in the upscale or mids
without food and beverage hotel segments, soligitaf our employees to leave employment or interfgith our relationship with any of our
customers or clients. The restrictive covenantsphahibit or restrict Mr. Boekelheide or Mr. Hamsigom being employed by, or providing
services to, a competitor of our company followihg termination of employment with us do not apgfer a termination without cause or a
the executive resigns with good reason as defimélde agreement.

Craig J. Aniszewski and Stuart J. Beck@n February 14, 2011, we entered into employragrdements with Mr. Aniszewski and
Mr. Becker, each of which has an initial term aklyears and will renew for one year terms thé&zeahless terminated by written notice
delivered at least 30 days before the end of tee-tlurrent term. The employment agreements prdeidannual base salaries to each of Mr.
Aniszewski and Mr. Becker of $300,000 and $250,088pectively, subject to increase in the discretibour board of directors or its
compensation committee. The employment agreematitiea2ach of Mr. Aniszewski and Mr. Becker tanfye benefits substantially similar to
those afforded to Mr. Boekelheide and Mr. Hansergescribed above (except that the employment axgnetewith Mr. Becker does not
provide for the establishment of a medical reimborent plan that provides supplemental health besjefi

Under their employment agreements, Mr. Aniszewski llr. Becker are eligible to earn an annual castub for 2011 and
subsequent years. Mr. Aniszewski will receive anuah bonus of $225,000 for 2011 if the same 20Xfopmance objective described above
for Messrs. Boekelheide and Hansen is achieved26b? and subsequent years Mr. Aniszewski will lggltge to earn an annual cash bonu
up to 75% of annual base salary, to the extentitiditidual and corporate goals established byctirapensation committee are achieved. For
2011 and subsequent years, Mr. Becker will beldbgio earn an annual cash bonus, of up to 50%mifia base salary, to the extent that
individual and corporate goals established by tirapensation committee are achieved.

Each employment agreement provides for certain paysin the event the employment of Mr. AniszeveskiVir. Becker ends upon
termination by us for “cause,” a resignation withtgood reason,” death or disability or any reastirer than a termination by us without
“cause” or resignation with “good reason.” The diifons of “cause” and “good reason” in the empl@yrhagreements with Mr. Aniszewski
and Mr. Becker are the same as those in the emgolyagreements with Mr. Boekelheide and Mr. Hanasmescribed above (except that a
requirement that Mr. Becker relocate to Sioux F&lsuth Dakota will not constitute “good reasoti)any such event, the employment
agreements with Mr. Aniszewski and Mr. Beckenidle for the payment of any earned but unpaid coregton up to the date of termination
and any benefits due under the terms of any oEmployee benefit plans.

Each employment agreement provides for certainraeee payments in the event the employment of MisZewski or Mr. Becker
terminated by us without “cause” or the executegigns for “good reason.” In any such event, trecetive would be entitled to receive any
earned but unpaid compensation up to the datemiriation and any benefits due under the termaioemployee benefit plans and, if the
executive executes a general release of claimspatsyanding options, restricted shares and otipgityeawards shall be vested and exercisable
as of the date of termination and outstanding ogtghall remain exercisable thereafter until teted expiration date as if employment had
not terminated. Each of Mr. Aniszewski and Mr. Bexckhall also be entitled to receive, subject éekecution of a general release of claims,
an amount equal to one and one-half times his fasey at the time of termination, an amount etuaine and one-half times the greater of (i)
the highest annual bonus paid to him for the tfiszal years ended immediately before the datemiination or (i) 75% of annual base sal
(in the case of Mr. Aniszewski) or 50% of annuaddaalary (in the case of Mr. Becker), a pro-raimous for the then-current fiscal year based
on his annual bonus for the fiscal year ended poidris termination, an amount equal to one andt@itimes the annual premium or cost
by us for health, dental and vision insurance cageffor the executive and his eligible dependenésfect on the termination date and an
amount equal to one and one-half times the anmeatipm or cost paid by us for disability and lifssirance coverage for the executive in
effect on the termination date.
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The employment agreements with Mr. Aniszewski and Bécker provide for higher severance paymentkérevent of termination
by us without “cause” no more than ninety days kefochange in control or on or after a changeirirol or upon resignation for “good
reason” on or after a change in control. The definiof “change in control” under the employmentesgments with Mr. Aniszewski and Mr.
Becker is the same as the definition of “changeointrol” under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan. iy auch event, each of Mr. Aniszewski and
Mr. Becker is entitled to receive any earned bytaith compensation up to the date of terminationaamndbenefits due under the terms of our
employee benefit plans and, if the executive exacatgeneral release of claims, all outstandingogtrestricted shares and other equity
awards shall be vested and exercisable as of teeofiéermination and outstanding options shallaenexercisable thereafter until their stated
expiration date as if the executigegmployment had not terminated. Each executivié alsa be entitled to receive, subject to the exiea of ¢
general release of claims, an amount equal toitwesthis base salary at the time of terminatioraraount equal to two times the greater of (i)
the highest annual bonus paid to him for the tfismal years ended immediately before the datemfination or (ii) 75% of annual base sal
(in the case of Mr. Aniszewski) or 50% of annuaddaalary (in the case of Mr. Becker), a pro-réimous for the then-current fiscal year based
on his annual bonus for the fiscal year ended padris termination, an amount equal to two tinfesannual premium or cost paid by us for
health, dental and vision insurance coverage ®ettecutive and his eligible dependents in effadhe termination date and an amount equal
to two times the annual premium or cost paid bjouslisability and life insurance coverage for thescutive in effect on the termination date.

Each employment agreement includes covenants tohiyit Mr. Aniszewski and Mr. Becker from disclagi confidential
information about us except in connection with business and affairs. Each employment agreemempatwides that, during employment :
for the one-year period following termination of glmyment, Mr. Aniszewski and Mr. Becker will notrapete with us by working with, or
making a material investment in, an entity that swnproposes to own 25 or more hotels in the upswamidscale without food and beverage
hotel segments, solicit any of our employees tadeamployment or interfere with our relationshigghnany of our customers or clients. The
restrictive covenants that prohibit or restrict Mniszewski or Mr. Becker from being employed by pooviding services to, a competitor of
our company following the termination of employmarith us do not apply after a termination withoatise or after the executive resigns with
good reason as defined in the agreement.

Ryan A. Bertucci On February 14, 2011, we entered into an employmagreement with Mr. Bertucci which has an initexim of on
year and will renew for ol-year terms thereafter unless terminated by writigtice delivered at least 30 days before the étldectheneurrent
term. Mr. Bertucci’'s employment agreement proviftesan annual base salary of $220,000, subjectdease in the discretion of our board of
directors or its compensation committee. The empkayt agreement entitles Mr. Bertucci to fringe bBigmsubstantially similar to those
afforded to the other executives, as describedealexcept that the employment agreement with Mrtugei does not provide for the
establishment of a medical reimbursement planghatides supplemental health benefits).

Under his employment agreement, Mr. Bertucci igiklé to earn annual cash bonuses to the extenpteacribed individual and
corporate goals established by the Committee drievaad. The individual and corporate goals esthblishy the Committee will provide Mr.
Bertucci the opportunity to earn an annual castubaf up to 50% of annual base salary, to the éstech goals are achieved.

Mr. Bertucci's employment agreement provides fataia payments in the event his employment ends t@omination by us for
“cause,” a resignation without “good reason,” deatklisability or any reason other than a termoratly us without “causedr resignation witl
“good reason.” The definitions of “cause” and “gaedson” in the employment agreement with Mr. Begitare the same as those in the
employment agreements with the other executivedeasribed above. In any such event, the employagneement with Mr. Bertucci provic
for the payment of any earned but unpaid compemsatp to the date of termination and any benefits uhder the terms of any of our
employee benefit plans.
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Mr. Bertucci's employment agreement provides fataia severance payments in the event his employméarminated by us
without “cause” or he resigns for “good reasdn.’any such event, he would be entitled to recaiweearned but unpaid compensation up t
date of termination and any benefits due undeteiras of our employee benefit plans and, if he etesca general release of claims, any
outstanding options, restricted shares and othgityegwards shall be vested and exercisable aseoflate of termination and outstanding
options shall remain exercisable thereafter uhélirtstated expiration date as if employment haderminated. Mr. Bertucci shall also be
entitled to receive, subject to the execution géaeral release of claims, an amount equal toioresthis base salary at the time of termina
an amount equal to one times the greater of (iptgkest annual bonus paid to him for the threeafigears ended immediately before the date
of termination or (ii) 50% of his annual base salarpro-rated bonus for the then-current fiscalrygsed on his annual bonus for the fiscal
year ended prior to his termination, an amount etguane times the annual premium or cost paid $fou health, dental and vision insurai
coverage for the executive and his eligible depetgdia effect on the termination date and an ameqgngl to one times the annual premium or
cost paid by us for disability and life insurancxerage for the executive in effect on the termamatiate.

The employment agreement with Mr. Bertucci provifieshigher severance payments in the event ofitextion by us without
“cause” no more than ninety days before a changemtrol or on or after a change in control or upesignation for “good reasowh or after
change in control. The definition of “change in ol under the employment agreement with Mr. Bedius the same as the definition of
“change in control” under the 2011 Equity Incenti®lan. In any such event, Mr. Bertucci is entitledeceive any earned but unpaid
compensation up to the date of termination andbemefits due under the terms of our employee beplefis and, if he executes a general
release of claims, all outstanding options, redshares and other equity awards shall be vestgexercisable as of the date of termination
and outstanding options shall remain exercisaldeetifter until their stated expiration date akéf €xecutives employment had not terminati
Mr. Bertucci shall also be entitled to receive,jeabto the execution of a general release of daan amount equal to two times his base s
at the time of termination, an amount equal to tiwes the greater of (i) the highest annual boraid fo him for the three fiscal years ended
immediately before the date of termination or %P6 of his annual base salary, a pro-rated bonubéothen-current fiscal year based on his
annual bonus for the fiscal year ended prior tadrisiination, an amount equal to two times the ahptemium or cost paid by us for health,
dental and vision insurance coverage for the exexand his eligible dependents in effect on thmbeation date and an amount equal to two
times the annual premium or cost paid by us faalalgy and life insurance coverage for the exaauth effect on the termination date.

Mr. Bertucci’'s employment agreement includes comeméhat prohibit him from disclosing confidentiaformation about us except
in connection with our business and affairs. Th@leyment agreement with Mr. Bertucci also provittest, during his employment and for the
one-year period following the termination of hisgayment, he will not compete with us by workinghvor making a material investment in
an entity that owns or proposes to own 25 or motelk in the upscale or midscale without food aedebage hotel segments, solicit any of our
employees to leave employment or interfere withrelationship with any of our customers or clieffilse restrictive covenants that prohibit or
restrict him from being employed by, or providirergces to, a competitor of our company followihg termination of his employment with
do not apply after a termination without causefterahe executive resigns with good reason asddfin the agreement.

Potential Payments upon Termination of Change in @l

The following table and accompanying footnoteseetfthe estimated potential amounts payable to ideBsekelheide, Hansen,
Aniszewski, Becker and Bertucci under their empleptragreements and our compensation and benefi pled arrangements in the event the
executive’s employment is terminated under vargxenarios, including involuntary termination with@ause, voluntary termination,
involuntary termination with cause, voluntary resgon with good reason, involuntary or good reasomination in connection with a change
in control and termination due to death and diggbiBecause we had not entered into employmergeagents as of December 31, 2010, the
amounts shown below are estimates of the amouatsvibuld have been paid to Messrs. Boekelheidesetamniszewski, Becker and
Bertucci upon termination of their employment assunthat such termination was effective as of Fabrd4, 2011, the date of completion of
our IPO. Actual amounts payable will depend upompensation levels at the time of termination, timeant of future equity awards and other
factors, and will likely be greater than amountsveh in this table.
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Kerry W. Boekelheide @

Involuntary termination without cau:®)

Voluntary termination or involuntary terminationtiv
cause

Change in control (no terminatio

Involuntary or good reason termination in connet
with change in contrc®

Death or disability

Daniel P. Hanser®)®

Involuntary termination without cau<®

Voluntary termination or involuntary terminationttv
cause

Change in control (no terminatio

Involuntary or good reason termination in connet
with change in contrc®

Death or disability

Craig J. Aniszewski®)@)

Involuntary termination without cau:®)

Voluntary termination or involuntary terminationtiv
cause

Change in control (no terminatio

Involuntary or good reason termination in connet
with change in contrc®)

Death or disability

Stuart J. Becker 1))

Involuntary termination without cau<®

Voluntary termination or involuntary terminationttvi
cause

Change in control (no terminatio

Involuntary or good reason termination in connectio
with change in contrc®

Death or disability

Ryan A. Bertucci 0@

Involuntary termination without cau<®

Voluntary termination or involuntary terminationttvi
cause

Change in control (no terminatio

Involuntary or good reason termination in connettio
with change in contrc®)

Death or disability

Payment in

Lieu of Acceleration
Medical/Welfare and
Cash Benefits Continuation Total
Severance  (present value) of Equity Excise Tax  Termination
Payment A Awards ©) Gross-up ®) Benefits
$ 2,280,000 $ 79,20C $ 1,395,14: — $ 3,754,34
— — $ 1,395,114 — $ 1,395,114
$ 2,280,000 $ 79,20C $ 1,395,14: — $ 3,754,34
— — $ 1,395,114 — $ 1,395,114
$ 2,100,000 $ 79,200 $ 871,96 — $ 3,051,16
— — 3 871,96 — $ 871,96
$ 2,100,000 $ 79,20C $ 871,96¢ — $ 3,051,16
— — 3 871,96 — $ 871,96
$ 787,500 $ 39,60 $ 871,96¢ — $ 1,699,06
— — $ 871,96 — $ 871,96
$ 1,050,000 $ 52,80( $ 871,96 — $ 1,974,76
— — $ 871,96 — $ 871,96
$ 562,500 $ 9,00C $ 174,39: — $ 745,89:
— — 3 174,39: — $ 174,39
$ 750,000 $ 12,000 $ 174,39 — $ 936,39:
— — 3 174,39: — $ 174,39
$ 330,000 $ 26,400 $ 174,39 — $ 530,79:
— — $ 174,39: — $ 174,39
$ 660,000 $ 52,80( $ 174,39: — $ 887,19:
— — $ 174,39: — $ 174,39

(1) The amounts shown in the table do not include @ttralary, earned but unpaid bonuses, accruechbeed vacation pay or tl
distribution of benefits from any tax-qualifiedirement or 401(k) plan. Those amounts are payahileis executive officer upon
any termination of his employment, including andhuntary termination with cause and a resignatidthout good reasor
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(2) A termination of this executive offic’'s employment due to death or disability entitles #xecutive officer to benefits under our |
insurance and disability insurance plans. In addjtoutstanding options immediately vest upon éixiscutive officer’s termination of
employment due to death or disabili

(3) Amounts in this row are calculated in accordandh wrovisions of the applicable employment agredrasrdisclosed i“—Employment
Agreement?’

(4) The amounts shown in this column are estimatekeo€ash payments to be made under the applicalpgment agreement based on
annual premiums to be paid by us for health c#feeahd disability insurance and other benefitsezt@d to be provided to each executive
officer.

(5) The amounts shown in this column represent theeyaln the date of grants of the options, on Felgridr 2011. The values we
computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718 asglime exercise of the options within a five-yeaiod. Amounts reflecting
accelerated vesting of equity awards in the rowlsdi@e in control (no termination)” and “Involuntarygood reason termination in
connection with change in control” will be paid mponly one of the specified triggering events (oath) and will not be duplicated in the
event that the executive incurs a qualifying teation following a change in control event that pesviously resulted in acceleratic

(6) The employment agreements with our executive afic® not provide an indemnification or gr-up payment for the parachute paym
excise tax under Sections 280G and 4999 of the Clddeemployment agreements instead provide tieade¢kerance and any other
payments or benefits that are treated as paraplaytaents under the Code will be reduced to the maixi amount that can be paid
without an excise tax liability. The parachute payits will not be reduced, however, if the executivéreceive greater after-tax benefits
by receiving the total or unreduced benefits (afi&ing into account any excise tax liability palgaby the executive). The amounts shown
in the table assume that the executive officer mgitieive the total or unreduced bene

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Parttipation

We did not have a compensation committee duringyéae ended December 31, 2010. On February 14, 204 established a
compensation committee, and its members are Wayn&ilgus (chair), Thomas W. Storey and David Sy.KBo member of the
compensation committee is a current or former effir employee of our company or any of our subsies, or of our predecessor, and none
have a relationship that is required to be repopteguant to Item 404 of Regulation S-K. None af executive officers serves as a member of
the board of directors or compensation committegngfcompany that has one or more of its executifieers serving as a member of our
board of directors. None of the executive officgfeur predecessor served as a member of the béaitectors or compensation committe:
any company that has one or more of its execufifieens serving as a member of our board of dinecty of our predecessor’s board of
managers.

Mr. Boekelheide, our Executive Chairman, and Mrnstn, our President and Chief Executive Officem wbmprised our board of
directors from our inception in June 2010 until @detion of our IPO on February 14, 2011, partiogkih deliberations concerning the
compensation our executive officers will receive0i1.

Compensation Committee Report
The Compensation Committee has reviewed and disdube Executive Compensation Discussion and Aisa{yfSD&A”) containe:
in this report with management. Based on the Cosgtgn Committee’s review of the CD&A and the Comgetion Committee’s discussions
of the CD&A with management, the Compensation Cotte@irecommended to the Board of Directors (andterd has approved) that the
CD&A be included in this report.
Submitted by the Compensation Committee of thedBwfaDirectors
Thomas W. Storey (Chairperson)

Bjorn R. L. Hanson
Wayne W. Wielgus
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ltem  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Matters
12.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table provides information as of Marg0, 2011 with respect to our securities, andstfirities of our operating
partnership, that may be issued under existingtggoimpensation plans:

Number of
Securities
Number of Remaining
Securities to Weighted Available for
be Issued Average Future
Upon Exercise Issuance
Exercise of Price of Under Equity
Outstanding Outstanding Compensation
Plan Category Options Options Plans®)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by Stockhol() 940,00 $ 9.7¢ 1,374,29
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by Stockérd — — —
Total 940,00 $ 9.7¢ 1,374,29I

(1) Excludes securities reflected in the columtitied “Number of Securities to be Issued Upon Eis of Outstanding Options.” Our
operating partnership has not adopted any equitypemsation plans; however, long-term incentive piaits (“LTIP Units”), a special
class of partnership units in our operating pashigx, may be issued by our operating partnershipyaunt to the company’s 2011 Equity
Incentive Plan. Neither the company nor our opegapiartnership has any current plans to issue URPs pursuant to the compasy201:
Equity Incentive Plar

(2) Consists of the compa’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, which was approvedhgycompan’'s board of directors and the comp’s sole
stockholder prior to completion of our IP

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners
As of March 25, 2011 we do not know of any persdwus the beneficial owner of more than 5% of SutRiIT’'s common stock.

As of March 25, 2011 we do not know of any persdws the beneficial owner of more than 5% of tleen@on Units of Summit
OP other then Summit REIT, which owns 73.0% of@menmon Units.

Security Ownership of Management

The following table sets forth the beneficial owstép of shares of our common stock and sharesrofraan stock issuable upon
redemption of Common Units (without giving effectthe 12-month restriction on redemption applicabl€ommon Units) by (1) each of our
named executive officers, (2) each of our directB¥all of our executive officers and directossaagroup and (4) each person who is expectec
to be the beneficial owner of five percent or mofeur shares of common stock. The SEC has definedeficial ownership” of a security to
mean the possession, directly or indirectly, ofngppower and/or investment power over such securitcomputing the number of shares and
Common Units beneficially owned by a person andoreentage ownership of that person, shares ofmmmnstock subject to options or other
rights held by that person that are exercisablgilbbecome exercisable by April 15, 2011 are degémetstanding, while such shares are not
deemed outstanding for purposes of computing p&gerownership of any other person. Each persordamthe table has sole voting and
investment power with respect to all of the shafesommon stock and Common Units shown as bendficavned by such person, except as
otherwise set forth in the notes to the table.

Unless otherwise indicated, the address of eacledgarson is c/o Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.,12306uth Minnesota Avenue,
Suite 6, Sioux Falls, South Dakota 57105.
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Number of

Shares Percentage of
and Common All Shares and
Units Common Units
Beneficially Percentage ol Beneficially
Name of Beneficial Ownet Owned All Shares () Owned @
Kerry W. Boekelheide 1,517,871 5.3% 4.1%
Daniel P. Hansen 15,00(® * *
Craig J. Aniszewski 4,105 L L
Stuart J. Becker 2,50(4) * *
Ryan A. Bertucci —@ — —
Bjorn R. L. Hanson 1,50(® * *
David S. Kay 1,00((®) * *
Thomas W. Storey 5,10(® * *
Wayne W. Wielgus 6,00((®) L L
All directors and executive officers as a group [pgtsons 1,554,28. 5.2% 4.2%

* Represents less than 1%

(1) Assumes that all Common Units held by the pei@e redeemed for shares of our common stockamodints for all executive officers
and directors as a group assume all Common Unlitslyethem are exchanged for shares of our comrtamk sThe total number of shares
of common stock outstanding used in calculating f@rcentage assumes that none of the Common hétitdy other persons are
exchanged for shares of our common st

(2) Assumes a total of 37,378,000 shares of our constaok and Common Units, which Common Units may eeaed for cash or, at o
election, shares of our common stock on &for-one basis, are outstandit

(3) Represents (i) 17,000 Common Units issued to acade trust, the trustee and sole beneficiary aElwts Mr. Boekelheide, in exchan
for the trust's membership interests in our predseg (ii) 1,109,164 Common Units issued to The ®itnGroup in the Merger in
exchange for its membership interests in our preskar; (i) 74,829 Common Units issued to The Siin@roup in exchange for its Class
B membership interest in Summit of Scottsdale; @jdan aggregate of 316,886 Common Units issuezhtdies affiliated with Mr.
Boekelheide other than The Summit Group, over wMchBoekelheide shares voting and investment pawr individuals who are not
affiliated with us. Excludes options to purchasé,800 shares of our common stock at the per-siradeprice of $9.75, none of which has
vested.

(4) Excludes options granted to Messrs. Hanseck@eand Bertucci to purchase 235,000, 47,0004a@00 shares, respectively, of our
common stock at the g-share IPO price of $9.75, none of which has ve:

(5) Represents 4,105 Common Units issued to Mr. Aniskeim exchange for his Class B membership intsresbur predecessor. Excluc
options to purchase 235,000 shares of our comnuak stt the pe-share IPO price of $9.75, none of which has ve:

(6) Includes 1,000 shares of common stock grantedddrttiependent director upon completion of our |

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, andrustee Independence
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Summit Hotel OPLP
Formation Transactions

On July 12, 2010, in connection with the initiapttalization of our company, we issued 1,000 shafemmmon stock to our
Executive Chairman, Mr. Boekelheide, for total cashsideration of $1,000. The shares were issuegliance on the exemption set forth in
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. Upon completidour IPO on February 14, 2011, these shares merarchased from Mr. Boekelheide for
$1,000.

Some of our executive officers and directors haagenial interests in the formation transactiongomp completion of the formation
transactions, these executive officers and diredtave ownership interests in our predecessodditian, prior to February 14, 2011, Mr.
Boekelheide, through The Summit Group (in whicthbils a 100% interest), held a 36% Class B membensterest in Summit of Scottsda
As part of the formation transactions, we acquttexbe ownership interests by issuing Common Uaitké former members of those
companies, including some of our executive officerd directors. The aggregate number and valugeo€bmmon Units issued to our
executive officers and directors on February 14,12id connection with the formation transactionsenas follows:
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e  Mr. Boekelheide and The Summit Group receivedggregate of 1,200,993 Common Units, including:1(2,000 Common
Units issued to a revocable trust, the trusteesatelbeneficiary of which is Mr. Boekelheide, irckange for the trust’Clas
A membership interests in our predecessor purdoghe Merger; (2) 1,109,164 Common Units issue@ite Summit Grou
pursuant to the Merger; and (3) 74,829 Common Usstsed to The Summit Group in exchange for its Edé6s B
membership interest in Summit of Scottsdale. Ti&s@mon Units represent approximately 3.2% of ounlgimed
outstanding common stock and Common Units and hawaggregate value of $11.7 million based on oGr pFce of $9.75
per share

e Entities affiliated with Mr. Boekelheide, other th&ihe Summit Group, received an aggregate of 386(&8nmon Units. Mi
Boekelheide shares voting and investment power ihvese Common Units with individuals who are nditiafed with us.
These Common Units represent approximately 0.9%upotombined outstanding common stock and Commadts ldnd
have an aggregate value of $3.1 million based ofRD price of $9.75 per shai

On February 14, 2011, Mr. Boekelheide and hisiaték other than The Summit Group received an gagecash payment from our
predecessor in the amount of approximately $147z808 result of our predecessgrayment of accrued and unpaid priority returnthéoClas
A and A-1 members of our predecessor through AuglisP010 in accordance with the terms of the agess of the Merger.

In addition to the Common Units received in conimectvith the formation transactions, our executiiicers also benefitted from
the following:

e employment agreements that provide for salary, b@mal other benefits, including severance bernigfitse event of a terminatic
of employment in certain circumstanc

e options to purchase an aggregate of 940,000 sbams common stock granted to our named executffieers upon completion
the IPO pursuant to the 2011 Equity Incentive P

e agreements providing for indemnification by usdertain liabilities and expenses incurred assaltef actions brought, or
threatened to be brought, against them as an oHiwd/or director of our company; a

e redemption and registration rights under our ofregatartnershi’s partnership agreement with respect to CommorsUaibe
issued in the formation transactio

Furthermore, in connection with the formation t@etgons, our operating partnership entered intgtakection agreements with a
limited number of the members of our predecessetuding The Summit Group. The Summit Group guaestpproximately $13.8 million
our operating partnership’s mortgage liabilitifsvé fail to meet our obligations under the taxtpoion agreements, we may be required to
reimburse The Summit Group for the amount of tixdigbilities it incurs. Although our liability uret the tax protection agreements will
depend on certain factors, including without lirtita the applicable maximum federal, state andlloarates, we anticipate that the maxin
amount we may have to indemnify The Summit Grougleurthe tax protection agreements is approximé&iel9 million.

Cash Payment by Interstate to The Summit Group
In consideration for assigning to them the existiogel management agreements with our predecéBserSummit Group received a

total cash payment from Interstate in the amoui§l@.75 million, $11.0 million of which was paidarpcompletion of our IPO and $1.75
million of which will be paid on February 14, 2014.
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Transition Services Agreement

On February 14, 2011, our operating partnershipredtinto a transition services agreement with Stsamit Group, which is
controlled by Mr. Boekelheide, pursuant to whicteT3ummit Group provides or cause its affiliateprimvide us with such services related to
our business as we shall reasonably request. Wedbuese The Summit Group for its cost of providiegvices to us, including a pro rata
portion of its overhead expenses, and for any ahtral and reasonable out of pocket expensesrattur connection with providing such
services. We estimate that the amount we will pagyant to this agreement will be approximately@260 each year. Either party may
terminate this agreement upon 30-days’ writtenagotiVe will not pay any fees to The Summit Groujtaffiliates pursuant to the transition
services agreement.

Outside Business Interests

Mr. Boekelheide and other key members of our sem@anagement team, including Messrs. Hansen andéwngki, also serve as
executive officers of The Summit Group. We reimieufie Summit Group for payments it makes on bejfafich of Messrs. Boekelheide,
Hansen and Aniszewski for health care benefitsidem/under the Exec-U-Care program. The Summit roanages one hotel that is not
owned by us, a Comfort Suites located in Tucsoizola. Our employment agreement with Mr. Boekelaeghuires him to devote a
substantial portion of his business time and dttartb our business and our employment agreemeithisowr other executive officers require
our executives to devote substantially all of theisiness time and attention to our business. Gpi@/ment agreements with our other
executives do not include a prohibition on compgetiith our company. In addition, Mr. Boekelheids veell as our Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Becker, and ouc¥iPresident of Acquisitions, Mr. Bertucci, serge#ficers of Summit Green Tiger. Sumi
Green Tiger co-manages two private investmerds$uwhich own a total of six multi-family propeieWVe will not compete with these funds
for investment opportunities. These outside busi@grests may reduce the amount of time that MeB®ekelheide, Hansen, Aniszewski,
Becker and Bertucci are able to devote to our lmssinWe expect these officers will devote a limaatbunt of time to these funds as they are
closed and the co-manager oversees the day-togagtmns and investments of these funds.

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions wih Related Persons

We have adopted a written policy for the review apgroval of related person transactions requidisglosure under Iltem 404(a) of
Regulation S-K. This policy provides that our noating and corporate governance committee are reggerfor reviewing and approving or
disapproving all interested transactions, meanimgteansaction, arrangement or relationship in WHIK) the amount involved may be expec
to exceed $120,000 in any fiscal year, (2) our camypor one of our subsidiaries will be a participand (3) a related person has a direct or
indirect material interest. A related person igred as an executive officer, director or nomin@eelection as director, or a greater than 5%
beneficial owner of our common stock, or an immeifamily member of the foregoing. The policy maeth certain interested transactions to
be pre-approved.

Item Principal Accountant Fees and Services
14 .

Fee Disclosure

Eide Bailly served as our predecessor’s indepenggigtered public accounting firm from Novembe2@08 through June 28, 2010.
KPMG served as our predecessor’s independent eegispublic accounting firm for the period begimpilune 28, 2010 through December 31,
2010. At the request of our predecessor, EideBadhtinued to provide professional services topredecessor for the period June 28, 2010
through December 31, 2010 in connection with thhenfdion transactions, merger and preparationsdoifO.

The following is a summary of the fees for professil services rendered billed to the Company by Bidilly for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2010 and by KPMG for theoddrom June 28, 2010 through December 31, 2010:
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Eide Bailly LLP KPMG LLP
June 28, 201(

Year Ended Year Ended through
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2009 2010 2010
Audit Fees $ 106,97: $ 85,877 $ 711,43(
Audit-Related Fee 28,41 2,65( —
Tax Fees 52,42: 53,82¢ 448,55(
All Other Fees 9,27¢ 145,84 —
Total $ 197,08: $ 288,19t $ 1,159,98I

Audit Fees
“Audit Fees” consist of fees and expenses billedpfofessional services rendered for the auditrafricial statements, effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting, rewi®f interim consolidated financial statements eevof registration statements and prepara
of comfort letters and services that are normaltywjaed by Eide Bailly and KPMG in connection witatutory and regulatory filings or
engagements.
Audit-Related Fees

“Audit-Related Fees” consist of fees and expenseadsurance and related services that are redgarldied to the performance of
the audit or review of financial statements that ot “Audit Fees.”

Tax Fees

“Tax Fees” consist of fees and related expenséiifibr professional services for tax complianes,ddvice and tax planning. These
services include assistance regarding federal tatel ix compliance and tax planning and struogurin

All Other Fees
“All Other Fees” consist of fees and expenses fodpcts and services that are not “Audit Fees,”diMRelated Fees” or “Tax Fees.”
Pre-Approval Policy
Our predecessor’s board of managers adopted ahcaumdimittee charter for our predecessor which ishetlia policy concerning the
pre-approval of audit and naudit services to be provided by our independecd@atants. The policy required that all servicessated by ou
predecessor’s independent accountants, includidd services, audit-related services, and otheriees, must have been pre-approved by its
audit committee. The policy did not require ourgaeessor’s audit committee to pre-approve engageofi@ur predecessor’s independent

accountants fode minimisnon-audit related services so long as the serviegs rendered in accordance with the Exchange Act.

Our predecessor’s audit committee approved alltatech and non-audit fees provided to our predewdsg Eide Bailly and KPMG
during the 2009 and 2010 fiscal years.

We expect that our audit committee will adopt dgotoncerning the pre-approval of audit and nodieservices to be provided by

our independent accountants. We expect that theypwlll require that all audit, tax and other siems provided to us will be reviewed and pre-
approved by our audit committee.
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PART IV

ltem  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

15.

1. Financial Statemen

Included herein at page-1 through I-35

2. Financial Statement Schedu

The following financial statement schedule is imgd herein at page-29 and I-30.

Schedule IIl— Real Estate and Accumulated Deprecia

All schedules for which provision is made in Regjola S-X are either not required to be included hereirspant to the relate
instructions or are inapplicable or the relatedinfation is included in the footnotes to the aggllie financial statemer

3. Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as part of thipoet:

Exhibit

Number  Description of Exhibit

3.1° Articles of Amendment and Restatement of SummiteHBtoperties, Inc

3.2 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Summittel OP, LP, as amended (incorporated by referem&ahibit 3.1 to Amendment
No. 2 to Registration Statement on For-A filed by Summit Hotel OP, LP on February 11, 2D

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Summit Hotel Prégserinc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit & 2mendment No. 2 t
Registration Statement on Forr-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Noveanh, 2010

3.4 First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limitedrieeship of Summit Hotel OP, LP, dated February2D4,1 (incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on F8-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebguaB, 2011

4.1 Specimen certificate of common stock of Suntiaitel Properties, Inc. (incorporated by referetacExhibit 4.1 to Amendment
No. 5 to Registration Statement on For-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febya 2011)

10.1 Form of Transition Services Agreement betwBes Summit Group, Inc. and Summit Hotel OP, LR dimporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 to Amendment No. 4 to Registratioat8ment on Form S-11 filed by Summit Hotel Progsitinc. on January 28,
2011)*

10.2 Tax Protection Agreement, dated Februarn2@0], between Summit Hotel OP, LP and The Sumnau@rinc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on F8-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebguaB, 2011)*

10.3 Transition Services Agreement, dated February @41 2between Summit Hotel OP, LP and The Summitu@rinc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Cateeport on Form 8-K filed by Summit Hotel Projpest Inc. on February 18,
2011)

104 Amended and Restated Hotel Management Agmeteieted February 14, 2011, among Interstate Memagt Company, LLC
and the subsidiaries of Summit Hotel Properties, prarty thereto (incorporated by reference to BixHi0.4 to Current Report on
Form &K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaBs, 2011)

10.5 Loan Modification Agreement, dated Februaty2011, among Summit Hotel Properties, LLC, Suntioitel OP, LP and GE

Commercial Capital of Utah LLC (loan in the origipasincipal amount of $11.4 million) (incorporatég reference to Exhibit 10
to Current Report on Forn-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaB, 2011}
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10.6

10.7

10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20t

10.22

Loan Modification Agreement, dated Februaty2011, among Summit Hotel Properties, LLC, Suntioitel OP, LP and GE
Commercial Capital of Utah LLC (loan in the origipaincipal amount of $9.5 million) (incorporatest beference to Exhibit 10.6
to Current Report on Forn-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febru&B, 2011)

Loan Modification Agreement, dated February 14,2@&mong Summit Hotel Properties, LLC, Summit H@®&, LP and Gl
Commercial Capital of Utah LLC (loan in the origipaincipal amount of $11.3 million) (incorporatég reference to Exhibit 10
to Current Report on Forn-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febru&B, 2011)

Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, dmtvSummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Kerry W. Bdle&ide (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Current Report onnfr &-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febrguas, 2011)*
Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 20dtlveen Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Dapidflansen (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Current Report on F8-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebyuaB, 2011)*
Employment Agreement, dated February 141 2Bdtween Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Clalyniszewski (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Current Reporfonm ¢-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaB, 2011)*
Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, dmtvSummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Stuart Jk8egincorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Current Report omi&-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebguaBs, 2011)*
Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, detvEummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Ryan A. Bmit(incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Current Report omi&-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaBs, 2011)*

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. 2011 Equityeimtive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibitl3 to Current Report on Form 8-
K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaB, 2011)*

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Summité&roperties, Inc. and each of its Executive €2ffs and Director
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Adirment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form 8idd by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on November 1, 20:

Loan Agreement between Summit Hotel ProgertiLC and ING Life Insurance and Annuity Compaiayed December 23, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Acirment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form 8idd by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on September 23, 2C

Loan Agreement between Summit Hotel ProgertiLC and ING Life Insurance and Annuity Compatgted June 15, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Acirment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form 8idd by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on September 23, 2C

First Modification of Loan Agreement betwemmit Hotel Properties, LLC and ING Life Insurarand Annuity Company,
dated April 24, 2007 (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.17 to Amendment No. 1 to Registratioat8ment on Form 31 filed
by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on September 8302

Modification of Promissory Note and Loan égment between Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and L& Insurance and
Annuity Company, dated November 28, 2007 (incorfmatdy reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Amendment Nto Registration
Statement on Form-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Septen23, 2010

Construction Loan Agreement between SummieHProperties, LLC and Compass Bank, dated Sdgedi/, 2008 (loan in the
original principal amount of $19.25 million) (inqmrated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Amendnidmt 1 to Registration
Statement on Form-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Septen?23, 2010

Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (Qedi) between Summit Hotel Properties, LLC andtHVational Bank of
Omaha entered into August 19, 2(

Form of Option Award Agreement (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.6 to Amendment No. Ragistration Statement on
Form ¢-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Sepdtem23, 2010)
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10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

211

21.2

23.1t1
23.2t
31.11
31.2t
31.3%
31.4%
321t
32.2t
32.3t

32.4%

Form of Lease Agreement between Summit HoRILP and TRS Lessee (incorporated by referemEshibit 10.4 to
Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Fc-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Novemf, 2010

Sourcing Agreement between Six ContinentelHmc., d/b/a InterContinental Hotels Group, &wnmit Hotel Properties, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Adrment No. 3 to Registration Statement on Form 8idd by Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. on December 3, 20

Form of Severance Agreement between Summit Hotgdd?ties, Inc. and Christopher R. Eng (incorpordtedeference to Exhik
10.12 to Amendment No. 1 to Registration Staterarftorm S-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, loe.September 23, 2010)
*

Form of Severance Agreement between Sumatél Properties, Inc. and JoLynn M. Sorum (incogped by reference to Exhibit
10.13 to Amendment No. 1 to Registration Staternarfform S-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, loe.September 23, 2010)
*

List of Subsidiaries of Summit Hotel Propestilnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2. Amendment No. 4 to
Registration Statement on Forr-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Jaguzs, 2011

List of Subsidiaries of Summit Hotel OP, lifcérporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to AmeerdtNo. 1 to Registration
Statement on Form-11 filed by Summit Hotel OP, LP on September 23,0

Consent of KPMG LLF

Consent of Eide Bailly LL}

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Sumntitotel Properties, Inc. pursuant to Rule -14(a)/15+14(a), as adopted pursu
to Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit & Properties, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/18¢h), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Sumntitotel OP, LP pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-148)adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HatOP, LP pursuant to Rule 1-14(a)/15-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Sec
302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Summit HdtProperties, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sect@B0]l as adopted pursuant
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit & Properties, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®®0, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Summit H$tOP, LP pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aptad pursuant to Secti
906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HatOP, LP pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aptad pursuant to Sectit
906 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent.
T Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this repol
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. (registrant)

Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Kerry W. Boekelheid

Kerry W. Boekelheidt
Executive Chairman of the Boa

SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP (registrant)
By:  Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By:  Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole mem

Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Kerry W. Boekelheid

Kerry W. Boekelheidt
Executive Chairman of the Boa

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed éydhowing persons on behalf of
the registrants and in the capacities and on ttesdadicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Kerry W. Boekelheid Executive Chairman of the Boa March 31, 201:

Kerry W. Boekelheid:

/s/ Daniel P. Hanse President, Chief Executive Officer March 31, 201

Daniel P. Hanse and Directol
(principal executive officer

/s/ Stuart J. Becke Executive Vice President and March 31, 201:
Stuart J. Becke Chief Financial Office!

(principal financial officer
/s/ JoLynn M. Sorun Vice President, Controller and March 31, 201:
JoLynn M. Sorun Chief Accounting Office

(principal accounting officel
/s/Bjorn R. L. Hansor Director March 31, 201:
Bjorn R. L. Hansot
/s/ David S. Kay Director March 31, 201:
David S. Kay
/s/ Thomas W. Store Director March 31, 201!

Thomas W. Store

/s/ Wayne W. Wielgu Director March 31, 201:
Wayne W. Wielgu:
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Managers
Summit Hotel Properties, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and suas@&s as of December 31, 2010, and
the related consolidated statements of operat@h@ges in members’ equity, and cash flows foyta ended December 31, 2010. In
connection with our audit of the consolidated ficiahstatements, we also have audited the finastéément schedule Ill. These consolidated
financial statements and financial statement sdeeahe the responsibility of the Company’s managenteur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statemantsfinancial statement schedule based on our.audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of Summit
Hotel Properties, LLC and subsidiaries as of Deaan3i, 2010, and the results of their operatiomsthair cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2010, in conformity with U.S. gengralicepted accounting principles. Also, in oumdgi, the related financial statement
schedule lll, when considered in relation to theidaonsolidated financial statements taken asaeypresents fairly, in all material respects,
the information set forth therein.

/s | KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 31, 2011




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Managers
Summit Hotel Properties, LLC
Sioux Falls, South Dakota

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of Summit Hotel Properties, LLC (the “Camy’) as of December 31, 2009 a
the related consolidated statements of operat@hanges in members’ equity and cash flows for efi¢he years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2009. The Company’s management ismeipe for these financial statements. Our resipditg is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toiolrf@asonable assurance about whether the finasteigdments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managemeniglhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrealove present fairly, in all material respedis,¢onsolidated financial position of Summit
Hotel Properties, LLC as of December 31, 2009 &edcbnsolidated results of its operations andash dlows for each of the years in the two-
year period ended December 31, 2009 in conformitly accounting principles generally accepted intmited States of Americi

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Summit Hotel
Properties, LLC’s internal control over financiaporting as of December 31, 2009, based on @itsiablished imternal Control—
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSQO), and our regattd Marc
31, 2010, expressed an unqualified opinion on th@any’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Eide Bailly LLP

Greenwood Village, Colorado
March 31, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Managers
Summit Hotel Properties, LLC
Sioux Falls, South Dakota

We have audited Summit Hotel Properties, LLC (t8erhpany”) internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2009, based on
criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriie Treadway
Commission (COSO). Summit Hotel Properties, LLC agement is responsible for maintaining effectiverimal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectigsrnd internal control over financial reportinglinded in the accompanying Management'’s
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti@gr responsibility is to express an opinion om @ompanys internal control over financi
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightfg&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audindéiinal control over financial reporting includeataining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thatzderial weakness exists, and testing and evay#te design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qdit also included performing such other proceda®®e considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftaipeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzareterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Summit Hotel Properties, LLC maintd, in all material respects, effective interoahtrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on criteria establishédeémal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated
balance sheet of Summit Hotel Properties, LLC a3edember 31, 2009 and the related consolidatéenséants of operations, members’
equity, and cash flows for each of the years inttveyear period ended December 31, 2009, and our reptett March 31, 2010, expresset
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/sl Eide Bailly LLP

Greenwood Village, Colorado
March 31, 2010




SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Trade receivable
Receivable due from affiliai
Prepaid expenses and other

Total current asse
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred charges and other assets
Land held for sali
Other noncurrent asse
Restricted cas

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of lon-term deb!
Lines of credit
Accounts payabl
Related party accounts paya
Accrued expense

Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTIO

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 16

MEMBERS' EQUITY
Class A, 1,166.62 units issued and outstan
Class /-1, 437.83 units issued and outstanc
Class B, 81.36 units issued and outstan:
Class C, 173.60 units issued and outstan
Total Summit Hotel Properties, LLC members' eq
Noncontrolling interes

Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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2010 2009

$ 797741 $ 8,239,22
1,192,13 1,755,05:
2,665,07! 2,608,19
4,620,05' -
1,738,64 1,416,48
18,193,32 14,018,95
466,010,77  482,767,60
4,051,29! 4,828,18!

- 12,226,32

4,011,99; 4,074,17:
741,13 331,19(
8,804,42.  21,459,87
$493,008,53 $518,246,43
$147,612,93  $134,370,90
19,601,21 21,457,94
864,56( 1,088,26!
771,06¢ 494,24
11,092,13 9,182,01
179,941,090 _ 166,593,36
253,223,06  270,353,75
50,838,54 59,961,95
32,554,18 34,244,05
262,66¢ 1,804,71:
(22,187,36)  (13,086,95)
61,468,02 82,923,77
(1,624,46)  (1,624,46)
59,843,56 81,299,31
$493,008,53 $518,246,43




SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®

REVENUES
Room revenue
Other hotel operations revent

COSTS AND EXPENSE:
Direct hotel operation
Other hotel operating expens
General, selling and administrati
Repairs and maintenan
Depreciation and amortizatic
Loss on impairment of asse

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest incom
Interest (expense
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets

INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATION
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXE
STATE INCOME TAX (EXPENSE

NET INCOME (LOSS)

NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TC
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST

NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TC
SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PEFR
$100,000 CAPITAL UNIT

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF UNITS
OUTSTANDING FOR CALCULATION OF
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PEFR
CAPITAL UNIT (based on $100,000 investme

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

2010 2009 2008
$133,069,34 $118,959,82 $ 132,796,69
2,565,72: 2,239,91. 2,310,76.
135,635,06  121,199,73 _ 135,107,46
47,210,05 42,070,89 42,380,95
18,960,77 16,986,81 15,186,13
25,379,94 24,017,47 25,993,09
4,718,56, 6,151,47. 8,008,85.
27,250,77 23,971,11 22,307,42
6,475,68. 7,505,83 -
129,995,79  120,703,61  113,876,45
5,639,27: 496,12  21,231,00
47,48 49,80 194,68°
(26,362,26)  (18,320,73)  (17,025,18)
(42,81 (4,33%) (389,82()
(26,357,59) _ (18,275,26) _ (17,220,31)
(20,718,32)  (17,779,14) 4,010,691
- 1,464,80: 10,278,59
(20,718,32)  (16,314,33)  14,289,28
(202,16 - (826,30()
(20,920,48)  (16,314,33)  13,462,98
- - 384,26
$ (20,920,48) $ (16,314,33) $ 13,078,71
(11,25) $ (9,397) 8,41z
1,85¢ 1,737 1,55¢




SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUI TY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®

BALANCES, JANUARY 1, 200¢

Class #-1 units issue:
in private placemer

Net Income (Loss
Distributions to membet
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 200

Class /-1 units issuet
in private placemer

Net Income (Loss
Distributions to members
BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 200

Net Income (Loss

Distributions to membet

BALANCES, DECEMBER 31, 201

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Equity
# of Attributable tc
Capital Noncontrolling
Units Class A Class /1 Class B Class C Total Interest
1,554.8. $82,892,94 $10,672,76 $4,108,21: $ (279,02¢ $97,394,88 $ (1,702,73)
63.2% - 5,614,461 - - $ 5,614,46 -
- 10,785,50 1,136,50: 184,17¢ 972,52¢ 13,078,71 384,26
- (17,166,00) (1,567,97) (1,285,14) (6,683,72) (26,702,84) (306,000)
1,618.0¢ $ 76,512,44 $15,855,75 $ 3,007,24 $ (5,990,22) $ 89,385,22 $ (1,624,46)
241.3: - 22,123,95 = - $22,123,95 -
- (6,807,64) (1,207,42) (1,202,52) (7,096,73) (16,314,33) =
- (9,742,84) (2,528,22) - - (12,271,06) -
1,859.4. $59,961,95 $34,244,05 $ 1,804,71i $(13,086,95) $ 82,923,77 $ (1,624,46)
- (8,729,70) (1,548,32) (1,542,04) (9,100,41) (20,920,48) -
- (393,71) (141,549 - - (535,26.) -
1,859.4. $50,838,54 $32,554,18 $ 262,66¢ $(22,187,36) $ 61,468,02 $ (1,624,46)




SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigesl
by operating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of prepaid leas
Unsuccessful project cos
Noncontrolling interests in operations of consaiablLC
(Gain) loss on disposal of ass
Loss on impairment of asse

Changes in assets and liabiliti
Trade receivable
Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and related party accounts pa’
Accrued expense
Restricted cash released (funded)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Land and hotel acquisitions and construction irgpess
Purchases of other property and equipn
Proceeds from asset dispositions, net of closists
Restricted cash released (funded)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of l-term debi
Principal payments on lo-term debi
Financing fees on loi-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable and lineedit
Principal payments on notes payable and line afit
Proceeds from equity contributions, net of comnoiss
Distributions to membel
Distributions to noncontrolling intere

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT<

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAF

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

2010

2009

2008

$ (20,920,48)

$ (16,314,33) $ 13,078,71

27,250,77 24,125,06 23,027,56
47,40( 118,50: :

- 1,262,21" -

- - 384,26

42,81 (1,297,48)  (8,604,77)
6,475,68. 7,505,831 -
(56,87¢) 13,96¢ 570,54«
(4,942,22) 315,89 (307,109
53,11 (5,847,83)  (1,656,28)
1,910,11: (774,35 316,90
562,92 (76,02) 783,92(
10,423,24 9,031,43°  27,593,75
(1,413,18)  (14,810,89)  (12,904,46)
(1,356,69)  (6,613,39)  (6,628,77)
14,78; 207,81  23,584,63
(409,94) 2,239,18. (1,369,19)
(3,165,03)  (18,977,29) 2,682,20:
4,919,02 223,51 4,837,001
(8,807,68)  (6,890,94)  (20,909,99)
(1,239,36) (945,44:) (942,40)
- 4,860,001 18,510,86
(1,856,72) (19,86%) -
- 15,075,45 5,614,461
(535,26)  (12,271,06)  (26,702,84)
- - (306,00()
(7,520,00) 31,64¢  (19,898,91)
(261,80)  (9,914,21)  10,377,04
8,239,22! 18,153,43 7,776,39!
$ 797741 $ 823922 $ 18,15343




SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — PAGE 2

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE Ol
CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash payments for interest, net of the amountdalgad below

Interest capitalized
Cash payments (refunds) for state income t:

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE Ol
NON-CASH FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

Acquisitions of hotel properties and land throt
issuance of det

Construction in progress financed through accopaysble

Construction in progress financed through rel:
party accounts payah

Construction in progress financed through issuafickebt
Conversion of construction in progress to otheets
Issuance of long-term debt for short-term debt

Issuance of lor-term debt to refinance existing Ic-term debt
Equity contributions used to pay down debt

Financing costs funded through construction dr

Sale proceeds used to pay down long-term debt

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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2010 2009 2008
$ 25,866,57 $ 17,810,54 17,833,59
$ - $ 2,977,10 3,829,26
$ (21,80) $ 728,51 781,08:
$ - $ - 16,447,23
$ - $ 244,12 .
$ - $ 24213 2,600,26!
$ - $ 51,098,87 38,765,69
$ - $  4,149,37 -
$ - $ 7,450,00 12,772,81
$ - $ 2221585 11,073,07
$ - $ 7,048,550 -
$ - $ - 1,651,88
$ - $ 6,134,28 4,215,36.




SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 1 - PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIC IES
Nature of Busines

Summit Hotel Properties, LLC, Predecessor, a Sbattota limited liability company (the “Predecesgpwas organized January 8, 2004, and
is engaged in the business of developing, owniroperating hotel properties.

The Predecessor has agreements for the use ofigdrame names, trademarks and service marks widkide Carlson Hospitality, Choice
Hotels International, Hilton Hotel Corporation, éntontinental Hotels Group, Hyatt Hotel Corporatéord Marriott International. The
Predecessor also owns and operates one indeperatefranchised hotel. As of December 31, 201020@D, the Predecessor owned and
managed 65 hotels, representing approximately &&33s located in 19 states. The Predecessoré piatperties are located throughout
various regions of the United States. Hotels dpegan any given region are potentially susceptitdl adverse economic and competitive
conditions as well as unigue trends associated téhparticular region. The potential adverse@fbf such conditions on the Predecessor’'s
business, financial position, and results of itsrafions is mitigated due to the diversified looasi of the Predecessor’s properties. The
Predecessor has only one operating segment.

Basis of Presentation and Consolidat

The consolidated financial statements include tlw®ants of the Predecessor, Summit HospitalityLIC land Summit Hospitality V, LLC, as
well as Summit Group of Scottsdale, Arizona, LLGbttsdale”), a variable interest entity (“VIE")rfavhich the Predecessor is the primary
beneficiary. All significant intercompany balan@ex transactions have been eliminated.

The Predecessor has adopted Financial Accountamgi&tds Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codifien (*“ASC") 810,Consolidation.
Beginning January 1, 2010, Topic 810 requires ditqtiae rather than a quantitative analysis tcedetine the primary beneficiary of a VIE for
consolidation purposes. The primary beneficiarg ME is the enterprise that has the power to ditee activities of the VIE that most
significantly impact the VIE’s economic performarared also has the obligation to absorb the losktsed/IE that could potentially be
significant to the VIE or the right to receive bétseof the VIE that could potentially be signifitto the VIE. Prior to January 1, 2010, the
Predecessor accounted for its ownership of Scdétsateler FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)pnsolidation of Variable Interest Entities an
Interpretation of ARB No. 5, codified under Topic 810. Variable interest gesi (“VIES”) were required to be consolidated bgit primary
beneficiaries if they do not effectively disperggks among the parties involved. The primary biefaly of a VIE was the party that absorbs a
majority of the entity’s expected losses, recemesajority of its expected residual returns, ohbas a result of holding variable interests. In
applying Topic 810, management has utilized avilaiformation and reasonable assumptions and asBrin evaluating whether an entity is
a VIE and which party is the primary beneficiafjhese assumptions and estimates are subjectivihane of different assumptions could
result in different conclusions.

As of December 31, 2010, the Predecessor is a 4@3¢roand the primary beneficiary of Summit Grougsobttsdale, AZ, LLC (“Scottsdalg”
which qualifies as a variable interest entity. #walingly, the financial position and results of cggéns and cash flows of Scottsdale have been
included in the accompanying consolidated finansiatements. The entity was formed for the purpdgrirchasing two hotel properties in
Scottsdale, AZ and its activities primarily rel&eowning and operating those two hotel propertiéds of December 31, 2010 and for the year
then ended, Scottsdale had assets of $19,838idBiifies of $14,122,157, revenues of $5,925,18% expenses of $5,686,493. As of
December 31, 2009 and for the year then endedts8lad¢ had assets of $19,771,907, liabilities &, 831,068, revenues of $5,848,427, and
expenses of $5,825,455. As of December 31, 2088arthe year then ended, Scottsdale had ass&®&1¢291,843, liabilities of $14,725,106,
revenues of $8,871,475 and expenses of $7,049)b8Wuded in the consolidated assets are assetfsacember 31, 2010 totaling
$18,057,859 which represent collateral for obligrasi of Scottsdale. The Predecessor's maximum expds loss is $5,716,336. Apart from
that amount, creditors and the beneficial holdéiSanttsdale have no recourse to the assets orajemedit of the Predecessor. The
Predecessor is a Class A Member of Scottsdaleemivies a 10% priority distribution on its capitahtribution before distributions to the
Class B and Class C Members of Scottsdale. Thi#ePessor, as the Class A Member of Scottsdale atsayreceive additional operating
distributions based on its Sharing Ratio. Theshtiathal distributions are determined by the mangghember and are based on excess cash
from operations after normal operating expenses) frayments, priority distributions, and reserv&ay income generated by Scottsdale is
first allocated to its Class A member up to the 1f¥6rity return.
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the @soeported in the financial statements and acemryipg notes. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Predecessor considers all highly liquid investta purchased with an original maturity of threenths or less to be cash equivalents. At
times, cash on deposit may exceed the federallyréasslimit. The Predecessor maintains its cash high credit quality financial institutions.
Due to the financial institution crisis and economdwnturn that began in the second half of 200hagement has assessed the risks of each
of the financial institutions where the Predece$sar deposits in excess of insured limits and betiehe risk of loss to be minimal.

Receivables and Credit Polici

Trade receivables are uncollateralized customegatibns resulting from the rental of hotel roonnsl ahe sales of food, beverage, catering and
banquet services due under normal trade termsrieguiayment upon receipt of the invoice. Tradmereables are stated at the amount billed
to the customer and do not accrue interest. Cutaecount balances with invoices dated over 68 d&yare considered

delinquent. Payments of trade receivables areathal to the specific invoices identified on thetomer’s remittance advice or, if unspecified,
are applied to the earliest unpaid invoices.

The Predecessor reviews the collectability of #ezivables monthly. A provision for losses on remigles is determined on the basis of
previous loss experience and current economic tondi There were no material uncollectible reables and no allowance for doubtful
accounts recorded as of December 31, 2010 and ZD® Predecessor incurred bad debt expense of IR(88,125 and $172,481 for 20
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Property and Equipmet

Buildings and major improvements are recorded st and depreciated using the straight-line methaa 87 to 40 years, the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Hotel equipment, furniture fixtures are recorded at cost and depreciatetyube straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets of 2 to 15 yedtse Predecessor periodically re-evaluates fagsbt lives based on current assessments of
remaining utilization that may result in changeg#tiimated useful lives. Such changes are acabdmtgrospectively and will increase or
decrease depreciation expense. Depreciation egfeom continuing operations for the year endedebdwer 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 totaled
$25,234,526, $21,748,782 and $20,085,238, respdetiExpenditures that materially extend a propeitfe are capitalized. These costs may
include hotel refurbishment, renovation and remiodetxpenditures. Normal maintenance and repaitscare expensed as incurred. When
depreciable property is retired or disposed of rétated cost and accumulated depreciation is rechénom the accounts and any gain or loss is
reflected in current operations.
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

Capitalized Development and Interest Costs

The Predecessor capitalizes all hotel developnmasis@nd other direct overhead costs related tpuhshase and construction of

hotels. Additionally, the Predecessor capitalthesinterest costs associated with constructing metels. Capitalized development, direct
overhead and interest are depreciated over thmagstil lives of the respective assets. Organizatiohstart-up costs are expensed as
incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2@ and 2008, the Predecessor capitalized intef &, $2,977,101 and $3,829,267,
respectively.

Assets Held for Sa

Assets held for sale are carried at the lower of oofair value, less costs to sell, and conditrad only at December 31, 2009. Properties are
classified as assets held for sale when they aterwontract for sale, or otherwise probable thay will be sold within the next twelve
months. There are no assets that fit this clasgitin at December 31, 2010.

LongLived Assets and Impairment

The Predecessor applies the provisions of FASB B&T Property Plant and Equipmentvhich addresses financial accounting and repgprtin
for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assét®\SB ASC 360 requires a long-lived asset toispabsed of to be classified as “held for
sale”in the period in which certain criteria are metliding that the sale of the asset within one yearobable. FASB ASC 360 also requi
that the results of operations of a component dratity that either has been disposed of or issdfiagl as held for sale be reported in
discontinued operations if the operations and flasés of the component have been or will be elindsfrom the Predecessor’s ongoing
operations.

The Predecessor periodically reviews the carry@lgey of its long-term assets in relation to histakresults, current business conditions and
trends to identify potential situations in whicketbarrying value of assets may not be recoverdbkauch reviews indicate that the carrying
value of such assets may not be recoverable, gaeBessor would estimate the undiscounted suneapected cash flows of such assets to
determine if such sum is less than the carryingevalf such assets to ascertain if an impairmestexif an impairment exists, the Predecessor
would determine the fair value by using quoted rafgkices or appraisals, if available for such &ss# if quoted market prices or appraisals
are not available, the Predecessor would disctnvenéxpected future cash flows of such assets godtalle carrying amount to fair value.

During 2009, the Predecessor determined that fou parcels were impaired and wrote them downew fhir value. The carrying value of

the assets exceeded fair value by $6,332,736,faiitivalue being determined by reference to themeged quoted market prices of such assets
(Level 3 Inputs) as further discussed in Note #isTmpairment was a result of the Predecessocsiba to stop development projects and
attempt to sell the land. The Predecessor alsrmeted that the Courtyard in Memphis, TN was imgaiby $1,173,100 due to the fact tha
historical carrying value was higher than the Hstiir value due to recent economic distress @mphrticular hotel and market. A total
impairment loss of $7,505,836 was charged to ojmrain 2009. During 2010, the Predecessor, inwastjon with the termination of a
contract for sale of land parcels, determined aémather four land parcels were impaired and witoéentdown to their fair value. An

impairment loss of $6,475,684 was charged to ojerain 2010. The contracted sales price for ed¢hese parcels was in excess of their
carrying amounts. Subsequent to the terminatichefales contract management determined theimguaynounts were no longer realizable.

Deferred Charge
These assets are carried at cost and consistaféeffinancing fees and initial franchise fee®stS incurred in obtaining financing are
capitalized and amortized on the straight-line rdtbver the term of the related debt, which appnaxes the interest method. Initial franchise

fees are capitalized and amortized over the tertheofranchise agreement using the straight linthate Amortization expense from
continuing operations for the year ended Decembe?310, 2009 and 2008 totaled $2,016,252, $2,3B228d $2,222,188, respectively.
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

Restricted Cas

Restricted cash consists of certain funds mainteimescrow for property taxes, insurance and cedapital expenditures. Funds may be
disbursed from the account upon proof of expend#wand approval from the lenders. See also Note 9.

Income Taxe

The Predecessor is a limited liability company asisuch, all federal taxable income of the limltahlility company flows through and is
taxable to the members of the Predecessor. TéuePessor has adopted the provisions of FASB ASCIfdome Taxeson January 1, 2009.
The implementation of this standard had no impadhe financial statements. As of December 31, 20102009, there were no unrecognized
tax benefits.

The Predecessor will recognize future accruedeésteand penalties related to unrecognized tax bismefincome tax expense if incurred. The
Predecessor is no longer subject to Federal taxi@edions by tax authorities for years before 2006.

The Predecessor has elected to pay state incorae aaxhe Predecessor level in all of the stateghioh it does business. The Predecessor’s
estimated state income tax expenses at currentatarates were $202,163, $0 and $826,300, foy#aes ended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008, respectively.

Member’ Capital Contributions and Profit and Loss Allogats

The Predecessor is organized as a limited liakititjppany and can issue to its members Class As@lds Class B and Class C units.

Approximate Sharing Ratios, as defined, are asvidl

2010 2009 2008
Class A 42% 42% 45%
Class ~1 7 7 4
Class B 7 7 8
Class C 44 44 43
10C% 10C% 10C%

The limited liability company operating agreemerdyides that net profits are allocated to cove®% Priority return to Class A members, 8%
priority return to Class A-1 members, then the bedais allocated based on Sharing Ratios. Ne¢$oare allocated to members based on
Sharing Ratios.

Only Class A and A-1 members contribute capitahe§e members receive an 8% or 10% priority retartheir capital contributions before
distributions to other classes. Class A and A-inilpers may also receive additional operating distitims based on their Sharing

Ratios. These additional distributions are detaediby the managing member and are based on ecagis$rom operations after normal
operating expenses, loan payments, priority distidims, and reserves. Class A and A-1 members Yatigy rights on creation of new classes
of membership, amendments to the Articles of Omgtion, and dissolution of the Predecessor. (Glaasd A-1 memberships are sold in units
of $100,000 each. Class B members do not haveg/atihts and receive distributions in accordanihb their Sharing Ratios after Class A
and A-1 members have received their priority retufhe Class C member is The Summit Group, Incl{SGrelated party. SGI has limited
voting rights, in addition to the right to appoinembers to the Board. SGI, however, has signifiaathority to manage the hotel properties
and acts as the Predecessor’'s Manager. SGI reagisteibutions in accordance with its Sharing Rafiter Class A and A-1 members have
received their priority returns.
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

Costs paid for syndication are charged directlgdaity against the proceeds raised. The Predatesgerating agreement contains extensive
restrictions on the transfer of membership intares addition, the transferability of membersimiferests is restricted by federal and state
law. The membership interests may not be offeselt], transferred, pledged, or hypothecated topemgon without the consent of The Sum
Group, Inc., a related party and 44% owner of tfegl€cessor through its holding of 100% of the amiding Class C units.

The Predecessor will continue in existence unsisdived in accordance with the provisions of iterafing agreement and has been funded
through equity contributions of its owners. Agraifed liability company, except as may otherwigepoovided under applicable law, no
member shall be bound by, or personally liable thog, expenses, liabilities, or obligation of thedrcessor. The members are not obligated to
restore capital deficits.

Earnings per Capital Uni

For purposes of calculating basic earnings pettalpnit, capital units issued by the Predecessocansidered outstanding on the effective
date of issue and are based on a $100,000 capital u

Noncontrolling Interest

Summit Group of Scottsdale, AZ, LLC has made distibns to noncontrolling members in excess of ineallocations to those
members. Their excess is reflected in the conat@itibalance sheets.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Predecessor grants credit to qualified custsmenerally without collateral, in the form of anots receivable. The Predecessor believ:
risk of loss is minimal due to its periodic evaloas of the credit worthiness of the customers.

Advertising and Marketing Cos

The Predecessor expenses all advertising and nraglatsts as they are incurred. Total costs foytas ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 were $9,706,658, $9,015,388 and $9,588,24Bentively. Of this total cost, $800,730, $880,58d $846,971, represented general
advertising expense for 2010, 2009 and 2008, réispdc and $8,905,928, $8,134,854 and $8,741,851esented national media fees
required by the hotel franchise agreements for 20009 and 2008, respectively. These costs amrtazpas components of general, selling
and administrative costs in the accompanying cadetald statements of operations.

Sales Taxes

The Predecessor has customers in states and nalitiegpin which those governmental units imposales tax on certain sales. The
Predecessor collects those sales taxes from itsroass and remits the entire amount to the vargmy&rnmental units. The Predecessor’s
accounting policy is to exclude the tax collected eemitted from revenues.

Revenue Recognitic

The Predecessor’s hotel revenues are derived foom rentals and other sources, such as chargegsisgfor long-distance telephone service,
fax machine use, movie and vending commissionstingeand banquet room revenue, restaurant ancebanue, and parking and laundry
services. The Predecessor recognizes hotel revemaealaily basis based on an agreed upon daéyaftgr the guest has stayed at one of its
hotels for a day, used its lodging facilities aadaived related lodging services and amenities Friedecessor believes that the credit risk
respect to trade receivables is limited, becaupeoapnately 90% of the Predecessor’s revenue éedlto credit card transactions, which are
typically reimbursed within 2-3 days. Reservesdoy uncollectible accounts, if material, are dihbd for accounts that age beyond a
predetermined acceptable period. The Predeceasandt recorded any such reserves at Decembe03@,ghd 2009.
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

Adoption of New Accounting Pronounceme

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. ¥viendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(BJ-AS No. 167”), codified under Topic 810.
Topic 810 requires a qualitative rather than a tjtaive analysis to determine the primary benefigiof a VIE for consolidation purposes. The
primary beneficiary of a VIE is the enterprise that the power to direct the activities of the Bt most significantly impact the VIE’s
economic performance and also has the obligati@absorb the losses of the VIE that could potentiadl significant to the VIE or the right to
receive benefits of the VIE that could potentiddy significant to the VIE. The provisions of Togit0 were effective January 1, 2010. The
adoption of Topic 810 did not have a material impacthe consolidated financial statements.

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Stand8wlsrd (FASB) issued an update (ASU No. 2010-0&doounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 820,Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurés improve disclosure requirements regardingsfens, classes of assets and liabilities,
and inputs and valuation techniques. This updagdféctive for interim and annual reporting pesidibginning after December 15, 2009. The
Predecessor adopted this ASC update on Janua®iQ, and it had no material impact on the constdidléinancial statements.

Future Adoption of Accounting Pronounceme

Certain provisions of ASU No. 2010-06 to ASC 8E@jr Value Measurements and Disclosureslated to separate line items for all purchases
sales, issuances, and settlements of financialimgnts valued using Level 3 are effective fordlgears beginning after December 15,
2010. The Predecessor does not believe thatdbistian will have a material impact on the finahsit@atements or disclosures.

Fair Value

FASB ASC 820Fair Value Measurementdgefines fair value, establishes a framework for sneiag fair value in generally accepted accoul
principles (GAAP), and expands disclosures abdutvtdue measurements. FASB ASC 820 also estaddi a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques usedheasure fair value. The hierarchy gives tighést priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilitfesvel 1) and lowest priority to unobservable irp(ltevel 3). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy under Topic 820 are described below:

Level 1 — Observable inputs that reflect quotedgs (unadjusted) for identical assets or liab#itin active
markets,

Level 2 — Inputs reflect quoted prices for ideatiassets or liabilities in markets that are mbive; quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in activarkets; inputs other than quoted prices that bsemwable for
the asset or the liability; or inputs that are dedi principally from or corroborated by observatarket data
by correlation or other mear

Level 3— Unobservable inputs reflecting the Predece’'s own assumptions incorporated in valua

techniques used to determine fair value. Thesergssons are required to be consistent with market
participant assumptions that are reasonable aVail
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

Our estimates of the fair value of financial instients as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 were detedmising available market information
and appropriate valuation methods, including disted cash flow analysis. Considerable judgmenetessary to interpret market data and
develop estimated fair value. The use of differaatket assumptions or estimation methods may hawmaterial effect on the estimated fair
value amounts.

The Predecessor’s financial instruments consistgmily of cash and cash equivalents, trade recigabccounts payable, and debt
obligations. The fair values of cash and cashwedgints, trade receivables, and accounts payapl®ximate their carrying values due to the
short-term nature of these instruments. At DecerBthe2010 and 2009, the Predecessor’s long-tetmat#igations consisted of fixed and
variable rate debt that had a carrying value of0$886,992 and $404,724,650, respectively, andraséiie, based on current market interest
rates of $401,195,948 and $383,431,716, respegtividie Predecessor has classified its long-terot idstruments as Level 2 in the hierarchy
of FASB ASC 820 described above. The Predecessionaes the fair value of its debt by discountimg future cash flows of each instrument
at estimated market rates consistent with the ritatoira debt obligation with similar terms.

NOTE 2 - PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER

Prepaid expenses and other at December 31, 2012089 are comprised of the following:

2010 2009
Prepaid insurance exper $ 511,16¢ $ 781,14
Other prepaid expen: 1,227,471 635,33t

$ 1,738,64. $ 1,416,48

NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at December 31, 2010 anfl &@)comprised of the following:

2010 2009
Land $ 89,887,26 $ 75,272,01
Hotel buildings and improvemer 392,138,98  390,909,81
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 88,781,02 87,642,37.
Construction in progres - 8,551,35:
570,807,27  562,375,55
Less accumulated depreciati 104,796,50 79,607,95

$466,010,77  $482,767,60

The construction in progress asset account codsiét® hotels under development which the Predecdsxl anticipated to be constructed in
2011 and 2012. However, the Predecessor has tyrdetayed all construction and is consideringdisglall extra parcels of land.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 4 - ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

As a part of regular policy, the Predecessor p&aly reviews hotels based on established criteuigh as age of hotel property, type of
franchise associated with hotel property, and akveconomic and competitive conditions in the negiarrounding the property.

During 2010, the Predecessor completed a comprifeereview of its investment strategy and of itssérg hotel portfolio to identify
properties which the Predecessor believes arergithrecore or no longer complement the business@sred by FASB ASC 360. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Predecessor haatels that met the Predecessor’s criteria of f@ldale classification. The Predecessor
had committed to sell six parcels of land that waiginally purchased for development and thuse¢hmercels of land were recorded as assets
held for sale as of December 31, 2009. A conficacsale on these parcels was terminated durin@ 208 due to lack of marketability at this
time, the land has been reclassified from assédsfbesale as a sale is not probable within the A2 months.

Assets held for sale at December 31, 2010 and Dieee1, 2009 are comprised of the following:

2010 2009
Land $ - $ 12,226,32
NOTE 5 - OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS
Other noncurrent assets at December 31, 2010 &1 a6 comprised of the following:
2010 2009
Prepaid land leas $ 3,588,190 $ 3,635,59
Seller financed notes receivable 423,79 438,58¢

$ 4,011,990 $ 4,07417

NOTE 6 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Predecessor has reclassified its consolidataddial statements of operations for the yeareeémaecember 31, 2009 and 2008, to reflect
discontinued operations of five consolidated hpteperties sold or to be sold during these pernmdsuant to the plan for hotel

dispositions. This reclassification has no impatthe Predecesssrhet income or the net income per share. Dur@@2the Predecessor s
three hotel properties located in Lewiston, ID;k¥n, MS; and Overland Park, KS and two hotel prigelocated in Kennewick, WA for
approximately $28,575,000 with net proceeds of $25,000. During 2009, the Predecessor sold twel lppbperties located in Ellensburg,
WA and St. Joesph, MO for approximately $6,810,a@8 net proceeds of $6,342,000.

Condensed financial information of the results pém@tions for these hotel properties included gtaltinued operations are as follows:
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2009 2008
REVENUES $ 1,133,699 $ 6,825,90
COSTS AND EXPENSE:
Direct hotel operation 348,06! 2,210,722
Other hotel operating expens 135,12: 813,49(
General, selling and administrati 258,49! 1,058,711
Repairs and maintenan 36,09: 199,29(
Depreciation and amortization 153,94¢ 720,14(
931,72: 5,002,36!
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 201,96¢ 1,823,54
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE
Interest incomt 11€ 16,79(
Interest (expense (39,100 (556,347)
Gain (loss) on disposal of ass 1,301,82. 8,994,59
1,262,83! 8,455,04
INCOME (LOSS) FRON
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS $ 1,464,800 $ 10,278,59
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS
PER $100,000 CAPITAL UNIT $ 84: $ 6,611

NOTE 7 - ACQUISITIONS

The Predecessor accounts for its acquisition afla@ts a business combination under the acquisitiethod of accounting. Acquisition costs
are expensed as incurred. The Predecessor alidbateost of the acquired property to the assepsised and liabilities assumed based upon
their estimated fair values at the date of acqaisitTo determine fair value of the various compusecquired, the Predecessor engages
independent valuation consultants and other thimdypreal-estate appraisals as necessary. Thedtssbr allocates the purchase price of the
acquired property based upon the relative fairesof the various components. The excess of thieofdhe acquisition over the fair value v
be assigned to intangible assets if the intangibieet is separable and if it arises from a contahetr other legal right. Any remaining exces
the cost of acquisition over fair values assigreegeparable assets is recognized as goodwill.

The Predecessor’s strategy is to pursue the atiquisif additional hotels under the investment peaeters established in the Predecessor’s
Operating Agreement. The Predecessor has madegnisiions during the years ended December 310 26d 2009.
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NOTE 8 - DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER ASSETS

Deferred charges and other assets at Decembe®3Q,ahd 2009, are comprised of the following:

2010 2009
Initial franchise fee: $ 2,596,04. $ 2,596,04.
Deferred financing cos 9,443,36! 8,204,00:
12,039,40 10,800,04
Less accumulated amortizati 7,988,11. 5,971,86!
Total $ 4,051,290 $ 4,828,18!
Future amortization expense is expected to be ajppately:
2011 $ 1,518,37.
2012 595,53:
2013 357,03:
2014 285,24¢
2015 221,14.
Thereafter 1,073,96'
$ 4,051,29!
NOTE 9 - RESTRICTED CASH
Restricted cash as of December 31, 2010 and 2088mgprised of the following:
Property FF&E
Financing Lende Taxes Insurance Reserve:! 2010 2009
National Western Lift $ - % - $ - $ - 3% 31,17¢
Wells Fargo (Lehmar 459,72: 92,15¢ 733,03t 1,284,91 1,598,28
Bank of the Ozark 11,00( 2,80( 8,10z 21,90: -
Capmark (ING; 139,24! - - 139,24! 128,50«
Capmark (ING] 235,57t - - 235,57t 145,06:
Capmark (ING’ 165,81( - - 165,81( 83,47:
Capmark (ING) 85,82: - - 85,82: 99,74:

$ 1,097,171 $ 94,95¢ $ 741,13° $ 1,933,260 $ 2,086,24.
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The Predecessor has financing arrangements undeh wh agreed upon percentage of gross incomejisgresl to be deposited into a spe
reserve account for future replacements of furejtdixtures and equipment. Some financing arrareggm also include provisions t
restricted cash must be maintained in escrow fopgnty taxes and insurance. Funds may be disbudreed the account upon proof

expenditures and approval from the lender.
NOTE 10- ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses at December 31, 2010 and 200®amgrised of the following:

2010 2009
Accrued sales and other tav $ 5,594,05: 5,238,69!
Accrued salaries and benel 1,834,86: 1,400,72!
Accrued interes 1,799,69: 1,303,99!
Other accrued expenses 1,863,52 1,238,59!
$ 11,092,13 9,182,01.
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NOTE 11-

The Predecessor's debt obligations at Decemb&030, and 2009 are as follows:

DEBT OBLIGATIONS

Maturity/
Interest Earliest Call
Payee Rate Date 2010 2009
Lehman Brothers Bank a) Fixed (5.4025%) 1/11/201: $ 76,829,07 78,980,01
ING Investment Manageme b) Fixed (5.60% 1/1/201: 28,901,41 30,088, 7¢
c) Fixed (6.10% 7/1/201: 29,321,61 30,416,4:2
d) Fixed (6.61%; 11/1/201: 6,235,81 6,412,6¢
e) Fixed (6.34%) 7/1/201: 7,896,3€ 8,122,71
72,355,2C 75,040,5¢
National Western Life Insurant f) Fixed (8.0%) 1/1/201¢ 13,631,22 14,000,0(
Chambers Bank g) Fixed (6.5%) 6/24/201: 1,594,17 1,669,0Z
Bank of the Ozarks h) Variable (6.75% at 12/31/10 6/29/201! 6,435,77 5,794,4.
and 6.75% at 12/31/0
MetaBank i) Variable (5.0% at 12/31/1 3/1/201: 7,286,88 7,450,0(
and 5.0% at 12/31/0
BNC National Bant j) Fixed (5.01%; 11/1/201: 5,719,87 5,910,9¢
k) Variable (3.0% at 12/31/1 4/1/201¢ 5,814,123 5,755,8¢
and 3.0% at 12/31/0 11,534,0C 11,666,8<
Marshall & llsley Bank I) Variable (5.0% at 12/31/1 6/30/201: 9,895,72 9,895,7:
and 4.13% at 12/31/0 3/31/201: 11,524,4¢ 11,524,4¢
21,420,17 21,420,1%
General Electric Capital Cor m) Variable (2.05% at 12/31/1 4/1/201¢ 8,685,51 9,122,31
and 2.0% at 12/31/0
n) Variable (2.1% at 12/31/1 3/1/201¢ 11,033,2¢ 11,300,0(
and 2.05% at 12/31/0
0) Variable (2.85% at 12/31/1 4/1/201¢ 11,182,7¢ 11,400,0(
and 2.8% at 12/31/0 30,901,6C 31,822,31
Fortress Credit Cory p) Variable (10.75% at 12/31/1 3/5/201: 86,722,8€ 83,524,8:
and 5.98% at 12/31/0
First National Bank of Omaha g) Variable (5.5% at 12/31/10 7/31/201.: 18,774,41 20,400,0(
and 5.5% at 12/31/0
First National Bank of Omar g) Variable (5.25% at 12/31/1 7/1/201: 15,588,57 16,081,6:
and 5.25% at 12/31/0
First National Bank of Omaha q) Variable (5.25% at 12/31/10 2/1/201: 8,646,3€ 8,771,8¢
and 5.25% at 12/31/0
Bank of Cascade r) Variable (6.0% at 12/31/1 9/30/201: 12,623,34 12,445,8¢
and 6.0% at 12/31/0
Compass Bank s) Variable (4.5% at 12/31/10 5/17/201¢ 16,492,2¢ 15,657,0/

and 4.5% at 12/31/0




Total lon¢-term debt 400,835,99 404,724,65

Less current portio (147,612,93) (134,370,90)

Total lon¢-term debt, net of current portic $ 253,223,06 $ 270,353,75
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a) In 2004, the Predecessor secured a permanentvitaLehman Brothers Bank secured by 27 of odelsdn the amount of
$88,000,000. The interest rate is fixed at 5.4%the loan matures in January 2012. The monthhcjpal and interest payment is
$535,285. This loan was repaid in full during finst quarter of 2011. See Note 18.

b) In 2005, the Predecessor obtained a permanamtiith ING Investment Management secured by siglhan the amount of
$34,150,000. This loan carries an interest rate & and matures in July 1, 2025, with optionstifierlender to call the note beginning in 2
upon six months prior notice. Proceeds were usedfinance other short and long-term debt reltdetie secured hotels. The monthly
principal and interest payment is $236,843.

c) In 2006, the Predecessor obtained a permanamtigh ING Investment Management secured by natelf in the amount of
$36,600,800. This loan carries an interest rat& B and matures in July 2012. Proceeds weretosadfinance other short and long-term
debt related to the secured hotels. The monthihcimal and interest payment is $243,328.

d) On November 1, 2006, the Predecessor enteredilaan with ING Investment Management. The lvas for construction of the
Residence Inn in Jackson, MS. The loan for $6@@has a fixed rate of 6.61% and a maturity datddowember 1, 2028, with a call option
on November 1, 2013. The monthly principal anéiiest payment is $49,621.

e) On December 22, 2006, the Predecessor entdred ioan with ING Investment Management for thestnuction of the Hilton Garden Inn
in Ft. Collins, CO. The loan was for $8,318,00d &as a fixed rate of 6.34% and matures on JUl12. The monthly principal and interest
is $61,236.

f) On December 8, 2009, the Predecessor enteredwatloans with National Western Life Insuranced&cessor in the amounts of $8,650,
and $5,350,000 to refinance the JP Morgan debh@mvto Scottsdale, AZ hotels. The loans carrxedirate of 8.0% and mature on Janual
2015. The monthly principal and interest paymerg1i25,756.

g) In 2003, the Predecessor entered into a loan@liambers Bank in the amount of $2,100,000 tohase the Aspen Hotel in Ft. Smith,
AR. The loan carries a fixed rate of 6.5% and megtwn June 24, 2012. The monthly principal ater@st payment is $15,644.

h) On June 29, 2009, the Predecessor entered lotmavith Bank of the Ozarks in the amount of 818,000 to fund construction of the hotel
located in Portland, OR. The loan carries a végiaiterest rate of 90 day LIBOR plus 400 basisifsowith a floor of 6.75% and matures on
June 29, 2012. The loan requires interest only gaysnmonthly until 2011. The monthly principal anterest payment thereafter is
approximately $60,840.

i) On March 10, 2009, the Predecessor enteredaitban modification agreement with MetaBank in dineount of $7,450,000 with respect to
the loan secured by the Boise, ID Cambria Suildge loan modification extended the maturity datdtrch 1, 2012. The loan has a variable
interest rate of Prime, with a floor of 5%. Thentidy principal and interest is $30,811.

j) On May 10, 2006, the Predecessor entered itwarawith BNC National Bank in the amount of $7,) 3D to fund construction of tt
Hampton Inn in Ft. Worth, TX. The loan has a fixate of 5.01% and matures on November 1, 201% ridnthly principal and interest
payment is $40,577.

k) On October 1, 2008, the Predecessor enterediltan with BNC National Bank in the amount of4§8),000 to fund the land acquisition

and hotel construction of the Holiday Inn Expressated in Twin Falls, ID. The loan carries a Valgsinterest rate of Prime minus 25 basis
points and matures April 1, 2016. The loan requintéerest only payments monthly.
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[) On July 25, 2006, the Predecessor secured tmd-jgermanent loans from M&I Bank to finance constion of the Cambria Suites and
Hampton Inn in Bloomington, MN. The maximum pripal available was $24,500,000. The variable ister@te loan is based on LIBOR plus
390 basis points. The loans were extended on Deee8i, 2010, with an interest rate floor of 5.08d anature on March 31, 2011 and June
30, 2011. The loan requires interest only paymevasthly. This loan was repaid in full during tlirst quarter of 2011. See Note 18.

m) On April 30, 2007, the Predecessor enteredartan with General Electric Capital Corporatioriie amount of $9,500,000 to fund the
land acquisition on hotel construction located enier, CO. The loan carries a variable interast@fLIBOR plus 175 basis points and
matures April 1, 2018. The monthly principal anterest payment is $53,842.

n) On August 15, 2007, the Predecessor entereailttan with General Electric Capital Corporatinrthe amount of $11,300,000 to fund
construction of the Cambria Suites in Baton Rolide, The loan carries a variable interest rate BBQR plus 180 basis points and matures in
March 2019. The monthly principal and interestmant is $49,709.

0) On February 29, 2008, the Predecessor enteted iloan with General Electric Capital Corporatiorthe amount of $11,400,000 to fund
land acquisition and construction of the hotel tedan San Antonio, TX. The loan carries a vaeablterest rate of 90 day LIBOR plus 255
basis points and matures in April, 2014. The migrphincipal and interest payment is $54,639.

p) On March 5, 2007, the Predecessor closed oaravith Fortress Credit Corporation to refinanae diebt on several construction projects
and provide equity for the acquisition, developrmeemd construction of additional real estate anélhmbperties. The loan is in the amount of
$99,700,000. The note carries a variable intesgstof 30-day LIBOR plus 875 basis points. Théurity date of the note is March 5,

2011. The recent extension was for a period ofyaae, with an option for an additional six mon#temsion contingent on meeting certain
requirements. The loan requires interest only paysonthly. This loan was repaid in full during thirst quarter of 2011. See Note 18.

g) The Predecessor has a credit pool agreemenmtheétFirst National Bank of Omaha providing thed&cessor with medium-term
financing. The agreement allows for two-year iegtonly notes and five-year amortizing noteswfbich the term of an individual note can
extend beyond the term of the agreement. Interesinpaid principal is payable monthly at a rateI&OR plus 4.0% and a floor of between
5.25% and 5.50%. Three notes totaling $18,774ma®&ire on July 31, 2011 and require monthly priakcgnd interest payments of
$130,183. Two notes totaling $15,588,572 requioatly principal and interest payments of $105,868 mature on July 1, 2013. The note
for $8,646,361 requires a monthly principal an@iest payment of $46,072 and matures on Febru&912. This loan was repaid in full
during the first quarter of 2011. See Note 18.

r) On October 3, 2008, the Predecessor enteredhittan with Bank of the Cascades in the amouftl8£270,000 to fund the land acquisition
and hotel construction of the Residence Inn locatéRbrtland, OR. The loan carries a variableragerate of Prime, with a floor of 6%, and
matures September 30, 2011. The loan requiresesitenly payments monthly.

s) On September 17, 2008, the Predecessor enteced ioan with Compass Bank in the amount of @00 to fund the land acquisition
hotel construction of the Courtyard by Marriottdded in Flagstaff, AZ. The loan carries a varidbterest rate of Prime minus 25 basis points,
with a floor of 4.5%, and matures May 17, 2018.e Tten requires interest only payments monthly.

As of December 31, 2010, the Predecessor has dpmtety $147,612,930 in long-term notes due inrteet twelve months, of which
$139,540,812 represents maturing debt and $8,08 2¢fitesents other scheduled principal paymerntte Predecessor intends to pay
scheduled principal payments with available casW from operations. In addition, $126,917,131hef taturing debt was repaid with
proceeds from the initial public offering descridadNote 18. The Predecessor intends to extentethes of the other note for $12,623,347
maturing in the next twelve months.
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Maturities of long-term debt for each of the naxefyears are estimated as follows:

2011 $ 147,612,93
2012 154,587,49
2013 25,493,03
2014 18,998,64
2015 13,103,93
Thereafter 41,039,94

$ 400,835,99

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Predecessorcb@mand 64 properties, respectively, that werdgad as collateral on various credit
agreements, as well as accounts receivable. Sothe afedit agreements were also guaranteed bgffiiated members of the Predecessor
certain affiliated entities. Significant covenairtghe credit agreements require the Predecessoaitatain minimum debt service coverage
ratios. The weighted average interest rate fdo@ltowings was 5.70% and 5.40% at December 310 288l 2009, respectively.

NOTE 12 - LINES OF CREDIT AND NOTES PAYABLE

The Predecessor has a line-of-credit agreementthétirirst National Bank of Omaha providing thed@messor with shoterm financing up t
$28,200,000 on a revolving basis. Interest on ichpancipal is payable monthly at a rate equdl#BOR plus 4.0%, with a floor of 5.5%. T
amount of outstanding on this line-of-credit wa9 $01,215 and $21,457,943 at December 31, 201Q@0@, respectively, which also
represents the maximum amount of borrowings dutiegyear. This line-of-credit was repaid in fulirthg the first quarter of 2011. See Note
18.

NOTE 13- MEMBERS’ EQUITY

The Predecessor was formed on January 8, 2004pédfied in the Predecessor’'s Operating AgreentieatPredecessor has four classes of
membership capital units authorized: Class A, 8 &nd C.

On October 21, 2008, the Predecessor issued a itfemrifal Private Placement Memorandum” (PPM) far lurpose of offering additional
equity interests to investors. The PPM offereda$100,000,000 of Class A-1 membership units. if@uthe period ended December 31,
2008, the Predecessor issued 63.25 units in caonewith this offering. The Predecessor receivestpeds of the offering (net of expenses
$5,614,466. For the period ended December 319,288 Predecessor issued 241.33 units in conmewitb the offering. The Predecessor
received proceeds of the offering (net of expense$22,123,951. The offering closed on OctoberZm9.

NOTE 14 - FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS

The Predecessor operates hotels under franchiseragnts with various hotel companies expiring tgho2025. The franchise agreements are
for 3-20 year terms. Under the franchise agreemémsPredecessor pays royalties of 2.5% to 5.086ah revenues and national advertising
and media fees of 3% to 4% of total room revenues.

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 ar@] #@dPredecessor incurred royalties of $6,081,85,402,948 and $6,172,495,
respectively, and advertising and national medés & $8,905,928, $8,134,854 and $8,741,272, résphc
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The franchise agreements include restrictions ertrdmsfer of the franchise licenses and the sdkage of the hotel properties without prior
written consent of the franchisor.

NOTE 15 - BENEFIT PLANS

The Predecessor has a qualified contributory reérg plan (the Plan), under Section 401(k) of titerhal Revenue Code which covers all full-
time employees who meet certain eligibility reqoients. Voluntary contributions may be made to tlam By employees. Discretionary
matching Predecessor contributions of $69,385 wexde in the year ended December 31, 2008. Thewlarthanged to a Safe Harbor Plan
effective for the 2008 calendar year. This Plajuiees a mandatory employer contribution. Thereftiie Predecessor accrued $137,135 for
employer contributions for the 2008 calendar y€ekre plan was converted back to a discretionargmdtiring the fourth quarter

2009. Therefore, the employer contributions expdosthe years ended December 31, 2010 and 208%@and $116,020.

NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Predecessor leases land for two of its Ft.tSpritperties under the terms of operating grouaddeagreements expiring August 2022 and
May 2030. The Predecessor has options to reneleaises for periods that range from 5-30 years Hitedecessor also has a prepaid land
lease on the Portland hotels with a remaining lwaari $3,588,195 on December 31, 2010. This leapies in June 2084. Total rent expense
for these three leases for the years ended Dece3tb@010, 2009 and 2008 was $229,394, $321,9182886,549, respectively.

Approximate future minimum rental payments for remoelable operating leases in excess of one yeasdiollows:

2011 $ 233,35
2012 237,42¢
2013 241 ,62:
2014 245,94¢
2015 250,40:
Thereaftel 6,475,34:

$ 7,684,09:

NOTE 17 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a management agreement, The Summip@rau (a related party through common ownershiph management control) provides
management and accounting services for the PrestceShe agreement provides for the Predecesseirtdourse The Summit Group, Inc. for
its actual overhead costs and expenses relatitiget;managing of the hotel properties. Pursuatitdananagement agreement, at no time will
the reimbursed management expenses exceed 4.5%audlayross revenues. For the periods ended Dexe®ih 2010, 2009 and 2008, the
Predecessor paid reimbursed management expen$8s348,065, $2,894,078 and $4,186,593, respectiaaly reimbursed accounting servi
of $651,125, $589,012 and $626,685, respectivEhe Predecessor also reimbursed for maintenancpuantasing services of $269,623,
$530,457 and $641,526, for the periods ended DeeeBih 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. Thepereses are reflected within general,
selling and administrative expenses in the accoripgrstatements of operations. At December 310201 2009, the Predecessor had
accounts payable of $383,365 and $252,113, respégctio The Summit Group, Inc. The Predecessongaremove The Summit Group, Inc.
as its manager except for cause as specified iagfteement. The management agreement was assigifése Summit Group, Inc. to a third-
party hotel management company during the firsttguaf 2011 in connection with the Reorganizafloansaction discussed in Note 18 be
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As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Predecessloadtounts payable to The Summit Group, Inc. 3&7$701 and $242,135 relating to
reimbursement and development expenses, respgctiVbe Predecessor reimbursed The Summit Grogpfdndevelopment expenses in the
amount of $0 and $1,300,000 for the years ende@mber 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

In 2008, the Predecessor issued a private placememirandum (PPM) for the purpose of offering adddl equity interests to

investors. Summit Capital Partners, LLC (SCPklated party through common ownership and managecoatrol, brokered securities
related to the PPM for the company. For the yaded December 31, 2008, capital contributions ¢38%,000 (cash proceeds received net of
expenses equaled $5,614,466) was raised with thetarsce of SCP. Commission expense paid to SCiRdg/ear ended December 31, 2008
was $206,625. For the year ended December 31, 2ap8al contributions of $24,133,000 (cash prdsaeceived net of expenses equaled
$22,123,951) was raised with the assistance of SGPnmission expense paid to SCP for the year ebdegmber 31, 2009 was $570,600.

NOTE 18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 14, 2011, Summit Hotel Properties, (t&HP Inc.”) closed its initial public offeringt{e “IPO”) of 26,000,000 shares of common
stock and its concurrent private placement to éilisaé of InterContinental Hotels Group (“IHG") df,274,000 shares of common stock.

Effective February 14, 2011, SHP OP and the Predeceompleted the merger of the Predecessor witlirdio SHP OP (the “Merger”). At
the effective time of the Merger, the outstandingsS A, Class A-1, Class B and Class C memberstépasts in the Predecessor were
converted into, and cancelled in exchange forta td 9,993,992 common units of limited partnepsimterest in SHP OP (“Common Units”),
and the members of the Predecessor were admitledites] partners of SHP OP. Also effective Febyui4, 2011, The Summit Group, Inc.
contributed its 36% Class B membership intere&dattsdale to SHP OP in exchange for 74,829 Comudmits and an unaffiliated third-party
investor contributed its 15% Class C membershigradt in Scottsdale to SHP OP in exchange for 31Cilimmon Units.

For accounting and financial reporting purposes,Rredecessor is considered the acquiror in thgéleAs a result, the historical consolida
financial statements of the Predecessor will begmted as the historical consolidated financiaéstants of SHP Inc. and SHP OP after
completion of the Merger and the contributionshef Class B and C membership interests in Scottsd&@elP OP (collectively, the
“Reorganization Transaction”).

As a result of the Reorganization Transaction, $ttPacquired, through SHP OP and its subsidiasiel&, ownership of the 65 hotels in its
initial portfolio. In addition, SHP Inc., througH® OP and its subsidiaries, assumed the liabilitietuding indebtedness, of the Predecessor
and its subsidiaries.

Net proceeds received by SHP Inc. and SHP OP fhentRO and the concurrent private placement weB8826,995, after deducting t

underwriting discount related to the IPO of $17,080 and the payment of organization and offerixgeases of approximately
$8,880,000. SHP Inc. contributed the net proceédse IPO and the concurrent private placeme®H® OP in exchange for Common Units.
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As of March 31, 2011, SHP, Inc. had used an agteegfeapproximately $232.5 million of the net preds of the IPO and the concurrent
private placement as follows:
e approximately $227.2 million to reduce outstandimgrtgage indebtedness and pay associated costdloass:
o approximately $89.3 million to repay in full a loaith Fortress Credit Corp., including approximgt$2.1 million of exit
fees, interest and legal fet
o approximately $78.2 million to repay in falloan originally made by Lehman Brothers Bankluding approximately
$1.4 million to pay an extinguishment premium attteo transaction cost
0 approximately $21.4 million to repay in full twodos with Marshall & Isley Bank; ar
0 approximately $38.3 million to repay in full twodos with First National Bank of Omaha; ¢
e approximately $5.3 million to fund a capital exp#uark reserve account under the hotel managemeeérent with Interstat

NOTE 19 - SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNA UDITED)
Selected consolidated quarterly financial datai{ousands, except per unit amounts) for 2010, 20@02008 is summarized below. The sum

of the quarterly earnings (loss) per unit amouray mot equal the annual earnings per unit amourgspdmarily to changes in the number of
common units and common unit equivalents outstanfiiom quarter to quarter.
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Three Months Ende

Year Endec
3/31 6/30 9/30 12/31 12/31
2010:
Total revenue 31,36: $ 35,84¢ % 37,60 $ 30,82: $ 135,63!
Net income (loss) from continuir
operations (3,409 (1,999 (1,257 (14,065 (20,719
Net income (loss) before income ta; (3,409 (1,999¢) (1,25)) (14,06%) (20,719
State income tax (expense) ben (152) (76) (45) 71 (202)
Net income (loss) attributable to SHP LI (3,556¢) $ (2,079 $ (1,29%) $ (13,999 $ (20,92()
Net income (loss) per uni (1,919 $ 1,119 $ 697) $ (7,520 $ (11,257
2009:
Total revenue 29,30: $ 31,29: $ 32,21 $ 28,39 $ 121,20(
Net income (loss) from continuir
operations (1,699 (1,619 (6,919 (7,549 (17,779
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic 104 1,697 (33€) - 1,46¢
Net income (loss) before income ta (1,599 78 (7,250 (7,54¢) (16,31
State income tax (expense) ben - - 20 (20 -
Net income (loss (1,599 78 (7,230 (7,56¢) (16,31
Net income (loss) attributable
noncontrolling interes (123) (63) 39¢ (207) -
Net income (loss) attributable to SHP LI (1,470 $ 141 % (7,629 $ (7,360) $ (16,319
Net income (loss) per uni (894 $ 82 $ (4,427 $ (4,159 $ (9,397
2008:
Total revenue 32,38. % 35,65¢ $ 38,01¢ $ 29,15 $ 135,10°
Net income (loss) from continuir
operations 45¢ 2,68¢ 5,331 (4,477) 4,011
Income (loss) from discontinued operati 29C 1,751 8,04¢ 18¢ 10,27¢
Net income (loss) before income ta; 74¢ 4,43¢ 13,38t (4,289 14,28¢
State income tax (expense) ben - (309) (895) 37¢ (82€)
Net income (loss 74¢ 4,13( 12,49( (3,906 13,46
Net income (loss) attributable
noncontrolling interes 244 73 (15§) 22t 384
Net income (loss) attributable to SHP LI 50t $ 4,057 $ 12,64¢ $ (4,137 $ 13,07¢
Net income (loss) per uni 328 $ 2,60¢ $ 8,13t $ (2,657 $ 8,41:
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(in thousands)

Initial Cost Total Cost
Cost Total Cost
Capitalized Net of
Year Subsequent Accumulated Mortgage
Acquired/ Building & to Building & Accumulated Depreciation  Debt
Location Franchise Constructed Land Improvements Acquisition Land Improvements Total Depreciation Allocated
Atlanta, GA Hyatt Place 2006 $ 1,15 % 9,6C $ 293 $ 1,15 % 12,54 $ 13,69 $ (3,07 $ 10,62 $ 13,65
Baton Rouge, L/ Cambria Suite 2008 1,101 14,06 3 1,100 14,10 15,20 (1,82¢ 13,37 13,05
Baton Rouge, L/ Fairfield Inn by Marrioti 2004 34! 3,058 35 34! 3,41 3,75 (2,122 2,63 1,85
Baton Rouge, LA SpringHill Suites by 2004 44 3,72 57 44 4,3C 4,75 (1,382 3,36 2,14
Marriott
Baton Rouge, L/ TownePlace Suite 2004 25! 3,74 58 25! 4,33 4,58 (1,44¢ 3,14 2,74
Bellevue, WA Fairfield Inn by Marriott 2004 2,70! 12,94 41 2,70! 13,36 16,06 (3,231 12,83 9,35
Bloomington, MN Cambria Suite 2007 1,65i 14,07 1 1,65 14,08 15,74 (2,36( 13,38 10,46
Bloomington, MN Hampton Inr 2007 1,65! 14,59 4 1,65! 14,63 16,29 (2,45¢ 13,84 13,17
Boise, ID Fairfield Inn by Marriott 2004 56 2,87 14 56 3,01 3,58 (89: 2,68 2,68
Boise, ID Hampton Inr 2004 59 3,29 1,34 1,33 3,9C 5,23 (1,05( 4,18 2,92
Boise, ID Holiday Inn Expres: 2005 1,03i 2,42 78l 2,68 3,46 (95( 2,51 2,45
Boise, ID Cambria Suite 2007 1,93 10,96 (33¢ 1,29 11,26 12,56/ (3,26¢ 9,30 11,70
Charleston, W\ Country Inn & Suite: 2004 1,04: 3,48 38 1,04: 3,87 4,91 (2,11z 3,80 3,04
Charleston, W\ Comfort Suites 2004 90’ 2,9C 35 90 3,2€ 4,16 (98¢ 3,18 2,68
Denver, CC Fairfield Inn by Marrioti 2004 1,561 6,78 26 1,561 7,04 8,61 (2,037 6,57 5,80
Denver, CO SpringHill Suites by 2007 1,071 11,07 3 1,071 11,11 12,18 (1,867 10,31 10,36
Marriott
Denver, CC Hampton Inr 2004 1,12! 3,67 69 1,12! 4,37 5,50 (1,75¢ 3,74 5,06
El Paso, TX Hampton Inr 2005 2,05! 10,74 1,11 2,05! 11,85 13,91 (3,671 10,24 7,65
Emporia, KS Fairfield Inn by Marrioti 2004 32( 2,43 10 32 2,53 2,85 (79 2,05 1,31
Emporia, KS Holiday Inn Expres: 2004 29; 2,84 34 29: 3,18 3,47 (91t 2,55 1,73
Flagstaff, AZ Courtyard by Marriot 2009 3,35 20,78 - 3,35 20,78 24,13 (1,362 22,77 22,17
Flagstaff, AZ SpringHill Suites by 2008 1,39 9,35 4,84 1,39 14,18 15,59 (1,78¢ 13,80 8,57
Marriott
Ft. Collins, CC Hampton Inr 2004 73 4,36 18 73 4,58 5,29 (1,281 4,00 2,56
Ft. Collins, CC  Hilton Garden Inr 2007 1,301 11,8C 5 1,300 11,85 13,15 (2,65¢ 10,49 10,83
Ft. Myers, FL Hyatt Place 2009 3,60:i 16,58 - 3,60! 16,58 20,19 (1,41¢ 18,77 5,04
Ft. Smith, AR Comfort Inn 2004 - 3,71 23 - 3,98 3,95 (1,10¢ 2,85 2,86
Ft. Smith, AR Aspen Hote 2004 22. 3,18 49 22. 3,68 3,90 (1,50¢ 2,40 1,59
Ft. Smith, AR Hampton Inr 2005 - 12,4C 78 - 13,18 13,18 (3,08( 10,10 8,67
Ft. Wayne, IN Hampton Inr 2006 78l 6,56 65 78I 7,21 8,00 (1,75¢ 6,24 4,86
Ft. Wayne, IN Residence Inn by Marrio 2006 9L 6,73 60 91 7,34 8,25 (1,69 6,56 6,53
Ft. Worth, TX Hampton Inr 2007 1,501 8,18 3 1,501 8,21 9,71 (1,591 8,12 8,16
Ft. Worth, TX Comfort Suites 2004 55. 2,69 42 55! 3,12 3,67 (957 2,71 1,13
Germantown, TN Courtyard by Marriot 2005 1,861 5,44 80 1,86 6,24 8,10 (1,78t 6,32 6,75
Germantown, TN Fairfield Inn by Marriott 2005 76 2,7C 35 76 3,08 3,82 (89¢ 2,92 2,32
Germantown, TN Residence Inn by Marrio 2005 1,08: 5,2C 56 1,08: 5,7€ 6,84 (1,52¢ 5,31 3,55
Jackson, M¢ Courtyard by Marriot 2005 1,30: 7,32 81 1,30 8,12 9,43 (2,381 7,05 8,83
Jackson, M¢ Staybridge Suite 2007 69! 8,45 9 69i 8,55 9,25 (1,33c 7,92 10,02
Jacksonville, FL  Aloft 2009 1,701 15,77 - 1,701 15,77 17,47 (1,24¢ 16,22 16,70
Lakewood, CC Fairfield Inn by Marrioti 2004 52. 2,43 15 52 2,58 3,10 (83t 2,27 1,05
Lakewood, CC  Comfort Suites 2004 54 2,41 11 54 2,52 3,07 (75: 2,32 1,06
Las Colinas, Tx Hyatt Place 2007 78: 5,72 1,66 78. 7,3¢ 8,17 (2,101 6,07 7,77
Las Colinas, Tx Holiday Inn Expres: 2007 91. 6,68 1,58 89i 8,2¢ 9,18 (2,112 7,07 11,13
Lewisville, TX Fairfield Inn by Marriott 2004 46! 2,95 40 46! 3835 3,81 (2,03« 2,78 2,24
Lithia Springs, GA SpringHill Suites by 2004 48l 3,57 42 48l 3,9¢ 4,47 (1,35¢ 3,12
Marriott
Little Rock, AR SpringHill Suites by 2004 87! 3,43 37 87! 3,8C 4,68 (1,341 3,34 2,74
Marriott
Medford, OR Hampton Inr 2004 1,23 4,78 45 1,23 5,24 6,47 (1,38¢ 5,09 4,03
Memphis, TN Courtyard by Marriot 2005 68! 5,81 (532 54 5,42 5,96 (1,63¢ 4,32 4,23
Missoula, MT Comfort Inn 2004 69! 2,67 10 69! 2,77 3,46 (751 2,71 2,02
Missoula, MT Courtyard by Marriot 2005 65l 5,78 ) 65! 5,83 6,48 (1,92 4,56 4,92
Nashville, TN SpringHill Suites by 2004 7 3,57 43 77 4,01 4,78 (1,388 3,40 2,44
Marriott
Portland, OF Hyatt Place 2009 - 16,71 - - 16,71 16,71 (2,19 15,52 11,88
Portland, OF Residence Inn by Marrio 2009 - 16,4C - - 16,40 16,40 (1,18: 15,22 15,66
Provo, UT Hampton Inr 2004 90! 2,86 33 90! 3,2C 4,11 (1,03¢ 3,07 1,90
Ridgeland, M< Residence Inn by Marrio 2007 1,05 10,04 1,05! 10,04 11,09 (2,10¢ 8,99 8,14
Salina, KS Comfort Inn 2004 98 1,65 7 98 1,72 2,71 (54: 2,16 1,73
Salina, KS Fairfield Inn by Marrioti 2004 49! 1,74 11 49 1,85 2,35 (641 1,71 2,03
San Antonio, TX Cambria Suite 2008 2,49 12,83 - 2,49 12,83 15,33 (2,711 13,61 15,53
Sandy, UT Holiday Inn Expres: 2004 72! 1,7€ 95 721 2,71 3,43 (1,022 2,41 2,49
Scottsdale, Az Courtyard by Marriot 2004 3,22! 10,15 69 3,22! 10,84 14,06 (3,44¢ 10,62 8,42
Scottsdale, AZ  SpringHill Suites by 2004 2,19 7,12 52 2,19! 7,64 9,84. (2,40¢ 7,43 5,20
Marriott
Spokane, W£ Fairfield Inn by Marriott 2004 1,63 3,66 27 1,63 3,94 5,58 (1,222 4,35 3,29
Twin Falls, ID Comfort Inn & Suites 2004 82 7,47 92 82 8,3¢ 9,22 (2,231 6,98 6,26
Twin Falls, ID Holiday Inn Expres: 2009 1,21 7,46 1,21 7,4€ 8,68 (93¢ 7,74 8,19

Twin Falls, ID Hampton Inr 2004 71 3,48 5 71 3,53 4,24 (1,261 2,98 3,74



Vernon Hills, IL  Holiday Inn Expres: 2005 1,19 6,09 1,12 1,19: 7,22 8,42 (2,701 6,71 4,84
Land Parcels 19,91: - 38 20,29! - 20,29 - 20,29 22,29
$89,81: $ 449,93 $ 31,06 $89,88 $ 480,92 $570,80 $ (104,79¢ $ 466,01 $420,43
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TION

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

ASSET BASIS

Balance at January 1, 200t

Additions to land, buildings and improveme
Disposition of land, buildings and improveme
Impairment loss

Balance at December 31, 20C
Additions to land, buildings and improveme

Disposition of land, buildings and improveme
Impairment los:

Balance at December 31, 20C
Additions to land, buildings and improveme

Disposition of land, buildings and improveme
Impairment los:

Balance at December 31, 201

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Balance at January 1, 200t
Depreciation for the period ended December 31, :
Depreciation on assets sold or disposed

Balance at December 31, 20C

Depreciation for the period ended December 31, :
Depreciation on assets sold or disposed

Balance at December 31, 20C

Depreciation for the period ended December 31, :
Depreciation on assets sold or dispc

Balance at December 31, 201

Total
$ 469,627,12
74,999,09
(23,370,89)

$521,25533_
67,841,53
(6,989,15)
!7,505,83'2
$574,601,87
2,769,87!
(88,790)
!6,475,682
$570,807,27_

Total
$ 43,132,92
20,431,25
(4,203,11)
$ 59,361,06
21,902,72
(1,655,83)
$ 79,607,95
~ 2523452
45,977
$104,796,50_

The aggregrate cost of land, buildings, furnitund aquipment for Federal income tax purposes ixamately $557 million

Depreciation is computed based upon the followiseful lives:

Buildings and improvements-40 years
Furniture and equipme-15 years

The Company has mortgages payable on the propegiested. Additional mortgage information candenfl in Note 1:

to the consoldiated financial statemel




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. as ofebdwer 31, 2010. This consolidated
financial statement is the responsibility of thenfp@any’s management. Our responsibility is to expeesopinion on this consolidated financial
statement based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the consalidatance sheet is free of material
misstatement. An audit of a balance sheet alsodes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppdttamamounts and disclosures in that
balance sheet, assessing the accounting principxsand significant estimates made by managem&ntell as evaluating the overall balance
sheet presentation. We believe that our audit®ttnsolidated balance sheet provides a reasobasite for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheetmedeto above presents fairly, in all material exgp, the financial position of Summit Hotel
Properties, Inc. as of December 31, 2010 in conitgrmith U.S. generally accepted accounting pritesp

/s | KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 31, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Partners
Summit Hotel OP, LP:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of Summit Hotel OP, LP as of DecembeR@10. This consolidated financial
statement is the responsibility of the Partnershipanagement. Our responsibility is to expressp@man on this consolidated financial
statement based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@iq@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbtaasonable assurance about whether the balaeetisliree of material misstatement. An
audit of a balance sheet also includes examining st basis, evidence supporting the amountslianbbsures in that balance sheet, asse
the accounting principles used and significantesties made by management, as well as evaluatirayérall balance sheet presentation. We
believe that our audit of the balance sheet prevadeeasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheetmedeto above presents fairly, in all material exgp, the financial position of Summit Hotel
OP, LP as of December 31, 2010 in conformity wit Lenerally accepted accounting principles.

/s | KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 31, 2011
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Shee
December 31, 201!

Assets

Cash and total assets $ 1,00(

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities $ —

Stockholders' Equity
Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share; 1,00@s

authorized, issued and outstand 10
Additional paid in capita 99(
Retained Earning —

Total Stockholders' Equit 1,00(
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equ $ 1,00(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbeasolidated financial statements.
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Summit Hotel OP, LP
Consolidated Balance Shee
December 31, 201!

Assets

Cash and total assets $ 10C

Liabilities and Partners' Equity

Liabilities $ —
Partners' Equity
General Partner's Equi 1
Limited Partners' Equit 99
Retained Earnings —
Total Partners' Equity 10C
Total Liabilities and Partners' Equity $ 10C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUMMIT HOTEL OP, LP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 1 — Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) isedf-advised hotel investment company that wasrdega on June 30, 2010 as a Maryland
corporation to own, through both general and lichppartner interests, Summit Hotel OP, LP (the “@geg Partnership”), a Delaware limited
partnership also organized on June 30, 2010. ®rukey 14, 2011, the Company closed on its ingigblic offering (“IPO”) of 26,000,000
shares of common stock and a concurrent privatepiant of 1,234,000 shares of common stock. Effedtebruary 14, 2011, Summit Hotel
Properties, LLC (the “Predecessor”) was merged waiitth into the Predecessor. At the effective timthefmerger, the outstanding membership
interests in the Operating Partnership were coadertto, and cancelled in exchange for, a tot&®,993,992 common units of limited
partnership interest in the Operating Partnerst@prfhmon Units”). Also effective February 14, 20"he Summit Group, the parent company
of the Predecessor, contributed its 36% Class B leeship interest in Summit of Scottsdale to ther@jixreg Partnership in exchange for
74,829 Common Units, and an unaffiliated third-pamivestor contributed its 15% Class C memberghigrest in Summit of Scottsdale to the
Operating Partnership in exchange for 31,179 Combmits. Net proceeds received from the offeringev@247,306,995. These proceeds v
used to pay IPO related expenses of approxima8B8H,000, debt of the Predecessor of approxim&@i,559,215, and $3,692,550 of
expenses related to the payoff/prepayment of thddtessor’s debt, with the remainder used for tipgreapital or necessary capital
improvements. The Predecessor’s real estate ineastportfolio consists of 65 upscale and midscateout food and beverage hotels with a
total of 6,533 guestrooms located in small, micdkdiand suburban markets throughout the United Sitate9 states. The hotels will be leased
to the Operating Partnership’s wholly owned taxa®d T subsidiary, Summit Hotel TRS, Inc. (“TRS LesgY, a Delaware corporation, and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

The Company has had no operations since its orgtoiz
Note 2 — Income Taxes

The Company intends to elect and qualify as agstte investment trust, or REIT, under SectioriseéBt 859 of the Internal Revenue Code,
as amended, commencing with the taxable year erdegmber 31, 2011. Under the Code, REITs areesuty) numerous organizational and
operational requirements, including a requiremertistribute at least 90% its taxable income. dneyal, a REIT meeting those requirements
will not be subject to federal income tax to théeax of the income it distributes. The Company rs@li/be subject to state and local taxes on
its income, and to federal income tax on our unithisted income. Additionally, any income earnedooy TRS Lessee, a taxable C-
corporation, will be fully subject to federal, ®atnd local corporate income tax. If the Compailg to qualify as a REIT, the Company will
be subject to federal income tax on its taxablernme at regular corporate rates.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibit

3.1° Articles of Amendment and Restatement of SummiteHBtoperties, Inc

3.2 Certificate of Limited Partnership of Summit Ho@P, LP, as amended (incorporated by reference hibE8.1 to
Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Fc-A filed by Summit Hotel OP, LP on February 11, 2D

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Summit Hotel Prégserinc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit & 2mendment No.
to Registration Statement on Fori-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Novenf, 2010

3.4 First Amended and Restated Agreement of Loifartnership of Summit Hotel OP, LP, dated Felyradr 2011
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Catiieeport on Form 8-K filed by Summit Hotel Proest Inc. on
February 18, 2011

4.1 Specimen certificate of common stock of Suntteitel Properties, Inc. (incorporated by referetacExhibit 4.1 to
Amendment No. 5 to Registration Statement on Fc-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Feloyua 2011)

10.1 Form of Transition Services Agreement between Tirar8it Group, Inc. and Summit Hotel OP, LP (incomded by referen:
to Exhibit 10.27 to Amendment No. 4 to Registratitatement on Form S-11 filed by Summit Hotel Pries, Inc. on
January 28, 2011)

10.2 Tax Protection Agreement, dated February 10, 2Bé&tlyeen Summit Hotel OP, LP and The Summit Groog, (incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report onnfr &-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaBs, 2011)*

10.3 Transition Services Agreement, dated February @41 2between Summit Hotel OP, LP and The Summitu@rinc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Catiieeport on Form 8-K filed by Summit Hotel Propest Inc. on
February 18, 2011

104 Amended and Restated Hotel Management Agreemeset] &&&bruary 14, 2011, among Interstate Manage@emipany.
LLC and the subsidiaries of Summit Hotel Properties. party thereto (incorporated by referenc&xaibit 10.4 to Current
Report on Form-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Febryu&B, 2011}

10.5 Loan Modification Agreement, dated February 14,2@&mong Summit Hotel Properties, LLC, Summit H@#&, LP and Gl
Commercial Capital of Utah LLC (loan in the origimaincipal amount of $11.4 million) (incorporatéeg reference to Exhibit
10.5 to Current Report on Forr-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebguaB, 2011’

10.6 Loan Moadification Agreement, dated February 14,2@&mong Summit Hotel Properties, LLC, Summit H@#&, LP and Gl
Commercial Capital of Utah LLC (loan in the origimaincipal amount of $9.5 million) (incorporateg keference to Exhibit
10.6 to Current Report on Forr-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebguaB, 2011’

10.7 Loan Modification Agreement, dated Februaty2011, among Summit Hotel Properties, LLC, Suntoitel OP, LP and GE
Commercial Capital of Utah LLC (loan in the origimaincipal amount of $11.3 million) (incorporatéeg reference to Exhibit
10.7 to Current Report on Forr-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebguaB, 2011’

10.8 Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 20dtlveen Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and KerryBdekelheide
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Catiieeport on Form 8-K filed by Summit Hotel Propest Inc. on
February 18, 2011)

10.9 Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 20dtlveen Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Daridansen (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Current Report onnfr &-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaB, 2011)*

10.10 Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, detvBummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Craig J. 2ewsski
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to @atReport on Form 8-K filed by Summit Hotel Prdjees, Inc. on
February 18, 2011)

10.11 Employment Agreement, dated February 141 2Bdtween Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. and SthaBecker (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Current Reporfonm ¢-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaB, 2011)*

10.12 Employment Agreement, dated February 14, 2011, dmtvSummit Hotel Properties, Inc. and Ryan A. Bmit(incorporatec

by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Current Reporfonm ¢-K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaB, 2011)*
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10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20t
10.21
10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

211
21.2
23.17

23.2t
3111

Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. 2011 Equityeimtive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibitLl3 to Current Report on
Form &K filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on FebruaB, 2011)*

Form of Indemnification Agreement betweem8iit Hotel Properties, Inc. and each of its Exeaifficers and Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Ahrient No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form $dd by Summit
Hotel Properties, Inc. on November 1, 20

Loan Agreement between Summit Hotel ProgertiLC and ING Life Insurance and Annuity Compaiayed December 23,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18moendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on F&riri filed by
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on September 23, 2

Loan Agreement between Summit Hotel ProgertiLC and ING Life Insurance and Annuity Compatgted June 15, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Ahrment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form $tdd by Summit
Hotel Properties, Inc. on September 23, 2(

First Modification of Loan Agreement betwemmit Hotel Properties, LLC and ING Life Insurarand Annuity Company,
dated April 24, 2007 (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.17 to Amendment No. 1 to Registratioat8&ment on Form S-11
filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Septemibir2010;

Modification of Promissory Note and Loan Agreemeetween Summit Hotel Properties, LLC and ING Lifisdrance an
Annuity Company, dated November 28, 2007 (incorfaatdy reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Amendment Nto Registration
Statement on Form-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Sepdtem23, 2010
Construction Loan Agreement between Summit HotepPrties, LLC and Compass Bank, dated Septemb&00B, (loan ir
the original principal amount of $19.25 millionp¢orporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to AmeedhiNo. 1 to
Registration Statement on Forr-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Segdtem23, 2010
Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement (Gedi) between Summit Hotel Properties, LLC andtRiational Bank
of Omaha entered into August 19, 2(

Form of Option Award Agreement (incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 10.6 to Amendment No. Ragistration Statement
on Form &11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Segtem23, 2010)’

Form of Lease Agreement between Summit HoReILP and TRS Lessee (incorporated by referen&shibit 10.4 to
Amendment No. 2 to Registration Statement on Fc-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Novemnt, 2010
Sourcing Agreement between Six Continents Hotel, kivb/a InterContinental Hotels Group, and Sunthoitel Properties
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2@8taendment No. 3 to Registration Statement on F&iri filed by Summit
Hotel Properties, Inc. on December 3, 20
Form of Severance Agreement between Summit Hotgdd?ties, Inc. and Christopher R. Eng (incorpordtedeference ti
Exhibit 10.12 to Amendment No. 1 to Registratioat&ment on Form S-11 filed by Summit Hotel Progsttinc. on
September 23, 2010

Form of Severance Agreement between SumatélProperties, Inc. and JoLynn M. Sorum (incogped by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to Amendment No. 1 to Registratioat&ment on Form S-11 filed by Summit Hotel Progsttinc. on
September 23, 2010
List of Subsidiaries of Summit Hotel Propestilnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2b. Amendment No. 4 to
Registration Statement on Forr-11 filed by Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. on Jaguz8, 2011
List of Subsidiaries of Summit Hotel OP, LP (incorated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Amendment N Registratiol
Statement on Form-11 filed by Summit Hotel OP, LP on September 23,0\

Consent of KPMG LLF
Consent of Eide Bailly LL}

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Sumntitotel Properties, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14f}/14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z
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31.2t
31.3%
31.4%
321t
32.2t
32.3t

32.4%

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit It Properties, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)}156), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Sumntitotel OP, LP pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14s)adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HatOP, LP pursuant to Rule 1-14(a)/15+14(a), as adopted pursuant
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Summit HdtProperties, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sect@B0]l as adopted pursui
to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit k& Properties, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®s0, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Summit kb OP, LP pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350dapt@d pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Summit HatOP, LP pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, aptad pursuant t
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent.
T Filed herewith.
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Exhibit 3.1

SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC.

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT

FIRST: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., a Maryland cogiimm, desires to amend and restate its chartenrasntly in effec
and as hereinafter amended.

SECOND: The provisions of the charter of Summit Hotebarties, Inc., which are now in effect and as afedrhereby i
accordance with the Maryland General Corporatiow,Laxre as follows:

ARTICLE |
INCORPORATION

Christopher R. Eng, whose address is ¢/o0 The Sum@matp, Inc., 2701 South Minnesota Avenue, Suit&iéux Falls
South Dakota 57105, being at least 18 years offagegd a corporation under the general laws ofStade of Maryland on June 30, 2010.

ARTICLE Il
NAME
The name of the corporation is Summit Hotel Praggrinc. (the “Corporation”).

ARTICLE llI

PURPOSE
The purposes for which the Corporation is formezltarengage in any lawful act or activity (incluglinvithout limitation o
obligation, engaging in business as a REIT (asih&fter defined) under the Internal Revenue Cod&386, as amended, or any succe
statute (the “Code”)jor which corporations may be organized under #gegal laws of the State of Maryland as now or &féee in force. Fc

purposes of the charter of the Corporation (thedi@r”), “REIT” means a real estate investment trust under Se@mdshrough 860 of ti
Code.




ARTICLE IV
PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN MARYLAND AND RESIDENT AGENT

The address of the principal office of the Corporain the State of Maryland is c/o The Corporafionst Incorporated, 3!
West Camden Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21201. féme and address of the resident agent of theo@iipn in the State of Maryland
The Corporation Trust Incorporated, 351 West Can&teget, Baltimore, Maryland 21201. The resideygrd is a Maryland corporation.

ARTICLE V

PROVISIONS FOR DEFINING, LIMITING
AND REGULATING CERTAIN POWERS OF THE
CORPORATION AND OF THE STOCKHOLDERS AND DIRECTORS

Section 5.1 _Number of DirectorsThe business and affairs of the Corporationl df@imanaged under the direction of
board of directors of the Corporation (the “BoarfdDirectors”). The number of directors of the Corporation initiatihall be two, whic
number may be increased or decreased only by thedBif Directors pursuant to the Bylaws of the @ogtion (the “Bylaws”) but shall neve
be less than the minimum number required by theyMad General Corporation Law, or any successdutgtgthe “MGCL”). The names «
the directors who shall serve until their successoe duly elected and qualify are:

Kerry W. Boekelheide

Daniel P. Hansen




The directors may increase the number of direaads may fill any vacancy, whether resulting fromiacrease in the number of director:
otherwise, on the Board of Directors in the marprerided in the Bylaws.

The Corporation elects, at such time as it becogligible to make the election provided for undect®m 3-804(c) of th
MGCL, that, except as may be provided by the BadrBirectors in setting the terms of any class enies of Preferred Stock (as define:
Section 6.1), any and all vacancies on the Boaidigctors may be filled only by the affirmativetecof a majority of the remaining direct
in office, even if the remaining directors do nonstitute a quorum, and any director elected t@filacancy shall serve for the remainder o
full term of the directorship in which such vacarmmcurred and until his or her successor is dudgted and qualifies.

Section 5.2 Extraordinary Actiongxcept as specifically provided in Section 5édting to removal of directol
and in the last sentence of Article VIII, notwithstling any provision of law permitting or requiriagy action to be taken or approved by
affirmative vote of the holders of shares entittedcast a greater number of votes, any such actiati be effective and valid if declal
advisable by the Board of Directors and taken @rayed by the affirmative vote of holders of shagatitled to cast a majority of all the vc
entitled to be cast on the matter.

Section 5.3 Authorization by BoandStock Issuance The Board of Directors may authorize the isseainorr
time to time of shares of stock of the Corporatidrany class or series, whether now or hereaftérosized, or securities or rights convert
into shares of its stock of any class or seriestihwdr now or hereafter authorized, for such comatd®m as the Board of Directors may dt
advisable (or without consideration in the casa sfock split or stock dividend), subject to suestrictions or limitations, if any, as may be
forth in the Charter or the Bylaws.




Section 5.4 Preemptive Rights ampraisal Rights Except as may be provided by the Board of Diexcir
setting the terms of classified or reclassifiedrebaf stock pursuant to Section 6.4 or as mayreike be provided by a contract approvel
the Board of Directors, no holder of shares of lstoicthe Corporation shall, as such holder, hawe@eemptive right to purchase or subsc
for any additional shares of stock of the Corporatr any other security of the Corporation whitimay issue or sell. Holders of share
stock shall not be entitled to exercise any rigtitan objecting stockholder provided for under& Bl Subtitle 2 of the MGCL.

Section 5.5 Indemnification(a) The Corporation shall have the power, to ti@ximum extent permitted

Maryland law in effect from time to time, to obligaitself to indemnify, and to pay or reimburses@aable expenses in advance of
disposition of a proceeding without requiring alipnehary determination of the ultimate entitlemeatindemnification to, (i) any individu
who is a present or former director or officer log tCorporation or (i) any individual who, whiled&rector or officer of the Corporation anc
the request of the Corporation, serves or has deasea director, officer, partner, trustee, memiyemanager of another corporation, RE
partnership, joint venture, trust, limited liabjlicompany, employee benefit plan or any other en from and against any claim or liabi
to which such person may become subject or which person may incur by reason of his or her selvieay of the foregoing capacities. -
Corporation shall have the power, with the appr@fahe Board of Directors, to provide such indefication and advancement of expense
a person who served a predecessor of the Corporiatiany of the capacities described in (i) or &ijove and to any employee or agent o
Corporation or a predecessor of the Corporation.




(b) The Corporation may, to the fullest extent pigled by law, purchase and maintain insurance dralbef any persc
described in the preceding paragraph against ability which may be asserted against such person.

(c) The indemnification provided herein shall net teeemed to limit the right of the Corporation nolémnify any othe
person for any such expenses to the maximum egtentitted by law, nor shall it be deemed exclusiffany other rights to which any per:
seeking indemnification from the Corporation mayelitled under any agreement, vote of stockholdedisinterested directors, or otherw
both as to action in such person’s official capeaaitd as to action in another capacity while hadinch office.

Section 5.6 Determinations by Boarthhe determination as to any of the following teeg, made in good faith
or pursuant to the direction of the Board of Diogstconsistent with the Charter, shall be final andclusive and shall be binding upon
Corporation and every holder of shares of its stable amount of the net income of the Corporat@rany period and the amount of asse
any time legally available for the payment of desdis, redemption of its stock or the payment oéiottistributions on its stock; the amoun
paidin surplus, net assets, other surplus, annualh@ratet profit, cash flow, funds from operationst assets in excess of capital, undiv
profits or excess of profits over losses on safesseets; the amount, purpose, time of creatiamease or decrease, alteration or cancellati
any reserves or charges and the propriety thevdoéther or not any obligation or liability for wiicsuch reserves or charges shall have
created shall have been paid or discharged); aeypiretation of the terms, preferences, conversionther rights, voting powers or rigt
restrictions, limitations as to dividends or otdestributions, qualifications or terms or conditsoof redemption of any class or series of sto
the Corporation; the fair value, or any sale, hicasked price to be applied in determining the Yailue, of any asset owned or held by
Corporation or of any shares of stock of the Campion; the number of shares of stock of any classedies of the Corporation; any ma
relating to the acquisition, holding and dispositaf any assets by the Corporation; or any othdteneelating to the business and affairs o
Corporation or required or permitted by applicdble, the Charter or Bylaws or otherwise to be daieed by the Board of Directors.




Section 5.7 REIT QualificationThe Board of Directors, without any action bg #tockholders of the Corporati
shall have the authority to cause the Corporatioeléct to qualify for federal income tax treatmasta REIT. Following such election, if
Board of Directors determines that it is no longethe best interests of the Corporation to coritw be qualified as a REIT, the Boart
Directors, without any action by the stockholdefsttee Corporation, may revoke or otherwise terméntite Corporatiors’ REIT electio
pursuant to Section 856(g) of the Code. In addijtihe Board of Directors, without any action by #tockholders of the Corporation, s
have and may exercise, on behalf of the Corporatigthout limitation, the power to determine thaingpliance with any restriction
limitation on stock ownership and transfers sethfan Article VII of the Charter is no longer reged in order for the Corporation to qualify ¢
REIT.

Section 5.8 Removal of DirectorSubject to the rights of holders of one or molesses or series of Prefer
Stock to elect or remove one or more directors, dirgctor, or the entire Board of Directors, mayremoved from office at any time, but o
for cause, and then only by the affirmative votdolders of shares entitled to cast at leastttvirals of all the votes entitled to be cast geng
in the election of directors. For the purposehi paragraph, “causehall mean, with respect to any particular dirgatonviction of a felon
or a final judgment of a court of competent jurididin holding that such director caused demonstrahhterial harm to the Corporation thro
bad faith or active and deliberate dishonesty.




Section 5.9 Advisor Agreement3he Board of Directors may authorize the executind performance by 1
Corporation of one or more agreements with any quersorporation, association, company, trust, @astmp (limited or general) or ott
organization whereby, subject to the supervisich@mtrol of the Board of Directors, any such otperson, corporation, association, comp
trust, partnership (limited or general) or othegamization shall render or make available to thepG@tion managerial, investment, advis
and/or related services, office space and otheicgsr and facilities (including, if deemed advisabl the Board of Directors, the manager
or supervision of the investments of the Corporgtiopon such terms and conditions as may be prdvilesuch agreement or agreem
(including, if deemed fair and equitable by the Bbaf Directors, the compensation payable thereubgéhe Corporation).

ARTICLE VI
STOCK

Section 6.1 Authorized SharesThe Corporation has authority to issue 600,00®,6hares of stock, consisting
500,000,000 shares of Common Stock, $0.01 par yushare (“Common Stock'@and 100,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $0.0%ghae
per share (“Preferred Stock”The aggregate par value of all authorized sharesock having par value is $6,000,000. If shafesne class ¢
stock are classified or reclassified into shareswodther class of stock pursuant to Section 62,06.6.4 of this Article VI, the number
authorized shares of the former class shall benaaiioally decreased and the number of shares ofater class shall be automatici
increased, in each case by the number of sharelassified or reclassified, so that the aggregataber of shares of stock of all classes the
Corporation has authority to issue shall not beentban the total number of shares of stock set fiorthe first sentence of this paragraph.
Board of Directors, with the approval of a majority the entire Board of Directors, and without aastion by the stockholders of -
Corporation, may amend the Charter from time tcetbmincrease or decrease the aggregate numbbaiEssof stock or the number of sh,
of stock of any class or series that the Corponatias authority to issue.




Section 6.2 Common StockSubiject to the provisions of Article VII and ext as may otherwise be specifie
the Charter, each share of Common Stock shalletti¢ holder thereof to one vote. The Board o&€tors may reclassify any unissued sk
of Common Stock from time to time into one or molasses or series of stock.

Section 6.3 Preferred StockThe Board of Directors may classify any unisssbdres of Preferred Stock i
reclassify any previously classified but unissuledrss of Preferred Stock of any series from timgnt@, into one or more classes or serie
stock.

Section 6.4 Classified or Reclassified Shar&sior to issuance of classified or reclassiféédres of any class
series, the Board of Directors by resolution shédl) designate that class or series to distingiiflom all other classes and series of stoc
the Corporation; (b) specify the number of shacebe included in the class or series; (c) set angb, subject to the provisions of Article
and subject to the express terms of any classri@ssef stock of the Corporation outstanding attthee, the preferences, conversion or ¢
rights, voting powers, restrictions (including, aut limitation, restrictions on transferabilityinitations as to dividends or other distributic
qualifications and terms and conditions of redempfor each class or series; and (d) cause theoCatipn to file articles supplementary w
the State Department of Assessments and Taxatidviaofland (“SDAT"). Any of the terms of any class or series of stodkosechange
pursuant to clause (c) of this Section 6.4 may kedendependent upon facts or events ascertainaligdeuthe Charter (includil
determinations by the Board of Directors or otteat$ or events within the control of the Corponatiand may vary among holders ther
provided that the manner in which such facts, eventvariations shall operate upon the terms oh silass or series of stock is clearly
expressly set forth in the articles supplementamgtber Charter document.




Section 6.5 Charter and BylawEhe rights of all stockholders and the termalb$tock are subject to the
provisions of the Charter and the Bylaws.

ARTICLE VII
RESTRICTION ON TRANSFER AND OWNERSHIP OF SHARES
Section 7.1 Definitions For the purpose of this Article VII, the follomg terms shall have the following meanings:
Beneficial Ownership The term “Beneficial Ownershighall mean ownership of Capital Stock by a Persdrether th
interest in the shares of Capital Stock is heléally or indirectly (including by a nominee), artth#l include interests that would be treate

owned through the application of Section 544 of @we, as modified by Sections 856(h)(1)(B) and(BEB8)(A) of the Code. The ten
“Beneficial Owner,” “Beneficially Owns” and “Benefially Owned” shall have the correlative meanings.

Business Day The term “Business Dayshall mean any day, other than a Saturday or a&utitht is neither a leg
holiday nor a day on which banking institutionstlire State of New York are authorized or requiredéwy, regulation or executive ordet
close.




Capital Stock. The term “Capital Stockshall mean all classes or series of stock of thep@ation, including, withot
limitation, Common Stock and Preferred Stock.

Charitable Beneficiary The term “Charitable Beneficiaryshall mean one or more beneficiaries of the CHalgtdarust a
determined pursuant to Section 7.3.6, providede¢hah such organization must be described in Sebd(c)(3) of the Code and contributi
to each such organization must be eligible for dédn under each of Sections 170(b)(1)(A), 2055 2522 of the Code.

Charitable Trust The term “Charitable Trust” shall mean any tqustvided for in Section 7.3.1.

Constructive Ownership The term “Constructive Ownershighall mean ownership of Capital Stock by a Peragrgthe
the interest in the shares of Capital Stock is ldéiectly or indirectly (including by a nomineendshall include interests that would be tre
as owned through the application of Section 318fa)he Code, as modified by Section 856(d)(5) af thode. The termsCobnstructivi
Owner,” “Constructively Owns” and “Constructivelyw®ed” shall have the correlative meanings.

Excepted Holder The term “Excepted Holdeshall mean a Person for whom an Excepted Holdeitlisrcreated by th
Charter or by the Board of Directors pursuant totida 7.2.7.

Excepted Holder Limit The term “Excepted Holder Limighall mean, provided that the affected Exceptediéfohgrees:
comply with the requirements established by thertehaor by the Board of Directors pursuant to Settv.2.7 and subject to adjustrr
pursuant to Section 7.2.8, the percentage limébdished for an Excepted Holder by the Charteryoithe Board of Directors pursuant
Section 7.2.7.
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Initial Date. The term “Initial Date’shall mean the date of issuance of Common Stockupnt to the initial underwritt:
public offering of Common Stock or such other dadadetermined by the Board of Directors in its swid absolute discretion.

Market Price. The term “Market Pricebn any date shall mean, with respect to any claseies of outstanding share:
Capital Stock, the Closing Price for such Capitaic® on such date. The “Closing Priaai any date shall mean the last reported sale fuoi
such Capital Stock, regular way, or, in case nd|ate takes place on such day, the average aldsing bid and asked prices, regular v
for such Capital Stock, in either case as repairethe principal consolidated transaction reportiygtem with respect to securities liste
admitted to trading on the NYSE or, if such CapBabck is not listed or admitted to trading on tM¥SE, as reported on the princi
consolidated transaction reporting system with eespo securities listed on the principal natioseturities exchange on which such Ca
Stock is listed or admitted to trading or, if su€hpital Stock is not listed or admitted to tradomg any national securities exchange, the
quoted price, or, if not so quoted, the averagthefhigh bid and low asked prices in the overdbenter market, as reported by the princ
automated quotation system that may then be iysésuch Capital Stock is not quoted by any ssigstem, the average of the closing bid
asked prices as furnished by a professional mamedter making a market in such Capital Stock setebtethe Board of Directors or, in
event that no trading price is available for suapi@l Stock, the fair market value of the Cap&abck, as determined in good faith by
Board of Directors.

NYSE. The term “NYSE” shall mean the New York StockcBange.
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Person. The term “Personshall mean an individual, corporation, partnershimited liability company, estate, tr
(including a trust qualified under Sections 401¢a)501(c)(17) of the Code), a portion of a trustnp@nently set aside for or to be u
exclusively for the purposes described in Secti?(6) of the Code, association, private foundatiithin the meaning of Section 509(a) of
Code, joint stock company or other entity and &etudes a “group” as that term is used for purgasfeRule 13d5(b) or Section 13(d)(3)
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetaagmoup to which an Excepted Holder Limit applies

Prohibited Owner The term “Prohibited Ownershall mean, with respect to any purported Tran&ewther event), ar
Person who, but for the provisions of Section 7.&:duld Beneficially Own or Constructively Own sharof Capital Stock in violation of t
provisions of Section 7.2.1(a), and if appropriat¢he context, shall also mean any Person who avbale been the record owner of the st
of Capital Stock that the Prohibited Owner wouldédnao owned.

Restriction Termination Date The term “Restriction Termination Datshall mean the first day after the Initial Date
which the Board of Directors determines pursuan®éation 5.7 of the Charter that it is no longethia best interests of the Corporatio
attempt to, or continue to, qualify as a REIT oattbompliance with the restrictions and limitatiams Beneficial Ownership, Construct
Ownership and Transfers of shares of Capital Ssetkorth herein is no longer required in ordertf@r Corporation to qualify as a REIT.

Stock Ownership Limit The term “Stock Ownership Limit” shall mean nised eightenths percent (9.8%) in value o
number of shares, whichever is more restrictivethef outstanding shares of any class or seriesapft&l Stock of the Corporation exclud
any outstanding shares of Capital Stock not treagedutstanding for federal income tax purposesuoh other percentage determined b
Board of Directors in accordance with Section 7d¢f.&he Charter.
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TRS. The term “TRS” shall mean a taxable REIT sulzsid{as defined in Section 856(l) of the Code)hef Corporation.

Transfer. The term “TransferShall mean any issuance, sale, transfer, giftgassent, devise or other disposition, as we
any other event that causes any Person to acqueghamge such Persanpercentage of Beneficial Ownership or Constrgc@®wnership, ¢
any agreement to take any such actions or caussuwahyevents, of Capital Stock or the right to vateeceive dividends on Capital Stc
including (a) the granting or exercise of any opt{or any disposition of any option), (b) any disjion of any securities or rights converti
into or exchangeable for Capital Stock or any iderin Capital Stock or any exercise of any suchversion or exchange right, and
Transfers of interests in other entities that resulchanges in Beneficial or Constructive Ownegpsbf Capital Stock; in each case, whe
voluntary or involuntary, whether owned of recofonstructively Owned or Beneficially Owned and wiest by operation of law
otherwise. The terms “Transferring” and “Transéeft shall have the correlative meanings.

Trustee. The term “Trustee’shall mean the Person unaffiliated with the Corpjoraand a Prohibited Owner, tha!
appointed by the Corporation to serve as trusteébkeo€Charitable Trust.

Section 7.2 Capital Stock

Section 7.2.1 Ownership LimitationsDuring the period commencing on the Initial Dated prior to th
Restriction Termination Date or as otherwise sghfbelow, and subject to Section 7.4:
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€) Basic Restrictions

(i) Except as provided in Section 7.2.7 hereof, nodPersther than an Excepted Holder, <
Beneficially Own or Constructively Own shares ofp@al Stock in excess of the Stock Ownership Linhio Excepted Holder sh
Beneficially Own or Constructively Own shares ofp@tal Stock in excess of the Excepted Holder Lifoitsuch Excepted Holder.

(i) Except as provided in Section 7.2.7 hereof, no dfehall Beneficially Own shares
Capital Stock to the extent that such Beneficialn@ghip of Capital Stock would result in the Cogimn being “closely heldWithin the
meaning of Section 856(h) of the Code (without rdga whether the ownership interest is held dutirglast half of a taxable year).

(i)  Except as provided in Section 7.2.7 hereof, ann3fex of shares of Capital Stock tha
effective, would result in the Capital Stock belBgneficially Owned by less than one hundred (10&s&ns (determined under the princi
of Section 856(a)(5) of the Code) shall be voidritio , and the intended transferee shall acquire nasighsuch Capital Stock.

(iv) Except as provided in Section 7.2.7 hereof, no dPershall Beneficially Own «
Constructively Own shares of Capital Stock to tkieert such Beneficial Ownership or Constructive @vghip would cause the Corporatiol
Constructively Own ten percent (10%) or more ofdlanership interests in a tenant (other than a T&®®#)e Corporatiors real property withi
the meaning of Section 856(d)(2)(B) of the Code.

(v)  No Person shall Beneficially Own or Constructivélwn shares of Capital Stock to
extent that such Beneficial Ownership or Constugc®wnership would otherwise cause the Corporatdiail to qualify as a REIT under t
Code, including, but not limited to, as a resultaofy “eligible independent contractordq defined in Section 856(d)(9)(A) of the Codelt
operates a “qualified lodging facility” (as definedSection 856(d)(9)(D)(i) of the Code) on betafllh TRS failing to qualify as such.
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(b) Transfer in Trust/Transfer Void Ab Initiolf any Transfer of shares of Capital Stock (tine
event) occurs which, if effective, would resultany Person Beneficially Owning or Constructively @mg shares of Capital Stock in violat
of Section 7.2.1(a)(i), (ii), (iv) or (v),

(i) then that number of shares of the Capital StockBieeficial or Constructive Ownership
which otherwise would cause such Person to vioketion 7.2.1(a)(i), (ii), (iv) or (v) (rounded up the nearest whole share) shal
automatically transferred to a Charitable Trusttfer benefit of a Charitable Beneficiary, as déssatiin Section 7.3, effective as of the clos
business on the Business Day prior to the dateaf $ransfer (or other event), and such Persor abqlire no rights in such shares of Ca
Stock; or

(i)  if the transfer to the Charitable Trust describedlause (i) of this Section 7.2.1(b) wa
not be effective for any reason to prevent theatioh of Section 7.2.1(a)(i), (ii), (iv) or (v),eh the Transfer of that number of shares of Cz
Stock that otherwise would cause any Person tatddbection 7.2.1(a)(i), (i), (iv) or (v) shall beid abinitio , and the intended transfe
shall acquire no rights in such shares of Capitatis
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Section 7.2.2 Remedies for BreacH the Board of Directors or any duly authorizemmmittee thereof or ott
designees if permitted by the MGCL shall at anyetidetermine in good faith that a Transfer or o#aent has taken place that results
violation of Section 7.2.1 or that a Person intettdacquire or has attempted to acquire Benefaialonstructive Ownership of any share
Capital Stock in violation of Section 7.2.1 (whettoe not such violation is intended), the BoardDifectors or a committee thereof or of
designees if permitted by the MGCL shall take saction as it deems advisable to refuse to givecefteor to prevent such Transfer or o
event, including, without limitation, causing th@r@oration to redeem shares of Capital Stock, mnefut give effect to such Transfer on
books of the Corporation or instituting proceedibg®njoin such Transfer or other event; providédwever, that any Transfer or attemp
Transfer or other event in violation of Section.Z.8hall automatically result in the transfer te tbharitable Trust described above, or, w
applicable, such Transfer (or other event) shall/did abinitio as provided above irrespective of any action (or-action) by the Board
Directors or a committee thereof.

Section 7.2.3 Notice of Restricted TransfeAny Person who acquires or attempts or interedadquir
Beneficial Ownership or Constructive Ownership lo&res of Capital Stock that will or may violate Sae 7.2.1(a) or any Person who wa
have owned shares of Capital Stock that resulted transfer to the Charitable Trust pursuant to ghwvisions of Section 7.2.1(b) st
immediately give written notice to the Corporatiminsuch event or, in the case of such a proposedt@mpted transaction, give at least fifi
(15) days prior written notice, and shall providethe Corporation such other information as thepGmation may request in order to detern
the effect, if any, of such Transfer on the Cortioras status as a REIT.

Section 7.2.4 Owners Required To Provide Imftion. From the Initial Date and prior to the Restdo

Termination Date:
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€) Every owner of more than five percent (5%) (or simker percentage as required by the (
or the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereuridefymber or value of the outstanding shares gfit@bStock, within thirty (30) days aft
the end of each taxable year, shall give writteticedo the Corporation stating (i) the name andrasis of such owner, (ii) the number of sh
of Capital Stock Beneficially Owned and (iii) a déption of the manner in which such shares ard.h&ach such owner shall provide to
Corporation such additional information as the @osion may request in order to determine the &ffeany, of such Beneficial Ownership
the Corporation’s status as a REIT and to ensumgptiance with the Stock Ownership Limit; and

(b) Each Person who is a Beneficial or Constructive @waof Capital Stock and each Per
(including the stockholder of record) who is holgliG@apital Stock for a Beneficial or Constructive 1@w shall provide to the Corporation s
information as the Corporation may request, in géaith, in order to determine the Corporati®rstatus as a REIT and to comply \
requirements of any taxing authority or governmeatahority or to determine such compliance ancemsure compliance with the St
Ownership Limit.

Section 7.2.5 Remedies Not LimitedNothing contained in this Section 7.2 shall titfie authority of th
Board of Directors to take such other action aleg#ms necessary or advisable to, subject to Segtfoaf the Charter, protect the Corpora
and the interests of its stockholders in preserttiegCorporation’s status as a REIT.

Section 7.2.6 Ambiguity In the case of an ambiguity in the applicatidnaay of the provisions of tF
Article VII, including any definition contained iBection 7.1 of this Article VII, the Board of Diecs shall have the power to determine
application of the provisions of this Article Vllith respect to any situation based on the factsvknio it at such time.In the event Section 7
or 7.3 requires an action by the Board of Directmd the Charter fails to provide specific guidandth respect to such action, the Boar
Directors shall have the power to determine th®oadb be taken so long as such action is not eoyntio the provisions of Sections 7.1, 7.
7.3. Absent a decision to the contrary by the BodrDicectors (which the Board of Directors may matets sole and absolute discretion
a Person would have (but for the remedies set far@ections 7.2.1 and 7.2.2) acquired Beneficialonstructive Ownership of Capital St
in violation of Section 7.2.1, such remedies (agliapble) shall apply first to the shares of Cdp8tock which, but for such remedies, wc
have been actually owned by such Person, and sdoastthres of Capital Stock which, but for such edims, would have been Beneficii
Owned or Constructively Owned (but not actually ednby such Person, pro rata among the Personswethally own such shares of Car
Stock based upon the relative number of the stidr€apital Stock held by each such Person.
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Section 7.2.7 _Exceptions

@) (i) The Board of Directors, in its sole discogtj may exempt (prospectively or retroactivel
Person from the restrictions contained in Secticgh1{a)(i), (i), (iii) or (iv) as the case may bend may establish or increase an Exce
Holder Limit for such Person if the Board of Direrg obtains such representations, covenants arettakihgs as the Board of Directors r
deem appropriate in order to conclude that grarttiegexemption and/or establishing or increasimgBkcepted Holder Limit, as the case |
be, will not cause the Corporation to lose itsusgtats a REIT.

(b) Prior to granting any exception pursuant to Secfi¢h7(a), the Board of Directors may requi
ruling from the Internal Revenue Service or an mpirof counsel, in either case in form and substasatisfactory to the Board of Director:
its sole discretion, as it may deem necessary wisalble in order to determine that granting theegtion will not cause the Corporation to |
its status as a REIT. Notwithstanding the recef@ny ruling or opinion, the Board of Directors yrimpose such conditions or restrictions .
deems appropriate in connection with granting sxateption.
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(c) Subject to Section 7.2.1(a)(ii), an underwritegg@ment agent or initial purchaser that particg
in a public offering, a private placement or otlpeivate offering of Capital Stock (or securitiesngertible into or exchangeable for Cag
Stock) may Beneficially Own or Constructively Owmases of Capital Stock (or securities convertibte ior exchangeable for Capital Stock
excess of the Stock Ownership Limit, but only te #xtent necessary to facilitate such public afggrprivate placement or immediate resa
such Capital Stock and provided that the restm&igontained in Section 7.2.1(a) will not be viethtfollowing the distribution by su
underwriter, placement agent or initial purchadesuzh shares of Capital Stock.

Section 7.2.8 _ Change in Stock Ownership Limit &xdepted Holder Limits (a) The Board of Directors m
from time to time increase or decrease the Stockéship Limit; provided however, that a decreased Stock Ownership Limit will ne
effective for any Person whose percentage ownexsh@apital Stock is in excess of such decreasedkSDwnership Limit until such time
such Person’s percentage of Capital Stock equafallarbelow the decreased Stock Ownership Limit, tntil such time as such Persen’
percentage of Capital Stock falls below such deméestock Ownership Limit, any further acquisitafinCapital Stock will be in violation
the Stock Ownership Limit and, provided furthemttithe new Stock Ownership Limit would not allowefior fewer individuals (taking in
account all Excepted Holders) to Beneficially Owarmthan 49.9% in value of the outstanding Cadtatk.

(b) The Board of Directors may only redulbe Excepted Holder Limit for an Excepted Holddi) with the writtel
consent of such Excepted Holder at any time, op(2fuant to the terms and conditions of the ages¢snand undertakings entered into
such Excepted Holder in connection with the essalbtient of the Excepted Holder Limit for that ExezpHolder. No Excepted Holder Lir
shall be reduced to a percentage that is lesstiieatihen Stock Ownership Limit.
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Section 7.2.9 LegendEach certificate, if any, for shares of Cap8&ck shall bear a legend summarizing
restrictions on transfer and ownership containe@ihe Instead of a legend, the certificate, if amay state that the Corporation will furnis
full statement about certain restrictions on trarebility to a stockholder on request and withdwdrge.

Section 7.3 Transfer of Capital Stock in Trust

Section 7.3.1 Ownership in TrustJpon any purported Transfer or other event desdrin Section 7.2.1(
that would result in a transfer of shares of Caf#imck to a Charitable Trust, such shares of @h8tock shall be deemed to have t
transferred to the Trustee as trustee for the skaubenefit of one or more Charitable BeneficgriSuch transfer to the Trustee sha
deemed to be effective as of the close of busiorgke Business Day prior to the purported Transfether event that results in the transfi
the Charitable Trust pursuant to Section 7.2.1{if)e Trustee shall be appointed by the Corporatiwhshall be a Person unaffiliated with
Corporation and any Prohibited Owner. Each Chalet8eneficiary shall be designated by the Corponads provided in Section 7.3.6.
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Section 7.3.2 Status of Shares Held by tlust€e. Shares of Capital Stock held by the Trusteel sloaltinue
to be issued and outstanding shares of CapitakS@tbthe Corporation. The Prohibited Owner shalé no rights in the Capital Stock helc
the Trustee. The Prohibited Owner shall not bémebnomically from ownership of any shares helttust by the Trustee, shall have no ri
to dividends or other distributions and shall nosgess any rights to vote or other rights attriletdo the shares held in the Chariti
Trust. The Prohibited Owner shall have no claiayse of action, or any other recourse whatsoevansigthe purported transferor of s
Capital Stock.

Section 7.3.3 Dividend and Voting Right¥he Trustee shall have all voting rights andhtsgo dividends ¢
other distributions with respect to shares of Ga8tock held in the Charitable Trust, which rigéltall be exercised for the exclusive benet
the Charitable Beneficiary. Any dividend or othtstribution paid to a Prohibited Owner prior teetHiscovery by the Corporation that
shares of Capital Stock have been transferredetd thstee shall be paid with respect to such stadr€apital Stock by the Prohibited Owne
the Trustee upon demand and any dividend or ofis&itdition authorized but unpaid shall be paid widkeie to the Trustee. Any dividend:s
other distributions so paid over to the Trustedldi®mheld in trust for the Charitable BeneficiarVhe Prohibited Owner shall have no vo
rights with respect to shares held in the Chanitabiust and, subject to Maryland law, effectiveoshe date that the shares of Capital S
have been transferred to the Charitable TrustTthetee shall have the authority (at the Trusteele discretion) (i) to rescind as void any
cast by a Prohibited Owner prior to the discoveryhe Corporation that the shares of Capital Stuake been transferred to the Trustee an
to recast such vote in accordance with the desiréise Trustee acting for the benefit of the Clzdnlé Beneficiary; providedhowever, that if
the Corporation has already taken irreversible @@te action, then the Trustee shall not have thtbosity to rescind and recast s
vote. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Algid/Il, until the Corporation has received notifica that shares of Capital Stock have t
transferred into a Charitable Trust, the Corporasball be entitled to rely on its share transfed ather stockholder records for purpose
preparing lists of stockholders entitled to voteratetings, determining the validity and authorifypooxies and otherwise conducting vote
stockholders.
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Section 7.3.4 Sale of Shares by Trust&¥ithin twenty (20) days of receiving notice fraime Corporatio
that shares of Capital Stock have been transfeadélle Charitable Trust, the Trustee of the Chhlétarust shall sell the shares held in
Charitable Trust to a person, designated by thet&e) whose ownership of the shares will not viothe ownership limitations set forth
Section 7.2.1(a). Upon such sale, the interesh@fCharitable Beneficiary in the shares sold dleathinate and the Trustee shall distribute
net proceeds of the sale to the Prohibited Ownértamthe Charitable Beneficiary as provided in thection 7.3.4. The Prohibited Owner s
receive the lesser of (1) the price paid by theh®ited Owner for the shares or, if the Prohibi@dner did not give value for the share
connection with the event causing the shares toeletin the Charitable Truste(g., in the case of a gift, devise or other such tatign), th
Market Price of the shares on the day of the evaunsing the shares to be held in the Charitablst®md (2) the price per share received b
Trustee (net of any commissions and other expeofsesle) from the sale or other disposition of ¢#hares held in the Charitable Trust.
Trustee may reduce the amount payable to the Rrethi®@wner by the amount of dividends and othetrithistions paid to the Prohibited Owi
and owed by the Prohibited Owner to the Trustesyant to Section 7.3.3 of this Article VII. Anytrsales proceeds in excess of the an
payable to the Prohibited Owner shall be immedygteid to the Charitable Beneficiary. If, priorttee discovery by the Corporation that sh
of Capital Stock have been transferred to the €stuch shares are sold by a Prohibited Ownar,(thsuch shares shall be deemed to
been sold on behalf of the Charitable Trust anddiithe extent that the Prohibited Owner recei@adamount for such shares that exceec
amount that such Prohibited Owner was entitlecgtteive pursuant to this Section 7.3.4, such exsteat be paid to the Trustee upon demand.
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Section 7.3.5 Purchase Right in Stock Tremstl to the Trustee Shares of Capital Stock transferred tc
Trustee shall be deemed to have been offered fert@dahe Corporation, or its designee, at a ppeeshare equal to the lesser of (i) the |
per share in the transaction that resulted in stztsfer to the Charitable Trust (or, in the calse devise or gift, the Market Price at the tim
such devise or gift) and (ii) the Market Price be date the Corporation, or its designee, accejuis sffer. The Corporation may reduce
amount payable to the Prohibited Owner by the amo@inlividends and other distributions paid to #hibited Owner and owed by
Prohibited Owner to the Trustee pursuant to Secti@a3 of this Article VII. The Corporation mayyp&e amount of such reduction to
Trustee for the benefit of the Charitable BeneficiaThe Corporation shall have the right to accapth offer until the Trustee has sold
shares held in the Charitable Trust pursuant t¢i®e@.3.4. Upon such a sale to the Corporatibe,itterest of the Charitable Beneficiar
the shares sold shall terminate and the Trusteé dibribute the net proceeds of the sale to thehBited Owner and any dividends or o
distributions held by the Trustee shall be paitheoCharitable Beneficiary.

Section 7.3.6 Designation of Charitable Biemgries. By written notice to the Trustee, the Corporatstal
designate one or more nonprofit organizations tehkeCharitable Beneficiary of the interest in @iearitable Trust such that (i) the share
Capital Stock held in the Charitable Trust would mlate the restrictions set forth in Section.¥(2) in the hands of such Charite
Beneficiary and (ii) each such organization mustéscribed in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code andrdmitions to each such organization n
be eligible for deduction under one of Sections(f{Q)(A), 2055 and 2522 of the Code. Neither fliéure of the Corporation to make si
designation nor the failure of the Corporation ppaint the Trustee before the automatic transfeviged for in Section 7.2.1(b)(i) shall m:
such transfer ineffective, provided that the Cogpion thereafter makes such designation and appeirtt
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Section 7.4 NYSE TransactiondNothing in this Article VII shall preclude thetlement of any transaction ente
into through the facilities of the NYSE or any atmational securities exchange or automated idégder quotation system. The fact thai
settlement of any transaction occurs shall not teethee effect of any other provision of this ArdcVIl and any transferee in such a transas
shall be subject to all of the provisions and latid@ns set forth in this Article VII.

Section 7.5 EnforcementThe Corporation is authorized specifically t@lseequitable relief, including injuncti
relief, to enforce the provisions of this ArticldlV

Section 7.6 NoiWaiver. No delay or failure on the part of the Corparator the Board of Directors in exercis
any right hereunder shall operate as a waiver pfraght of the Corporation or the Board of Direcpas the case may be, except to the €
specifically waived in writing.

Section 7.7 Severability If any provision of this Article VII or any apiphtion of any such provision is determil

to be invalid by any federal or state court havjimgsdiction over the issues, the validity of tr@maining provisions shall not be affected
other applications of such provisions shall beciéfd only to the extent necessary to comply withdatermination of such court.

24




ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENTS

The Corporation reserves the right from time toetitm make any amendment to the Charter, now orftereauthorized
law, including any amendment altering the termsantract rights, as expressly set forth in the @mnaof any shares of outstanding stock.
rights and powers conferred by the Charter on $tolclers, directors and officers are granted sulifethis reservation. Except as othen
provided in the Charter and except for those amemdsnpermitted to be made without stockholder agdronder Maryland law or by speci
provision in the Charter, any amendment to the t&hahall be valid only if declared advisable bg Board of Directors and approved by
affirmative vote of holders of shares entitled #stca majority of all the votes entitled to be aarstthe matter. However, any amendme
Section 5.8 and Article VII or to this sentencelw Charter shall be valid only if declared advisdly the Board of Directors and approvet
the affirmative vote of holders of shares entitiedast at least two-thirds of all the votes egditto be cast on the matter.

ARTICLE IX
LIMITATION OF LIABILITY
To the maximum extent that Maryland law in effeanfi time to time permits limitation of the liabifitof directors an
officers of a corporation, no present or formetedior or officer of the Corporation shall be lialbtethe Corporation or its stockholders
money damages. Neither the amendment nor repehisofrticle IX, nor the adoption or amendmentaofy other provision of the Chartet

Bylaws inconsistent with this Article IX, shall dggdo or affect in any respect the applicabilitytbé preceding sentence with respect to ar
or failure to act which occurred prior to such aadment, repeal or adoption.
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THIRD : The amendment to and restatement of the Chastéereinabove set forth have been duly advisetidoBoard ¢
Directors and approved by the sole stockholdehefCorporation as required by law.

FOURTH : The current address of the principal office loé tCorporation is as set forth in Article IV of th@egoinc
amendment and restatement of the Charter.

FIFTH : The name and address of the Corporasianirrent resident agent are as set forth in Arti¢l of the foregoin
amendment and restatement of the Charter.

SIXTH : The number of directors of the Corporation dmeltames of those currently in office are as g#h fa Article V of
the foregoing amendment and restatement of thet€har

SEVENTH : The total number of shares of stock which thepOmation had authority to issue immediately priorthis
amendment and restatement was 1,000 shares, aoggibtl,000 shares of Common Stock, $0.01 parevpkr share. The aggregate par v
of all shares of stock having par value was $10.00.

EIGHTH : The total number of shares of stock which thepOmtion has authority to issue pursuant to thedoing
amendment and restatement of the Charter is 60@000consisting of 500,000,000 shares of Commork$t$0.01 par value per share,
100,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $0.01 daevzer share. The aggregate par value of allogizéd shares of stock having par valt
$6,000,000.
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NINTH : The undersigned Executive Chairman of the BadrDirectors acknowledges these Articles of Amendiranc
Restatement to be the corporate act of the Coiliparand, as to all matters or facts required tovbesefied under oath, the undersigi
Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors ackleages that, to the best of his knowledge, inforomaand belief, these matters and f
are true in all material respects and that thiestant is made under the penalties for perjury.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has causeddaieticles of Amendment and Restatement to be sigmés
name and on its behalf by its Chairman of the Baaurd attested to by its Secretary on this 3rd ddgebruary, 2011.

ATTEST: SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, INC.
/s/ Christopher R. En By: /sl Kerry W. Boekelheid (SEAL)
Christopher R. En Kerry W. Boekelheidt

Vice President, General Counsel and Secre Executive Chairman of the Boa



Exhibit 10.2C

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED LOAN AGREEMENT ("greement") is entered into as of August 15, 201Gt
between FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA, N.A., a natial banking association ("First National") as a den Administrative Agel
and Collateral Agent for the Lenders, Bank Midwéé$tA., a national banking association (“Bank Midtigsas a Lender, Crawford Coul
Trust & Savings, a State banking association ("GoasdvCounty") as a Lender, Quad City Bank & Trust G State banking association ("Q
City") as a Lender, M & | Marshall & lisley Bank, rmational banking association (“M & 1) as a LendBankers Trust CompanyEanker:
Trust”) as a Lender and the other Lenders a party hereto fime to time, and SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLGSgmmit Hotel"), i
South Dakota limited liability company and SUMMITQ$PITALITY V, LLC ("Summit Hospitality"), a South &kota limited liability
company. First National, Bank Midwest, Crawfordu@ity, Quad City, M & |, Bankers Trust and the otherders a party hereto from time
time may be hereinafter collectively referred tafees “Lendersand individually as a "Lender”. Summit Hotel angh®nit Hospitality may t
collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Borera/ and individually as a "Borrower". The Admin&ive Agent and the Collateral Agent
the Lenders may be hereinafter collectively reféteeas the "Agent".

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the Agent, and certaintef Lenders are parties to a Loan Agreement, dageaf dune 24, 2005,
amended (as so amended and as in effect prioretddte of the Current Credit Agreement defined wetbe "Original Credit Agreement
pursuant to which the Lenders party thereto madedavailable to the Borrowers;

WHEREAS, the Original Credit Agreement was amended restated by that certain First Amended andaRsstoan Agreeme
dated August 31, 2009 among Borrowers, the Agedtthe Lenders (as amended, including by that ceRast Amendment to First Amenc
and Restated Loan Agreement dated May 14, 2010asundeffect prior to the date hereof, the "Cur@redit Agreement");

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested that theddtiCredit Agreement be amended and restated certims and conditions ¢
forth herein;

WHEREAS, it is intended that the indebtedness ef Blorrowers under this Agreement be a continuatiothe indebtedness of |
Borrowers under the Original Credit Agreement agased by the Current Credit Agreement; and

WHEREAS, under the terms and conditions of and eatbjo the limitations contained in this Agreemdrgnders have approv
financial accommodations in the maximum principaloant of $43,334,527.22 consisting of the Pool @eem Loans and Pool Two Te
Loans defined in this Agreement.




NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual cougts and agreements contained in this Agreemeahtotirer good ar
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficieofcyhich is hereby acknowledged, the parties agsefllows:

ARTICLE |
Pool One Term Loans

1.1. Definitions Certain capitalized terms not otherwise defimethe body of this Agreement shall have the megsiven ti
such terms in Exhibit A attached hereto and incaapeal herein by reference.

1.2. Pool One Term LoansSubject to the terms of this Agreement and tleimum amount available under the Pool
Loan Formula, Lenders severally agree to exten8doowers the following term loans (as they mayadmended, modified, refinanc
replaced and/or restated from time to time, eatPoml One Term Loan" and collectively the "Pool Oregm Loans"):

(a). a term loan in the aggregate prialcgmount of $6,700,000.00 (the "Hyatt Place Pawd @erm Loan");

(b). a term loan in the aggregate priatgmount of $6,375,000.00 (the "Holiday Inn ExgrEeol One Term Loan"); and

(©). a term loan in the aggregate priacgmount of $5,850,000.00 (the "Staybridge Sufesl One Term Loan").

1.3. Pool One Term Notessach of the Pool One Term Loans will be evideniog an Amended and Restated Pool One *

Note executed and delivered by Borrowers to Agsrfbllows (collectively, the "Pool One Term Notes

(a). The Hyatt Place Pool One Term Loalh lve evidenced by an Amended and Restated HylattePPool One Term Nc
payable to the order of the Agent in the principatount of $6,700,000.00 for the benefit of the Lexsdin proportion of the
respective Percentage in the Hyatt Place Pool @ne Toan.

(b). The Holiday Inn Express Pool Oneritdroan will be evidenced by an Amended and Resthiigltiay Inn Express Pa
One Term Note payable to the order of the Agenh@principal amount of $6,375,000.00 for the berwfthe Lenders in proportic
of their respective Percentage in the Holiday Inpréss Pool One Term Loan.

(©). The Staybridge Suites Pool One Té&wan will be evidenced by an Amended and Restataghfidge Suites Pool O
Term Note payable to the order of the Agent inghiacipal amount of $5,850,000.00 for the benefitree Lenders in proportion
their respective Percentage in the Staybridge S&t®l One Term Loan.




1.4. Pool One Loan Formuldn no event shall the aggregate outstandingcjrah amount of any Pool One Term Loan ext
75% of the as is appraised value of the partichlatel primarily securing such Pool One Term Lo&s a condition to the closing of tl
Agreement, Borrowers will jointly and severally pagd apply to the Pool One Note being refinancedhieyHoliday Inn Express Pool C
Term Loan the sum of not less than $1,125,000.@0t@the Pool One Note being refinanced by thel8tdge Suites Pool One Term Loan
sum of not less than $350,000.00 in order to bsagh Pool One Term Loans within the Pool One Loarmila for such Pool One Te
Loans.

15. Interest The interest rate on the Pool One Term Loarsulgect to change from time to time based on chamye
independent index which is the London Interbanke€¥fl Rate for U.S. Dollar deposits published'ire Wall Street Journals the Three (:
Month LIBOR Rate (“LIBOR Rate”).The LIBOR Rate will be adjusted and determined wauithnotice to Borrowers as set forth herein, ¢
the date of the Pool One Term Notes and on the(fiet) day of each calendar month thereafter étiegt Rate Change Dateb) the Three (:
Month LIBOR Rate which is published ithe Wall Street Journals the reported rate for the date that is two LanBanking Days prior 1
each Interest Rate Change Date. If the date oPt@ One Term Notes is any day other than the lfiocdon Banking Day of a month,
initial LIBOR Rate to be in effect until the beging of the next succeeding month shall be that &t{83 Month LIBOR Rate in effect on 1
date that is two London Banking Days prior to thstfday of the month in which the Pool One Termddoare dated. “London Banking Day”
means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday, hichwommercial banking institutions in London, Engl are generally open -
business. If for any reason the LIBOR Rate pubklishyThe Wall Street Journés no longer available and/or Agent is unable tedeine th
LIBOR Rate for any Interest Rate Change Date, Ageaw, in its sole discretion, select an alternateree to determine the LIBOR Rate
will provide notice to Borrowers and Lenders of dwmirce selected. The LIBOR Rate determined afodbatabove shall be referred to he
as (the “Index”).The Index is not necessarily the lowest rate clhtgel enders on their loans. If the Index becomegvailable during tt
term of the Pool One Term Loans, Agent may des@aatubstitute index after notifying Borrowers &etders. Agent will tell Borrowers t
current Index rate upon Borrowers' request. Ther@st rate change will not occur more often thachemonth on the first (1st) day of e
month. Borrowers understand that Lenders may nhades based on other rates as well. The Indexentlyris .37625% per annum. 1
interest rate to be applied to the unpaid princi@énce of the each Pool One Term Loan will bewated using a rate of 4% over the In
adjusted if necessary for any minimum and maximata limitations described below, resulting in aiahrate of 4.37625% per annum ba
on a year of 360 days. Interest on the Pool OmenTlsmans is computed on a 365/360 basis; thatyigdplying the ratio of the interest r
over a year of 360 days, multiplied by the outstagdorincipal balance, multiplied by the actual rhen of days the principal balance
outstanding. All interest payable under the PooeQerm Loans is computed using this method. N@&TIGnder no circumstances will 1
interest rate on the Pool One Term Loans be less3tb% per annum or more than the maximum radevad by applicable law. The princi
balance of the Pool One Term Loans will bear irgeadter maturity and after the occurrence andmgutine continuance of an Event of Def
at a variable per annum rate equal to rate detewnas above plus 4%, but not to exceed the maxinatienallowed by law. Borrowers w
jointly and severally pay interest monthly, in @m® on the same dates that principal installmarésdue. Accrued and unpaid interest |
also be paid on the Pool One Term Loan Terminddate, whether by acceleration or otherwise.




1.6. Repayment; Maturity The Pool One Term Loans will be paid as followsth the monthly principal and inten
installments, with principal installments calcuthten a twenty (20) year amortization schedule:

(@). The Hyatt Place Pool One Term Lodlhbe payable in equal monthly installments ofrmipal and interest in tl
amount of $46,088.45 plus accrued and unpaid isteremmencing on September 1, 2010 and continumghe first day of ea
month thereafter until July 31, 2011, when the aunding principal balance, together with accrued ampaid interest, will be due ¢
payable in full.

(b). The Holiday Inn Express Pool Oneridroan will be payable in equal monthly installmemtf principal an
interest in the amount of $43,853.82 plus accruetl unpaid interest commencing on September 1, 20@0continuing on the fit
day of each month thereafter until July 31, 201iemthe outstanding principal balance, togethen adtcrued and unpaid interest,
be due and payable in full.

(c). The Staybridge Suites Pool One Teoan will be payable in equal monthly installmeatgrincipal and interest
the amount of $40,241.41 plus accrued and unpaédeist commencing on September 1, 2010 and congran the first day of ea
month thereafter until July 31, 2011, when the @amding principal balance, together with accrued ampaid interest, will be due
payable in full.

All payments due on the Pool One Term Loans unisrAgreement and the other Loan Documents shathbée in immediately availat
funds to the Agent at its office described in tlmtige provision of this Agreement unless the Aggires notice to the contrary. Payment
received at or before 1:00 p.m. Omaha, Nebraska tim any Business Day shall be deemed to have teeeived by the Agent on ti
Business Day. Payments received after 1:00 p.mal@mnNebraska time on any Business Day shall beekeo have been received on
next Business Day, and interest, if payable ineespf such payment, shall accrue thereon untih suiext Business Day. Agent will remit
each Lender its Percentage of all payments of pé@h@and interest on the Pool One Term Loans reckly Agent no later than the n
Business Day after the Agent is deemed to havevetsuch payment.

1.7. PrepaymentBorrowers may prepay all or any Pool One TernarLdn full or in part at any time without penalty
premium. Any partial prepayments will be appligdAgent to the monthly installments due on theipliytprepaid Pool One Term Loan in
inverse order of their maturities.

1.8. _Fees In consideration for Lenders making the Loanailable to Borrowers, Borrowers will jointly andvezally pay t
the Agent for the pro rata account of Lenders arndment fee equal to $162,504.48 in full at thestig of this Agreement. Each Lender:
be entitled to a portion of such fee as follow§:$32,500.90 payable to First National; (ii) $320590 payable to M & I; (iii) $48,751.34
Bank Midwest; (iv) $16,250.45 to Quad City; (v) $280.45 to Bankers Trust; and (vi) $16,250.45 tav@ord County. In addition, Borrowe
will jointly and severally pay Agent for the accaumly of Agent an annual agency fee equal to 325 payable at the closing of 1
Agreement on each anniversary date of this Agreémen




ARTICLE Il
Pool Two Term Loans

2.1. Pool Two Term LoansSubject to the terms of this Agreement and tleimum amount available under the Pool °
Loan Formula, Lenders severally agree to exten@8doowers the following term loans (as they maydmended, modified, refinanc
replaced and/or restated from time to time, eatPoml Two Term Loan" and collectively the "Pool TWerm Loans"):

(a). a term loan in the aggregate prialcgmount of $8,914,616.75 (the "Jackson Courtffardl Two Term Loan");

(b). a term loan in the aggregate priatgmount of $6,818,438.05 (the "Germantown Coudtygool Two Term Loan"); and
(©). a term loan in the aggregate priacgmount of $8,676,472.42 (the "Hyatt Place Pawb Term Loan").

2.2. Pool Two Term NotesEach of the Pool Two Term Loans will be evidehbg an Amended and Restated Pool Two 1

Note executed and delivered by Borrowers to Agsrfbiows (collectively, the "Pool Two Term Notes

(a). The Jackson Courtyard Pool Two Teoan will be evidenced by an Amended and Restaaelisbn Courtyard Pool T\
Term Note payable to the order of the Agent inghacipal amount of $8,914,616.75 for the benefithe Lenders in proportion
their respective Percentage in the Jackson Coudrfyaol Two Term Loan.

(b). The Germantown Courtyard Pool Twarniéd.oan will be evidenced by an Amended and Redt&ermantown Courtya
Pool Two Term Note payable to the order of the Agarthe principal amount of $6,818,438.05 for thenefit of the Lenders
proportion of their respective Percentage in thenaémtown Courtyard Pool Two Term Loan.

(©). The Hyatt Place Pool Two Term Loaitl tve evidenced by an Amended and Restated HyattePPool Two Term No
payable to the order of the Agent in the principatount of $8,676,472.42 for the benefit of the Lexsdin proportion of the
respective Percentage in the Hyatt Place Pool TeranTLoan.




2.3. Pool Two Loan Formulan no event shall the aggregate outstandingcipah amount of any Pool Two Term Loan exc
65% of the as stabilized Appraised Value of thaipalar Hotel primarily securing such Pool Two Tekmwan.

2.4. Interest The interest rate on the Pool Two Term Loarsulgiect to change from time to time based on chaimgan independe
index which is the London Interbank Offered RateWoS. Dollar deposits published Tihe Wall Street Journals the Three (3) Month LIBC
Rate (“LIBOR Rate”). The LIBOR Rate will be adjusted and determined waiithnotice to Borrowers as set forth herein, athefdate of tr
Pool Two Term Notes and on the first (1st) dayadtecalendar month thereafter (“Interest Rate Chdrate”)to the Three (3) Month LIBO
Rate which is published ihhe Wall Street Journais the reported rate for the date that is two LarBlanking Days prior to each Interest F
Change Date. If the date of the Pool Two Term Bligeany day other than the first London Banking Bha month, the initial LIBOR Rate
be in effect until the beginning of the next suaiag month shall be that Three (3) Month LIBOR Rateffect on the date that is two Lonc
Banking Days prior to the first day of the monthwhich the Pool Two Term Notes are dated. If oy aeason the LIBOR Rate publishec
The Wall Street Journas no longer available and/or Agent is unable ttedrine the LIBOR Rate for any Interest Rate Chabgee, Ager
may, in its sole discretion, select an alternatere® to determine the LIBOR Rate and will provid#ice to Borrowers and Lenders of
source selected. The LIBOR Rate determined afodét above shall be referred to herein as (theléki). The Index is not necessarily
lowest rate charged by Lenders on their loanghdfIndex becomes unavailable during the term efRbol Two Term Loans, Agent n
designate a substitute index after notifying Bomosvand Lenders. Agent will tell Borrowers the reat Index rate upon Borrowe
request. The interest rate change will not occaremoften than each month on the first (1st) dagadh month. Borrowers understand
Lenders may make loans based on other rates as Wedl Index currently is .37625% per annum. Titerest rate to be applied to the un
principal balance of the each Pool Two Term Loalh lvd calculated using a rate of 4% over the Indadjusted if necessary for any minim
and maximum rate limitations described below, r@sglin an initial rate of 4.37625% per annum basadh year of 360 days. Interest on
Pool Two Term Loans is computed on a 365/360 b#sis;is, by applying the ratio of the intereseraver a year of 360 days, multiplied by
outstanding principal balance, multiplied by théuat number of days the principal balance is oatitag. All interest payable under the F
Two Term Loans is computed using this method. NCH:IUnder no circumstances will the interest ratehe Pool Two Term Loans be |
than 5.25% per annum or more than the maximumaldered by applicable law. The principal balané¢h@ Pool Two Term Loans will be
interest after maturity and after the occurrence duaring the continuance of an Event of Defaulaatariable per annum rate equal to
determined as above plus 4%, but not to exceeththémum rate allowed by law. Borrowers will jointhnd severally pay interest monthly
arrears, on the same dates that principal instalisn@re due. Accrued and unpaid interest mustkaspaid on the maturity date of each |
Two Term Loan, whether by acceleration or otherwise

2.5. Repayment; Maturity The Pool Two Term Loans will be paid as followsgith the monthly principal and inter
installments with principal installments calculateda twenty (20) year amortization schedule:




(@). The Jackson Courtyard Pool Two Teoan will be payable in equal monthly installmeatsrincipal and intere
in the amount of $60,052.00 plus accrued and unip&dest commencing on September 1, 2010 andraang on the first day of ea
month thereafter until July 1, 2013, when the @uding principal balance, together with accrued amgiaid interest, will be due &
payable in full.

(b). The Germantown Courtyard Pool Twarid.oan will be payable in equal monthly installnef principal an
interest in the amount of $45,813.00 plus accruetl unpaid interest commencing on September 1, 20@0continuing on the fit
day of each month thereafter until July 1, 2013emwthe outstanding principal balance, together aittrued and unpaid interest,
be due and payable in full.

(c). The Hyatt Place Pool Two Term Loaill e payable in equal monthly installments ofrgipal and interest in tl
amount of $46,072.00 plus accrued and unpaid isteremmencing on September 1, 2010 and continumghe first day of ea
month thereafter until February 1, 2014, when thistanding principal balance, together with accraed unpaid interest, will be ¢
and payable in full.

All payments due on the Pool Two Term Loans unfiexr Agreement and the other Loan Documents shathage in immediately availat
funds to the Agent at its office described in tlmtige provision of this Agreement unless the Aggires notice to the contrary. Payment
received at or before 1:00 p.m. Omaha, Nebraska tim any Business Day shall be deemed to have teeeived by the Agent on ti
Business Day. Payments received after 1:00 p.mal@mNebraska time on any Business Day shall bmelkéo have been received on
next Business Day, and interest, if payable ineespf such payment, shall accrue thereon untih suext Business Day. Agent will remit
each Lender its Percentage of all payments of jp@h@nd interest on the Pool Two Term Loans resgtilly Agent no later than the n
Business Day after the Agent is deemed to havewetsuch payment.

2.6. PrepaymentBorrowers may prepay all or any Pool Two Terrmadn full or in part at any time without penalty
premium. Any partial prepayments will be appligdAgent to the monthly installments due on theiplytprepaid Pool Two Term Loan in 1
inverse order of their maturities.

ARTICLE 1l
Collateral; Reserves

Payment of Borrowers' obligations hereunder, urtderPool One Term Loans, Pool Two Term Loans, uragr deposit accou
relationship and overdrafts with Agent, and undse toan Documents shall be secured and/or suppdyethe following (hereinaft
collectively referred to as the “Collateral”) urdill such obligations are fully and finally paiddaperformed in full:




3.1. Personal PropertyThe Loans made pursuant to this Agreement ahathér indebtedness arising hereunder ¢
connection herewith shall be collateralized andosuied by a security interest, and each Borroweslhegrants to the Agent, a security inte
in all of each Borrower's respective assets astmatiaith or located at a Hotel encumbered with atgame or deed of trust reference:
Section 3.2 below, including, but not limited tacé Borrower's goods, equipment and inventory, oamved as well as any and all thereof
may hereafter be acquired by such Borrower, arghthto all cash and narash proceeds (including, without limitation, irsouce proceed:
accessions, accessories and products thereof |lasfdsach Borrower's accounts receivable, genetaingibles, payment intangibles, softw
chattel paper (whether tangible or electronic),adétpaccounts, documents, investment property astiliments now owned or hereafter ari
or acquired and all cash and ncash proceeds thereof. Such security interesk sedurther evidenced by those certain Second Atedran
Restated Security Agreements (as amended, coldygtithe "Security Agreement”) executed and deéideby each Borrower to t
Agent. Each Borrower further agrees to authergitatthe Agent and hereby authorizes the Agenilédrf all filing offices the Agent deer
necessary, appropriate or desirable such finaratatgments, continuations, assignments or otheuments as may be requested by the A
at any time and from time to time in order for thgent to perfect the security interest in the afoeationed Collateral.

3.2. Real PropertyThe Loans made pursuant to this Agreement dnatfadr indebtedness arising hereunder or in cdion
herewith shall be collateralized and supportedhgyrhortgages or deeds of trust, as the case mdigtee, in Schedule 3.2 attached hereto
incorporated herein by reference encumbering thielslaescribed therein (as amended, collectivaly,"Mortgage™). Borrowers will exect
such amendments and instruments to the Mortgageraquired by Agent in order to create, attach perdect Lenders' mortgage on the Hc
encumbered by the Mortgage.

3.3. Other DocumentsBorrowers agree to furnish such information &mdexecute such other documents or undertak
other acts as may be reasonably necessary to gberdact and maintain the security interests asigaments contemplated by this Agreen
or as otherwise reasonably requested by the Agemt fime to time.

3.4. Maintenance and Capital ExpendifReserve For each Reserve Hotel, each month the app&cabtrower which owr
such Hotel will deposit, in a deposit account maimed with the Agent, an amount not less than tpereent (3%) of the gross revenues
such Hotel for the prior month to be maintainedaasash reserve for maintenance and capital expeedif{the "Maintenance and Cay
Expenditure Reserve"). Borrowers hereby grantAbgent a security interest in the Maintenance angdit@aExpenditure Reserve and \
execute such documents required by the Agent tateregrant, attach and perfect the Agent's Liensoch Maintenance and Cap
Expenditures Reserve. Borrowers will submit retgiésr reimbursement or invoices for payment ofitedpexpenditures for Reserve Hot
and the Agent will not unreasonably deny such retpueBorrowers will be reimbursed from Maintenaaeel Capital Expenditure Rese
funds within ten (10) days of request.

ARTICLE IV
Representations and Warranties

Each Borrower represents and warrants to Lendeniciwepresentations and warranties will survive tlelivery of the Pool Ol
Term Notes and Pool Two Term Notes and shall caetsp long as any sums remain outstanding unddradues, this Agreement or any ot
Loan Document as follows:




4.1. Standing Each Borrower is a limited liability company gurganized, validly existing and in good standingler th
laws of the State of South Dakota. Each Borrowatly qualified and is in good standing in evetlyen jurisdiction where such qualificati
and good standing is required in order to condusir®ss in such jurisdiction. Each Borrower hasgbwer and authority to own its propt
and to carry on its business.

4.2. Authority. Each Borrower has the full power and authorityekecute and deliver this Agreement and the otloar
Documents, and the same constitute the binding earfdrceable obligations of Borrowers in accordandéh their terms. No consent
approval of the members or manager of either Bograw any other Person, creditor, governmental dieygat, agency or body are require:
a condition to the effectiveness and validity o thoan Documents. The execution of and performdoyceach Borrower of its obligatic
under the Loan Documents to which it is a party een duly authorized by all appropriate and resguiimited liability company proceedir
and action and will not violate, conflict with oomtravene any provisions (i) of law or any regaatiorder, writ, judgment, injunction, deci
permit, or license applicable to such Borrowermy af such Borrower's property, or (ii) of such Biwer's Articles of Organization, Operat
Agreement or any members’ agreement or other govgior organizational agreement of such Borrowesumh Borrower's members.

4.3. Litigation. There are no actions, suits, arbitration promegdor other proceedings of any nature pendingt@rthe
knowledge of either Borrower, threatened, or amgidtherefor, against or affecting either Borrowerny Collateral at law or in equity, in ¢
court or before any governmental department or @genarbitrator or arbitration panel, which magut in a Material Adverse Effect.

4.4. Conflicting AgreementsThere are no provisions of any existing mortgagdenture, deed of trust, trust deed, le
contract or agreement of any nature binding oneeiBorrower or affecting the Collateral or eithesrBywer's other property, which woi
conflict with or in any way prevent the executidelivery, or performance of the terms of this Agneat and/or the Loan Documents. Nei
Borrower is in default in any respect in the pariance, observance or fulfillment of any obligationyenant or condition contained in i
agreement or instrument to which it is a party.

4.5, Title and Liens Each Borrower has good, valid and marketable tf record to its real, mixed and personal prty
(including, without limitation, the property constiing Collateral), all of which is owned free aobBtar of all mortgages, Liens, pledc
charges, attachments and other security interest®acumbrances of any nature, except for the Redriiiens or as otherwise provided fo
this Agreement or disclosed to and approved by Eendn writing. In respect of leased property, Hpplicable Borrower has valid &
enforceable leasehold interests therein.




4.6. Taxes Each Borrower has filed all federal, state, lpaad other tax and similar returns and has paigrovided for th
payment of all taxes assessments and other govatameharges due thereunder through the date ef Algireement, including withc
limitation, all withholding, FICA and franchise tax. No claims or Liens for unpaid taxes which duve have been asserted, claime
threatened against either Borrower.

4.7. Financial StatementBBorrowers' audited financial statements datedfaBecember 31, 2009 and internatlyepare
interim financial statement dated June 30, 201@jexof which have been furnished to Lenders, araptete and correct and fairly ¢
accurately present the financial condition of e&urrower as of such date and the results of opmratfor the period covered by si
statements. Since June 30, 2010, there has bebfatavial Adverse Effect or change with respeceitber Borrower. Neither Borrower t
any material liabilities, direct or contingent, ept those disclosed in the foregoing financialestants or as otherwise disclosed to Lende
writing. No information, exhibit or report furnist by either Borrower to Lenders or the Agent inrerction with the Loans, this Agreemen
any other Loan Document contains any material risstent of fact or omits to state a material facry fact necessary to make the state
contained therein incomplete or not materially gasling.

4.38. Other All statements by either Borrower contained iy aertificate, statement, document or other imsgnt or writing
delivered by or on behalf of either Borrower at éinye pursuant to this Agreement or the other Lbanuments shall constitute represental
and warranties made by Borrowers hereunder. Ne@septation or warranty of either Borrower contdiirethis Agreement or any other Lc
Document, and no statement contained in any agatéj schedule, list, financial statement or othstrument furnished to Lenders or the A(
by or on behalf of Borrowers contains, or will caint any untrue statement of a material fact, oitgnor will omit, to state a material f:
necessary to make the statements contained her#éierein not misleading. To the best of each 8wer's knowledge, all information mate
to the transactions contemplated in this Agreerhastbeen expressly disclosed to Lenders in writing.

4.9. Regulation U No part of the proceeds of the Loans will bedusepurchase or carry any margin stock or to ekteedit tc
others for the purpose of purchasing or carrying such margin stock or to reduce or retire any limel@ness incurred for any such purpos
requested by the Agent, Borrowers will furnish be tAgent a statement in conformity with the requieats of Federal Reserve FormlU-
referred to in Regulation U to the foregoing effect

4.10. ERISA

€)) Definitions The following terms shall have the following ohitions:
@ "Consolidated Entity" shall mean argrporation or other entity which owns at least 5684he voting or contr
rights or interest or other ownership interestithex Borrower directly or indirectly in any manner in which at least 50%
the voting stock or other ownership interest inhsgorporation or other entity is owned by eitherr®wer directly o

indirectly in any manner. If Borrowers have no Galidated Entities, the provisions of this Agreemeelating tc
Consolidated Entities shall be inapplicable withafiiecting the applicability of such provisionsBorrowers alone.
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(b)

2 "ERISA" shall mean the Employee Ratient Income Security Act of 1974, as amended fiora to time.
3) "Internal Revenue Code" shall meanltiiernal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended fromtt time.

4) "Pension Event" shall mean, with esdpto any Pension Plan, the occurrence of: (§) pmohibited transactic
described in Section 406 of ERISA or in Section 5@7 the Internal Revenue Code; (ii) any Reportdblent; (i) an
complete or partial withdrawal, or proposed complet partial withdrawal, of Borrowers or any Condated Entity fror
such Pension Plan; (iv) any complete or partiahteation, or proposed complete or partial termoratiof such Pension Pl
or (v) any accumulated funding deficiency (whetbenot waived), as defined in Section 302 of ERK3AN Section 412 «
the Internal Revenue Code.

(5) "Pension Plan" shall mean any pengian, as defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA, whistaimultiemployer plan ¢
a single employer plan, as defined in Section 46DERISA, and subject to Title IV of ERISA and whids (i) a pla
maintained by either Borrower or any Consolidatediti for employees or former employees of either®wer or of an
Consolidated Entity, (ii) a plan to which eitherrBawer or any Consolidated Entity contributes oreguired to contribut
(ii) a plan to which either Borrower or any Coridaked Entity was required to make contributionarat time during the fiv
(5) calendar years preceding the date of this Ages# or (iv) any other plan with respect to whidther Borrower or an
Consolidated Entity has incurred or may incur lisdhi including, without limitation, contingent I@lity, under Title IV o
ERISA either to such plan or to the Pension Ben@fiaranty Corporation. For purposes of the défing of the terrr
"Pension Event" and "Pension Plan", each Borrowetl $nclude any trade or business (whether orimodrporated) whicl
together with such Borrower or any Consolidateditiznts deemed to be a single employer within thearing of Sectic
4001(b)(1) of ERISA.

(6) "Reportable Event" shall mean anynéwkescribed in Section 4043(b) of ERISA or in dagons issued thereunc
with regard to a Pension Plan.

ERISA Representations and WarrantiEsach Borrower represents and warrants to Lerttats

@ No Pension Plan has been terminategartially terminated, or is insolvent, or in rganization, nor have a
proceedings been instituted to terminate or redrgaeny Pension Plan;
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2 Neither Borrower nor any Consolidatedtity has withdrawn from any Pension Plan in anpkete or parti
withdrawal, nor has a condition occurred whicltgdhtinued, would result in a complete or partiahdrawal;

3 Neither Borrower nor any Consolidateatity has incurred any withdrawal liability, imeling, without limitatior
contingent withdrawal liability, to any Pension Rl@ursuant to Title IV of ERISA;

4 Neither Borrower nor any ConsolidaEdity has incurred any liability to the Pensioerfit Guaranty Corporati
other than for required insurance premiums whioketHzeen paid when due;

(5) No Reportable Event has occurred wéthard to a Pension Plan;

(6) No Pension Plan or other "employeaspn benefit plan”, as defined in Section 3(2)E&ISA, to which eithe

Borrower or any Consolidated Entity is a party hasaccumulated funding deficiency (whether or naived), as defined
Section 302 of ERISA or Section 412 of the IntefRalenue Code;

(7) The present value of all benefitstedsunder any such Pension Plan does not exceadline of the assets of st
Pension Plan allocable to such vested benefits;

(8) Each Pension Plan and each other mapl benefit plan as defined in Section 3(2) of &Rlto which eithe
Borrower or any Consolidated Entity is a party heseived a favorable determination by the InteRalenue Service wi
respect to qualification under Section 401(a) efltiternal Revenue Code;

9 Each Pension Plan and each other amapl benefit plan as defined in Section 3(2) of &Rlto which eithe
Borrower or any Consolidated Entity is a party is substantial compliance with ERISA, and no sucanpbr an
administrator, trustee or fiduciary thereof hasageg in a prohibited transaction defined or descrim Section 406
ERISA or in Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue€&€and

(20) Neither Borrower nor any ConsolidaEntity has incurred any liability or a trusteetarst established pursuan
Section 4049 of ERISA or to a trustee appointedipant to Section 4042(b) or (c) of ERISA.

ERISA Indemnity In addition to any other transfer prohibitiors #rth herein and in the other Loan Documentd, raot ir

limitation thereof, neither Borrower shall assigall, pledge, encumber, transfer, hypothecatel@ratise dispose of its interest or rights in
Agreement or in the Collateral, or attempt to dg ahthe foregoing or suffer any of the foregoimgpr shall any shareholder or membe
either Borrower assign, sell, pledge, encumbensfex, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of anytsofights or interest in such Borrow
attempt to do any of the foregoing or suffer anyhaf foregoing, if such action would cause the lsoanthe exercise of any of Lenderigjhts
in connection therewith, to constitute a prohibitethsaction under ERISA or the Internal RevenudeCar otherwise result in Lenders be
deemed in violation of any applicable provisionERISA. Borrowers jointly and severally agree tademnify and hold Lenders free ¢
harmless from and against all loss, costs (incldittorneys' fees and expenses), taxes, damagsad(itg consequential damages),
expenses Lenders may suffer by reason of the iigedistn, defense and settlement of claims and iaining any prohibited transacti
exemption under ERISA necessary or desirable inAgent's sole judgment or by reason of a breackthefforegoing prohibitions. T
foregoing indemnification shall survive repaymehthe Loans.
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4.11. Solvency Each Borrower is and, after consummation of ttamsactions contemplated by this Agreement wil)
Solvent. “Solvent’shall mean that, as of a particular date, (i) sBolwrower is able to realize upon its assets and ifsagebts and oth
liabilities, contingent obligations and other cortiménts as they mature in the ordinary course oifless; (ii) such Borrower is not engage
a business or a transaction, and is not about gagain a business or a transaction, for which ®mfower's property would constiti
unreasonably small capital after giving due cormsitien to the prevailing practice in the industnywhich such Borrower is engaged, (iii)
fair value of the property of such Borrower is dezahan the total amount of liabilities, includjngithout limitation, contingent liabilities,
such Borrower and (iv) the present fair salableigaf the assets of such Borrower is not less tharamount that will be required to pay
probable liability of such Borrower on its debtsthgy become absolute and matured. In computiagathount of contingent liabilities at ¢
time, it is intended that such liabilities will m@mputed at the amount which, in light of all tlaeté and circumstances existing at such
represents the amount that can reasonably be expecbecome an actual or matured liability.

412, Compliance With LawThe business and operations of the Borrowers tompall respects with all applicable fede
state, regional, county and local laws, includinthaut limitation statutes, rules, regulations amdinances relating to public health, safet
the environment or disposals to air, water, landymundwater, to the withdrawal or use of groundnato the use, handling or disposs
polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), asbestos or foemaldehyde, to the treatment, storage, disposahanagement of hazardous substa
(including, without limitation, petroleum, its deatives, byproducts or other hydrocarbons), to exposure tdactotazardous, or otk
controlled, prohibited or regulated substanceghéotransportation, storage, disposal, managenrergl@ase of gaseous or liquid substar
and any regulation, order, injunction, judgmentcldeation, notice or demand issued thereunder, ptxatere the failure to so com,
(individually or in the aggregate) would not reaably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

ARTICLE V
Financial and Affirmative Covenants

So long as this Agreement remains in effect, oloag as there is any principal or interest due uride Loans, unless the Requi
Lenders shall otherwise consent in writing, Borrasweill:
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5.1. Financial Covenant8Borrowers shall maintain and comply with thddaling financial covenants:

(a). Debt Service Coverage Rati@ach Borrower shall maintain at all times, omobing four-quarter average (f
each Borrowes four most recent fiscal quarters then ended)eht [ervice Coverage Ratio of not less than 1.80:1The firs
quarterly calculation and measurement of the Debti€e Coverage Ratio shall be September, 2010.

(b). Total Debt The aggregate Total Debt outstanding at anytiome of Borrowers, The Summit Group, Inc. and
other affiliates or subsidiaries of The Summit Grplnc. and either Borrower shall not exceed $480,000.00.

5.2. Books and Records; Inspectioridaintain proper books and records and accounfiiancial transactions in a man
consistent with the preparation of the financiatements referenced is Section 4.7, and permitAthent's officers and/or authoriz
representatives or accountants to visit and inspectowers' respective properties, examine thewksoand records, conduct audits of
Collateral and discuss their accounts and busiméts their respective officers, accountants anditausl all at reasonable times u
reasonable notice. Borrowers will cooperate irmmging for such inspections and audits. Withoet phior written consent of the Requi
Lenders, neither Borrower will change in any mateway the accounting principles upon which thaficial statements referenced in Sec
4.7 were prepared and based except for changesasaaeesult of changes in or to generally accegtedunting principles.

5.3. Financial ReportingDeliver to the Agent financial information incduform and detail and at such times as are setisf
to the Agent, including, without limitation:

(@) Each Borrower's year end financiateshents (to include, but not be limited to, batasleeet, income statement,
net worth reconciliation, each setting forth in garative form figures for the preceding fiscal yedérBorrowers), audited by
certified public accounting firm selected and apgeeb by the Audit Committee of Summit Hotel as sasravailable and in any ev
within one hundred twenty (120) days after the ehéach of Borrower's respective fiscal years;

(b) Each Borrower's interim quarterlydirtial statements (to include its unaudited balaheset as of the end of e
such period and the related unaudited statemeniscofme, and statement of changes in financialtjposior such period and t
portion of the fiscal year through such date, sgtforth in each case in comparative form the figuior the previous year) as soo
available, but in any event within twenty (20) dafter the end of each quarter, signed and cattifigrrect by the Chief Financ
Officer or equivalent of Borrowers (subject to nairgear-end adjustments);

(c) a quarterly certificate of the chfefancial officer of each Borrower substantially time form of Schedule 5.3
attached hereto and incorporated herein by referdfijcdemonstrating compliance with the finan@alenants contained in Sect
5.1 by calculation thereof as of the end of eaahdiscal period, (ii) stating that no Event of Beh exists, or if any Event of Defa
does exist, specifying the nature and extent tfiemad what action such Borrower proposes to taki wéspect thereto and (
certifying that all of the representations and w&aties made by such Borrower in this Agreementarid/any other Loan Docume
are true and correct in all material respects ahamnof such date as if made on and as of suchwldbén twentyfive (25) days afte
the end of each quarter; and
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(d) Such other financial information cermuing Borrowers as the Agent may require from timéme.

All financial statements required hereunder shallcbmplete and correct in all respects and shafirbpared in reasonable detail (consit
with the financial statements referred to in Subieadt.7.) and applied consistently throughoutgbkeods reflected therein.

5.4. Payment of Debts, Taxes and ClairRsomptly pay and discharge prior to delinqueaitglebts, accounts, liabilities, tax
assessments and other governmental charges os ieyi@sed upon, or due from, either Borrower, abb ageall claims of any kind (includit
claims for labor, materials and supplies) whichynpaid, might by law become a lien or charge ugioyn of a Borrower's property, except
nothing herein contained shall be interpreted tpire the payment of any such debt, account, ltgbilax, assessment or charge so long
validity is being contested in good faith by apprate legal proceedings and against which, if retee by the Agent or required by genel
accepted accounting principles, reserves satisfatwcand deposited with the Agent have been miaeiefor. Any such reserves will constit
additional Collateral and Borrowers hereby graetAlgent a first priority security interest in sugserves.

5.5. Insurance Each Borrower will purchase, pay for in advaregd at all times maintain insurance including it limitec
to: (i) fire, windstorm and other hazards, casesaland contingencies covered by the tak" form of insurance; (ii) public liability; (i)
workers' compensation and (iv) property damagesasustomarily maintained by similar businesses ands the Agent from time to tir
requires. In addition, if a Hotel is located indH hazard area, the applicable Borrower will abtaid maintain appropriate flood insuranc
is acceptable to the Agent. The amounts, limitans, deductibles, contents and issuer of saiaipslishall be subject to the Agent's reasor
approval. The Agent, as Collateral Agent for Lasdehall be named as an additional insured amtiésest shall appear and each of
policies covering the Collateral shall contain sslgayable clause, and any proceeds of such irginarexcess of $100,000.00 shall be e
(in the discretion of the Required Lenders) (i) lalg to the Collateral Agent for application to theans and any other sums owing under
Agreement or any other Loan Document in a manndrpiority to be determined by the Required Lendargheir sole discretion or (ii)
consented to by the Required Lenders, used foora&in or repair with such proceeds disbursedhieyAgent in accordance with procedt
established by the Agent. All such insurance ghraVide for noncancellation without at least $i¢80) days prior written notice to the Ag
and shall contain provisions protecting the Cottatégent's interests whether or not any acts HyeeiBorrower or others should result in
of coverage under such policies. The originalstifeed copies or certificates of such policiesdarenewals evidencing the insurance reqt
hereunder shall be delivered to the Agent, and suslrance shall be maintained in full force anigafat all times during the period of t
Agreement and while any indebtedness under thed tanains outstanding.
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In the event either Borrower at any time or timeselafter shall fail to obtain or maintain any oé tholicies of insurance requil
above or to pay any premium in whole or in paratiah thereto, then the Lenders, without waivingeleasing any obligation or default
Borrowers hereunder, may at any time or times #fege (but shall be under no obligation to do sbjatm and maintain such policies
insurance and pay such premium and take any otitemawith respect thereto which the Required Leaddeem advisable. All sums
disbursed by Lenders, including, without limitatigrasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, expemsesther charges relating thereto, she
part of Borrowers' obligations and indebtednesgtmsder, secured by the Collateral and payablelycamtd severally by Borrowers to the Ag
on demand. UNLESS BORROWERS PROVIDE EVIDENCE OF THE INSURANCE COVERAGE REQUIRED UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT AND/OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT, LENDERS M AY PURCHASE INSURANCE AT THE BORROWERS'
JOINT AND SEVERAL EXPENSE TO PROTECT LENDERS’ INTEREST IN THE COLLATERAL. THIS INSURANCE MAY,
BUT NEED NOT, PROTECT BORROWERS' RESPECTIVE INTERESTS. THE COVERAGE THAT LENDERS PURCHASE MAY
NOT PAY ANY CLAIM THAT A BORROWER MAY MAKE OR ANY C LAIM THAT IS MADE AGAINST A BORROWER IN
CONNECTION WITH THE COLLATERAL. BORROWERS MAY LATE R CANCEL ANY INSURANCE PURCHASED BY
LENDERS, BUT ONLY AFTER PROVIDING EVIDENCE THAT BOR ROWERS HAVE EACH OBTAINED INSURANCE AS
REQUIRED BY THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER LOAN DOCUME NT. IF LENDERS PURCHASE INSURANCE FOR THE
COLLATERAL, BORROWERS WILL BE JOINTLY AND SEVERALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COSTS OF THAT
INSURANCE, INCLUDING THE INSURANCE PREMIUM, INTERES T AND ANY OTHER CHARGES LENDERS MAY IMPOSE
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PLACEMENT OF INSURANCE, UNTI L THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE CANCELLATION OR
EXPIRATION OF THE INSURANCE. THE COSTS OF THE INSU RANCE MAY BE ADDED TO THE BORROWERS'
OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER AND SHALL BE SECURED BY THE C OLLATERAL. THE COSTS OF THE INSURANCE MAY
BE MORE THAN THE COST OF INSURANCE BORROWERS MAY BE ABLE TO OBTAIN ON THEIR OWN.

5.6. Property Maintenanceé{eep their respective properties in good repadrking order, and condition and from time to t
make any needful and proper repairs, renewalsacepients, extensions, additions, and improvemkatstp so that the business of Borro\
will be conducted at all times in accordance withdgnt business management.

5.7. Existence; Compliance With Law§ake or cause to be taken such action as frome tb time may be necessar)
preserve and maintain their respective existendbdin jurisdiction of organization and qualify aneimain qualified as a foreign entity in e
jurisdiction in which such qualification is requit@nd use dudiligence to comply with all statutes, laws, codedes, regulations and ord
applicable or pertaining to the business or prgpefBorrowers, or any part thereof, and with aher lawful government requirements rela
to their respective business and property. EachoBer will continue to engage in the same linebwdiness in which it is presently engaged.
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5.8. Litigation; Adverse EventsPromptly inform the Agent of the commencementey action, suit, proceeding, arbitrat
mediation or investigation against either Borrowar,the making of any counterclaim against eitherrBwver, which could be reasona
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect, ananptty inform the Agent of all Liens against any @ther Borrower's property, other t
Permitted Liens, which could be reasonably expetidthve a Material Adverse Effect, and promptlyisel the Agent in writing of any ott
condition, event or act which comes to either @itlattention that could be reasonably expecteldatee a Material Adverse Effect or mi
materially prejudice Lenders’ rights under this A&gment or the Loan Documents.

5.9. Notification Notify the Agent immediately if either of thenedomes aware of the occurrence of any Event of ultefas
defined under Article VII hereof) or of any facgrdition, or event that, only with the giving oftiog or passage of time or both, would bec
an Event of Default, or if either of them becomesge of a material adverse change in the businespects, financial condition (includii
without limitation, proceedings in bankruptcy, ihsmncy, reorganization, or the appointment of a&neer or trustee), or results of operation:
the failure of either Borrower to observe any eflindertakings under the Loan Documents. Borrosleal also notify the Agent in writing
any default under any other indenture, agreememtract, lease or other instrument to which eitBerrower is a party or under which eit
Borrower is obligated, and of any accelerationtef maturity of any material indebtedness of eitBerrower which default or accelerat
could be reasonably expected to have a Materialefsdy Effect, and Borrowers shall take all stepses®sary to remedy promptly any s
default, to protect against any such adverse clairdefend any such proceeding and to resolveuahi sontroversies.

5.10. Inspections Each Borrower shall allow the Agent, its empleyeofficers, agents and representatives, at rabt
intervals and during normal business hours, toéaspuch Borrower's operations, books and recfirdsjcial books and records (including
right to make copies thereof) and to discuss sumindBver's affairs, finances and accounts with deirower's managers, principal officers
independent public accountants. Each Borrowerl gfamit the Agent, and will cooperate with the Agen arranging for, inspections
reasonable intervals of such Borrower's facilitesl audits of the Collateral. Each Borrower ackedges that any reports and inspect
conducted or generated by the Agent or its agentepresentatives, shall be made for the sole tesfefenders and not for the benefit
Borrowers or any third party, and Lenders do nguate any liability, responsibility or obligation Borrowers or any third party by reasot
such inspections or reports. The reasonable d¢aatyoaudits or inspections made by Lenders steajpdid or reimbursed jointly and sever
by Borrowers.

5.11. Conduct of BusinessContinue to engage in an efficient and econohrizanner in the business currently conducte
Borrowers on the date of this Agreement.

5.12. Initial Public Offering Lenders acknowledge that Borrowers are in tloegss of completing an initial public offering
convert Borrowers into a real estate investmerdttfthe "Initial Public Offering"). Upon consumriwt of the Initial Public Offering tf
Borrower's obtaining the proceeds thereof, Borrowily as a mandatory prepayment, repay in full tstanding principal balance, along v
accrued and unpaid interest and fees, on the Pe®lT@rm Loans.
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ARTICLE VI
Negative Covenants

So long as this Agreement remains in effect, doag as there is any principal or interest due uikle Loans, this Agreement or :
of the other Loan Documents, neither Borrower shidthout the prior written consent of the Requiteshders:

6.1. Liens Create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any laeother encumbrance upon any of its respectwsgmal propertis
or assets, whether now owned or hereafter acquinezkpt such security interests, mortgages, pledges or other encumbrances (eac
"Permitted Lien):

€) created or granted by such Borrowsten or pursuant to this Agreement or the othemlLDacuments;

(b) created or granted by such Borroweténders under the Original Loan Agreement an@amrent Loan Agreement a
securing indebtedness arising thereunder;

(c) securing debt allowed in Section Below incurred in the ordinary course of such Baeds business, consistent v
current practices;

(d) Liens for taxes, assessments or gowental charges or levies to the extent not deénguwr that are being diligen
contested in good faith by appropriate proceedarys for which such Borrower has set aside adeqeagrves in accordance with genel
accepted accounting principles;

(e) cash pledges or deposits to secuyeofdigations under workmes’compensation laws or similar legislation, (B) llor
statutory obligations of such Borrower, (C) bidsade contracts, surety and appeal bonds, perfoenapnads, letters of credit and ot
obligations of a similar nature incurred in or nesary to the ordinary course of such Borrower'$nass;

) Liens imposed by law, such as materén’s, mechanics’, carriers’, workmen’s and repein’s liens and other similar lie
arising in the ordinary course of business secuniniggations which are not overdue by more thard&gs or which have been fully bondet
are being diligently contested in good faith by yppiate proceedings and for which adequate resdrage been set aside in accordance
generally accepted accounting principles;

(9) purchase money Liens or purchase maeeurity interests upon or in property acquirecheld by such Borrower in t
ordinary course of business to secure the purghidse of such property or to secure indebtednessriad solely for the purpose of financ
the acquisition of any such property to be subiecuch Liens or security interests, or Liens ausigy interests existing on any such prop
at the time of acquisition, or extensions, renewalgeplacements of any of the foregoing for thmear a lesser amountrovidedthat no suc
Lien or security interest shall extend to or coesy property other than the property being acquaed no such extension, renewa
replacement shall extend to or cover property hetdtofore subject to the Lien or security intetesing extended, renewed or replaced,
provided, furthel, that the aggregate principal amount of indebtesg@ any one time outstanding secured by Liemsited by this clause (
shall not exceed $75,000.00 per Hotel,
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(h) easements, rightswéy, zoning and other similar restrictions and enlstances, which do not (individually or in
aggregate) materially detract from the use of ttop@rty to which they attach by Borrowers;

() liens disclosed in Schedule 4.%etted to this Agreement and incorporated hereirefgrence; and

)] mortgages or deeds of trust pravidpermanent financing on Borrowers' Hotels whih reot Collateral for the Loans, ¢
mortgages or deeds of trust encumbering Borrowavs'land pursuant to that certain Amended and Rabtaoan Agreement dated May
2010 (the "Amended Fortress Loan Agreement") andrayvbridge Special Opportunities Fund LP, Fortr€sadit Opportunities Fund 1 |
and Eton Park CLO Management 2 and Summit Hotel.

6.2. Fundamental Change¥/ind up, liquidate, or dissolve; reorganize, geeor consolidate with or into another entity, el,
transfer, convey or lease all, substantially alaoy material part of its property, to another Bersther than sale of such Borrower's inver
in the ordinary course of business; sell or assigy accounts receivable; purchase or otherwiseir@cgli or substantially all of the asset:
any corporation, partnership, limited liability cpamy or other entity, or any shares or similar gginterest in any other entity if such entit
in a business unrelated to the business of sucio®er.

6.3. Conduct of BusinessMaterially alter the character in which it cowothiits business or the nature of such bus
conducted at the date hereof.

6.4. Debt Create, incur, assume or suffer to exist angadlior indirect indebtedness, except the follow(iiRermitted Debt"):
(@) Indebtedness under or pursuant Algreement or the other Loan Documents;
(b) Accounts payable to trade creditansgoods or services which are not aged more thanater of (i) ninety (9(

days from the billing date, or (ii) ten (10) daysrh the due date, or (iii) the "special paymenttaffered to such Borrower from tit
to time by a particular trade creditors, and curaperating liabilities (other than for borrowed mey) which are not more than thi
(30) days past due, in each case incurred in tti@anmy course of business, as presently conduatedi paid within the specified tin
unless contested in good faith and by appropriedegedings;

19




(c) Indebtedness to First National unithat certain Second Amended and Restated Loan Agnetedated August 1
2010, as such Second Amended and Restated Loaergre may be amended or restated;

(d) Indebtedness to the Lenders partheédCurrent Loan Agreement;

(e) Indebtedness under the Amended FEwritean Agreement in an amount not to exceed $09)®0.00 (the "Fortre
Debt"); and

® The indebtedness disclosed in Bormever Borrowers parent's quarterly filings witheti$ecurities Exchan

Commission so long as such indebtedness does ce¢éxhe Total Debt.

6.5. InvestmentsAcquire for investment purposes, investments weauld not qualify as "customary and prudent inments”
consistent with the current investment practicesuzh Borrower.

6.6. Loans Directly or indirectly loan amounts to or guaesn or otherwise become contingently liable for dedts of an
Person, including, but not limited to an affiligtther than a wholly owned affiliate), subsidiaparent of such Borrower, or any shareho
officer or employee thereof; or of any officer, doyee, manager or member of such Borrower or toertity controlled by any such ent
officer, manager, member, shareholder or employemjided, however, that Summit Hotel may make ld@nSummit Hotel's employees in
amount not to exceed $50,000 in the aggregateydirae outstanding.

6.7. Executive Managementinless the Required Lenders otherwise consentritng, Kerry W. Boekelheide shall rem:
each Borrower's operations manager and the Pregifi@dihe Summit Group, Inc., and The Summit Grduap, shall be the property manage
each Hotel pursuant to each Borrower's Operatingémgent.

6.8 Transactions With AffiliatesEnter into, or cause, suffer or permit to ex@sty arrangement or contract with any o
affiliates or subsidiaries, in each case unlesé sutangement or contract (i) is otherwise permittg this Agreement, (i) is in the ordini
course of business of such Borrower or such affila subsidiary, as the case may be, andgiin terms no less favorable to such Borrow
such affiliate or subsidiary than if such arrangetr@ contract had been negotiated in good faitlamm@rm’s-length basis with a Pergbat is
not an affiliate or subsidiary of such Borrower.

6.9. Refinance of LoandNeither Borrower shall refinance any Propertyerehthe principal amount of the debt exceeds sg
percent (70%) of the Appraised Value of such Priyper

ARTICLE VI
Events of Default

7.1 Events of DefaultThe occurrence of any one or more of the folfmévents shall constitute a default by Borrowerdey
this Agreement ("Event of Default"):
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(@) The nopayment, when due, whether by demand, accelerationtherwise, of any principal and/or inte
payment, fee, expense or other obligation for tmgmpent of money under the Loans or under any dtben Document and the sa
remains unpaid for a period of ten (10) days aftéiten notice from the Agent to Borrowers of sdaliure; or

(b) A breach by either Borrower or thewtence of an event of default under any loanegent, promissory no
security agreement or other agreement, lease, amtrmr document to which such Borrower is a partyuieder which it is boun
including, but not limited to, the Fortress Debtahe indebtedness under the Loan Agreement refedeim Section 6.4(c) abo
directly or contingently, beyond any applicableagar notice and cure period unless such Borrosveomtesting such failure in gc
faith through appropriate proceedings, and if retee by the Required Lenders or required by gelyeeaicepted accountil
principles, such Borrower has bonded, reservedtmrwise provided for payment of such indebtedness;

(c) A breach by either Borrower in the performance bsesvance of any term, covenant or provision caethiir
Sections 5.1, 5.4, 5.5, 5.7, 5.9, 5.12, 6.1, 6.2, 6.4, 6.7 or 6.9 of this Agreement and the sangins unperformed or is not cu
within a period of ten (10) days after written etirom the Agent to Borrowers of such failure; or

(d) A breach by either Borrower in therfpemance or observance of any agreement, termer@ant or conditic
contained in this Agreement (other than (a) of@ve) or in the other Loan Documents and suchriaghall not have been remec
within a period of thirty (30) days after writteotice is given by the Agent to Borrowers; or

(e) Any information, representation orraaty made herein, in the Loan Documents or in@hgr writing furnished 1
Lenders in connection with the Loans, this Agreetoerany other Loan Document both before and dlffterexecution hereof, shall
or become incomplete, misleading or false in anyene respect, or if any certificate, statemeepresentation, warranty or at
furnished by or on behalf of the Borrowers in cactimn with this Agreement or any other Loan Documércluding those contain
or in or attached to this Agreement or any othearL®ocument, or as an inducement by the Borroveeesiter into, modify, extend,
renew this Agreement, shall prove to be false y material respect, or if the Borrowers shall hawgtted the listing of a substan
contingent or unliquidated liability or claim agaireither Borrower or, if on the date of executadrthis Agreement there shall h:
been any materially adverse change in any of tbts fdisclosed by any such certificate, statemepesentation, warranty or au
which change shall not have been disclosed by theoBers to the Lenders prior to the time of exiery or
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® Either Borrower shall (i) fail to paany indebtedness for borrowed money, includingrmitlimited to the Fortre
Debt and the indebtedness under the Second AmeamdeRestated Loan Agreement with First Nationaédaugust 15, 2010 as st
Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement magneeded or restated, or any interest or premiunetirerwhen due (whett
by scheduled maturity, required prepayment, acattar, demand or otherwise) and such failure strafitinue after any applical
grace or notice and cure period, unless such Barasvcontesting such failure in good faith throwgipropriate proceedings, an
requested by the Required Lenders or required Iogrgdly accepted accounting principles, such Boemohas bonded, reservec
otherwise provided for payment of such indebtednaséi) fail to perform or observe any term, coaat, or condition on its part to
performed or observed under any agreement or mstnti relating to any such indebtedness, when reduio be performed
observed, if the effect of such failure is to pdrthe acceleration of the maturity of such indebtes;

(9) Either Borrower shall (i) generallgtrpay, or be unable to pay, or admit in writing ihability to pay its debts
such debts become due; or (ii) makes an assignfoerthe benefit of creditors, or petitions or apglito any tribunal for ti
appointment of a custodian, receiver, or trusteeitfoany Collateral or for a substantial part tf assets; or (iii) commences .
proceeding under any bankruptcy, reorganizatiorangement, readjustment of debt, dissolution, quidiation law or statute of a
jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect; ¢v) has any such bankruptcy, reorganizationsaligtion, composition
readjustment of debt petition or application filedany such proceeding commenced against it wisalot discharged within thit
(30) days; or (v) takes any action indicating carnide, approval of, or acquiescence in any suclegeding, or order for relief, or t
appointment of a custodian, receiver, or trusteeafioor any substantial part of its assets angerties; or (vi) suffers any judgme
writ of attachment, execution or similar procesdéoissued or levied against all or a substanti @f its property or assets whicl
not released, stayed or bonded within thirty (3®)sdand which would be reasonably expected to havaterial Adverse Effect; or

(h) This Agreement or any of the Loan Dments shall cease for any reason to be in fulfand effect, or eith
Borrower shall so assert in writing, or the seguritterests created by the Loan Documents shaliecém be enforceable or shall
have the priority purported to be created therabgither Borrower shall so assert in writing; or

() There shall occur the loss, thefhstantial damage to or destruction of any portibtne Collateral not fully covere
by insurance, which by itself or with other suckdes, thefts, damage or destruction of Collatéies, a Material Adverse Effect
there shall occur the exercise of the right of @ndation or eminent domain for any portion of th@l&eral which by itself or wit
other such exercises of the right of condemnatroenginent domain has a Material Adverse Effect; or

()] Either Borrower transfers, sells, igas, or conveys all or such part of its assetgpmperty which could

reasonably expected to have a Material AdversecEffther than in the ordinary course of such Boedsvbusiness consistent w
past practices without the prior written consenthef Required Lenders; or
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(k) Any license, permit or other approvalquired in the operation of either Borrovwgebusiness is terminat
suspended or revoked for any reason or expires; or

)] Borrowers fail to obtain all necessarorporate and limited liability company approvat®nsents and actic
required or necessary for the initiation and consation of Borrowers Initial Public Offering on oetore November 8, 2010; or

(m) Borrowers have not consummated amdpteted the Initial Public Offering, and obtainée tproceeds thereof,
or before February 15, 2011.

7.2. Remedies Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default belyany applicable notice and cure period, the suayslpe
under the Loans (as well as any other indebtedofesgher Borrower to Lenders) then outstandinglldbecome forthwith due and payabli
full, together with interest thereon. The Agentymesort to any and all Collateral, security ana@mny remedy existing at law or in equity for
collection of all outstanding indebtedness and é&mforcement of the covenants and provisions of ltban Documents against
Borrowers. The Agers’ resort to any remedy or Collateral shall not prevthe concurrent and/or subsequent employmemangfjoint o
several remedy or claim against either Borrowene Agent may rescind any acceleration of the Ledtisout in any way waiving or affectil
its right to accelerate the Loans in the futurecéptance of partial payment or partial performasteal not in any way affect or rescind .
acceleration of the Loans made by the Agent. Aolections or payments made after the Agent commermllection efforts shall, af
payment of all expenses relating thereto, be aggl)efirst to interest and principal on the Loaasd (ii) next to any indebtedness owing tc
Agent under any cash management or deposit accelationships with the Borrower, in each case azideed in clauses (i) above all sh¢
by the Lenders ratably.

7.3. Waiver Any waiver of an Event of Default by the Reqdileenders shall not extend to or affect any subsegkivent ¢
Default, whether it be the same Event of Defaulhot, or impair any right consequent thereon. bitufe or delay or discontinuance on
part of the Agent or the Lenders in exercising aoyer or right hereunder shall operate as a wahereof, nor shall any single or par
exercise of any such right or power preclude amgmbr further exercise thereof or the exercisarof other right or power thereunder ol
deemed an election of remedies or a waiver of @hgraight, power, privilege, option or remedy.| Admedies herein and by law afforded
be cumulative and will be available to the Agerd #me Lenders until the debt of the Borrowers hedeu is fully and indefeasibly paid.

7.4. Setoff In addition to any rights now or hereafter geghtinder applicable law and not by way of limitatiaf any suc
rights, upon the occurrence of any Event of Defadth Lender and each subsequent holder of arlyd®@oNote or Pool Two Note is here
authorized by the Borrowers at any time or frometito time, without notice to the Borrowers or tgy ather Person, any such notice b
hereby expressly waived, to set off and to appaterand to apply any and all deposits (generalpecial, including, but not limited 1
indebtedness evidenced by certificates of depasiether matured or unmatured, but not includingttaccounts, and in whatever curre
denominated) relating or attributable to or asdediavith a Hotel and any other indebtedness attiamy held or owing by the Lender or t
subsequent holder to or for the credit or the antof either Borrower whether or not matured, ageand on account of the obligations
liabilities of the Borrowers to that Lender or tlsathsequent holder under the Loan Documents, imgudbut not limited to, all claims of a
nature of description arising out of or connectathwhe Loan Documents, irrespective of whethenor (a) that Lender or that subseq:
holder shall have made any demand hereunder ghébprincipal of or the interest on the Loans attttpamounts due hereunder shall |
become due and payable pursuant to Section 7.2afthdugh said obligations and liabilities, or anf them, may be contingent
unmatured. The Agent agrees to notify Borrowensiiting after any such setff and application made by Lenders; provided, hesvethat th
failure to give such notice shall not affect thdéidity of such set-off and application.
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ARTICLE VIII
Conditions Precedent

8.1. Conditions Precedent to Closings a condition precedent to Closing, Borrowdrallshave delivered to the Agent

following documents (collectively, the "Loan Docums'):

(@) This Agreement, the Pool One Termedand Pool Two Term Notes duly executed by theaaized manager(s)
Borrowers;

(b) The Security Agreement duly execuig@uthorized manager(s) of Borrowers;

(c) Amendments of the Mortgages in formd aubstance acceptable to Agent;

(d) A Secretary's Certificate or equiveleith certified copies of the Articles of Orgaation and Operating Agreem

of each Borrower and an appropriate resolutionuth@rity of each Borrower duly authorizing the extéien and delivery of the Loi
Documents and Borrowers' performance hereundettemdunder;

(e) Each Borrower shall have deliveredhi® Agent a certificate of good standing datedmote than thirty (30) da
prior to the date of this Agreement from the Sdbékota Secretary of State;

® Any other documents, instruments egpbrts as the Agent shall reasonably request; and

(9) The payment by Borrowers of all thgeht's fees and expenses relating to the undamgyritpproving, di
diligence, documenting, securing, negotiating atwking the Loans, including, but not limited toetpayment of the Agen
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, appraisaltide fees and other fees, costs and expenskgeoft.

ARTICLE IX
Miscellaneous

9.1. AmendmentsAny provision of this Agreement and/or the othean Documents may be amended or waived if, biyt

if, such amendment or waiver is in writing andigngd by (i) the Borrowers (ii) the Required Lergjeand (iii) the Agent; provided that:
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€) no reduction in the rate of interastees on the Loans will be made without the writtonsent of each Lender;

(b) no postponement of the scheduled datgayment of the principal or interest amountaofy Loan, or any fees paya
hereunder, or reduction of the amount of, waivegxause of any such payment, will be made withbetvwritten consent of each Lender;

(© no change any of the provisions & Bection or the percentage in the definitionhef term “Required Lendersit any othe
provision hereof specifying the number or perceatafl Lenders required to waive, amend or modify aights hereunder or make ¢
determination or grant any consent hereunder, maydde without the written consent of each Lenaler;

(d) no release of any Collateral for theans prior to the time the Loans are indefeasiidyd in full and the Lenders’
commitment to make Loans has terminated may be méteut the written consent of each Lender.

9.2. ExpensesThe Borrowers jointly and severally agree to flegyreasonable attorneys fees and disbursemetits digent i
connection with the preparation and execution eflthan Documents, and any amendments, waiversnseots related thereto, whether or
the transactions contemplated herein are consurdireatel all reasonable recording, filing, title irsuce or other fees, costs and taxes inc
to perfecting a Lien upon the Collateral. The Baorers further jointly and severally agree to pag tteasonable attorney's fees
disbursements of the Agent in connection with thioeement of the Loan Documents and to indemnéfghel ender and the Agent and
security trustee and their respective directorBcais and employees, against all losses, claimsages, penalties, judgments, liabilities
expenses (including, without limitation, all expesasof litigation or preparation therefor, whethernot the indemnified Person is a pi
thereto) which any of them may pay or incur arising of or relating to any Loan Document or anytd transactions contemplated therek
the direct or indirect application or proposed &ation of the proceeds of any Loan except as mgg drom the gross negligence or wil
misconduct of the party claiming indemnificatiohhe Borrowers upon demand by the Agent, at any tghall reimburse each st
indemnified party for any legal or other expensesiired in connection with investigating or defergdagainst any of the foregoing exce|
the same is directly due to the gross negligenceiltiul misconduct of such indemnified party. Ssrdue by the Borrowers under this Sec
shall bear interest at the highest rate of intquestided for under this Agreement.

9.3. Delay; Waiver Any waiver of an Event of Default by the AgenmtRequired Lenders shall not extend to or affegt
subsequent default, whether it be the same Evebetdult or not, nor impair any right consequergrédon. No failure or delay on the par
the Agent in exercising any right, power or prigéehereunder shall operate as a waiver thereofshedt any single or partial exercise of
such right, power or privilege preclude any othefusther exercise thereof or the exercise of atineoright, power or privilege. No waiver
any provision of this Agreement or of any instrumexecuted hereunder or pursuant hereto or cotsemty departure by Borrowers therefi
shall be effective unless the same shall be inivgiitsigned by an officer of the Agent and eachuReq Lender, and then only to the ex
specified. All rights and remedies of Lenders her@nd by law afforded will be cumulative and wile available to Lenders until 1
indebtedness of Borrower under the Loan Documernitadiefeasibly paid in full and no Commitments remautstanding.
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9.4. Notices Any notice, request, authorization, approvatensent made hereunder shall be in writing and blegbersonall
delivered or sent by registered or certified maild shall be deemed given when delivered or po&edaand mailed postage prepaid to
following addresses or when sent by facsimile wltichfirms receipt to the following facsimile number

If to the Agent: First National Bank of Omaha
1620 Dodge Street
Stop 1050
Omaha, Nebraska 68197
Attn: Marc T. Wisdom
Facsimile: (402) 633-3519

With a copy to: Stinson Morrison Hecker LLP
1299 Farnam Street
Suite 1501
Omaha, Nebraska 68102
Attn: James M. Pfeffer
Facsimile: (402) 829-8731

If to Borrowers: Summit Hotel Properties, LLC
2701 South Minnesota Avenue
Suite 6
Sioux Falls, South Dakota 57105
Attn: Adam Wudel
Facsimile: (605) 362-9388

The Agent and Borrowers may designate a changeldreas by notice given in accordance with the giows of this Subsection
least five (5) days before such change is to beceffeetive.

9.5. Transfer or AssignmenfThis Agreement shall extend to and be bindingnufhe successors and assigns of the p
hereto; provided, however, that neither Borrowey rassign or transfer its rights or obligations lder without the prior written consent
the Required Lenders, and any such assignmenaisfar without such consent shall be void. Lendeayg assign their Commitments or
participations in the Loans with the prior writteansent of the Agent but without notice to Borrosvein addition, the Agent may at any t
in its discretion, but shall not be obligated targhase any or all of any Lender's Pool One Terrredand/or Pool Two Term Notes at the
outstanding principal balance along with accrued ampaid interest on the applicable Pool One TewteNr Pool Two Term Note payable
such Lender.
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9.6. Construction of AgreemenfThe titles and headings of the Subsections ardgpaphs of this Agreement have t
inserted for convenience of reference only andnateintended to summarize or otherwise describestigect matter of such Subsections
paragraphs and shall not be given any consideratitite construction of this Agreement.

9.7. Applicable Law; Waiver of Jury TIriaThis Agreement shall be governed by, and coedtim accordance with, the laws
the State of Nebraska, exclusive of its choiceaofd rules. Any legal action or proceeding with eedto this Agreement or any other L
Document may be brought in the courts of the Statéebraska in Douglas County, or of the Unitedt&tdor the District of Nebraska, and,
execution and delivery of this Agreement, Borrowleeseby irrevocably accept for themselves and speet of their property, generally ¢
unconditionally, the nonexclusive jurisdiction afch courts. Borrowers further irrevocably congenthe service of process out of any of
aforementioned courts in any such action or proogeby the mailing of copies thereof by registecedtertified mail, postage prepaid, to i
the address set out for notices pursuant to Se8tipnsuch service to become effective three ($¥ ddter such mailing. Nothing herein s
affect the right of the Agent to serve processrig ather manner permitted by law or to commencall@goceedings or to otherwise proc
against Borrowers in any other jurisdiction. Bevess hereby irrevocably waive any objection whibbyt may now or hereafter have to
laying of venue of any of the aforesaid actiongmrceedings arising out of or in connection witls thgreement or any other Loan Docun
brought in the courts referred to above and hefalther irrevocably waive and agree not to pleadtlamm in any such court that any s
action or proceeding brought in any such courtbeen brought in an inconvenient forunTHE AGENT, LENDERS AND BORROWERS
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ALL RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR COUNTERCLAIM
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, ANY O F THE OTHER LOAN DOCUMENTS OR THE
TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED HEREBY

9.8. Sharing of SetoffsIf any Lender shall, by exercising any rightseftoff or otherwise, obtain payment in respectrol
principal of or interest on any of the Loans rdasglin such Lender receiving payment of a proportid the aggregate amount of its Percer
and accrued interest thereon greater than its g@ share thereof as provided in this Agreemet) tthe Lender receiving such gre
proportion shall (A) notify the Agent of such faefyd (B) purchase (for cash at face value) padt@ps in the Loans of the other Lender:
make such other adjustments as shall be equitsdbléhat the benefit of all such payments shalllzged by the Lenders ratably in accord:
with their respective Percentages, provided tiiaiy such participations are purchased and ahgrportion of the payment giving rise the
is recovered, such participations shall be resciraiel the purchase price restored to the exteaticf recovery, without interest. Borrow
consent to the foregoing and agree, to the exteyt may effectively do so under applicable law thiay Lender acquiring a participat
pursuant to the foregoing arrangements may exeagjaést Borrowers rights of setoff and countenslaiith respect to such participatior
fully as if such Lender were a direct creditor afrBwers in the amount of such participation.
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9.9. Entire AgreementThe Loan Documents constitute the entire undadihg of the parties thereto with respect to thgex
matter thereof and any prior or contemporaneouseagents, whether written or oral, with respectdteare superseded hereby. All of
terms of the other Loan Documents are incorporateahd made part of this Agreement by referenceyided, however, that to the exten
any direct conflict between this Agreement and saitier Loan Documents, this Agreement shall preaadl govern.

9.10. Execution in Counterparts; Faxebhis Agreement may be executed in any numbearoahterparts, and by the differ
parties on different counterparts, each of whicremtexecuted shall be deemed an original but alh suunterparts taken together s
constitute one and the same instrument. This Ages¢ and any of the other Loan Documents may hdlyadxecuted and delivered by fax
other electronic means and by use of multiple cenpatrt signature pages.

9.11. Amended and Restated Credit Farilifgns Unimpaired. This Agreement amends, restates and replace€uhen
Credit Agreement in its entirety. It is the intemtand understanding of the parties that (a) Algigeement shall act as a refinancing of the
and other obligations evidenced by the Current iCrégreement and that this Agreement shall notaact novation of such debt and o
obligations, (b) all Liens securing the obligatiomsdenced by the Current Credit Agreement shatiaia in full force and effect and st
secure the Loans and all other obligations of ther®vers to the Lenders now or hereafter evidedmedr incurred under this Agreemen
any of the other Loan Documents, and (c) the gyioof all Liens securing the obligations evidendgd the Current Credit Agreemt
(including, without limitation, all such Liens graa to or for the benefit of the Collateral Ageaferred to in the Current Credit Agreerr
and/or any of the Lenders thereunder who are Lenaleder this Agreement) shall not be impaired lgyetkecution, delivery or performance
this Agreement or the other Loan Documents. Wittimiting the foregoing, the parties agree thasaturity documents pursuant to which
Agent (including, without limitation, the CollatérAgent referred to in the Current Credit Agreendrds been granted a Lien on any exis
or future property of the Borrowers, and all othean Documents referred to in the Current Credite®gnent, shall in each case remain in
force and effect except as amended hereby or byfime other Loan Documents referred to in thisefggnent.

9.12. Exclusion of Consequential and Sgddamages Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in tAigreement, neither tl
Agent nor any Lender will be liable for, nor wilha measure of damages against them include, umgethaory of liability (whether legal, str
or equitable), any indirect, consequential, inctdérspecial or punitive damages or amounts foin@ss interruption, loss of income, revel
profits or savings arising out of or relating teithperformance or noperformance under this Agreement or any Loan Docujrend th
Borrowers hereby waive any right to pursue or recany of the foregoing damages.

9.13. USA Patriot Act Notice Each Lender and the Agent (for itself and notbemalf of any Lender) hereby notifies
Borrowers that pursuant to the requirements oft8& Patriot Act (Title 11l of Pub. L. 107-56, sigdénto law October 26, 2001) (the “Act’},
is required to obtain, verify and record informatithat identifies the Borrowers, which informatiorcludes the name and address of
Borrowers and other information that will allow $ulcender or the Agent, as applicable, to identify Borrowers in accordance with the Act.
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ARTICLE X

Agent
10.1 Authorization and Actian
@) The Lenders from time to time a pdméyeto hereby irrevocably appoint First Natioratlze Agent and authorize the Ac

to take such actions on their behalf and to exersish powers as are delegated to the Agent higtins of the Loan Documents, together
such actions and powers as are reasonably incidaetato.

(b) The Agent shall have the same rigimd powers in its capacity as a Lender as the atheders and may exercise the s
as though it were not the Agent, and the AgenttardAgent's affiliates may accept deposits fromgdlenoney to and generally engage in
kind of business with Borrowers or any of their sidiaries or affiliate as if it were not the Agdrdreunder. The term "Lender" as used in
Agreement and the other Loan Documents, unlessdhéext otherwise clearly requires, includes theergin its individual capacity as
Lender.

(c) The Agent shall not have any dutiebligations except those expressly set forthhis Agreement and the other L«
Documents. Without limiting the generality of tli@regoing, (i) the Agent shall not be subject toy diduciary or other implied dutie
regardless of whether an Event of Default has geduand is continuing, (ii) the Agent shall not Bany duty to take any discretionary ac
or exercise any discretionary powers, except digerary rights and powers expressly contemplatedhkyLoan Documents that the Ager
required to exercise in writing by the Required ders, and (iii) except as expressly set forth @nltban Documents, the Agent shall not t
any duty to disclose, and shall not be liable Far failure to disclose, any information relatingBtorrowers or any of Borrowers' subsidiarie
affiliates that is communicated to or obtained oy Agent or any of the Agent's affiliates in anpaeity. The Agent shall not be liable for
action taken or not taken by it with the consenatthe request of the Required Lenders or iratheence of the Agent's own gross neglig
or willful misconduct. The Agent will not be deedh have knowledge of any Event of Default unisd until written notice thereof is giv
to the Agent by Borrowers or the other Lenders.otJthe occurrence of an Event of Default, the Al take such action with respect to
enforcement of the Liens on the Collateral underltban Documents and the preservation and protettiereof as it shall be directed to t
by the Required Lenders, but unless and until tequired Lenders have given such direction the Agbatl take or refrain from taking st
actions as it reasonably deems appropriate. leveat, however, shall the Agent be required to takeaction in violation of applicable law
of any provision of any Loan Document, and the Agarall in all cases be fully justified in failingr refusing to act hereunder or under
other Loan Document unless it shall be first indéimad to its reasonable satisfaction by the Lendether than the Agent in its capacity :
Lender) against any and all costs, expense, ahdityawhich may be incurred by it by reason of itak or continuing to take any st
action. In all cases in which this Agreement dmel dther Loan Documents do not require the Agemke certain actions, the Agent shal
fully justified in using its discretion in failintp take or in taking any action hereunder and theder. The Agent will not be responsible fo
have any duty to ascertain or inquire into (A) atgtement, warranty or representation made in eoimection with any Loan Document,
the contents of any certificate, report or othecutnent delivered thereunder or in connection thiheyC) the performance or observanc
any of the covenants, agreements or other ternesraditions set forth in any Loan Document, (D) tadidity, enforceability, effectiveness
genuineness of any Loan Document or any other aggee instrument or document, or (E) the satisfactif any condition set forth in Artic
VIII or elsewhere in any Loan Document, other thagonfirm receipt of items expressly required éodelivered to the Agent.
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(d) The Agent shall be entitled to relyon, and shall not incur any liability for relyingpon, any notice, request, certifici
consent, statement, instrument, document or othiing/believed by it to be genuine and to haverbsigned or sent by the proper person.
Agent also may rely upon any statement made twltyoor by telephone and believed by it to be magehe proper person, and shall not it
any liability for relying thereon. The Agent magrsult with legal counsel (who may be counsel forrBwers), independent accountants
other experts selected by it, and shall not bddi&tx any action taken or not taken by it in actzorce with the advice of any such cour
accountants or experts.

(e) The Agent may perform any and alldtgies and exercise its rights and powers by oouijh one or more subgent
appointed by the Agent. The Agent and any suchagimt may perform any and all its duties and egerits rights and powers through tl
respective affiliates and subsidiaries. The exatalfy provisions of the preceding subsections ©f 8ection 10.1 shall apply to any such sub-
agent and to the affiliates and subsidiaries ofAgent and any such swgent, and shall apply to their respective acésiin connection wi
the administration of the credit facilities provitifor herein as well as activities as the Agent.

® Subject to the appointment and acaep of a successor Agent as provided in this stibsg(f), the Agent may resign at ¢
time as Agent by notifying the other Lenders andr8oers. Upon any such resignation, Lenders stealé the right to appoint a successo
no successor shall have been so appointed by théet® other than the Agent and such successor rattaave accepted such appointr
within 30 days after the Agent gives notice ofrigsignation, then the Agent may, on behalf of tleaders, appoint a successor Agent w
shall be a Lender or an affiliate of a Lender. bplee appointment of a successor Agent as the Agaeunder, such successor shall succe
and become vested with all the rights, powers,ilpdes and duties of the retiring Agent, and swetiring Agent shall be discharged from
duties and obligations hereunder. The fees payaplBorrowers to a successor Agent shall be the sasnghose payable to its predece
unless otherwise agreed between Borrowers and sumtessor. After the Agestresignation hereunder, the provisions of thischatshal
continue in effect for the benefit of such retiriAgent, its sutagents and their respective affiliates and subsédian respect of any actic
taken or omitted to be taken by any of them whilgds acting as the Agent.

(9) Each Lender acknowledges that itihdependently and without reliance upon the Agerficst National and based on s
documents and information as it has deemed apjteprinade its own credit analysis and decisiomterdnto this Agreement. Each Len
also acknowledges that it will, independently anihaut reliance upon First National or the Agentdamased on such documents
information as it shall from time to time deem agptate, continue to make its own decisions inriglor not taking action under or based
this Agreement, any other Loan Document or anytedlagreement or any document furnished hereundéeceunder. It is the responsibi
of each Lender to keep itself informed as the ¢veatithiness of the Borrowers and the value of tldlaferal, and the Agent shall have
liability to any Lender with respect thereto.
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(h) Each Lender agrees to reimburse thenffor all out-ofpocket costs and expenses suffered or incurretidpgent or an
security trustee in performing its duties undes tAgreement and under the other Loan Documenta theexercise of any right or pow
imposed or conferred upon the Agent hereby or thefexcept to the extent that such costs and ergeadse out of the Agent's or s
security trustee's gross negligence or willful raisduct), to the extent that the Agent is not prdynmimbursed for the same by the Borrow
or out of the Collateral, all such costs and expsrshall be borne by the Lenders ratably in acomelsvith their respective Percentages.

10.2. Indemnification Each Lender other than the Agent agrees to indfgnthe Agent (to the extent not reimbursed
Borrowers), ratably according to the respectivecBatage of the Loans, from and against any antiabillities, obligations, losses, damag
penalties, actions, judgments, suits, costs, exggeasdisbursements of any kind or nature whatsogkieh may be imposed on, incurred by
asserted against the Agent in any way relating triging out of this Agreement or any other LoascDment or any action taken or omittec
the Agent under this Agreement or any other Loaeubeent,providedthat each Lender shall not be liable for any partid such liabilities
obligations, losses, damages, penalties, actiodgnjents, suits, costs, expenses or disbursemesniking from the Agen$’ gross negligen
or willful misconduct in connection with the Agenthcts or omissions with respect to this Agreensentt the Loan Documents. With
limitation of the foregoing, each Lender other thlha Agent agrees to reimburse the Agent promgilynudemand for its ratable share of
out-of-pocket expenses (including counsel fees) incurgethb Agent in connection with the preparation,aen, delivery, administratio
modification, amendment or enforcement (whethesubh negotiations, legal proceedings or otherwa$epr legal advice in respect of rig
or responsibilities under, this Agreement or arlyeotLoan Document to the extent that the Agentosreimbursed for such expenses
Borrowers.

ARTICLE Xl
Yield Protection

11.1. Yield Protection(a) Increased Costs If, due to either (i) the introduction of or anflange in or in the interpretatior
any law or regulation after the date hereof, grtfie compliance with any guideline or request frany central bank or other governme
authority (whether or not having the force of laggued or made after the date hereof (any suocbduttion, change, guideline or request b
referred to herein as aRegulatory Changé), there shall be reasonably incurred any increasgedrtost to any Lender of agreeing to mak
making, funding or maintaining Advances accruintgiiest at the LIBOR Rate, then Borrowers shall fiiimre to time, upon demand by
Agent, jointly and severally pay to the Agent foetaccount of such Lenders, additional amountscgerft to compensate such Lenders for
increased cost. A certificate as to the amoursuch increased cost and giving a reasonable exjmarthereof, submitted to Borrowers sl
constitute such demand and shall be conclusivébantting for all purposes, absent manifest error.
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(b) Capital.If any Lender determines that (i) as a result 8fegulatory Change, compliance with any law or ratjoh or an
guideline or request from any central bank or otd@rernmental authority (whether or not having fitree of law) affects or would affect 1
amount of capital required or expected to be maiathby such Lender, whether directly, or indineadk a result of commitments of :
corporation controlling such Lender (but withouptication), and (ii) the amount of such capitainsreased by or based upon (A) the exist
of such Lendes commitment to lend hereunder, or (B) the pardittgn in or issuance or maintenance of any Advarae (C) other simili
such commitments, then, upon demand by such LeBaerpowers shall immediately and jointly and sellgrpay to the Agent for the accol
of such Lender from time to time as specified bghsuender additional amounts sufficient to compensaich Lender in the light of st
circumstances, to the extent that such Lender naddp determines such increase in capital to becalile to the transactions contempl
hereby. A certificate as to such amounts and gidmreasonable explanation thereof (to the extemijted by law), submitted to Borrow
and the Agent by such Lender, shall be conclusieelanding for all purposes, absent manifest error.

(©) Notices. Each Lender hereby agrees to use commerciaoreble efforts (including the giving of a notineaccordanc
with Section 9.4 above) to notify Borrowers of tiecurrence of any event referred to in subsectigrol (b) of this Section 11.1 promptly a
becoming aware of the occurrence thereof. Theirfaibf either Lender to provide such notice or takendemand for payment under !
subsection shall not constitute a waiver of suchdeg’s rights hereunder.

(d) Survival of Obligations Borrowers' obligations under this Section 1lhalissurvive the repayment of all other amo
owing to the Lenders and the Agent under the Loaouents and the termination of the Loans. If tmthe extent that the obligations
Borrowers under this Section 11.1 are unenforcefslany reason, Borrowers agree to make the maxiroontribution to the payment ¢
satisfaction thereof which is permissible underliagble law.

11.2. Taxes(a) All payments by Borrowers hereunder and utiderother Loan Documents shall be made free agat df an
without deduction for all present or future taxksjes, imposts, deductions, charges or withholslirand all liabilities with respect there
excluding, in the case of any Lender, taxes imposed oneitsntome, and franchise taxes imposed on it byjuhisdiction under the laws
which such Lender is organized or any political diulsion thereof and, in the case of any Lendexesaimposed on its net income,
franchise taxes imposed on it by the jurisdictidrsach Lender’s applicable lending office or anyitizal subdivision thereof (all such non-
excluded taxes, levies, imposts, deductions, clsargighholdings and liabilities being hereinafteferred to as Taxes”). If either Borrowe
shall be required by law to deduct any Taxes fronm eespect of any sum payable hereunder or uadgiother Loan Document to any Len
(i) the sum payable shall be increased as may bessary so that after making all required dedusti@ncluding deductions applicable
additional sums payable under this Section 11.2hduender receives an amount equal to the sum uldvbave received had no si
deductions been made, (ii) such Borrower shall ngilah deductions and (iii) such Borrower shall gheg/full amount deducted to the rele\
taxation authority or other authority in accordamgth applicable law.
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(b) In addition, each Borrower jointlycageverally agrees to pay any present or futurasiar documentary taxes or any o
excise or property taxes, charges or similar lethes arise from any payment made hereunder orruange other Loan Document or from
execution, delivery or registration of, or othervisith respect to, this Agreement or any other LBarcument (hereinafter referred to as “
Other Taxes)).

(c) Each Borrower jointly and severallyegs to indemnify each Lender for the full amountaxes and Other Taxes (includ
any Taxes and any Other Taxes imposed by any jatied on amounts payable under this Section 14a2) by such Lender and any liabi
(including penalties, interest and expenses, exte@ny penalties, interest and expenses causéhebgross negligence or willful miscond
of such Lender) arising therefrom or with respéeréto, whether or not such Taxes or Other Taxee warrectly or legally asserted. T
indemnification shall be made within 30 days frdma tlate such Lender makes written demand thergfoch demand shall be accompaniet
a statement providing an explanation of the fants@alculations that form the basis of such demand.

(d) Within 30 days after the date of gayment of Taxes, Borrowers will furnish to the Agéhe original or a certified copy
a receipt evidencing payment thereof or, if a ngtcisi unavailable, such other evidence reasonattigfactory to the Agent.

(e) Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreent of Borrowers hereunder, the agreements éntlgad sever:
obligations of Borrowers contained in this Sectidh2 shall survive the repayment of all other amounténgwo the Lenders and the Ag
under the Loan Documents and the termination ofLttens. If and to the extent that the obligatioh8orrowers under this Section 11.2
unenforceable for any reason, each Borrower agi@esake the maximum contribution to the payment aatisfaction thereof which
permissible under applicable law.

A CREDIT AGREEMENT MUST BE IN WRITING TO BE ENFORCE ABLE UNDER NEBRASKA LAW. TO PROTECT YOU
(BORROWER) AND US (LENDER) FROM ANY MISUNDERSTANDIN GS OR DISAPPOINTMENTS, ANY CONTRACT,
PROMISE, UNDERTAKING, OR OFFER TO FOREBEAR REPAYMEN T OF MONEY OR TO MAKE ANY OTHER FINANCIAL

ACCOMMODATION IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LOAN OF MONEY  OR GRANT OR EXTENSION OF CREDIT, OR ANY
AMENDMENT OF, CANCELLATION OF, WAIVER OF, OR SUBSTI TUTION FOR ANY OR ALL OF THE TERMS OR
PROVISIONS OF ANY INSTRUMENT OR DOCUMENT EXECUTED | N CONNECTION WITH THIS LOAN OF MONEY OR
GRANT OR EXTENSION OF CREDIT, MUST BE IN WRITING TO BE EFFECTIVE.

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caubedAgreement to be executed by their duly autteatiofficers on the di
and year first above written.

SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERTIES, LLC, a South Dakota linaii
liability company, by its Company Manager, THE SUMMGROUP,
INC.

By: /s/ Kerry W. Boekelheic

Kerry W. Boekelheide, Chief Executive Offic
Date: 8/19/1(

SUMMIT HOSPITALITY V, LLC, a South Dakota limiteddbility
company, by its sole member, SUMMIT HOTEL PROPERSJIELC,
by its Company Manager, SUMMIT GROUP, IN

By: /s/ Kerry W. Boekelheic

Kerry W. Boekelheide, Chief Executive Offic
Date: 8/19/1(
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FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA, as a Lender and as Age

By: /s/Marc T. Wisdon

Title: Vice Presiden
8/19/10
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BANK MIDWEST, N.A., as a Lende

By: /s/ Andrew D. Coope

Title: Vice Presiden
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CRAWFORD COUNTY TRUST & SAVINGS, as a Lend

By: /s/Larry E. Anderse

Title: SVP
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QUAD CITY BANK & TRUST COMPANY, as a Lende

By: /s/ Rebecca Skafidi

Title: Vice Presiden
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M & | MARSHALL & ILSLEY BANK, as a Lender

By: /s/ Mark Kockansk

Title: Vice Presiden
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BANKERS TRUST COMPANY, as a Lend

By: /s/Jonathon Dol

Title: Vice Presiden
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EXHIBIT A
(Definitions)

“Administrative Agent” means First National Bank©@fnaha and its successors, assigns and replacements
“Appraised Value” means the “as stabilized” valdi@dlotel, determined by appraisals of such Hol¢himed by Agent.
"Agent" means the Administrative Agent and the &tltal Agent, collectively.

“Audit Committee” means each Borrower’s respectialit Committee established pursuant to such BoertswOperating Agreement, which
Audit Committee shall contain independent members.

“Business Day” means any day other than a Satuayday or other day on which commercial banksrimafa, Nebraska or New York, New
York are authorized or required to close or any alayvhich dealings between banks are not carrieid @hS. dollar deposits in London,
England.

“Collateral Agent” means First National Bank of Gmazand its successors, assigns and replacements.

"Debt" means with respect to any Person, withoyidation, (a) all obligations of such Person forfowed money or with respect to deposits
or advances of any kind, (b) all obligations oftsierson evidenced by bonds, debentures, notémitaranstruments, (c) all obligations of
such Person upon which interest charges are custgmpaid, (d) all obligations of such Person undenditional sale or other title retention
agreements relating to property acquired by suckdpe (e) all obligations of such Person in respéthie deferred purchase price of property
or services (excluding current accounts payableried in the ordinary course of business), (fPabt of others secured by (or for which the
holder of such Debt has an existing right, contirige otherwise, to be secured by) any Lien on ergpowned or acquired by such Person,
whether or not the Debt secured thereby has besemeesl, (g) all guarantees by such Person of Detithef's, (h) all capital lease obligations
(as determined in accordance with generally acdegrteounting principles) of such Person, (i) aligdtions, contingent or otherwise, of such
Person as an account party in respect of lettecgedlit and letters of guaranty and (j) all obligas, contingent or otherwise, of such Person in
respect of bankers’ acceptances. The Debt of amgoR shall include the Debt of any other entitgl(iding any partnership in which such
Person is a general partner) to the extent sucdoRes liable therefor as a result of such Pessomnership interest in or other relationship 1
such entity, except to the extent the terms of &bt provide that such Person is not liable traref




“Debt Service Coverage Ratio” shall be calculatedsistent with the principles used in the preparedf the financial statements referenced in
Section 4.7 of this Agreement as EBITDA during titaling four (4) quarters divided by principal aimierest payments on the aggregate first
mortgage term debt scheduled and paid during #iknty four (4) quarters. Expenses of Borrowersded with loan proceeds from the
refinance of a Hotel(s) owned by a Borrower wherehdoan proceeds are used for repair and maintenafinsuch Hotel(s) shall be excluded
from the determination of the Debt Service Coverggdo for such Borrower.

"Defaulting Lender" means any Lender that (a) laéled to advance to the Agent any portion of thansrequired to be funded by such Ler
pursuant to this Agreement on the date requirdzbtiunded by such Lender pursuant to this Agreemedtsuch failure is continuing on the
date of determination, (b) has otherwise failegdg over to the Agent any other amount requiregetpaid by such Lender under this
Agreement or under any Loan Document within oneB{19iness Day of the date when due, unless thesudi a good faith dispute and such
failure is continuing on the date of determination(c) has been deemed insolvent, become theaudfja bankruptcy or insolvency
proceeding or had its assets and/or control frazeseized by the applicable banking regulatorstioerogovernmental agency.

"EBITDA" means, for either Borrower for any peridtie net income of such Borrower before provisimnificome taxes, interest expense
(including implicit interest expense on capitalizedses), depreciation expense, amortization expamd non-recurring renovation/remodel
expenses funded with the proceeds of a Loan or ot operating sources and other non-cash expensdsmrges, excluding (to the extent
included): (a) non-operating gains (including ertidinary or nonrecurring gains, gains from disturgnce of operations and gains arising
from the sale of assets other than the sale ohiiove in the ordinary course of such Borrower’sihass) during the relevant period; and (b)
similar non-operating losses during such period.

“Hotel” means a limited service hotel owned by aBwer securing the Loans.

“Lien" means, with respect to any asset, any mgeghen, pledge, charge, assignment, securityaater other encumbrance of any kind in
respect of such asset.

“Loans” means collectively, the Pool One Term Loand the Pool Two Term Loans.

"Material Adverse Effect" means, with respect tg ament, act, condition or occurrence of whatesure (including any adverse
determination in any litigation, arbitration, ongwnmental investigation or proceeding), whethegglarly or in conjunction with any other
event or events, act or acts, condition or conaifjmccurrence or occurrences whether or not telatenaterial adverse change in, or a material
adverse effect on, (i) the business, operatiossilteeof operations, financial condition, assetdjateral or liabilities, of either Borrower, (iihe
ability of either Borrower to perform any of itsl@ations under the Loan Documents to which it [saaty, (iii) the rights and remedies of
Lenders under any of the Loan Documents or (iv)elelity, validity or enforceability of any of tHeoban Documents.

"Percentage" means, with respect to each Lendepdicentage set forth in the table below for easider:




LENDER PERCENTAGE

First National Bank of Omar 20%
M &I 20%

Bank Midwesi 30%

Quad City 10%
Bankers Trus 10%
Crawford County 10%
Total 100%

"Person” means any natural person, corporatioritddhiiability company, trust, joint venture, assdion, company, partnership, governmental
department or authority or other entity.

“Pool One Loan Formula” has the meaning given thaerm in Section 1.4 of this Agreement.

"Pool One Term Loan Termination Date" means théesato occur of (i) July 31, 2011 or (ii) the dahe Pool One Term Loans are
accelerated due to the occurrence and continudrare Bvent of Default beyond any applicable graceatice and cure period.

"Pool Two Loan Formula" has the meaning given tthsierm in Section 2.3 of this Agreement.

“Required Lenders” means Lenders holding fifty-geecent (51%) or more of the aggregate outstangtimgipal balance of the Loans at the
relevant time.

"Reserve Hotel" means each of the Staybridge Sintéackson, MS, the Courtyard by Matrriott in JackdMS, the Courtyard by Marriott in
Germantown, TN and the Hyatt Place in Atlanta, @4ch of which is encumbered by the Mortgage.

"Total Debt" shall mean on the date of any deteatiim thereof the aggregate of the Debt outstandimthe (i) Fortress Debt, plus (ii) any
Debt of Borrowers, The Summit Group, Inc. and affijigte or subsidiary of either Borrower or Ther8mit Group, Inc., to the extent of
Borrowers ownership interest in such affiliate obsidiary, secured by a mortgage, deed of trusitroitar instrument on real property ownec
leased by such Borrower, The Summit Group, In@nyrsuch affiliate or subsidiary, including, withdinitation, and Loan under this
Agreement, the Current Loan Agreement or undet.tan Agreement with First National described int®er6.4(c), plus (iii) any unsecured
Debt owed by either Borrower, The Summit Group, Inc any affiliate or subsidiary of either Borrawer The Summit Group, Inc., to First
National.




All accounting terms not specifically defined harshall be construed in accordance with generaltgpted accounting principles, as in effect
in the United States. "Including” (and with coatye meaning “include”) means including withouniiing the generality of any description
preceding such term. This Agreement and the dtban Documents shall be construed without regaahiopresumption or rule requiring
construction against the party causing any suclhimeat or any portion thereof to be drafted. ThetiSe and other headings in this Agreen
and any index in this Agreement are for conveniefaeference only and shall not limit or otherwéféect any of the terms of this
Agreement. Similarly, any page footers or headeimilar word processing, document or page idieation numbers in this Agreement or
any index or exhibit are for convenience of refeeenonly and shall not limit or otherwise affect arfythe terms of this Agreement, nor shall
there be any requirement that any such footershar mumbers be consistent from page to page. s9tifee context clearly requires otherwise,
any reference to a Section of this Agreement refeed| Sections and Subsections thereunder. Aagqun used herein shall be deemed to
cover all genders. Defined terms used in this Agrent may be set forth in this Exhibit or othert®exs of this Agreement, and all such
definitions defined in the singular shall have aesponding meaning when used in the plural anel végsa.




SCHEDULE 3.2
(Mortgages)

Deed of Trust dated May 1, 2007 between Summit Halgg and Agent recorded in the Office of the @ouClerk of Dallas County
Texas deed of trust records as Instrument #2008G s amended by that certain Amendment To DE&dust dated May 1, 2008
between Summit Hospitality and Agent recorded en@ffice of the County Clerk of Dallas County, Texdeed of trust records as
Instrument #20080179195 and by that certain Seéanendment of Deed of Trust of even date with thigegement, executed by
Summit Hospitality in favor of the Agent in conniect with the Hyatt Place Pool One Term Lo

Deed of Trust dated May 1, 2007 between Surhlios$pitality and Agent recorded in the Office of theunty Clerk of Dallas County,
Texas deed of trust records as Instrument #20081B3.as amended by that certain Amendment To DE&dust dated May 1, 2008
between Summit Hospitality and Agent recorded en@ffice of the County Clerk of Dallas County, Texdeed of trust records as
Instrument #20080179224 and by that certain Seéanendment of Deed of Trust of even date with thigegement, executed by
Summit Hospitality in favor of the Agent in conniect with the Holiday Inn Express Pool One Term Lc

Deed of Trust dated June 5, 2007 between Suhiosipitality and the Agent recorded in the reah&stecords of Madison County,
Mississippi deed of trust records as Instrumen6£52 in Book 2198 beginning at Page 0448, as antelgl¢éhat certain First
Amendment of Deed of Trust of even date with thigeement, executed by Summit Hospitality in favibthe Agent in connection
with the Staybridge Suites Pool One Term Lc

Deed of Trust dated June 24, 2008 between Suhhospitality and the Agent recorded in the redhtesrecords of Hinds County,
Mississippi deed of trust records as Instrumen682B0 in Book 6908 beginning at Page 507, as antelngl¢hat certain First
Amendment of Deed of Trust of even date with thigeement, executed by Summit Hospitality in favibthe Agent in connection
with the Jackson Courtyard Pool Two Term Lc

Deed of Trust dated June 24, 2008 between Sumnsipitidity and the Agent recorded in the real estaterds of Shelby Count
Tennessee records as Instrument #08106576 in fice©f the Register of Deeds of Shelby County,lessee, as amended by that
certain First Amendment of Deed of Trust of evetedaith this Agreement, executed by Summit Hosjitytath favor of the Agent in
connection with the Germantown Courtyard Pool TveoriT Loan.




Deed To Secure Debt dated April 10, 2006 betvw&enmit Hotel and the Agent recorded April 13, 2@dthe Office of the Clerk of
Superior Court, Fulton County, Georgia as Instrur#06-0112083 in Book 42359 at Page 172, as aatkinygl that certain
Amendment To Deed To Secure Debt dated May 23, B@0¥een Summit Hotel and the Agent recorded irCifice of the Clerk of
Superior Court, Fulton County, Georgia as Instrun# 0070157036 in Deed Book 45090 at Page 686, by th&aioedmendment T
Deed To Secure Debt dated June 23, 2008 betweemiBitatel and the Agent recorded in the Officelod Clerk of Superior Court,
Fulton County, Georgia as Instrument #2008-01696432ced Book 46986 at Page 609 and by that ceftaiml Amendment To Deed
To Secure Debt dated of even date with this Agreenexecuted and delivered by Hotel in favor of Ageent in connection with the
Hyatt Place Pool Two Term Loa




SCHEDULE 4.5
(Permitted Liens)

None




SCHEDULE 5.3(c)
(Compliance Certificate)

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

The undersigned certifies that he/she currenttiies of Summit Hotel Propertie€, and Summit Hospitality
V, LLC (collectively, “Company”), each a South Da&dimited liability company, and that he/she hadividually reviewed the provisions of
the Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreemengbet@ompany, Agent and the Lenders a party thdegtxl August , 2010 (as it
may be amended from time to time, the “Loan Agremt)exnd that a review of the activities of the Compaimge the most recent Compliar
Certificate was delivered to Lenders has been rbgdeém/her or under his/her supervision, with awte determining whether Company has
fulfilled all their respective obligations undeethoan Agreement, including, but not limited tog thffirmative, Financial and Negative
Covenants contained in the Loan Agreement. Compangby certifies to Lenders that Company has eksgeaind performed each undertak
contained in the Loan Agreement and that no EvEbedault has occurred or is existing under then_dgreement or any other Loan
Document. Set forth below are financial covenaaaisurements for the periods covered by this Comgsi&ertificate as required by the Loan
Agreement. Also attached hereto are all relevactsfin reasonable detail to evidence the compusbf the financial covenants, which were
computed in accordance with the terms of the LogreAment.

For the period between ,200__and , 200

l. Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Company’s Debt Service Coverage Ratio as of theoétige period covered by Certificate:

Required Debt Service Coverage Ratio:1.5:1.0
Calculation of Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

Earnings before

Interest

Income taxes ,

Depreciation ,

Amortization and
Non-recurring renovation/remodel expenses funded thighproceeds of a Loan or other non-operating surc , divided
by

Principal and interest payments on the aggregeterfiortgage term debt scheduled and paid duriegr#iling 4 quarters

Equals




Il. Total Debt Covenant
Total Debt outstanding as of the end of the pecimebred by this Certificate equals: $

Required Total Debt: Not in excess of $450,000,000

[l Defaults
The undersigned hereby certifies that the aboverteg information is correct, and that
[ ] No event of default has occurred; or
[ ] Anevent of default has occurred underftillowing circumstances:
(Insert detail or attach description)

V. Maintenance and Capital Expenditure Rserve

Gross Revenues for each Reserve Hotel as of thefehd period covered by this Certificate:

Maintenance and Capital Expenditure Reserves diegoss of the end of the period covered by thidif@ete for each Hotel:

Required Maintenance and Capital Expenditure Reserv

3% of gross revenues for each Hotel.

By: Date:

Title:




EXHIBIT 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

The Board of Directors
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irréiggstration statement (No. 333-172145) on Forehd3-Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. of «
reports dated March 31, 2011, with respect to thesclidated balance sheet of Summit Hotel Propertiec. as of December 31, 2010;
consolidated balance sheet of Summit Hotel OP, 4 BfdDecember 31, 2010; and the consolidated balaheet of Summit Hotel Propert
LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010, hrdr¢lated consolidated statements of operatidremges in member&quity, and cas
flows for the year ended December 31, 2010, anddteed financial statement schedule 1ll, whichars appear in the December 31, 2
annual report on Form 10-K of Summit Hotel Progestinc. and Summit Hotel OP, LP.

/s KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
March 31, 2011



EXHIBIT 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

To the Board of Directors
Summit Hotel Properties, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statement (No. 333-172145) on For&hd@-Summit Hotel Properties, Inc. of (
report dated March 31, 2010, with respect to thesotidated balance sheet of Summit Hotel Propertie€ and subsidiaries as of Decerr
31, 2009, and the related consolidated statemdripeyations, changes in members’ equity, and fas¥s, for each of the years in the two-
year period ended December 31, 2009 and our regamiedd March 31, 2010 related to the internal corake@r financial reporting as
December 31, 2009 of Summit Hotel Properties, Liv@ich reports appear in the December 31, 2010 dmepart on Form 1 of Summi
Hotel Properties, Inc. and Summit Hotel OP, LP.

/sl Eide Bailly LLP

Greenwood Village, Colorado
March 31, 2011



EXHIBIT 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

[, Daniel P. Hansen, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessan
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stat@sjeand other financial information included irstheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amndtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrars other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiloleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%anguage omitted in accordance with SEC Reld&is 34-54942] for the
registrant and hawvi

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b. [language omitted in accordance with SEC Release3K-54942];

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures, and presgdntthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures as of the end of the period cougrede report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officergg)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiai@n of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s board of trusté@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectribgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Summit Hotel Properties, In

Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Daniel P. Hanse
Daniel P. Hansen
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Stuart J. Becker, certify that:

5.

Date:

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Summit Hotel Properties, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsit&de a material fact necessan
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ céimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep
The registrant’s other certifying officeréa)d | are responsible for establishing and maiirtgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%anguage omitted in accordance with SEC Reld&ds 34-54942] for the
registrant and havi

a. Designed such disclosure controls and prugesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isig prepared

b. [language omitted in accordance with SEC Release3K-54942];

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presénthis report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintprocedures as of the end of the period coveyele report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officerég)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehtatian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s board of trustéaspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internarobaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatotlwes management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Summit Hotel Properties, In

March 31, 201 By: /s/ Stuart J. Beck
Stuart J. Becker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 31.3

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

[, Daniel P. Hansen, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Summit Hotel OP, LP

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessan
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stat@sjeand other financial information included irstheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amndtf@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrars other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiloleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%anguage omitted in accordance with SEC Reld&is 34-54942] for the
registrant and hawvi

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, paftidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

[language omitted in accordance with SEC Release3¥-54942];

Evaluated the effectiveness of the regissatisclosure controls and procedures, and presgdntthis report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures as of the end of the period cougrede report based on
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in #gistrant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadf, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officergg)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiai@n of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s board of trusté@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectribgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir
Summit Hotel OP, LI
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole mem
Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Daniel P. Hanse

Daniel P. Hanse
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.4
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Stuart J. Becker, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Summit Hotel OP, LF

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cor@@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgiteéde a material fact necessan
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&s under which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ agimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officeréa)d | are responsible for establishing and maiimgidisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%anguage omitted in accordance with SEC Reld&ds 34-54942] for the
registrant and havi

a. Designed such disclosure controls and prugesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhbsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isig prepared

b. [language omitted in accordance with SEC Release3K-54942];

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presénthis report our conclusior
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintprocedures as of the end of the period coveyele report based on
such evaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officeréa)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaemmmittee of the registrant’s board of trustéaspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and materialakeesses in the design or operation of internarobaver financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaad report financial
information; anc

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, thatotlwes management or other employees who have Hiségn role in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Summit Hotel OP, LI
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole mem

Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Stuart J. Beck
Stuart J. Becke
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Summit HReoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fbe fiscal year ended
December 31, 2009 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R@parDaniel P. Hansen, President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted potrso&ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; a
(2) theinformation contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1
Company.
Summit Hotel Properties, In
Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Daniel P. Hanse
Daniel P. Hansen

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Summit HReoperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K fbe fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010 as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R@pdrStuart J. Becker, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adspted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934, as amended; a

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1
Company.

Summit Hotel Properties, In

Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Stuart J. Beck
Stuart J. Becker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.3

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Summit H&, LP (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fitgaar ended December 31,

2009 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, DafleHansen, President and Chief

Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmii8 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuad¢ttion 906 of the Sarban@sdey Act of
2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; a

(2) theinformation contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of 1

Company.
Summit Hotel OP, LI
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole mem
Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Daniel P. Hanse

Daniel P. Hansen
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 32.4

Certification Pursuant To
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Summit H&é, LP (the “Companies”) on Form 10-K for thech$year ended

December 31, 2010 as filed with the SecuritiesEExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R@pdrStuart J. Becker, Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adspted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934, as amended; a

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly grets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1

Company.
Summit Hotel OP, LI
By: Summit Hotel GP, LLC, its general partr
By: Summit Hotel Properties, Inc., its sole mem
Date: March 31, 201 By: /s/ Stuart J. Becki

Stuart J. Becke
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer



